
PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
	

PUBLIC AGENDA 
Thursday, April 15, 2021 

	
Time: 8:30 a.m. 

Non-Public Session: 8:30 a.m. to 9:30 a.m. 
Public Meeting to commence at 9:30 a.m. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS' MEETING 

Due to the COVID-I 9 public health emergency, members of the public are encouraged to attend this meeting remotely 
utilizing the Zoom meeting information, or video live stream option, noted below. All in person meeting attendees are 

required to observe appropriate social distancing, and are required to wear face coverings, while in the Pease 
Development Authority building. Due to room size constraints there will be a limit on the total number of people in the 

meeting room at one time; the PDA respectfully asks attendees to exit the meeting room if you have no additional 
business. Face coverings will be available for those who need them. 

Please note that this meeting will be video/audio recorded. 

Watch Meeting Via Live Stream:  https://townhallstreams.com/towns/pease_dev_nh  

or 

Join Zoom Meeting: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/i/83031577798?pwc1=WENUKIFzeFFpVVRPOURCZzA0cmo1dz09   

Meeting ID: 830 3157 7798 	 Dial by your location: 
Passcode: 998360 	 1-929-205-6099 US (New York) 

Any  member  of the public having difficulty accessing the Zoom  meeting  listed above during the public meeting 
should e-mail: zooneaPeaSedeKgrZ  

AGENDA 

I. Call to Order: 

II. Non-public Session: (Anderson) 

III. Vote of Confidentiality: (Ferrini) 

IV. Acceptance of Meeting Minutes: Board of Directors' Workshop of March 11, 2021 and Board 
of Directors' Meeting of March 18, 2021 * (Loughlin) 

V. Public Comment: 

VI. Committees: 
A. 	Report: 

1. 	Golf Committee* 

VII. Old Business: 
A. 	Approvals: 

1. 	Pease Aviation Partners, LLC (d/b/a Million Air Portsmouth) at 53 Exeter Street — 
FB0 Application * (Fournier) 

1 



2. Pease Aviation Partners, LLC (d/b/a Million Air Portsmouth) at 53 Exeter Street —
Conceptual Site Plan Approval * (Lamson) 

3. 30 New Hampshire Ave. — Authorization to sell PDA owned building and to enter 
long-term ground lease with Spyglass, LLC * (Levesque) 

VIII. Finance: 
A. Executive Summary * 

B. Reports: 
1. FY2021 Financial Report for the Eight Month Period Ending February 28, 2021 * 
2. Cash Flow Projections for the Nine Month Period Ending December 31, 2021 * 
3. Capital Improvement Plan FY 2021 — FY 2027 * 

IX. Licenses/ROEs/Easements/Rights of Way: 
A. 	Reports:* 

1. 	PlaneSense, Inc. — Right of Entry regarding Building 222, 96 Flightline Road 

X. 	Leases: 
A. 	Reports:* 

1. Allegiance Fundraising Group - 222 International Drive 
2. Northeast Credit Union - 100 International Drive, Suite 260 

XI. 	Contracts: 
A. 	Approval: 

1. 	Airport Digital Communications Upgrade * (Fournier) 

XII. Signs: 
A. Reports: * 

1. 	Stewarts Ambulance — 119 International Drive 

B. Approvals: 
1. 	Farley White Pease LLC — 90/100 Arboretum Drive — * (Loughlin) 

XIII. Executive Director: 
A. 	Reports: 

1. Golf Course Operations 
2. Airport Operations 

a) Air Force Open House Update (September 2021) 
b) US Customs Telecom/IT support expenditure 
c) Portsmouth International Airport at Pease (PSM) 
d) Skyhaven Airport (DAW) 
e) Noise Line Report 

(i) 	March 2021 * 

B. 	Approvals: 
1. 	Bills for Legal Services * (Ferrini) 

2 



XIV. Division of Ports and Harbors: 
A. 	Reports: 

1. Port Advisory Council - Minutes of March 10, 2021 * 
2. Commercial Mooring for Hire — Friends Forever, Inc. * 
3. Commercial Mooring for Hire — Bayview Marina — 6 Moorings; Esther's Marina — 3 

Moorings; Gingrich — 1 Mooring; Great Bay Marine — 73 Moorings; Great Bay Yacht 
Club — 11 Moorings; Hampton River Board Club — 2 Moorings; Island Club New 
Castle, Inc. —1 Mooring; Kittery Point Yacht Club — 8 Moorings; Lamprey River 
Marina — 6 Moorings; Metivier — 1 Mooring; Mud Cove Board Yard — 1 Mooring; 
Portsmouth Yacht Club — 14 Moorings; Pull and D.B. Inc. 1 Mooring; Sagamore 
Landing condominium Association — 1 Mooring; Southend Yacht Club — 1 Mooring; 
Split Rock Cove Family Trust - 1 Mooring; Szmyd — 1 Mooring; Warpath Family 
Farm — 1 Mooring; Wentworth by the Sea Dockside Condominium Association - 1 
Mooring; Wentworth by the Sea Marina — 2 Moorings * 

4. Commercial Mooring for Hire — Great Bay Marine — 5 Moorings * 
5. Commercial Mooring Transfer — Lyons to Love * 
6. Commercial Mooring for Hire — Point of View Condominium Association * 
7. Foreign-Trade Zone #81 Annual Report 

B. 	Approvals: 
1. Reappointment of Captain Richard C. Holt, Jr. - Class I Pilot * (Levesque) 
2. Appledore Marine Engineering — Regulatory Approvals for Main Wharf Dredging 

Improvements * (Lamson) 

XV. New Business: 

XVI. Upcoming Meetings: 

Audit Committee 
	

May 17, 2021 @ 8:30 a.m. 
Board of Directors 
	

May 20, 2021 @ 8:30 a.m. 

All Meetings begin at 8:30 a.m. unless otherwise posted. 

XVII. Directors' Comments: 

XVIII. Adjournment: 

XIX. Press Questions: 

Related Materials Attached 
** 	Related Materials Previously Sent 
*** 	Related Materials will be provided under separate cover 

Materials to be distributed at Board Meeting 
MI 	Confidential Materials 

PABOARDMTG\AGENDAS - Current \Agenda April 15, 2021.docx 

3 



Ole-- 

PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

RIGHT TO KNOW UPDATE: Effective January 1, 2018, RSA 91 -A, the Right to Know Law was modified to include that "If a 

member of the public body believes that any discussion in a meeting of the body, including in a nonpublic session, violates 

this chapter, the member may object to the discussion. If the public body continues the discussion despite the objection, 

the objecting member may request that his or her objection be recorded in the minutes and may then continue to participate 

in the discussion without being subject to the penalties of RSA 92-A:8, IV or V. Upon such request, the public body shall 

record the member's objection in its minutes of the meeting. If the objection is to a discussion in nonpublic session, the 

objection shall also be recorded in the public minutes, but the notation in the public minutes shall include only the members 

name, a statement that he or she objected to the discussion in nonpublic session, and a reference to the provision of RSA 

91-A:3, II, that was the basis for the discussion." 

MOTION  

Director Anderson: 

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors will enter non- 

public session pursuant to NH RSA 91 -A:3 for the purpose of discussing: 

1. Sale or Lease of Real or Personal Property [RSA 91-A:3, II (d)]; and 

2. Consideration of Legal Advice provided by Legal Counsel [NH RSA 

91-A:3, II (I)]. 

	

NOTE: 	Roll Call vote required. 

N: \ RESOLVES\ 2021 \ Non-Public Lease - Sale of Property 4-15-21.docx 

TAKING YOU THERE 



PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

MOTION  

Director Ferrini: 

Resolved, pursuant to NH RSA 91 -A:3, the Pease Development 

Authority Board of Directors hereby determines that the divulgence of 

information discussed and decisions reached in the non-public session of 

its April 15, 2021, meeting related to the sale or lease of property and the 

consideration of legal advice from legal counsel are matters which, if 

disclosed publically, would render the proposed actions ineffective and 

further agrees that the minutes of said meeting be held confidential until, 

in the opinion of a majority of the Board of Directors, the aforesaid 

circumstances no longer apply. 

NOTE: 	Roll Call vote required. 

N: \RESOLVES\ 2021 \Confidentiality 4-1 5-21.docx 

TAKING YOU THERE 



Owl-- 
PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

MOTION  

Director Loughlin: 

I make a motion to approve the minutes of the Pease Development 

Authority Board of Directors Workshop meeting dated Thursday, March 11, 

2021 and meeting dated Thursday, March 18, 2021. 

NOTE: 	Roll Call vote required. 

N• \ RESOLVES \ 2021 \Approval of Minutes 4-15-2021.docx 

TAKING YOU THERE 



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MINUTES 
Thursday, March 11, 2021 
Public Workshop Meeting commenced at 10:00 a.m. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS' WORKSHOP SESSION 

Pursuant to NH RSA 91-A:2 III (b) PDA Chairman Kevin Smith has declared COVID-19 an emergency 
condition and has waived the requirement that a quorum be physically present at the Board meeting in 
accordance with the Governor's Executive Order 2020-04, Section 8, as extended by Executive Order 
2021-02, and Emergency Order #12, Sections 3 and 4. PDA Directors will be participating remotely 
and will identify their location and any person present with them at that location. Please note that this 
meeting will be video / audio recorded. 

Presiding: 	Kevin H. Smith, Chairman 
Present: 	 Peter J. Loughlin, Vice Chair; Erik Anderson; Thomas Ferrini; Steve Fournier; 

Margaret F. Lamson; and Neil Levesque 
Attending: 	Pease Development Authority ("PDA") staff on the Zoom meeting were Executive 

Director Paul E. Brean ("Brean"); PDA Deputy Director / General Counsel 
Anthony I. Blenkinsop ("Blenkinsop"); Engineering Manager Maria Stowell 
("Stowell"); Andrew Pomeroy, Manager Aviation Planning & Regulatory 
Compliance; IT Director Greg Siegenthaler ("Siegenthaler"); Raeline A. O'Neil, 
Legal Executive Assistant and members of the public. 

T. 	Call to Order: 
Chairman Smith ("Smith") called the meeting to order at 10:06 a.m. 

Smith welcomed the PDA Board of Directors, PDA Staff, members of the public to the meeting. 
The Board of Directors confirmed their presence on the call, physical location, and advised if there were 
any other individuals present with them: 

Chairman Kevin Smith was located in Londonderry, NH with no other individual(s) present in 
the room. 

Vice Chair Peter Loughlin ("Loughlin") was located in Portsmouth, NH with no other 
individual(s) present in the room. 

Erik Anderson ("Anderson") was located in Portsmouth, NH with no other individual(s) present 
in the room. 

Thomas Ferrini ("Ferrini") was located in Dover, NH with no other individual(s) present in the 
room. 

Steve Fournier ("Fournier") was located in Dover, NH with no other individual(s) present in the 
room. 

Peggy Lamson ("Lamson") was located in Portsmouth, NH with no other individual(s) present in 
the room. 

Neil Levesque ("Levesque") was located in Springfield, NH with no other individual(s) present 
in the room. 

Pease Development Authority 
	

Board of Directors Workshop 	 March 11. 2021 



2 

PDA IT Director Greg Siegenthaler was the moderator for the meeting who advised that meeting 
was being audio recorded. 

IL 	Pease Aviation Partners, LLC (d/b/a Million Air Portsmouth) Application to become an 
Fixed Base Operator (FBO): 

A. 	FBO Application 

Presenting on behalf of Million Air were Roger Woolsey CEO ("Woolsey); Charles Suma COO 
("Suma") and Jennifer Gomes VP ("Gomes") who were located in Houston, TX. 

Suma started the workshop and asked that the PowerPoint presentation be shared as a visual for 
"walk through purposes" indicating its compliance with the Minimum Standards requirements. 

Slide 1: Suma spoke to a general view of Million Air application / plans for the construction / 
operation of a full service FBO operation (slide included rendering of the location). The project would 
be accomplished in two phases. Phase 1 would be a fuel farm and use of an existing building as the 
FBO while FBO and hangar would be built onsite. The fuel farm would be first and then the building 
(all phases would have to go before the Technical Review for compliance with all environmental 
regulations). 

Suma indicated the purpose of the PowerPoint is to provide an overview of how Million Air 
would comply / exceed the Minimum Standards. The left side of the PowerPoint indicated the 
Minimum Standard and the right side indicated how Million Air proposed to comply. Gomes will be the 
individual to walk through the technical components of the presentation. 

Slide 2: Fuel Farm — Gomes spoke of the storage requirements and how Million Air would have 
90,000 gallons of Jet A fuel and 15,000 gallons of Avgas and the number of vehicles for refueling 
purposes to start. Gomes also spoke to a fuel accountant to met the requirement for inventory 
management - this is done at all stations as well. Woolsey stated that Million Air is indicating 
exceeding the Minimum Standard of the allocated equipment for this program. Gomes indicated that a 
full equipment list has been provided as well. Woolsey indicated that this would be Phase 1. 

Slide 3: Dc-icing — Gomes made reference to the number of and type of trucks / equipment 
utilized for this purpose. 

Slide 4: Ground Handling — Gomes talked to the requirements for arrivals / departures and its 
ability to move aircraft up to 75,000 gross weight. Gomes spoke of its line team and the martialing 
(212) which is military hand signals (the highest standard for movement) and being stage ready for 
aircraft. Gomes further indicated that it is a Million Air requirement to have 3 agents to move aircraft in 
and out of hangar. 

Slide 5: Customer Service — Gomes talked to Million Air's high standards for customer service 
and spoke to amenities provided in all locations (i.e.; facility; lounge area; refreshments; flight planning 
area for crew; restrooms; sales counter for pilot supplies). Gomes further indicated the temporary 
facility would have 3,000 sq. ft. and the new FBO would be 6,000 sq. ft. 

Pease Development Authority 
	

Board of Directors Workshop 	 March 11, 2021 



3 

Slide 6: Line Service — Gomes indicated this gets more into the equipment (i.e.; inflation of 
aircraft tires, window servicing, Nitro Carts etc.) and at all locations apply for international trash license 
(done through the Dept. of Agriculture). Gomes stated regarding larger aircrafts who require 
maintenance will be directed to Gamma Aviation Aircraft Maintenance. 

Director Anderson ("Anderson") asked if Million Air has cargo experience or is it a feature of 
proposal with capability; Gomes affirmed. Gomes indicated that it takes care of cargo at other locations 
and something it would want to do at PSM as well. Woolsey indicated it sees this in Portsmouth and 
further indicated that Million Air is part of a city's sales team and helps with transportation of items. 
Woolsey spoke of its collaboration with local governments; knowledge of large / small aircraft freight. 

Slide 7: Hangar Space — Gomes spoke of the hangar space in Phase 1 of project being 17,000 sq. 
ft. and in Phase 2 being 12,000 sq. ft. of hangar space. 

Slide 8: Aircraft Recovery — Gomes spoke of having the equipment and personnel sufficient to 
remove a disabled aircraft up to 12,500 (at other facilities have received call outs for assistance) and the 
equipment utilized is contained in the list. Suma indicated at other locations, Million Air has received 
calls from airport operators for assistance in moving disabled aircraft off the runways / taxiways. 

Slide 9: Collection of Fees — Gomes indicated that at every location there is an accountant who 
manages the collection of fees (total FBO) from aircraft utilizing facility. 

Slide 10: Snow Removal — Gomes stated it would have a pick-up truck with plow; it has had 
conversations with Piscataqua Landscaping regarding services for snow removal and landscaping 
maintenance. Woolsey spoke to discussions with PDA engineering regarding snow areas for movement 
clue to ramp size, parking areas etc. and feel it has adequate sizing available at the facility. 

Slide 11: Minimum Land and Facility Requirements — Gomes spoke of requirements for the 
current location (2.65 ground area; hangar space — 17,000 in Phase 1 and 12,000 in Phase; office space; 
paved apron; fuel storage being 90,000 Jet A Fuel and 15,000 Avgas; parking - Phase 1 16 spots at the 
property and an additional 16 spots leased; in Phase 2, 30 spots off-street parking requirement met by 
leasing of existing facilities or new construction). 

Slide 12: Minimum Management and Staffing Requirements — Gomes stated that at a minimum 
there would be 3 line service staff with 2 overnight; at least 2 customer service agents per shift; a 
general manager and a fuel accountant. All locations are open 24/7, 365 days a year. Employees are 
provided uniforms and PPE to perform their jobs safely and efficiently; employees have the option to 
participate in health, dental and 401k programs. Gomes indicated staffing may be adjusted over time. 

Slide 13: Minimum Hours of Operation — Gomes stated the minimum requirements indicate 
hours of operation for staffing are 7:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m.; however, it is open 24/7 and it is not closed 
on holidays. 

Slide 14: Minimum Insurance Requirements — Gomes indicated that the coverage amounts are 
included in the application and the group is insured as a network. 

Slide 15: Service Standards / Permitted Services — Gomes stated it will handle charter operations 
and will refer aircraft maintenance (over and above filling of tires) to Gamma Aviation. Suma indicated 

Pease Development Authority 
	

Board of Directors Workshop 	 March 11, 2021 



4 

this varies between the business aviation charters and the larger charter flights (i.e.; 737, 757, 767); 
Woolsey indicated it has a 135 as well and Million  Air is also customer and it values all communication 

comps - all dispatched on handling side at Corp. Headquarters which is 24/7 365 days as it has 
worldwide operations (very sophisticated). 

Slide 16: Rates & Charges for Services — Gomes talked of the fee schedule for Portsmouth 
outlined in the application; charter rates quoted individually; and that military rates are through contract. 

Slide 17: State Registration — Gomes stated that it will maintain registration with NH DOT (Div. 
of Aeronautics) and comply with all required licenses / certifications. 

Slide 18: Concerns About Financing — Gomes spoke to the LLC and the previous questions 
posed; this is common as it aligns the business with state and local regulations. Woolsey indicated 
Million Air has been in business since 1986/1987 and have never failed any time when they have been 
granted a lease. Woolsey spoke to financing of projects as well as equity; through the corporate 
structure has plenty of capital (financing, bond raising or equity). Woolsey indicated it is capable of 
putting the entire capital into Phase 1 and Phase 2 of this project (whether it be debt, equity, or 
financing) and indicated there may not be a need of financing for this project. 

Director Levesque ("Levesque") asked if it would use equity to pay for commitments; Woolsey 
indicated that is a consideration. Woolsey indicated that he did not believe there was anything in the 
minimum standards that indicated it cannot use debt / equity, but at this time from where it sits and how 
it is thinking at this time (85% sure) may use pure equity to fund the project and not finance. Levesque 
affirmed that there is nothing in the minimum standards, but in order to meet the minimum standards it 
is necessary to meet the need to be able to pay for these commitments; if go out for bonding that takes a 
considerable amount of time. Woolsey affirmed and stated that is why it is not thinking of doing 
financing, it would be done out of equity. Levesque indicated Woolsey stated it had the capacity to pay 
for this without bonding and with equity; PDA is unable to confirm this ability. Levesque asked if the 
company would be willing to provide certified financial statements to that effect as that would be 
helpful. Levesque indicated that in order to meet the commitments it has to have the money and PDA 
does not have anything to show that Million Air has that capacity. Woolsey indicated it would satisfy 
whatever is requested, whether it is by letter from its financial institution verifying it has a certain 
amount of funds; or the financial institution is backing the project; there are many ways this can be 
done. Levesque indicated the need for more than Million Air's track record; that it would be up to 
Million Air to determine what it thinks is needed to provide in order to show this. Woolsey affirmed 
and indicated it would follow through with that (financial ability). 

Director Lamson ("Lamson") asked about amounts of insurance maintained, specifically 
pollution liability with Allied World. Gomes responded there is $10 million in pollution liability. 
Lamson further asked about ability to do cargo at other airports and types of cargo (asked specifically to 
Syracuse, NY and Albany, NY airports). Woolsey indicated they do cargo and specifically in Albany 
they do horses. Woolsey indicated it had to build special ramps and holding areas in order to get 
livestock loaded/unloaded. Also in Mississippi do cargo for gamma rays and cargo for Boeing aircraft; 
previously stated that ground personnel use martialing and are advanced as have been trained by the 
Blue Angles. Million Air is certified as "hot fuel" meaning it has the ability where aircraft keep the 
engines running (F16 or C130) to be fueled. Woolsey indicated it does training exercises in 
coordination with the military where C130s will back in an unload/load cargo while fueling. Lamson 
asked if they do a lot of cargo along with the military contracts; Woolsey affirmed. Woolsey further 

Pease Development Authority 
	

Board of Directors Workshop 	 March 11, 2021 



5 

stated that it operates all of its properties 24/7, 365; they can operate in a disaster and be considered part 
of first responders (i.e.; Hurricanes/Ice Storms/Warming Facilities etc.) and they have a desire to have 
all properties open, safe and ready providing ready infrastructure and are prepared to provide assistance 
with disaster relief. 

Chairman Smith ("Smith") asked that additional questions to be held until the end of the 
presentation. 

Gomes spoke to the remaining five slides showing photos of other facilities at various locations 
(Houston, White Plains, NY; and the newest facility in Austin). 

Suma indicated at the Austin facility took the same approach as it anticipates for Portsmouth 
with a Phase 1 and 2. It put in a fuel farm, temporary facilities and completed a ramp in order to open 
operations while construction was being done. Suma indicated as the facility and hangars were being 
built, it had customers at the facility' and what Million Air learned through this process was the customer 
saw the progression and returned. Suma indicated a project such as this is done in two phases in order to 
get things up and running, get it cultivated and to show what the Million Air brand is. 

Suma indicated that the presentation to the Board was concluded. 

Smith returned to the Board for questions. 

Anderson asked of financial considerations and the facilities across the franchise; this facility is a 
single LLC (standalone) and asked if any financial statements could be referenced showing what Million 
Air singularly owns or would it be across the whole financial franchise / spectrum of Million Air. 
Woolsey indicated it would stick to what is applicable for this operation. He further indicated that every 
location it owns is a separate LLC and a corporate structure was designed with this in mind; will work to 
satisfy showing financial performance or financial ability to exercise this operation. Suma indicated this 
is typical at airports due to the number of buildings / infrastructure; to create LLCs - this is not an 
uncommon business tool being utilized. 

Director Loughlin ("Loughlin") asked to the reference in Phase 1 of 17,000 sq. ft. hangar space 
and in Phase 2 to a 12,000 sq. ft. and if he were correct in understanding that once the 12,000 sq. ft. 
hangar is built Million Air won't be leasing the 17,000 sq. ft. hangar. Woolsey indicated a decision has 
not been made either way, but current thinking is to continue leasing (there are further aspirations). If at 
that time (24 month period or sooner) there isn't a better use for the large hangars not being used at 
PSM, it may want to lease and rehabilitate those. Woolsey indicated it is going to work hard at 
improving and increasing the tenant base in Portsmouth. Woolsey further stated if it is not available to 
utilize those hangars as they may be under consideration by other entities, Million Air may ask to build 
additional hangars. Woolsey spoke to other locations where there has been a need to increase hangar 
space due to increased usage; feels the model is successful and can add if necessary, but does not want 
to over extend to fast. Woolsey affirmed that there is not a plan to immediately exit the 17,000 sq. ft. 
hangar facility. 

Loughlin asked of grant assurances and as a practical matter, with or without fueling contract, is 
PSM big enough to support two FBO facilities. Woolsey stated he doesn't know why fueling is in 
anyone's language as it is not applicable to what it is asking, what it would be building or doing; rather 

Pease Development Authority 
	

Board of Directors Workshop 	 March 11, 2021 



6 

Million Air is building for what it believes it can be turned into. Woolsey indicated it is excited about 
the opportunity and thinks there is an opportunity to expand the customer base. 

Woolsey indicated at other locations they have been asked to rehab facilities / terminal in an 
effort to bring the airport up to adequate levels so that they receive federal funding. 

There were no further questions by the Board. Deputy Director / General Counsel Anthony 
Blenkinsop ("Blenkinsop") indicated that this was an opportunity for Million Air to present its 
application to the Board and answer any questions. 

B. 	FBO Historical Summary 

Blenkinsop indicated that the Board was provided with a summary of the prior FBO application 
history and related documents located by PDA in order to provide additional information on submittals 
made back in January regarding the prior FBO approval process. 

III. Directors' Comments: 

Lamson thanked Blenkinsop for providing the history regarding the prior FBO. 

Smith thanked Million Air for its time and the presentation. 

Anderson asked going forward from this workshop, in context to next week's Board meeting, is 
it projected that this issue will be concluded in any type of restructured motion or how is it foreseen. 

Smith indicated that this agenda item was postponed from last meeting to this one and that is 
where PDA will resume. The purpose of the current workshop and information provided was in an 
effort to provide the Board with enough information so it could move forward with this matter and bring 
it to some resolution; that will have to be decided at the next Board meeting (Thursday, March 18 th). 

Blenkinsop indicated that the Board meeting on the 18 th  would have a non-public meeting from 
8:00 a.m. to 9:00 a.m. to cover a number of issues, with the public meeting commencing at 9:00 a.m. 

IV. Upcoming Meetings: 

Board of Directors 
	

March 18, 2021 @ 8:00 a.m. 

V. Adjournment: 

Director Lamson moved  the motion  and Director Anderson seconded  to adjourn the Board 
meeting. Meeting adjourned at 10:53 a.m. 

Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved unanimously for; motion carried. 

VI. Press Questions: 

There were no questions from the press. 

Pease Development Authority 
	

Board of Directors Workshop 	 March 11, 2021 



7 

Respectfully submitted, 

Paul E. Brean 
Executive Director 
P.\BOARD MINUTES \2021 Bd Minutes for Workshop of March 11, 2021.docx 

Pease Development Authority 
	

Board of Directors Workshop 	 March 11, 2021 



1 

PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
	

Thursday, March 18, 2021 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
MINUTES 

Pursuant to NH RSA 91-A:2 III (b) PDA Chairman Kevin Smith has declared COVID-19 an 
emergency condition and has waived the requirement that a quorum be physically present at the 
Board meeting in accordance with the Governor's Executive Order 2020-04, Section 8, as extended 
by Executive Order 2021-04, and Emergency Order #12, Sections 3 and 4. PDA Directors will be 
participating remotely and will identify their location and any person present with them at that 
location. All votes will be by roll call. Members of the public may participate by using the access 
information provided. Please note that this meeting will be video / audio recorded. 

Presiding: 	Kevin H. Smith, Chairman 
Present: 	 Peter J. Loughlin, Vice Chair; Erik Anderson; Thomas Ferrini; Steve 

Fournier; Margaret F Lamson; and Neil Levesque 
Attending: 	Paul E. Brean, Pease Development Authority ("PDA") Executive Director; 

Anthony I. Blenkinsop, Deputy Director /General Counsel; Maria Stowell 
Engineering Manager; Iry Canner, Finance Director; Geno Marconi, 
Division of Ports and Harbors ("DPH") Director; Scott DeVito, Pease Golf 
Course General Manager; Greg Siegenthaler PDA, IT Director and Raeline 
A. O'Neil, Legal Executive Assistant. 

I. 	Call to Order: 

Chairman Smith ("Smith") called the meeting to order at 8:02 a.m. 

Smith welcomed the PDA Board of Directors, PDA Staff, members of the public to the 
meeting of the Board of Directors and asked the Directors to confirm their presence on the call, 
physical location, and advised if there were any other individuals present with them: 

Chairman Kevin Smith was located in Londonderry, NH with no other individual(s) 
present in the room. 

Vice Chair Peter Loughlin was located in Portsmouth, NH with no other individual(s) 
present in the room. 

Thomas Ferrini was located in Dover, NH with no other individual(s) present in the 
room. 

Erik Anderson was located in Portsmouth, NH with no other individual(s) present in the 

Steve Fournier was located in Dover, NH with no other individual(s) present in the room. 
Peggy Lamson was located in Newington, NH with no other individual(s) present in the 

room. Director Lamson ("Lamson") was having difficulties connecting to the call and was 
assisted by PDA IT personnel to connect to the Zoom meeting. 

Neil Levesque was located in Manchester, NH with no other individual(s) present in the 
MOM. 

Pease Development Authority 
	

Board of Directors 	 March 18, 2021 



2 

II. Non-public Session: 

Director Loughlin moved the motion  and Director Lamson seconded  that the Pease 
Development Authority ("PDA") Board of Directors enter non-public session pursuant to 
NH RSA 91-A:3 for the purpose of discussing (1.) Sale or Lease of Real or Personal Property 
[RSA 91-A:3, II (d)]; and (2.) Consideration of Legal Advice provided by Legal Counsel [NH 
RSA 91-A:3, II (1)]. 

Discussion:  None. Disposition:  Resolved by unanimous (7-0) roll call  vote for; motion 
carried. 

The non-public discussions commenced at 8:04 a.m. via Zoom. 

Director Fournier moved  the motion and Director Lamson seconded that the Board of 
Directors return public session at 8:55 a.m. 

Discussion:  None. Disposition:  Resolved by unanimous (7-0) roll call  vote for; motion 
carried. 

The meeting recessed until 9:00 a.m. at which time the public session resumed. 

III. Vote of Confidentiality: 

Director Levesque moved the motion  and Director Lamson seconded that resolved, 
pursuant to NH RSA 91-A:3, the Pease Development Authority ("PDA") Board of Directors 
hereby determines that the divulgence of information discussed and decisions reached in the 
non-public session of its March 18, 2021, meeting related to the sale or lease of property and 
the consideration of legal advice from legal counsel are matters which, if disclosed publically, 
would render the proposed actions ineffective and further agrees that the minutes of said 
meeting be held confidential until, in the opinion of a majority of the Board of Directors, the 
aforesaid circumstances no longer apply. 

Discussion:  None. Disposition:  Resolved by unanimous (7-0) roll call  vote for; motion 
carried.  

Smith asked for those individuals on the Zoom meeting to mute themselves unless they are 
speaking in an effort to minimize feedback. 

PDA TT nireetnr Greg siegenthnier wnq the mnderntnr fnr the meeting and he nclviced 

that meeting was being audio / video recorded and asked individuals to please follow the 
guidelines for the duration of the meeting: 

1. 	In an effort to minimize background noise, we ask that all members of the public 
keep their microphones muted, and PDA Board members and staff are encouraged 
to stay on mute when not speaking during the meeting. Additionally, we ask 
members of the public to turn off their video camera or webcam unless they 

Pease Development Authority 
	

Board of Directors 	 March 18, 2021 



3 

intend to speak during the meeting. This will help to optimize the available 
network bandwidth for the meeting. 

2. For members of the public wishing to speak during the public comment portion of 
the meeting, please press *9 on your phone to 'raise your hand', or press ALT+Y 
on your computer keyboard, or tap the 'raise hand' button on your tablet. The 
moderator will see your 'hand' and prompt you to make your comment. It is 
requested that no public comment be longer than 3 minutes. 

3. This is a public meeting. If any member of the public causes a disruption to the 
meeting that would not allow the meeting to continue, the moderator will request 
that the Chair temporarily recess the meeting so that the disruption may be 
addressed. The moderator will then inform the Chair when the meeting may 
continue. If the Board is unable to continue the meeting due to the disruption, the 
Chair may elect to suspend the meeting to a later date/time, to be noticed in 
accordance with State law. 

4. Once again, this meeting is being audio and video recorded. Following the 
meeting, a copy of the recording will be available for playback at 
www.townhallstreanis.com  nhalIstreams.com   

IV. Acceptance of Meeting Minutes of January 21, 2021 & January 28, 2021: 

Director Anderson moved the motion  and Director Lamson seconded  to approve the 
minutes of the Pease Development Authority Board of Directors meetings dated Thursday, 
January 21, 2021 and Thursday, January 28, 2021. 

Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous (7-0) roll call vote for; motion 
carried. 

V. Public Comment: 

Ned Denney ("Denny"), CEO of Port City Air (PCA), thanked the Board and indicated 
Million Air's application process has been challenging and the decision would not be an easy 
one. Denney spoke of two competing proposals (Million Air and PCA) and choosing between 
them would be a big decision which would impact jobs, economy and the future of the airport. 
Denney indicated that PCA has achieved rapid growth and has invested heavily at the airport 
(employs over 100 people) and is proud of its track record. He further stated that PCA's 
operations help to support local tourism and the Board's decision would impact PCA and the 
local tourism industry. Denney asked the Board to make sure it has all the necessary information 
to make a decision (proof of capability; financial ability and past performance). Denney also 
asked the Board if it should pause to consider PCA's application to increase its capacity and 
capabilities and to make a more environmentally friendly use of the Exeter Street location. Also, 
to consider fairness to PCA when airport regulations only allowed PCA to pump fuel after its 
commitment to the airport was proven through completing construction of a fuel farm and nearly 
the completion of the FBO and hangar facility. Denney indicated that PCA has applied to build 
more facilities that the airport needs with a $1 million bond for collateral for each phase of 
construction and PCA has already segregated the first $1 million dollars in an account to support 
these phases of construction. Denney indicated that in fairness to the Board, who has asked 

Pease Development Authority 
	

Board of Directors 	 March 18, 2021 



4 

Million Air of its capabilities, financial strength and an opinion of whether there is enough 
business at the airport to warrant a second ITO, to his 'Knowledge the Board is still waiting on 
those answers. In fairness to the airport, staff and surrounding community relying on customer 
traffic for jobs, commerce and the Board to protect the future growth plan. PCA is grateful for 
the Board's time and consideration and hopes to work together in the future to continue to grow 
and support the airport and surrounding community. 

VI. 	Old Business: 
A. 	Approvals: 

1. 	Pease Aviation Partners, LLC (d/b/a Million Air Portsmouth) at 53 
Exeter Street — FBO Application 

Smith recognized Director Levesque ("Levesque") prior to the motion being read. 
Levesque indicated his friend, Jim Demers, had been hired by a potential competitor to the 
applicant in the next agenda item. Twenty years ago Mr. Demers briefly employed Levesque's 
wife and he sits on the Advisory Board of the NH Institute of Politics where Levesque is 
employed. The Advisory Board makes no fiduciary decisions regarding the institute and 
Levesque has no financial interests or ties in the interest of the applicant, the competitor or that 
of Mr. Demers. NH is a small state which has allowed Levesque to have personal relationships 
with many people / businesses in government and sees his relationship in no way as a conflict. 

Director Fournier did not have the correct motion in front of him and asked that another 
Director be recognized for the motion. 

Director Lamson moved  the motion  and Director Fournier seconded  that in accordance 
with the recommendation of the Pease Development Authority ("PDA") Airport 
Committee, the PDA Board of Directors finds that the Fixed Based Operator ("FBO") 
application of Pease Aviation Partners, LLC d/b/a Million Air Portsmouth ("PAP"), dated 
January 7, 2021 (the "Application"), to become a FBO at Portsmouth International Airport 
at Pease pursuant to the Minimum Standards for Commercial and Noncommercial 
General Aviation Operators dated August 16, 2007 ("Minimum Standards"), satisfies said 
Minimum Standards and: 

1. Approves the Application; 
2. Authorizes PAP to become a FBO at Portsmouth International Airport at 

Pease ("PSM") in accordance with and subject to the Minimum Standards; 
provided, however, that the commencement of FBO operations by PAP at 
PSM shall be subject to and contingent upon: 
a. Site plan, subdivision, and any other requisite approvals and permits 

for use of a temporary facility and construction of PAP's proposed 
facility at 53 Exeter Street, consistent with project phasing; 

b. Execution of a lease agreement for the property at 53 Exeter Street, 
subject to separate PDA Board approval, on terms and conditions 
substantially similar to those set forth in the Letter of Intent dated 
January 7, 2021, attached hereto, including such other terms as the 
Executive Director shall deem necessary and appropriate; and 

Pease Development Authority 
	

Board of Directors 	 March 18, 2021 



5 

c. 	Verification by the Executive Director that all provisions of the 
Application and requirements of the Minimum Standards to act as an 
FBO remain satisfied in full force and effect at such time as PAP shall 
commence providing FBO service; 

all in accordance with the memorandum of Paul E. Brean, Executive Director, dated 
January 14, 2021. 

Discussion: Smith turned the gavel over to Vice Chair Loughlin in order to offer an 
amendment to the motion which was shared; Smith spoke of the amended changes shown in  red. 
The amendment is not substantive but tightens up the existing motion. 

Chairman Smith moved  the motion  and Director Ferrini seconded  that in accordance 
with the recommendation of the Pease Development Authority ("PDA") Airport 
Committee, the PDA Board of Directors finds that the Fixed Based Operator ("FBO") 
application of Pease Aviation Partners, LLC d/b/a Million Air Portsmouth ("PAP"), dated 
January 7, 2021 (the "Application"), to become a FBO at Portsmouth International Airport 
at Pease pursuant to the Minimum Standards for Commercial and Noncommercial 
General Aviation Operators dated August 16, 2007 ("Minimum Standards"), satisfies said 
Minimum Standards and: 

1. Conditionally  approves the Application  subject  to paragraph  2  below;  and 
2. Conditionally  authorizes PAP to become a FBO at Portsmouth International 

Airport at Pease ("PSM") in accordance with and subject to the Minimum 
Standards; provided, however, that  such authorization, and the 
commencement of FBO operations by PAP at PSM, shall be subject to and 
contingent upon: 
a. Site plan, subdivision, and any other requisite approvals and permits 

for use of a temporary facility and construction of PAP's proposed 
facility at 53 Exeter Street, consistent with project phasing; 

b. Execution of a lease agreement for the property at 53 Exeter Street, 
subject to separate PDA Board approval, on terms and conditions 
substantially similar to those set forth in the Letter of Intent dated 
January 7, 2021, attached hereto, including such other terms as the 
Executive Director  or PDA Board of  Directors  shall deem necessary 
and appropriate; and 

c. Verification by the Executive Director that all provisions of the 
Application and requirements of the Minimum Standards to act as an 
FBO remain satisfied in full force and effect at such time as PAP shall 
commence providing FBO service; 

all in accordance with the memorandum of Paul E. Brean, Executive Director, dated 
January 14, 2021. 

Loughlin indicated he also had an amendment to the motion and asked how to handle 
procedurally. 

Pease Development Authority 
	

Board of Directors 	 March 18, 2021 



6 

Smith asked that one amendment be addressed at a time and voted on; Smith indicated 
apprehension of taking up multiple amendments at the same time. 

Director Ferrini ("Ferrini") agreed with Smith in that taking up more than one amendment 
at a time would be inappropriate. However, if Loughlin's motion is substantively different than 
Smith's it would be appropriate for him to speak about it in the context of the discussion of Smith's 
amendment to the motion. Smith indicated this was a good idea. 

Loughlin appreciated the amendment provided by Smith in an effort to address some 
concerns that have been raised at a previous meeting, but feels it puts "the cart before the horse". 
Loughlin indicated when appropriate he would like to make a motion to "defer" action until certain 
benchmarks are met. Loughlin indicated that his motion would address wetland issues, financial 
statements and site administrative review and asked that action be deferred until [the Board] has 
received results in those three areas. 

Levesque addressed Smith's motion on the table and stated "conditionally" approved still 
means that it is approved and the Board would be approving of a project or application that has 
two things for discussion. Levesque indicated that PDA has learned that the environmental issues 
on its property are giant, impacting the residents of the Seacoast community in many ways (i.e.; 
PFAS). Levesque spoke of being opposed to the filling in wetlands and doing further 
environmental damage to this property. Levesque further stated he understood that this would 
provide conditional approvals that would then be addressed, but what happens when a Board 
approves (conditionally or otherwise), it is basically saying it was looked at and the Board is okay 
with it. Levesque again stated he is not okay with doing further environmental damage to PDA 
property and the applicant has submitted a proposal that would do just that. Levesque stated that 
the regulators are not liable for the environmental damage to the property (the people of NH are, 
as well as the Board). Secondly, in order to meet the Minimum Standards the applicant proposed 
a series of things it was willing to do which cost money. When Levesque asked in a public session 
for a certified financial statement or anything to show that it has the money, it has not been 
delivered and therefore he does not believe it meets the Minimum Standards. Levesque indicated 
that because of these two issues he will vote against the Motion; and will be voting for the 
amendment Loughlin has spoken of until those two items are met. 

Director Lamson ("Lamson") indicated Levesque brought up some very good points and 
the biggest one is the environmental issues that have been a problem since day 1. Lamson indicated 
that she has a fiduciary responsibility and needs to know about the dollars and cents and would 
vote against the Motion. 

Smith reminded everyone that the discussion is the amendment to the existing motion. 

Anderson indicated he is in agreement with Levesque's comments and with respect to this 
particular Motion, he is not sure he can support it; but the amendment provided strengthens the 
Motion which may provide some comfort to him. Anderson is not sure if it strengthens the intent 
and if it would be a benefit under item 2. To indicate "Conditionally" authorizes... as in item 1 
and not sure if it strengthens at section 2 b. where it indicates "... Executive Director" to add "or 

Pease Development Authority 
	

Board of Directors 	 March 18, 2021 



7 

the Board of Directors" shall deem necessary and appropriate. Smith indicated he would be open 
to these suggested changes made by Anderson (shown above in the amended motion in blu e). 

Blenkinsop indicated that regarding the Executive Director language, the Board would 
have to approve the lease and if the Board did not like the terms it wouldn't approve it. Further 
the authorization in item 2 already says "...subject to and contingent upon..." and not sure if 
"Conditionally" would be needed. Smith indicated he is not necessary a fan of redundancy but is 
okay if it is spelled out very clearly in both cases. 

Loughlin indicated that the motion written at this time is what Levesque referenced being 
an approval of wetlands filling, financial assurances and administrative approvals and feels the 
Board should defer and he would be opposed to the motion. 

Lamson indicated when Seacoast Helicopters came to the Board regarding filling of 
wetlands, she was very much against the request. 

Smith indicated if no further discussion on the amendment Loughlin would call the roll 
and asked the Board to keep in mind that this would be a vote on the amendment to the existing 
Motion only, not on the application. Blenkinsop asked if this would also include Anderson's 
proposed further amendments; Smith affirmed. 

Yes No 
Anderson X 
Ferrini X 
Fournier X 
Lamson X 
Loughlin X 
Levesque X 
Smith X 

Disposition: Resolved by roll call vote (4-3) for; motion carried to amend the motion as 
requested by Chairman Smith and Director Anderson (in  red  or  biu t  above). 

Smith asked Loughlin if he would like to make a further amendment; Loughlin affirmed 
and indicated: 

Director Loughlin made a further amendment  to the motion  and Director Anderson 
seconded  that the Pease Development Authority Board of Directors hereby defers action on all 
applications for development until a certified financial statement has been provided by the 
developer and in instances where the application will require NHDES wetland approval until that 
approval has been issued by NHDES and that all necessary administrative approvals have been 
granted. 

Discussion: Fournier asked if procedurally this would be tabling it to date certain. 

Ferrini spoke to Fournier's concerns, he doesn't think this is an amendment. 

Pease Development Authority 
	

Board of Directors 	 March 18, 2021 



8 

Smith indicated he would call the roll seeing no further discussion and asked Loughlin to 
read it one more time for the Board 

Yes No 
Anderson X 
Ferrini X 
Fournier X 
Lamson X 
Loughlin X 
Levesque X 
Smith X 

Disposition: Resolved by roll call vote (4-3) for; motion carried to amend the motion as 
requested by Director Loughlin. 

Chairman Smith moved the motion  and Director Lamson seconded  the request for a 
Consultation with legal counsel and move into non-public before the Board moves on to the 
motion; this commenced at 9:36 a.m. 

Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous (7-0) roll call vote for; motion 
carried. 

Chairman Smith moved  the motion  and Director Lamson seconded  that the Board of 
Directors come out of Consultation with Counsel, at 9:59 a.m. 

Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous (7-0) roll call vote for; motion 
carried. 

Vote of Confidentiality: 
Director Levesque moved the motion  and Director Lamson seconded that Resolved, 

pursuant to NH RSA 91-A:3, the Pease Development Authority ("PDA") Board of Directors 
hereby determines that the divulgence of information discussed and decisions reached in the 
non-public session of its March 18, 2021, meeting related to the sale or lease of property and 
the consideration of legal advice from legal counsel are matters which, if disclosed publically, 
would render the proposed actions ineffective and further agrees that the minutes of said 
meeting be held confidential until, in the opinion of a majority of the Board of Directors, the 
aforesaid circumstances no longer apply. 

Disposition: Resolved by unanimous (7-0) roll call vote for; motion carried. 

Director Loughlin moved  the motion  and Director Lamson seconded  to withdraw the 
motion to amend previously made (by Loughlin) and was voted on and instead substitute a 
new motion. 

Pease Development Authority 
	

Board of Directors 	 March 18, 2021 



9 

Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous (7-0) roll call vote for; motion 
carried. 

Director Loughlin moved  the motion  and Director Anderson seconded  that the Pease 
Development Authority Board of Directors defer action on all applications for development 
until a certified financial statement has been provided by the developer and instances 
where the application will require NHDES wetlands approval until that approval has been 
issued by NHDES and until all necessary administrative approvals have been granted. 

Discussion: Fournier indicated at the beginning of the motion it was indicated to suspend 
all development and assuming it is not meant all development on Pease. Smith asked for 
clarification. 

Loughlin though he was creating something broader than this one application that all other 
applications at Pease that are similarly situated would require advanced wetlands approval and 
financial statements. 

Blenkinsop asked the Board to think about the implications to Pease before voting on that 
motion. 

Loughlin indicated he could tailor it to this application but was trying to not be specific to 
this application. 

Fournier indicated that by voting on this the Board is deferring all development at Pease 
until such time... if you have this motion you are doing it for every development we have on Pease. 
Fournier indicated that he did not think that was the intent but was also not sure PDA could do that 
for everyone else. 

Loughlin reworded the motion to indicate deferred action on the pending fixed base 
operator application. Smith asked if it were to all FBO applications, not just Million Air; Loughlin 
affirmed. 

Smith asked if there were further discussions; Blenkinsop stated before voting on a motion 
that has broad impact to Pease and to development at Pease... on a motion that is not written, but 
being made verbally, it is making it difficult for all members to understand and think through the 
implications. Blenkinsop stated that if there is a need for more time on this before granting or 
considering such a motion, he encouraged the Board to think about postponing this agenda item to 
the April meeting so that this can be thought through and addressed in a way so it is given the 
attention it requires before voting on something where the implications aren't fully understood. 

Smith asked what the procedure would be if the Board were going to postpone voting on 
this; currently the Board has a motion to defer that Loughlin has offered and seconded which would 
take the place of the amended motion offered by Director Fournier/Lamsonwith Smith's and 
Anderson's amendment. Blenkinsop indicated that perhaps a better course in terms of 
understanding the implications would be instead of voting in an affirmative way on Loughlin's 
motion, would be to postpone this matter until the April meeting. 

Pease Development Authority 
	

Board of Directors 	 March 18, 2021 



10 

Lamson agreed with Blenkinsop. 

Ferrini asked if the Board is postponing the postponement as it creates too many 
reiterations. He stated the proper action, understanding Loughlin's intent, would be to vote 
Loughlin's motion down with the understanding that this will be placed on the agenda in April in 
order to address the concerns raised. 

Anderson indicated he doesn't interpret Loughlin's motion as something the Board cannot 
vote on as it places something on the applicant to produce financial consideration and has the 
applicant getting in touch with NH DES on some of the mitigation / environmental issues that 
carry concern. The way in which the motion has been framed places a signature of the issue by 
the Board of Directors of concerns that have been raised; he doesn't have a problem voting on this. 

Smith again asked for clarity on Loughlin's motion that it would be deferring all FBO 
applications, existing and future, until financial statements are produced, they have proper 
wetlands approvals and approved administratively; Loughlin affirmed. Smith indicated to 
Ferrini's point the Board needs to vote on Loughlin's motion and if it fails then the Board can 
bring up the matter of postponement. 

Smith indicated that it was his intent to vote against the motion; if it does fail he intended 
to offer a further amendment addressing concerns within the motion as amended by the Board. 

Fournier expressed a concern of the Board putting in a requirement that is not in the 
documents already; meaning if [the Board] is going to require something as financial documents 
as well as environmental studies before everything then that should be an amendment to the 
Minimum Standards, not a motion on the record. Fournier indicated the Board would be changing 
its policies and rules, the Board should then go back to the Minimum Standards and change those 
and indicated he would be voting against the motion. Fournier indicated this would be changing 
the rules, asking for additional information from one applicant. 

Lamson spoke of the need to be extremely cautious regarding the Minimum Standards and 
the Board's attorney (Anderson Kreiger) has indicated the same. Lamson indicated while she 
agreed with Loughlin she also stated the Board may be getting itself into hot water if the Board 
does not follow comments from Ferrini and Fournier regarding the Minimum Standards. 

Smith called the roll regarding the motion before the Board; Smith clarified that it is 
Loughlin's motion to defer all FBO applications, existing and future, pending certified financial 
statements being produced, having wetlands approvals and all administrative matters approved. 

Yes No 
Anderson X 
Ferrini X 
Fournier 
Lamson X 
Loughlin X 

Pease Development Authority 	Board of Directors 
	

March 18, 2021 



11 

Levesque I X 
Smith 1 X 

Disposition: Resolved by roll call vote (3-4) for; motion failed. 

Smith asked with the assistance of counsel, Blenkinsop, to address Loughlin's concerns 
and incorporate them in the motion that has been amended. Blenkinsop indicated for clarity in 
item 2 a. it states, all "Site plan, subdivision, and any other requisite approvals and permits for use 
of a temporary facility and construction of PAP's proposed facility at 53 Exeter Street, consistent 
with project phasing." Smith asked if the Board could spell out specifically, financial statements, 
wetlands approvals and administrative approvals; Blenkinsop affirmed. Blenkinsop further stated 
the more specific the language the potential that something is left out while being more general it 
encompasses requirements. Smith asked if added, "including but not limited to..."; Blenkinsop 
affirmed. 

Smith stated that at item 2 a. the Board insert (in  red)  "Site plan, subdivision, and any other 
requisite approvals, including  but not limited to production of certified financial statements, 
NH DES wetlands approval and all administrative approvals  and permits for use of a 
temporary facility..." Blenkinsop indicated that the financial statements the Board is looking for 
and want to talk about fit better under 2 b. (when finalizing the lease agreement — financial 
assurances, bonding etc.). Blenkinsop indicated that the language, as suggested by Smith works 
under 2 a. 

Levesque indicated that the conditional approval is still an approval; Smith indicated it is 
conditionally approved. 

Loughlin asked if were possible to make a motion to table to a time certain to the next 
meeting so whatever wording the Board would like to have included can be inserted. 

Smith indicated a tabling motion takes precedence and asked for a second, which was done 
by Fournier. 

Director Loughlin moved the motion and Director Fournier seconded to table the motion 
to a time certain to the next meeting. 

Disposition: Resolved by unanimous (7-0) roll call vote for; motion carried. 

2. 	Pease Aviation Partners, LLC (d/b/a Million Air Portsmouth) at 53 
Exeter Street — Conceptual Site Plan Approval 

Director Lamson moved the motion  and Director Fournier seconded  that the Pease 
Development Authority Board of Directors hereby approves the concept plan for Pease 
Aviation Partners, LLC (d/b/a Million Air Portsmouth) ("PAP") at 53 Exeter Street, as 
submitted by PAP and attached hereto and incorporated herein; all in accordance with the 
memorandum of Maria J. Stowell, Engineering Manager, dated January 13, 2021. 

Pease Development Authority 
	

Board of Directors 	 March 18, 2021 



12 

Discussion: Fournier made second for parliamentary inquiry, should this not be tabled as 
well. Smith indicated that motion could be made. 

Director Fournier made the motion  and Director Anderson seconded  that this motion be 
tabled to the next meeting. 

Disposition: Resolved by unanimous (7-0) roll call vote for; motion carried. 

Lamson asked the Board to read Stowell's memo to the Board regarding this subject as it 
is spelled out. 

3. 	Lonza — Site Plan Approval Waiver 

Director Loughlin moved  the motion and Director Lamson seconded  that the Pease 
Development Authority Board of Directors hereby approves of and authorizes that in 
accordance with PDA Land Use Controls Part 403.03(a), which allows the Board to waive 
any portion of the site review regulations under stated conditions, Lonza be granted a 
reinstatement of its 2019 site review approval for rear yard infrastructure related 
improvements at 101 International Drive, provided that within one year of the date of this 
approval Lonza obtains a building permit and begins work on the project; all in 
accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in the memorandum from Maria J. 
Stowell, P.E. Manager - Engineering, dated March 8, 2021. 

Discussion: Anderson asked for an explanation why construction had been delayed. 
Stowell indicated Lonza has a complicated approval process and believes due to the other items 
(i.e.; vaccine) Lonza had been working on, it did not have the funds in place / in time. Stowell 
indicated that Lonza had gone ahead and obtain the building permit, earlier than needed. 

Disposition: Resolved by unanimous (7-0) roll call vote for; motion carried. 

VII. Finance: 
A. Executive Summary 

Finance Director Iry Canner ("Canner") indicated there were four items for discussion 
and one which required an approval being that of bank signatories. 

B. Reports: 
1. 	FY2021 Financial Report for the Seven Month Period Ending January 

31, 2021 

Canner indicated the operating revenues are slightly above budget and there are variances 
by revenue streams. Canner indicated that the fuel sales are lower than budgeted due to 
construction at the Portsmouth Fish Pier ("PFP") and there is an offset by fee revenues at the Golf 
Course. Canner stated that the golf fees represent approximately 50% of the fee revenue. Canner 
indicated that operating expenses are under budget by approximately 13%; payroll / personnel 
services are under budget primarily due to the seven open positions (payroll down approximately 

Pease Development Authority 
	

Board of Directors 	 March 18, 2021 



13 

6%). Canner spoke to variances due to timing differences and reporting period; also spoke to 
operating income, how it is achieved and how it helps the cash flow. 

Canner indicated in January, the Revolving Line of Credit (RLOC) was at $6 million and 
as of today it has been reduced to $2.5 million; PDA being under budget regarding projected 
interest expense. Canner spoke to $20 million in capital expenditures being offset by $13 million 
in grant fund. 

Canner indicated in February the Board will see a lower line of credit and the accounts 
receivable will be down due to lower construction activity. 

Canner spoke to impacts due to COVID at the airport (i.e.; pay-for-parking; enplanements 
- January apprx. 5,000). 

Canner indicated that Skyhaven Airport continues to produce a positive operating income 
due mainly to fuel sales. 

Canner stated that the Golf Course closed in November and the data remains relatively 
consistent with 13% more in rounds played (62,000 rounds in 2020 versus 55,000 rounds in 
2019). Canner also stated that COVID has impacted Grill 28 sales with a reduction of 
approximately 15%. 

Canner indicated that the unrestricted fund at the Division of Port & Harbors ("DPH") is 
holding its own in terms of operating income and DPH's cash flow is consistent with what has 
been stated in prior periods and the collection of mooring revenues in January and February. 

2. 	Cash Flow Projections for the Nine Month Period Ending November 
30, 2021 

Canner indicated PDA should hit a high point during the summer of approximately $8 
million for construction taking the short-term RLOC down to $3.2 million due to $10.6 million 
in capital expenditures; the use of funds would be between the runway and the terminal which 
represents about $9.6 million. 

Canner spoke to keeping a $1.5 million fund balance for working capital needs and the 
sources of funds would be the in / out of the RLOC (in May have to draw down in the amount of 
$3 million and another $1.5 million) there would be excess cash that would draw down the 
RLOC as well. The interest environment is holding its own and PDA's cost of capital remains at 
2.85% with the RLOC which is favorable. 

Canner indicated that the unrestricted funds for DPH is driven down as it collects its 
revenues primarily in January and February. 

Canner stated that DPH is hoping to bring back the PFP fuel operation in late fall and 
spoke of the fund balances for Harbor Dredging; RLF and Foreign Trade Zone (FTZ). 

Pease Development Authority 
	

Board of Directors 	 March 18, 2021 



14 

Canner informed the Board that PDA is in a position to manage the construction activity 
at the PFP and PDA's $15 million RLOC seems to be sufficient to take PDA through. 

3. 	Revolving Loan Fund for the Six Month Period Ending December 31, 
2020 

Canner indicated that this is brought to the Board twice a year and it is consistent with the 
requirements from the Economic Development Administration ("EDA"). The total capital basis 
was $1.2 million (loans outstanding of apprx. $881,000 a working capital of $354,000). Canner 
reminded the Board that this was at the end of January and spoke of the loans outstanding of 
participant. Canner indicated that the overall purpose of this RLF was jobs created and jobs 
saved, which has proved to be successful over course of time. 

Canner informed the Board that last month PDA received a letter from the EDA relative 
to RLFs and there has been an enactment of the Reinvigorating Lending for Future Act 
authorizing the EDA to release its federal interest in certain RLFs. Canner indicated that if PDA 
accepts this there will be a reduction in the administrative burden to file reports to the EDA. 
This will be presented to the RLF and then bring it back to the Board for approval. Canner 
indicated that there would be no changes to the internal operations and Provident Bank would 
continue to serve as the administrator with no impact to the participants or the operating 
procedures of the fund. 

Lamson thanked Canner for the presentation and the RLF has been wonderful for the 
individuals who are out on the seas. 

C. 	Approvals: 
1. 	Updated Corporate Resolution — Bank Accounts 

Director Lamson moved the motion and Director Levesque seconded  that the Pease 
Development Authority ("PDA") Board of Directors hereby authorizes Director Thomas 
Ferrini to endorse all checks, drafts, depository agreements and/or other related bank 
documents in accordance with the powers previously granted by this Board to the Treasurer, 
Executive Director, General Counsel, and Manager of Engineering of the PDA concerning 
PDA bank accounts, and consistent with bank resolutions previously adopted; the authority 
hereby conferred shall be and remain in full force and effect until written notice of the 
revocation is presented. 

The following appointed official and employees are authorized to endorse all checks, 
drafts, depository agreements and/or other related bank documents in accordance with the 
powers so granted: 

Thomas Ferrini 	 Treasurer 
Paul E. Brean 	 Executive Director 
Anthony I. Blenkinsop 	 Deputy Director/General Counsel 
Maria Stowell 	 Manager of Engineering 

Pease Development Authority 
	

Board of Directors 	 March 18, 2021 



15 

The authority hereby conferred upon the above named Agents shall be and remain in 
full force and effect until written notice of the revocation is presented; 

Further, the Board respectfully revokes such authority of former Director Robert 
Allard and retired PDA General Counsel Lynn Marie Hinchee; 

All in accordance with a memorandum from Iry Canner, Finance Director, dated 
February 24, 2021. 

Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous (7-0) roll call vote for; motion 
carried. 

VIII. Licenses/ROEs/Easements/Rights of Way: 
A. 	Reports: 

1. PlaneSense, Inc. — Right of Entry regarding Hampton Avenue & 
Aviation Avenue 

2. Port City Air — Right of Entry for Portion of Hangar 227 for Storage 
of Two Vehicles 

Brean stated in accordance with the "Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, 
Approval and Execution of License Agreements," PDA entered into two Rights of Entry: 

1. Name: 	PlaneSense, Inc. 
License: 	Right-of-Entry 
Location: 	Corner of Hampton Street and Aviation Avenue 
Purpose: 	Site Inspection Purposes 
Term: 	Through May 31, 2021 

2. Name: 	Port City Air 
License: 	Right-of-Entry 
Location: 	Portion of Hangar 227 (14 Aviation Avenue) 
Purpose: 	Storage of Two Vehicles 
Term: 	Through March 1, 2021 

IX. 	Leases: 
A. 	Reports: 

1. Sublease between 100 International, LLC to ONBRAND24, LLC 
2. Sublease between 119 International Drive, LLC to Stewart's 

Ambulance Service, LLC 
3. Sublease between 119 International Drive, LLC to EOFlow, Inc. 
4. Sublease between Cinthesys Real Estate Management, LLC to Bauer 

Hockey, LLC 

Brean reported that in accordance with the "Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, 
Approval of Sub-Sublease Agreements" PDA approved the following leases with: 

A. 	Tenant: 	OnBrand24 , LLC 

Pease Development Authority 
	

Board of Directors 	 March 18, 2021 



16 

Space: 
Use: 
Term: 

B. Tenant: 
Space: 
Use: 
Term: 

C. Tenant: 
Space: 
Use: 
Term: 

D. Tenant: 
Space: 
Use: 
Term: 

9,059 square feet at 100 International Drive 
Office and Related Use 
One (1) Years Commencing February 1, 2021 

Stewart's Ambulance Service, LLC 
4,270 square feet at 119 International Drive 
General Office and Related Use 
Five (5) Years with one (1) Five (5) year option 
Commencing January 1, 2021 

EOFLOW, Inc. 
2,285 square feet at 15 Rye Street 
General Office and Related Use 
Five (5) Years 

Bauer Hockey, LLC 
5,000 square feet at 68 New Hampshire Avenue 
Dead Storage of it Marketing Materials and No Other Uses 
Two (2) years and three (3) months Commencing February 1, 2021 

The Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval of Sub-sublease Agreements 
also requires the consent of one member of the PDA Board of Directors. In all of these 
instances, Director Lamson was consulted and granted her consent. 

X. 	Contracts/Agreements: 
A. 	Reports: 

1.Fishnet Media, LLC — PDA Website Work 
2.Fishnet Media, LLC — Pease Golf Course Website Work 
3.Sandwich / Salad Unit — Pease Golf Course 

Brean reported that in accordance with Article 3.9.1.1 of the PDA Bylaws, the following: 

1. 	Project Name: 
PDA Obligation: 
Summary: 

PDA Website Update 
$4,875.00 
Update the PDA website to optimize user experience; prioritize 
flight arrival and departure information; Update "News and Events" 
section to promote Facebook; Create new Careers page; design and 
develop new "Policies and Procedurec" link to prninnte information 
(Lost and Found Policy; Drone Information and Policy; Badging 
Office Info., etc.) 

2. Project Name: 
	

Pease Golf Course Website Update 
PDA Obligation: 
	

$9,875.00 
Board Authority: 
	

Director Ferrini on February 5, 2021 
Summary: 
	

Website update for the Pease Golf Course 

Pease Development Authority 
	

Board of Directors 	 March 18, 2021 



17 

3. 	Project Name: 	Pease Golf Course Sandwich / Salad Unit 
PDA Obligation: 	$2,762.00 
Summary: 	Replacement of Bev-Aire Sandwich / Salad Unit purchased in 2011 

B. 	Approvals: 
1. 	Turf Products LLC — Golf Course Large Rough Mower 

Director Fournier moved the motion  and Director Anderson seconded  that the Pease 
Development Authority ("PDA") Board of Directors hereby authorizes the Executive 
Director to enter into a contract with Turf Products LLC to purchase a Toro Groundmaster, 
4500-D (T4) large rough mower with universal sunshade, golf ball guard, and golf netting 
mounting bracket for use at the PDA Golf Course for a purchase price of $69,440.41, as 
outlined in the memorandum from Scott DeVito, PGA General Manager dated March 2, 
2021. 

Furthermore, in accordance with the provisions of RSA 12-G:8 VIII, the Board 
justifies the waiver of the RFP requirement for said purchase as follows: 

• Turf Products, LLC is the only New England area authorized Toro golf 
products distributor and, as such, the Golf Course has only received bids from 
Turf Products the last several replacement cycles. 

• Turf Products, LLC extends their Government Services Administration 
pricing to the PDA. 

• Both current large rough mowers are Toro machines and the purchase of the 
new Toro equipment will allow use of an estimated $6,000 - $8,000 of 
replacement parts currently in inventory, as Toro designs its equipment to use 
common parts compatible with other Toro units. 

• Staff is trained to maintain and repair Toro equipment. 
• The new Toro rough mower will be Tier 4 emissions compliant. 

Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous (7-0) roll call vote for; motion 
carried. 

2.Two Golf Utility Cars 

Director Anderson moved  the motion and Director Lamson seconded that the Pease 
Development Authority ("PDA") Board of Directors hereby approves of and authorizes the 
Executive Director to enter into an agreement with Country Club Enterprises of Wareham, 
MA for the purchase of two (2) Club Car Carryall 502 utility cars for use by the PDA Golf 
Maintenance Department in a total amount not to exceed $19,500; all in accordance with the 
memorandum from Scott D. DeVito, PGA General Manager, dated March 2, 2021. 

Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous (7-0) roll call vote for; motion 
carried. 

Pease Development Authority 
	

Board of Directors 	 March 18, 2021 



18 

3. Addendum to Contract with Five Star Golf Cars for Twenty (20) 
Additional Golf Cars for 2021 Season and Surcharge for Single Rider 

Director Ferrini moved the motion and Director Lamson seconded  that the Pease 
Development Authority ("PDA") Board of Directors hereby approves of and authorizes the 
Pease Golf Course to negotiate and execute an addendum to the Five Star Golf Cars and 
Utility Vehicles ("Five Star") contract for an additional twenty (20) golf cars for the 2021 
Season (April 23 through October 11) at an amount not to exceed $35,993.20; and to 
implement a $10 per round surcharge, on top of the daily golf car rental rates, for players 
requesting an individual golf car; all in accordance with the memorandum from Scott 
DeVito, PGA General Manager dated March 10, 2021. 

Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous (7-0) roll call vote for; motion 
carried. 

4. AIP Grant to Resurface the Airport Perimeter Road (aka Lowery 
Lane) 

Director Levesque moved the motion  and Director Loughlin seconded  that the Pease 
Development Authority ("PDA") Board of Directors approves of and authorizes the 
Executive Director to: 

1. Authorize the paving of Lowery Lane to be done under the current Pike 
Industries contract for an estimated amount of $300,000 (the exact amount 
will be based on the actual quantity of pavement); 

2. Accept FAA AIP funding and associated NH Department of Transportation 
funding, anticipated to cover 90% and 5% respectively of the project costs, 
when the grant becomes available later in the year, with PDA's contribution 
constituting the remaining 5% share; and 

-Execute any and all dnenmentc neeecsary to liCP funds (ectimated to he 

$300,000) to complete the work in accordance with the proposed schedule. 

all in accordance with the memorandum from Maria Stowell, Engineering Manager dated 
March 4, 2021. 

Discussion: Lamson asked Stowell when it was named Lowery Lane; Stowell indicated it 
came from the earliest AIP maps but it should be spelled "Lowry" without the "e". Lamson asked 
Stowell if she would look into the beach heather (endangered ground species) that is over in the 
area of McIntyre (suggested fencing around the area). 

Disposition: Resolved by unanimous (7-0) roll call vote for; motion carried. 

Pease Development Authority 
	

Board of Directors 	 March 18, 2021 



19 

5. 	Dan Fortnam - Extension and Revision of Air Development Consulting 
Service Agreement 

Director Loughlin moved  the motion and Director Lamson seconded  that the Pease 
Development Authority ("PDA") Board of Directors hereby approves of and authorizes the 
Executive Director to negotiate and enter into an air service agreement with Daniel Fortnam 
for a period of three (3) years commencing April 1, 2021 through March 31, 2024, with two 
(2) one year options exercisable at the discretion of the Executive Director; all in accordance 
with the memorandum of Andrew B. Pomeroy, Manager, Aviation Planning and Regulatory 
Compliance, dated March 8, 2021. 

In accordance, with the provisions of RSA 12-G:8, VIII the Board waives the RFP 
requirement based upon the following justification: 

A. 	Daniel Fortnam has a long history representing Portsmouth International 
Airport at Pease ("PSM"), and has very well established relationships with 
Allegiant Airlines and other service providers; he is an independent and cost 
effective consultant known through the industry as the Air Service 
Development representative to Pease. 

Discussion: Director Anderson asked how a potentially five (5) year commitment was 
determined; what was the previous arrangement with Mr. Fortnam (would this be an increase or 
decrease). Anderson offered an amendment (shown in  red)  to the motion to state "...exercisable 
at the discretion of the Executive Director  or the Board of Directors"  so the Board can weigh in 
through the course of this five year commitment. 

Brean indicated that the contract was originally a six month contract and formalized by 
PCA and PDA with a 50/50 cost share for a short period of time. The contract was successful in 
getting air service approximately 13/14 years ago and since that time there have been six month 
extensions and PDA has seen growth from the contract. Brean indicated that the three (3) year 
with two (2) option mirrors what PDA with most of its contracts currently. Brean indicated 
regarding compensation it is the same as last year; also there had been a commission on 
enplanements and cargo tonnage so in addition to last year's flat fee PDA also paid approximately 
$6,300 in commissions for the number of enplanements and cargo as the original agreement was 
written. Brean stated this prepares PDA better for the future and puts PDA on a more consistent 
financial forecast with 2% increase over three years; in the option years PDA would negotiate a 
new rate. Brean also informed the Board that in January the Board approved a motion for Volaire 
Air (development company) with a $17,000 fee that PDA did not move forward with (this was to 
complete a small community air service application with the Department of Transportation). 

Smith asked if he was offering that amendment; Anderson affirmed and indicated it would 
be for an improvement of the motion so it would read, "...exercisable at the discretion of the 
Executive Director  or the Board of Directors". 

Pease Development Authority 
	

Board of Directors 	 March 18, 2021 



20 

Director Anderson moved the motion to amend  and Director Loughlin seconded  that the 
Pease Development Authority ("PDA") Board of Directors hereby approves of and 
authorizes the Executive Director to negotiate and enter into an air service agreement with 
Daniel Fortnam for a period of three (3) years commencing April 1, 2021 through March 31, 
2024, with two (2) one year options exercisable at the discretion of the Executive Director or 
the Board of Directors; all in accordance with the memorandum of Andrew B. Pomeroy, 
Manager, Aviation Planning and Regulatory Compliance, dated March 8, 2021. 

In accordance, with the provisions of RSA 12-G:8, VIII the Board waives the RFP 
requirement based upon the following justification: 

A. 	Daniel Fortnam has a long history representing Portsmouth International 
Airport at Pease ("PSM"), and has very well established relationships with 
Allegiant Airlines and other service providers; he is an independent and cost 
effective consultant known through the industry as the Air Service 
Development representative to Pease. 

Discussion:  Fournier indicated he is against the amendment as PDA has an Executive 
Director for a reason; if you put "or the Board" who executes it. It needs to be clear, he did not 
think the Board should be in this position. 

Ferrini agreed with Fournier and further stated that by using the word "or" there is not a 
requirement that the Board be involved and is effectively of no consequence. 

Smith called the roll on the amendment only. 

Yes No 
Anderson X 
Ferrini X 
r IJUIIIIG1 A 

Lamson X 
Loughlin X 
Levesque X 
Smith X 

Disposition:  Resolved by (3-4) roll call  vote for; motion to amend failed.  

Disposition on original motion:  Resolved by unanimous (7-0) roll call  vote for; motion 
carried.  

XI. 	Signs: 
A. 	Reports: 

1. 	Laborie Medical Technologies, Corp. — 180 International Drive 

Pease Development Authority 
	

Board of Directors 	 March 18, 2021 



21 

Brean indicated that in accordance with the "Delegation to Building Inspector: Consent 
and Approval of Minor Revisions to Existing Signs" PDA reports as follows: 

Entity: 	 200 International Limited Partnership 
Location: 	180 International Drive 
Summary: 	Change out of the Medtronic signs and replacing them with in-kind 

signs that identify Laborie. Renderings are attached depicting the 
proposed minor signage changes referenced above. 

The Delegation to Building Inspector: Consent and Approval of Minor Revisions to 
Existing Signs also requires the consent of one member of the PDA Board of Directors. In this 
instance, Director Loughlin was consulted regarding the sign change on March 4, 2021. 

B. 	Approval: 
1. 	City of Portsmouth — Water Treatment Plant — 97 Grafton Road 

Director Anderson moved  the motion  and Director Lamson seconded  that the Pease 
Development Authority ("PDA") Board of Directors hereby approves of the proposed new 
sign for the City of Portsmouth's Water Treatment Plant located at 97 Grafton Drive; all 
in accordance with the memorandum of Maria J. Stowell, P.E., Engineering Manager, 
dated March 15, 2021. 

Discussion: Loughlin asked if it were the City of Portsmouth Water Treatment Plant at 
Pease or is it the Pease Development Authority Water Treatment Plant. Stowell indicated that 
PDA owns all of the original infrastructure, but since then the City has made a lot of renovations 
to it (they may own new tanks put in); PDA owns what was transferred from Air Force. 

Anderson indicated the City has an obligation to take care of that facility; Stowell affirmed. 
Anderson asked when this would go online with all the restoration/improvements at the facility; 
Stowell indicated this summer and further indicated that the filters have been in place for the Smith 
and the Harrison wells for quite a few years. Stowell indicated that regarding the Haven Well it is 
anticipated that too will become active this year (summer). 

Lamson indicated that regarding the Haven Well there are many individuals concerned 
with the Haven Well coming online. 

Disposition: Resolved by unanimous (7-0) roll call vote for; motion carried. 

XII. Executive Director: 
A. 	Reports: 

1. 	Golf Course Operations 

Golf Course General Manager Scott DeVito ("DeVito") indicated the driving range 
opened on Wednesday, March 17th, and anticipates opening 18 holes on Friday, March 26 th . The 
state guidelines for restaurants have been updated and Grill 28 can now seat up to 10 people to a 
table (increasing its capacity and business improving). 

Pease Development Authority 
	

Board of Directors 	 March 18, 2021 



22 

DeVito indicated at the last Golf Committee meeting there had been discussion regarding 
availability to sign up for tee times up to fourteen (14) days in advance for membership. DeVito 
indicated no change to the software, but as of April 19 th  will transition to taking phone calls in 
order to schedule tee times at an earlier time, rather than midnight. 

DeVito indicated maintenance has put down seed to recoup some of the damaged areas on 
the course. DeVito stated that staff will be working with the City of Portsmouth to get the 
irrigation system online early next month, but that he anticipates there may be some restrictions 
this year. DeVito indicated that EJ Chea has come up with a water conservation program that he 
has been working on for a number of years which would transition some of the areas on the 
course to more natural areas that don't play and will be shutting the irrigation off in these areas in 
an effort to decrease water usage. There are multiple programs within the system to reduce 
consumption on a daily basis (i.e.; rain sensors to turn off the system if getting rain while system 
is on; hand watering during day versus having irrigation cool the surface off; drought resistant 
products). DeVito indicated that staff are working with the City and trying to utilize up-to-date 
technology at the course for water conservation. 

Brean thanked the Board for supporting the capital equipment purchase requested by the 
golf course delayed last year due to COVID. 

2. 	Airport Operations 
a) Portsmouth International Airport at Pease (PSM) 

Brean indicated that PSM is holding its own regarding enplanements; through February 
there have been 9,197 enplanements which is a 53% decrease from February of 2020. This is 
breaks down to a 45% charter decrease and a 57% scheduled service decrease (throughout the 
industry, other airports are down 78%). Brean did indicate that future travel bookings have 
increased and announced summer/seasonal service to Nashville TN and St. Pete FL (northbound 
market for Floridians to enjoy social distance vacations in New England), and continuing year 
rnnnrl sPrvicP to Punta GrIrd 

Brean stated that through the Coronavirus Response (CRRS) Act, PSM will be receiving 
$1.4 million of aid and anticipate an approximate savings of $70,000 in PDA portions of MP 
projects that have been included in the bill. 

Brean informed the Board stated that the Air National Guard received its 12 th  and final 
KC-46 on February 4 th ; the squadron is at full capacity and actively flying missions out of 
Portsmouth. 

b) Skyhaven Airport (DAW) 

Brean indicated Andrew Pomeroy ("Pomeroy") is working closely with the City of 
Rochester Planning Board pertaining to developments off the airport area that will impact the 
airport and the navigation easements into the airport. 

Brean stated that through the Coronavirus Response (CRRS) Act, DAW will be receiving 

Pease Development Authority 
	

Board of Directors 	 March 18, 2021 



23 

$13,000 in relief aid and anticipate an approximate savings of $5,000 in some of the scheduled 
projects at Skyhaven. 

c) 	Noise Line Report 
(i) 	January & February 2021 

Brean indicated that there were no noise inquiries at either airport during the months of 
January and February, 2021. 

B. 	Approvals: 
1. Bills for Legal Services 

Director Fournier moved the motion  and Director Lamson seconded  that the Pease 
Development Authority ("PDA") Board of Directors approves of and authorizes the 
Executive Director to expend funds in the amount of $20,851.00 for legal services rendered 
to the Pease Development Authority to Sheehan Phinney Bass & Green for services from 
December 1, 2020 — December 31, 2020 in the amount of $870.00 for Tradeport General 
Representation; December 1, 2020 — December 31, 2020 in the amount of $319.00 for Ports 
& Harbors Matters; December 1, 2020 — December 31, 2020 in the amount of $12,035.00 in 
support of MS4 and CLF settlement implementation; and January 1, 2021 — January 31, 
2021 in the amount of $7,627.00 in support of MS4 and CLF settlement implementation. 

Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous (7-0) roll call vote for; motion 
carried. 

Director Fournier excused himself from the meeting at 11:07 a.m. as he had another 
appointment. 

2. Allegiant Airlines - Marketing 

Director Anderson moved  the motion and Director Lamson seconded  that the Pease 
Development Authority ("PDA") Board of Directors authorizes the Executive Director to 
use unmatched marketing funds, not to exceed $100,000, specifically for air service route 
development and to expend said funds for the purpose of promoting Allegiant Airline's air 
passenger service from Portsmouth to Nashville, TN and Clearwater, FL; all in accordance 
with the memorandum of Andrew B. Pomeroy, Manager Aviation Planning and 
Regulatory Compliance, dated March 9, 2021. 

Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous (6-0) roll call vote for; motion 
carried. 

3. Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplemental Appropriations 
(CRRSA) Act 

Director Ferrini moved  the motion  and Director Anderson seconded  that the Pease 
Development Authority ("PDA") Board of Directors hereby approves of and authorizes the 
Executive Director to accept Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplemental 

Pease Development Authority 
	

Board of Directors 	 March 18, 2021 



24 

Appropriations Act (Public Law 116-260) (CRRSA) Grant(s) for which Portsmouth 
International and Skyhaven Airports are or may become eligible. This approval includes 
the authority to execute any and all documents necessary or appropriate to accept the 
CRRSA Grant(s) on an expedited basis and to use said grants for any purpose for which 
airport revenues may be lawfully used, in accordance with the FAA's Policy and Procedures 
Concerning the Use of Airport Revenues. 

Discussion:  None. Disposition:  Resolved by unanimous (6-0) roll call  vote for; motion 
carried. 

4. 	Town of Newington Transportation Alternative Program (TAP) 
Grant Application — Letter of Support 

Director Lamson withdrew this request from the agenda as it was not approved at the 
Newington Town meeting held on Saturday, March 13th. 

XIII. Division of Ports and Harbors: 
A. 	Reports: 

1. Port Advisory Council — Minutes of December 9, 2020 
2. Port Advisory Council - Minutes of January 13, 2021 
3. Portsmouth Fish Pier — Change Order #5 / H.L. Patten 
4. Cianbro Corp. — Right of Entry — Market Street Terminal 
5. Commercial Mooring Transfer — Pike to Noyes 
6. Commercial Mooring Transfer — Chong to Collins 
7. Commercial Mooring Transfer — McLaughlin to McLaughlin 
8. Commercial Mooring Transfer — Chong to Nudd 
9. Commercial Mooring Transfer — Bohley to Naples 
10. Commercial Mooring Transfer — Randall to Adams 
11. Commercial Mooring Transfer — Thurlow to Thurlow 
12. Commercial Mooring Transfer = Ouellette to O'Neil 
13. Commercial Mooring Transfer — Armano to Merrow 
14. Report on the Commercial Fishermen Days at Dover DMV for the 

2021 Season 

Geno J. Marconi ("Marconi), Division Director of the Division of Ports and Harbors 
("DPH"), reported on Division activities, and the reports before the Board represent the current 
business at the DPH. 

Director Marconi mentioned the packet contained two sets of minutes (December 9, 2020 
and January 13, 2021) of Port Advisory Council. 

Marconi spoke to the Change Order at the PFP in the amount of $11,000 for the purchase 
for two hydraulic hoists ($5,500/ea.) to replace the electric chain hoists (between $4,200/ea. -
$4,700/ea.). Marconi indicated this was at the recommendation of the commercial fishermen and 
through the due diligence of staff determined the savings of the two different types of hoists (life 
expectancy / replacement costs, maintenance (the electric chain hoists isn't made for outside) and 

Pease Development Authority 
	

Board of Directors 	 March 18, 2021 



25 

feel will reduce maintenance / replacement costs. 

Marconi spoke to Cianbro's Right of Entry for trans-loading of construction materials for 
the PNSY super flood basin project. Earlier in the project there had been a trans-loading of 
dredge materials for the project but was informed by the Navy of 20,000 additional yards of 
additional materials to be removed at the construction site. Marconi indicated that the Navy is 
strict on the handling of the dredge materials which will be transported up to Turnkey in 
Rochester, also had Ransom review the type of material being removed and DPH indicated it 
was appropriate for the handling of the material through DPH. 

Marconi indicated items 5 through 13 are Commercial Mooring Transfers; the Code 
Administrative Rules allows mooring transfers which must remain commercial use and cannot be 
used for general. Marconi spoke of the process and review that the requests go through, 

Marconi spoke to the report on the Commercial Fishermen Days held at Dover DMV 
which has been held for the past few years cooperatively with NH Fish & Game and DMV. 
Marconi indicated that it is easier for the fishermen this way for in order to obtain a commercial 
mooring there needs to be a commercial fishing license. The event was held on a Saturday when 
the DMV was closed and have received good feedback from the fishermen handling registration 
in this manner. 

Lamson thanked Marconi for the information forwarded to her concerning the Little Bay 
Bridges. 

Anderson indicated the registration day is tremendous for the commercial fisherman as it 
is "one stop shopping", it has alleviated something that used to take multiple trips which has 
been consolidated into one event. 

B. 	Approvals: 
1. 	Right of Entry Extension - Juliet Marine Systems, Inc. "Ghost Boat" 

Director Ferrini moved the motion  and Director Levesque seconded  that the Pease 
Development Authority ("PDA") Board of Directors hereby approves of and consents an 
extension of the Right of Entry ("ROE") for Juliet Marine Systems, Inc. ("Juliet"), under 
the same terms and conditions in the ROE dated May 16, 2019, for the use of the facilities 
at the Market Street Terminal for the purpose of storage, and the eventual loading (onto a 
ship), of the 60' vessel known as the "Ghost boat" for a period of twelve (12) months 
commencing May 1, 2021, on a month to month basis, or until April 30, 2022; all in 
accordance with the memorandum of Geno J. Marconi, Division Director, dated February 
24, 2021 

Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous (6-0) roll call vote for; motion 
carried/failed. 

Pease Development Authority 
	

Board of Directors 	 March 18, 2021 



26 

2. 	Expansion of the Piscataqua River's Uppermost Turning Basin 
Project 

Director Levesque moved  the motion  and Director Anderson seconded  that the Pease 
Development Authority ("PDA") Board of Directors hereby authorizes the Executive 
Director to execute a Project Partnership Agreement (PPA) between the Army Corps of 
Engineers and PDA for the "Portsmouth Harbor & Piscataqua River Navigation 
Improvement Project, New Hampshire and Maine" (the "Project"), submitted to the 
Division of Ports and Harbors ("DPH") related to the expansion of the Piscataqua River's 
Uppermost Turning Basin, and to commit funds for the Project pursuant to the PPA; all in 
accordance with the Memorandum of Geno Marconi, Division Director, dated March 8, 
2021. 

Discussion: Ferrini asked in what manner PDA would see the tracking of this project in 
an effort to understand timing and expenditure; Marconi indicated when the PPA is executed a 
check will be written upfront for approximately $6+ million. Marconi indicated that at the end of 
the project (as is the experience with all DPH dredging projects) it takes about a year to close out 
all of the paperwork there. During this time it will be determined if there are any rebates to be 
received (i.e.; receiving money back from Hampton and Rye projects), in addition there is $2.5 
million post construction and operating and maintenance contribution (the request for that payment 
is a year and a half after construction is completed - anticipated to be March 2022). 

Lamson asked if this were the same procedure done over the years; Marconi affirmed. 

Disposition: Resolved by unanimous (6-0) roll call vote for; motion carried. 

XIV. New Business: 

XV. Upcoming Meetings: 

Port Committee April 1, 2021 @ 8:00 a.m. 
Audit Committee April 12, 2021 @ 8:30 a.m. 
Golf Committee April 12, 2021 @ 9:00 a.m. 
Finance Committee April 12, 2021 @ 9:30 a.m. 
Board of Directors April 15, 2021 @ 8:30 a.m. 

All Meetings begin at 8:30 a.m. unless otherwise posted. 

Smith indicated that it is his intention to have the next Board of Directors' meeting held 
as an "in-person" meeting. 

Lamson asked if the Finance Committee meeting would be held at the PDA offices or 
would it be as a Zoom meeting; Smith indicated he would get back to her with a response. 

Pease Development Authority 
	

Board of Directors 	 March 18, 2021 



27 

XVI. Directors' Comments: 

Smith thanked the Board for its patience during the meeting as it worked through, and 
continues to work through, the Million Air project. Smith indicated an appreciation of the 
respect amongst Board members and their opinions. 

XVII. Adjournment: 

Director Lamson moved the motion  and Director Loughlin seconded to adjourn the 
Board meeting. Meeting adjourned at 11:22 a.m. 

Discussion:  None. Disposition:  Resolved (6-0) for; motion carried.  

XVIII. Press Questions: 

There were no questions from the press. 

Respectfully submitted, 

P. (`,...,0",-,  
Paul E. Brean 
Executive Director 

P:\BOARD  MINUTES \2021\Bd Minutes 3-18-2021.docx 

Pease Development Authority 
	

Board of Directors 	 March 18, 2021 



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 	 GOLF COMMITTEE 
Monday, April 12, 2021 	 AGENDA 

Time: 	9:00 a.m. 
Place: 	55 International Drive, Pease International Tradeport 

Portsmouth, New Hampshire 

AGENDA 

I. 	Call to Order 

II. 	Acceptance of Meeting Minutes: November 16, 2020 * 

III. 	Public Comment 

IV. 	Old Business 
A. 	Reports 

1. 	Advanced Tee time 

V. 	New Business 
A. 	Reports 

1. Grill 28 Improvements/Concession Fee, April — June 2020 * 
2. Patio Covering Concept 
3. September Air Show 

VI. 	Public Comment 

VII. Upcoming Meetings 

Finance Committee 	 April 12, 2021 @ 9:30 a.m. 
Board of Directors 	 April 15, 2021 @ 8:30 a.m. 

All meetings begin at 8:30 a.m. unless otherwise posted. 

VIII. Adjournment 

IX. 	Press Questions 

• Related Materials Attached 
** 	Related Materials Previously Sent 
*** 	Related Materials will be provided under separate cover 
• Materials to be distributed at Board Meeting 
▪ Confidential Materials 

P:\BOARDMTG\AGENDAS  - Committees\Golf\Agenda - 4-12-21.docx 



0-- 
PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

MOTION  

Director Fournier: 

In accordance with the recommendation of the Pease Development 

Authority ("PDA") Airport Committee, the PDA Board of Directors finds 

that the Fixed Based Operator ("FBO") application of Pease Aviation 

Partners, LLC d/b/a Million Air Portsmouth ("PAP"), dated January 7, 2021 

(the "Application"), to become a FBO at Portsmouth International Airport 

at Pease pursuant to the Minimum Standards for Commercial and 

Noncommercial General Aviation Operators dated August 16, 2007 

("Minimum Standards"), satisfies said Minimum Standards and: 

1. Conditionally approves the Application subject to paragraph 2 

below; and 

2. Conditionally authorizes PAP to become a FBO at Portsmouth 

International Airport at Pease ("PSM") in accordance with and 

subject to the Minimum Standards; provided, however, that 

such authorization, and the commencement of FBO operations 

by PAP at PSM, shall be subject to and contingent upon: 

a. Site plan, subdivision, and any other requisite approvals 

and permits for use of a temporary facility and 

construction of PAP's proposed facility at 53 Exeter 

Street, consistent with project phasing; 

b. Execution of a lease agreement for the property at 53 

Exeter Street, subject to separate PDA Board approval, 

on terms and conditions substantially similar to those 

TAKING YOU THERE 



set forth in the Letter of Intent dated January 7, 2021, 

attached hereto, including such other terms as the 

Executive Director or PDA Board of Directors shall deem 

necessary and appropriate; and 

c. 	Verification by the Executive Director that all provisions 

of the Application and requirements of the Minimum 

Standards to act as an FBO remain satisfied in full force 

and effect at such time as PAP shall commence 

providing FBO service; 

all in accordance with the memorandum of Paul E. Brean, Executive 

Director, dated January 14, 2021. 

NOTE: 	Roll Call vote required. 

NARESOLVES \ 2021 \Pease Aviation Partners (MillionAir) 53 Exeter Street - FBO Application 4-15-2021 (Smith & Anderson . amendment)docx 



PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

	
55 International Drive, Portsmouth NH 03801 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

To: 	Pease Development Authority Board of Directors 

From: Paul E. Brean, Executive Director 

Date: 	1/14/2021 

Subj: 	Pease Aviation Partners, LLC d/b/a Million Air Portsmouth Fixed Base Operator Application 

Via application dated January 7, 2021, Pease Aviation Partners, LLC d/b/a Million Air Portsmouth 
("PAP") has applied to establish itself as a Fixed Base Operator ("FBO") at the Portsmouth International 
Airport at Pease ("PSM"). The application is attached hereto. An FBO is a commercial enterprise which 
has been granted a right by an airport authority to operate at an airport and provide aviation services, such 
as fuel, airplane parking, hangar space, deicing, snow removal, line services, and the like. As the 
application provides, PAP is part of an FBO system that operates throughout North America. PAP's 
application details its proposed FBO development and services at PSM. PAP would be a second FBO at 
PSM. The current FBO, Port City Air ("PCA") did provide a response to the FBO application, which was 
provided to the Airport Committee and is also included herein. 

The Pease Development Authority ("PDA") has adopted Minimum Standards and Requirements 
for Full-Service Fixed Base Operators which have been in effect since 2007. The PDA Minimum  
Standards for Commercial and Noncommercial General Aviation Operators are attached hereto (see 
Article 2). The Minimum Standards define the minimum standards for the conduct of commercial and 
noncommercial general activities at PSM and state the privileges and restrictions associated with 
operating an FBO at PSM. Specifically the Minimum Standards set forth the minimum standards that 
must be met for facilities, land area, improvements, services required, equipment, personnel, operating 
requirements, and hours of operation. 

The Minimum Standards also set forth the PDA's general aviation development goals: 

a. Ensure that general aviation activities at the Airport are conducted in a safe, fair, and 
equitable manner, in accordance with PDA, state, and federal standards; 

b. Promote first-class general aviation services and facilities; and 

c. Assist private developers in promoting business interests at the Airport 

0000 TAKING YOU THERE 

Phone: 603.433 6088 	Fax: 603 4270433 	www.peasedev.org  



These goals are consistent with the Federal Aviation Administration's ("FAA") objectives in 
encouraging the development of minimum standards by airport sponsors for commercial services 
providers at airports. Specifically, the FAA recognizes that a sponsor's establishment of minimum 
standards contributes to non-discriminatory treatment of airport tenants and users, and helps the sponsor 
avoid granting an exclusive right. As long as minimum standards are reasonable and not unjustly 
discriminatory, the Airport is protected against charges that it has violated grant assurances. 

Further, the FAA notes that minimum standards typically promote safety at airports, maintain a 
higher quality of service, protect airport users, enhance the availability of services, promote orderly 
airport development, provide clear distinctions between adequate services levels, and prevent disputes 
between aeronautical providers. 

In conjunction with submitting its application pursuant to the Minimum Standards to operate an 
FBO, PAP is seeking to lease and develop a parcel of Airport land at 53 Exeter Street. PAP intends to 
implement its development in two phases. The first phase includes approvals for and construction of the 
fuel farm, as well as approvals for the temporary use of the existing hangar located at 120 Aviation 
Avenue for other FBO functions. FBO operations are intended to commence with the completion of this 
phase. Approvals for and construction of the new access driveway, building and other improvements at 
53 Exeter Street would be part of the second phase. Upon completion of the second phase, PAP intends 
to cease use of the temporary facility. Both phases are intended to be completed within 30 months. 

PAP's site/subdivision plans are attached hereto for reference. PAP is seeking conceptual 
approval of these plans at the January Board meeting via a separate agenda item. Upon receipt of final 
site plan and subdivision approval (consistent with project phasing), and subject to Board authorization, 
PAP will enter into a long-term ground lease with the PDA, make a substantial investment in 
infrastructure and development and commence operations. The lease would be consistent with the letter 
of intent between PDA and PAP, dated January 7, 2021 ("LOI"), which is included in this packet, as well 
as other terms deemed necessary by PDA staff 

Section 1.03 of the Minimum Standards, in conjunction with Article 2, sets forth the FBO 
application requirements and procedures. Consistent therewith, on January 12, 2021, the Airport 
Committee reviewed the application and recommended to the Board that it: 

1) Find that the application satisfies the Minimum Standards; and 

2) Approve the application and authorize PAP to become a FBO at PSM in 
accordance with the Minimum Standards. 

As such, I respectfully request that at its meeting on January 21, 2021, the PDA Board of Directors 
approve PAP's FBO application and authorize PAP to become a FBO at Portsmouth International Airport 
at Pease in accordance with and subject to the Minimum Standards, with commencement of FBO 
operations being subject to and conditioned upon: 1) land use approvals and permits, consistent with 
planned project phasing; 2) execution of a lease agreement consistent with the LOI and such other terms 
deemed necessary and appropriate; and 3) verification that all provisions of the Application and 
requirements of the Minimum Standards to act as an FBO are satisfied at such time as PAP shall 
commence providing FBO services. 

13 : \BOARDMTG\ AGENDAS - Committees\ AirporMirport Comm Memo re Million Air Application for FBO 1-12-2021.docx 

-2- 



OP- 

PEAcE 
INTERNATIONAL 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

MOTION  

Director Fournier: 

The Pease Development Authority Airport Committee finds that the 

Fixed Based Operator ("FBO") application of Pease Aviation Partners, LLC 

d/b/a Million Air Portsmouth ("PAP"), dated January 7, 2021 (the 

"Application"), to become a FBO at Portsmouth International Airport at 

Pease pursuant to the Minimum Standards for Commercial and 

Noncommercial General Aviation Operators dated August 16, 2007 (the 

"Minimum Standards"), satisfies the Minimum Standards and recommends 

that the PDA Board of Directors approve the Application and authorize 

PAP to become a FBO at Portsmouth International Airport at Pease; all in 

accordance with the Minimum Standards and the memorandum of Paul E. 

Brean, Executive Director, dated January 8, 2021. 

NOTE: Roll Call Vote Required. 

NARESOLVES \ Cornmittees \ Airport \ Pease Aviation Partners dba Million Air FBO (A16) 01-12-2021.docx 

TAKING YOU THERE 



PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

55 International Drive, Portsmouth NH 03801 

To: 	Airport Committee 

laFrom: Paul Brean, Executive Director 

Date: 	1/8/2021 

Subj: 	Pease Aviation Partners, LLC d/b/a Million Air Portsmouth Fixed Base Operator 
Application 

Via application dated January 7, 2021, Pease Aviation Partners, LLC d/b/a Million Air 
Portsmouth ("PAP") has applied to establish itself as a Fixed Base Operator ("FBO") at the 
Portsmouth International Airport at Pease ("PSM"). The application is attached hereto. An FBO 
is a commercial enterprise which has been granted a right by an airport authority to operate at an 
airport and provide aviation services, such as fuel, airplane parking, hangar space, deicing, snow 
removal, line services, and the like. As the application provides, PAP is part of an FBO system 
that operates throughout North America. PAP's application details its proposed FBO 
development and services at PSM. PAP would be a second FBO at PSM. 

The Pease Development Authority ("PDA") has adopted Minimum Standards and 
Requirements for Full-Service Fixed Base Operators which have been in effect since 2007. The 
PDA Minimum Standards for Commercial and Noncommercial General Aviation Operators are 
attached hereto (see Article 2). The Minimum Standards define the minimum standards for the 
conduct of commercial and noncommercial general activities at PSM and state the privileges and 
restrictions associated with operating an FBO at PSM. Specifically the Minimum Standards set 
forth the minimum standards that must be met for facilities, land area, improvements, services 
required, equipment, personnel, operating requirements, and hours of operation. 

The Minimum Standards also set forth the PDA's general aviation development goals: 

a. Ensure that general aviation activities at the Airport are conducted in a safe, 
fair, and equitable manner, in accordance with PDA, state, and federal 
standards; 

b. Promote first-class general aviation services and facilities; and 

c. Assist private developers in promoting business interests at the Airport 

0000 TAKING YOU THERE 

Phone. 603.433.6088 	Fax: 603.4270433 	www peasedev.org  



These goals are consistent with the Federal Aviation Administration's ("FAA") 
objectives in encouraging the development of minimum standards by airport sponsors for 
commercial services providers at airports. Specifically, the FAA recognizes that a sponsor's 
establishment of minimum standards contributes to non-discriminatory treatment of airport 
tenants and users, and helps the sponsor avoid granting an exclusive right. As long as minimum 
standards are reasonable and not unjustly discriminatory, the Airport is protected against charges 
that it has violated grant assui-ances. 

Further, the FAA notes that minimum standards typically promote safety at airports, 
maintain a higher quality of service, protect airport users, enhance the availability of services, 
promote orderly airport development, provide clear distinctions between adequate services 
levels, and prevent disputes between aeronautical providers. 

In conjunction with submitting its application pursuant to the Minimum Standards to 
operate an FBO, PAP is seeking to lease and develop a parcel of Airport land at 53 Exeter Street. 
PAP's site/subdivision plans are attached hereto. PAP plans to seek conceptual approval of these 
plans at the PDA Board of Director's meeting on January 21, 2021. Upon receipt of final site 
plan and subdivision approval, and subject to Board authorization, PAP will enter into a long-
term ground lease with the PDA, make a substantial investment in infrastructure and 
development and commence operations. 

Section 1.03 of the Minimum Standards, in conjunction with Article 2, sets forth the FBO 
application requirements and procedures. Based on PDA staffs favorable review of this 
application, I respectfully submit this application for Airport Committee review and ask that you 
recommend to the PDA Board of Directors that it: 

1) Find that the application satisfies the Minimum Standards; and 

2) Approve the application and authorize PAP to become a FBO at PSM in 
accordance with the Minimum Standards. 

P BOARDMTG \AGENDAS - Committees \AirporMirport Comm Memo re Million Air Application for FRO 1-12-2021 docx 

-2- 



January 7, 2020 

Paul Brean 

Executive Director 

Pease Development Authority 

55 International Drive 

Portsmouth, NH 03801 

Re. Application Procedure 

On behalf of REW Investments, via its assignee Pease Aviation Partners, LLC d/b/a Million Air 

Portsmouth ("PAP"), I am pleased to submit to the Pease Development Authority ("PDA") the 

following application procedure to establish a fixed base operation at Portsmouth International 

Airport at Pease("PSM"), located within the Pease International Tradeport ("FBO") ("Airport"). 

Application as per 1.03 of PSM Minimum Standards for Commercial and Noncommercial  

General Aviation Operators  

Name and address of the applicant: 
Pease Aviation Partners, LLC, a Texas limited liability company 

7555 Ipswich Road 

Houston, TX 77061 

Proposed land use and /or services to be offered: 
The proposal is that PAP would construct and operate a full service FBO (all services as per 
article 2 of PSM Minimum Standards for GA) as follows: 

During Phase I of the construction, Million Air will operate from the facility at 120 Aviation 

Avenue. Transitioning to the new FBO building in Phase II (See attached conceptual design). 

Aircraft Fuel and Oil Sales 

1. A permanent fuel farm storage facility is to be constructed. It will contain 90,000 gallons 

of Jet-A and 15,000 gallons of 10011 (Avgas). 

The FBO will also contain storage for a selection of lubricants to meet the needs of 

general aviation. 

2. Million Air will have 3 X 10,000-gallon Jet-A refuellers and 2 X 1,000-gallon Avgas 

refuellers available for the operation. 

3. Our full-time fuel accountant is trained in inventory management and will provide such 

report to the airport for auditing. These dispensing reports will be stored for a minimum 

of 12 months. 

1 



Aircraft Deicing 

Million Air will have 2 deicing trucks on site utilized by our trained line service persons. Our 

supervisor will then complete the PDA required forms and submit within 1 hour of the deicing 

event. 

Ground Handling 

1. Our line service professionals are fully trained in the military style 212 marshalling 

technique to guide aircraft safely in and out the parking areas. Million Air will have a 

follow me pick up truck equipped with two-way radio allowing control tower 

communication on the ramp frequency. 

2. Million Air's "stage ready" policy has our agents ready with tie down ropes and wheel 

chocks for every arrival. We track all incoming GA flights though our internal CSI system 

and are prepared for their arrival. 

3. Our equipment list provides for the necessary tugs and tow bars needed to pull aircraft. 

With a focus on safety, it is Million Air's policy to have 3 agents present at every hangar 

move, no exceptions. 

Customer Services 

1. During Phase I, the temp facility will provide 3,000 sq ft of space. This includes a 

passenger facility with lounge area, refreshments, TV, and Phone access. Phase II will 

see a 6,000 sq ft new FRO that will house an impressive passenger facility. It will include 

5-star level lounge areas with access to refreshments, TV service and public telephones 

if needed. 

2. Heated and Air-Conditioned Crew Areas will be included in both the temp location and 

the new facility 

3. Restroom facilities available in the temp facility and in Phase II upgraded to luxury 

restroom facilities with touchless flush, touchless faucets, and touchless soap 

dispensers. 

4. 2 crew cars and a crew minivan on site as courtesy transportation. 

5. The flight planning facility will feature high speed internet accessible computers pre-

loaded with common use planning tools and a wireless printer for crews with their own 

devices. A large charging area will also be available for passengers and crew 

6. Million Air sales counter will feature several for sale items to include pilot supplies, flight 

planning equipment, survival equipment, aircraft equipment and manuals. 

2 



MILLION Al.• 
ow: - 

Line Service 

1. Our trained team will have a nitrogen cart to inflate aircraft tires and specialized aircraft 

cleaning products (Celeste) to clean aircraft interiors and windows. 

a. We will apply (as we have in our other locations) for an International Trash 

License from USDA. 

b. Million Air has contracted with Gama Aviation Aircraft Maintenance company to 

provide onsite routine and preventative aircraft maintenance (such as repair of 

aircraft tires, service aircraft braking systems, change aircraft engine oil, 

recharge oxygen systems, replace engine starters, and recharge aircraft 

batteries). 

2. An equipment list is provided below of ground support items. This includes everything 

needed for normal aircraft turnaround, including energizers and starters, GPUs and Fire 

Extinguishers. 

3. Our Lektro Tugs are capable of moving aircraft up to and beyond 75,000 pounds gross 

weight. 

Hangar Space 

The temp facility provides 17,000 square feet of Hangar space. 

The new FBO design has included a hangar of 12,000 square feet to provide transient, temp, 

and long-term aircraft storage. 

Aircraft Recovery 

Our tugs, nitro cart and fully trained team are equipped to move a disabled aircraft of up to 

12,500 pounds gross take of weight. They would accomplish this with communication through 

the ATC control tower and Airport Operations Team. 

Collection of Fees 
Our qualified team includes a full-time fuel accountant who is dedicated to manage collection 

of landing, parking and fuel flowage fees from aircraft using the FBO. 

Snow Removal 

Million Air will have a pickup truck, F250 with snow blade for light removal. We will also 

contract the services of Piscataqua Landscaping for snow removal and summer landscape 

maintenance. The area where removed snow will be stored is noted on the attached 

conceptual designs. 

As a term of the Agreement, PDA would grant PAP reasonable access to all common use Apron 

areas adjoining the Leased Premises for fueling operations and other purposes related to the 

operation of the FBO. 

3 



Proposed date for commencement of the activity and term: 

The Proposed Lease Agreement shall be effective upon PDA board approval and execution, 

approximately late spring 2021. The lease term shall be for a base term of forty-seven (47) 

years, commencing on the Effective Date (the "Term"). 

Facilities and/or amount of land to be leased: 

Initially during Phase I, a lease of corporate aircraft hangar at 120 Aviation Avenue (see 

attached scope of business during Phase I). 

Additionally, also in Phase 1, a permanent fuel farm facility on the land area (2.65 acres to the 

west of existing hanger 227) generally described as 53 Exeter Street (collectively the 

"Leased Premises" or "Premises"). Final lot dimensions and access areas to be determined 

through survey work and/or subdivision and site plan review process. 

Phase 2 will see this land developed with new permanent 6,500 Square ft FBO and Hangar 

facilities (see attached concept designs). The FBO will be staffed 24 hours per day and will have 

a permanent full time General Manager, Customer Service team, Line Service team and Fuel 

Accountant. 

Cost of building facilities and method of financing: 

Phase 1 - 	$20,000 per month lease of facility at 120 Aviation Avenue 

$2,500,000 cost of new permanent fuel farm on land at 53 

Exeter Street. 

$6,000,000 cost of fuel trucks and ground equipment 

Phase 2 - 	$8,000,000 Additional development of new permanent 

FBO and Hangar at 53 Exeter Street. 

Financial responsibility and ability of the entity to carry out the activity: 

With more than 30 years of experience and 31 current Fixed Base Operations, Million Air is 

uniquely qualified to design, develop, and operate on a global level. The Million Air system is 

operated throughout the US, Canada, and the Caribbean, comprised of 1,000 employees and 

more than 800 aircraft within the leasehold of our facilities which sets the stage for enhancing 

the service standards of the industry. 

The structure of Million Air starts with Roger Woolsey who purchased Million Air in April of 

2002 and moved the headquarters to Houston TX. 

4 



The group is divided into several sections as shown in Exhibit A. 

Under REW Investments, 7 FBOs are directly owned and 2 are managed on behalf of the 

Airport. The remaining FBOs (Interlink) are franchised locations set up similarly to Chick-Fil-A, 

Inc. 

Each of the owned locations are incorporated in the state they operate in. This is done for ease 

of compliance with local and state regulations. See diagram on Exhibit A 

Financial responsibility will be solely with Pease Aviation Partners, LLC which is owned by REW 

Investments Inc. Financing will be established through a bond financing program. 

Names and qualifications of key personnel to be involved: 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 
Mr. Roger Woolsey is the Owner and CEO of Million Air Interlink (MAI) and REW Investments 

Inc. (REW). Mr. Woolsey is an entrepreneur that has successfully launched several companies, 
all in the aviation sector. Woolsey is clearly a visionary and charismatic leader, with a passion 

for results and quality. He has been featured in and quoted in numerous books, magazines, and 

news media outlets. Woolsey served as a bank board member, frequent guest speaker for both 

Universities and corporate keynote addresses. He holds the highest pilot rating available, the 

Airline Transport License, and is a Licensed Insurance Agent with authority to practice in 14 

states. Alumnus of the University of Arkansas, USAF War College, Harvard Business School's 

Executive Education (Achieving Breakthrough Service, Executive Finance for Senior Leaders, and 

Owner President & Management (OPM-37)). 

CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER 
Charles "Chuck" M. Suma serves as Chief Operating Officer in the Houston Headquarters Office, 

providing strategic leadership and managing all operations of the company. Chuck is a senior 

level executive with 40 years of experience in the design, manufacturing, sale, and support of 

Business Aviation Aircraft. He joins the Million Air family following an impressive 30 years with 

Piper Aircraft. Chuck has served on the Board of Directions for the Aircraft Owners and Pilot 

Association (AOPA), National Business Aircraft Association, National Aviation Transportation 

Association, AOPA Air Safety Foundation, and National Chamber of Commerce. Additionally, he 

has served as the Chairman of the General Aviation Manufacturers Association (GAMA) and Air 

Safety Investigation Committee. 

EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT, FBO OPERATIONS 

Jennifer A. Gomes has a 15-year multi country track record of delivering outstanding customer 

service in conjunction with seamless business operations. She was responsible for one of the 

largest single sourced fueling operations in the world, with over 800 daily departures at 

Charlotte Douglas International Airport. She coordinated an international airline startup in 

5 



Singapore organizing full operations above and below wing with resources and employees from 

over 6 countries. Jennifer joined Million Air as the General Manager in Tallahassee where she 

revitalized the front and backend operations to create a culture of safety, pride, ownership, and 

mutual respect. This transformation was recognized in the 2020 AIN 180 Survey, for one of the 

most improved FBO5 in 2019. 

GENERAL MANAGER 

Colonel Jeffrey N. Stout U.S.A.F. (Ret) has over 39 years of experience in general aviation and 

military aviation. Stout completed a 26-year career with the United States Air Force before 

joining Million Air. Stout has served as a pilot, aircraft commander and instructor pilot in KC-

135, U-2 and T-38 aircraft. Jeff is a New Jersey native and holds a Bachelor of Science degree in 

Aeronautical Science and a Master of Applied Science degree in Aeronautical Science and 

Aviation Management. He holds an FAA Airline Transport pilot's license and was a USAF 

command pilot. 

Specific types and amounts of insurance to be maintained: 

Carrier Policy  Numlier Elivat[on Limit 

Property ($100M) Starr Surplus Lines 
SLSTPTY1137682 

0 
11/01/2021 

$100,000,000 any one occurrence 

plus applicable sub-limits 

Inland Marine 
New Hampshire 

Insurance Co. 

01-LX- 

012419522-1 
11/01/2021 

$14,147.936 Scheduled contractors 

equipment limit 

Automobile 
New Hampshire Ins 

Co. 

01-CA- 

019046558-9 
11/01/2021 

$1,000,000 CSL any one accident 

$1,000 deductible each for collision & 

comprehensive 

Work 

Compensation 

Starr Specialty 

Insurance Co. 
1000003895 11/01/2021 

Workers Compensation: Statutory 

Employers Liability: $1M/$1M/$1M 

Pollution I lability 

Allied World 

Assurance Company 

(U S.) 

0312-5337 11/01/2023 
$10,000,000 each incident 

limit/coverage section aggregate limit 

D&0/EPL/Fiducia 

ry/Crime 

QBE Insurance 

Corporation 
10041721 11/01/2021 

$1,000,000 limit of liability— each claim 

$3,000,000 policy aggregate limit 

Aviation General 

Liability 

USAIG Lead, AIG, W. 

Brown, QBE & Starr 
Various 11/01/2021 

$100,000,000 CSL any one occurrence 

plus applicable sub-limits 

Number of aircraft to be provided: 

N/A 

6 



i 

Tools, equipment, services, and inventory: 
Fuel Farm inventory capacity of Jet-A and 100LL (see conceptual designs). Initial Jet A storage 

for 60,000 gallons with space for an additional 30,000 gallons in the farm area. Rolling storage 

capacity of 30,000 for a total of 120,000 gallons. During growth mode as the operation 

increases rolling storage would be utilized to increase total volume. 

During Phase I build, all runoff water will be collected and separated through an oil water 

separator. Both the water and any oil residue will be pumped into trucks and removed from the 

site using ACV Enviro. 

During Phase II build, an outlet pipe from the water side of the separator will be installed to 

allow release of clean water into storm drains, after testing. 

Million Air REW is a World Fuel Service branded operation in all locations and this provides us 

security of an uninterrupted fuel supply from the refinery. Unlike FBOs who buy on the open 

market directly, we have an exclusive agreement with World Fuel Service to ensure Million Air 

is priority every time when needed. World Fuel also assists with providing replacement 

equipment during repairs and through their extensive global network have immediate access to 

vendors. 

In addition, the following equipment will be used to provide aeronautical 

services. Where possible we have selected an electric option in line with 

our company pledge to reduce our carbon footprint in 2021. 

• 3 New 10,000-gallon Jet A tanker trucks 

• 2 New 1,000-gallon Avgas trucks 

• Multiple sets of Air Stairs. (TLD Products) 

• 1 De-Icing truck with high lift boon (78') Elephant Beta-15 

• 1 De-Icing truck with 48' lift for regional jets. (Vestergaard) 

• Multiple 400hz GPUs. (AGE 6000 Series) 

• 50-gallon LOX cart. (Essex Industries) 

• 2 push tugs. (Jetporter JP100S and Eagle XM-30) 

• 1 catering truck with scissor lift 

• 1 forklift capable of lifting 5,000Ibs 

• 1 K-Loader 

• Multiple tow bars 

• Lay carts. (AERO LC270-RJ3E Electric Lavatory Service Cart) 

• 2 crew cars 

• 1 crew van 

• Multiple engine stands, including a B5 stand 

• 1 beltloader (NBL-Electric; 

7 



• 1 baggage tug and 5 baggage carts. (TUG 1ST-Electric) 

• 1 pickup truck F250 with snow blade (contract services with 

Piscataqua Landscaping) 

Number of persons to be employed: 

Employees to cover 24hr operations 

3 Line service and 2 customer service per morning and evening shift 

2 Line service employees overnight 

1 General Manager 

1 Fuel Accountant 

21 Total Employees 

Hours of operation: 

24-hour operations 

Additional Information: 

What course of action will Million Air take should they not secure the Military Contract in 

2021? 

Million Air is committed to an operation at PSM and will continue with the Phase II build of the 

FBO without the military contract. We would look to grow the GA business and use our close 

connections with the commercial airlines to attract divert, charter, and fuel stop options for 

PSM. Million Air has many network wide agreements (for example, NetJets, Vista Jet, Solaris 

etc.) and our customers choose the Million Air brand when possible. PSM today does not 

capture this market and the current FBO is not part of our national branding programs. 

What is the backup plan for equipment should Million Air have a break down? 

Million Air has agreements in place with American Airlines to rent equipment at MAGSA rates in 

these situations. We will also be using C&G Truck and Heavy Repair Inc. to perform 

maintenance on the equipment. Additionally, through our network we can reposition 

equipment from our ALB and HPN locations within hours if needed. 

What happens if there is an environmental spill? 

Million Air will use the services of ACV Enviro who are a national company with a local facility 

near Portsmouth. They are available 24/7 and have a 30-minute response time to the airport. 

How many parking spots are needed for the FBO? 

A traffic analysis was performed using the 2018 and 2019 average flight arrivals to KPSM and an 

evaluation of Million Air staffing number. The following graph for GA traffic (Including PSM 

tenant Plane Sense, who have their own hangar facility) shows a daily average of 14 flights. 

8 



\11I,EION AIR 

We can assume the following: 

• 6 employee parking spots 

• 2 crew cars 

• 2 rental cars 

• 1 crew van 

• Passengers — 6 parking spots 

• Additional peak times spots — 3 

Total Parking Spot requirement - 20 

Upon receipt of this application, please forward to the Pease Development Authority Airport 

Committee for consideration at the next scheduled meeting of the Authority. 

Sincerely, 

Charles Suma, COO 

9 



Minimum Standard Phase Phase 2 

weft 	OR S iti  

)77371:00041 Double walled Jet A Storage, SC100g1100LL Storage 3 X 30.000gl Double walled let A Storage. SCOOKI.LOOLL Storage 1) Storage and Into-plane -let A and 10011 and Lubricants 

) Mtn Twe 5,1303+ millet A dispensing Trucks 2 X 10,000 Gallon Skymark Refueler Tanker Trucks 3  X 10,000 Gallon Skym ark Refueler Tanker Trucks  

2X 1000G Ion Skymark Aveas Refuel Trucks 3) Min. Two 500+ gal 10011. dispensing trucks 2 X 1000 Gallon Skyrnark Aogas Refuel True 
. 	_ 	-,—. 

4) M. 12 Month fuel dispensing reoorts (note 139 records 24 mod TF00 Software Used in all locations TFB0 Software used in all locations 

r'.WRI 

11 Min One Deicing vehicle - heated glycol 1 De4cing truck with installed heater system (see Equipment Listl 2 De-Icing truck with installed heater system Isee Equipment List) 

2) Report forms (PDA) es VW-..- 
n 

Ground. Non ti--islw+mn 0).4 n ,-. PariggEgiut Timdmont 

1) Aircraft Guidance - Radio eau i oped • Follow me Yes, Pick up truck (See Equipment List) Yes, Pick on  truck  f ee Equipment List)  

One-down  hoo 	near Hangar (see Equipment List) 2) Tie-Down Facilies and Equipment  o be installed 3 tie-down hooks (See Equipment List) 

31 Equipment Capable of Towing Aircraft Eagle and Leckto Tugs (See Equipment List) 	 Eagle and Leckto Tugs ( ea Equipment liar) 

Customer SrV 
30013So Ft Office space 	 76500 

es (see attached plans - Temp FB0 1 & 2) 

So Ft State of the art New FRO Facility 
— 

1) Passenger Facilities - Passenger Lounge, equipped as per Pg 6 ......  

2) Convenlend !Meted crew lounge 'fat (See eltached concept designs' 

3) Maroon, facilities for passengers and crew on (see attached plans-Temp FRO 1 & 2) 	 :Yes (See attached concept designs) 

4) Courtesy Transportation 2 Mercedes and 1 mini van 	 2 Mercedes and 1 	ini van 

1 FI ht Manning facility es (see at tached plan -Temp FE10 1 & 2) 	 ire.(5ea attached concept designs) 

51 .,11iiianon sales - Pilot pantie e (see attached plans-Temp FBO 1 & 2) 	 Y.zr. (See " 	"'hod  concest designs) 

Li 	S.W. 

1) Equipped for aircraft service including domestic and international waste etc. International Trash License obtained 	 aternetiond Irma, License obtained 

21 GE - Including energizers and starters, GPU etc. 2 GPUs and 2 Air Starts (see Equipment List) 	 2 GPUs and 2 Air Rene (see Equipment WI 

3) Equipment to move min 75.000 lbs. aircraft ecktro Tug (see Equipment List) 	 Lecktro Tug (see Eouinment List) 

a 	Pau 
+.11,1.1- 

I.) Min 12,000 sq.ft. aiding 17,000 So R Hangar (see attached Plans FRO 1 & 21 	New State of the Art 12.000 sq ft Hangar 	
_ . _ . 

 

- . 
.. ft 

1) Equipment, personnel and material to removed a disabled aircraft min 12,50016s. itro Cart and universal Tow bar. Eagle Tug. (see Equipment Loll 	Nitro Cart and universal Tow bar. Eagle Tug. (see Equipment Usti 

1) Perm...reel ha collect fees ....._--...,...._....,_ taffed 24 hours 	 S taffed 24 hours 

• ow IlemoYe)legkil 

11 Owned, leased or contracted SRE for Parking Apron Man aged by FRO 

awned F250 with plow blade attached. Local company contrxt 	Owned F250 with plow blade attached_ Local company contract for 

or snow removal 	 snow removal 

inquurn Lan d and Facility genuine...Nits 

1 Min ground area lease (determined P0A) 46 Acres 	 .65 Acres 
— 

2) Min i Hangar - 12,000 'cit. of aircraft vorarze coa 17,000 Se Ft Existing Hangar 	 New Hanger to be constructed 12.0013Sq ft 

3) Office/terminal facility - Min 2,003 sq ft 3000 Sq Ft Office space 	 5500 Sq Ft Office Space 

41 Management of Paved Apron not less than 150,000 sq.ft, 

..omhination of in front of the Fii0 and other agreed areas nearby Combination of in front of the FBO and other agreed areas nearby 

greed  by "airport" 	 agreed by "airport" 

e 	Permanent Fuel Farm build (see conceptualesimir-1-1--  New Permanent Fuel Farm build (see conceptual design) ) Permanent fuel storage min 36.000 pallet A. 5,000 Gal 10011. (Compliant) 

61 Paved off Street Parking outside ARA but within leased premises (per POA) 

ombinatlon of 16 current parking spots and additional overflow 

o be shuttled to FBO 	 30 Parking Soots at new FI30 
-.. 

Minim urn m 22222 meet and%raffia! 

II On-Sie Manson eneral Manager (Salaried) 	 eneral Manager (Salaried) 	
__ 	. 

21 Adequate number Trained Qualified Staff 

tatting to allow 3 lime Service, 2 customer service each shift 	taffing to allow 3 Line Service, 2 customer service each shift (Total 

(Total staff 211 	 staff 21) 

1.1 Uniform and Protettive clothing and PPE mpany Provided 	 Company Provided 

— 
Keats rdriumraiinn _ 

11 rein 7 . 00en, .10:00.n. Daily 	. ' 4Hhr oneration 	 24Hr operation 

Minimum Insurance lienuirernen 
. 	 --- 

1 ) 	 P03 MAP Yes through Epic Brokers 	 Yes through Epic Brokers 

— 
Moir.m  tend,. eremb,w1-p.wwwweA Services 

1) Additional services? Min standards for those. None 	 rood Truck Options 

I las :4+1 

Babe, a 	Chasm for Ignites filedalith PDA 
- 

Gelb 525/Hour 	 GPU: 525/Hour 

UV: $75 per hole 	 LAU: 575 per hole 

Owen Foes: $450 waived with 400 gal fuel 	 Ramp Fees: 5450 waived with 450 Cal fuel 

Potable Water 535 flat  rate 	 Potahle Water $35 flat rate 
- 

melt Loader 615 	 B<It Loader SOS 

Oa-Icing: Type 1 518  per gallon. Typo 4 $20 per gallon 	 De-Icing. Type 1 $ 18 per gallon. Type 4 620 ocr eallon 

41 sun Reel ration rlYHDOT. etc.I NH Business Permit, Fuel Farm build 	 NH Business Permit, Reouired construction permits 

,,„.,...i_dc.,  as Der 1.03 of PSM Minimum Standards for GA Please see attachernent (Appliceition Procedure) 	 Please see attach ernen t (Application Procedure) 



Million Air 
Austin 

Makin At 
118110Pill 

'Cwntd-  moon, c -
Air!eintilt 

  

Minion Air 
White Plains 

 

American let 
international 

WI) 

Million Air 
Aircraft 

Technical 
Support 
(MARTS; 

Million Air 
Gulfport-Biloxi 

 

  

     

  

Melon AV 
IndianapOils 

Million Air 
Tallahassee 

   

     

      

Million Air 
Houston Legend: 

•  -- 
1  liapossipir  mo•c•pty a 'Up ./.9. 

vpartrog 

EXHIBIT A 

Structure of Million Air 

Roger Woolsey 

Million Air 
interlink 

R. EW 
Investments 

   

NMI EMI 
MIN 



Secretary of State 
P.O. Box 13697 	 1 
Austin, TX 78711-3697 
FAX: 512/463-5709 

- - - 	 - 	- 
Filed in the Office of the 

Secretary of State of Texas 
Filing #: 803791270 10/09/2020 

Document #: 1000969550002 
Image Generated Electronically 

for Web Filing Filing Fee: $300 

 

Certificate of Formation 
Limited Liability Company 

  

    

Article I - Entity Name and Type 

The filing entity being formed is a limited liability company. The name of the entity is: 

Pease Aviation Partners, LLC 

Article 2 - Registered Agent and Registered Office 

rA The initial registered agent is an organization (cannot be company named above) by the name of: 

OR 

1PB. The initial registered agent is an individual resident of the state whose name is set forth below: 

Name: 
;THOMAS  A DICKINSON 
C.  The business address of the registered agent and the registered office address is: 

Street Address: 
17660 Woodway Drive, Suite 460 HOUSTON TX 77063 

Consent of Registered Agent 

riA. A copy of the consent of registered agent is attached. 

OR 

'FIB. 	 agent is maintained by the entity. The consent of the registered a -  

Article 4 - Purpose 

The purpose for which the company is organized is for the transaction of any and all lawful business for which limited 
liability companies may be organized under the Texas Business Organizations Code. 

Article 3 - Governing Aufhoriti 

A. The limited liability company is to be managed by managers. 

OR 

irB. The limited liability company will not have manager& Management of the company is reserved to the members. 

The names and addresses of the governing persons are set forth below: 
- - 

!Manager 1: (Business Name) REW Investments, Inc. 

[Address: 7555 Ipswich Road HouSton TX, USA 77061 

Su •piemental Provisions Information 



tThw.: attached addendum, if any, is incorporated herein by reference 

• • • ...... 

Organizer 

The name and address of the organizer are set forth below.  
Roger Woolsey 	7555 Ipswich Road. 7555 Ipswich Road. Houston, TX 77061  ........... 	......... 	. 

ifectiveliess 

0.7A. This document becomes effective when the document is filed by the secretary of state. 

OR 

Ira This document becomes effective at a later date, which is not more than ninety (90) days from the date of its 
!signing. The delayed effective date is: 

Execution 

The undersigned affirms that the person designated as registered agent has consented to the appointment. The 
[undersigned signs this document subject to the penalties imposed by law for the submission of a materially false or 
fraudulent instrument and certifies under penalty of perjury that the undersigned is authorized under the provisions of 
law governing the entity to execute the filing instrument. 

Roger Woolsey  
Signature of Organizer 

FILING OFFICE COPY 



Business information 

Business Details 

Business Name: MILLION AIR PORTSMOUTH 	Business ID: 856584 

Business Type: Trade Name 	 Business Status: Active 

Expiration Date: 11/20/2025 	
Last Renewal 

Not Available  
Date: 

Business Creation 
11/20/2020 	

Name in State of 

Formation: 
Not Available 

Date: 

Date of Formatio
r: 

in 
11/20/2020 

Jurisdiction: 

Principal Office 7555 Ipswich Road, Houston, Mailing Address: 7555 Ipswich Road, Houston, 

Address: TX, 77061, USA 	 TX, 77061, USA 

Business Email: Iwilliams@millionaircom 	 Phone #: 713-640-4020 

Notification Email: NONE 	
Fiscal Year End 

NONE 
Date: 

 

Principal Purpose 

S.No NAICS Code 	 NAICS Subcode 

OTHER / FBO Ops 48 Transportation 190 

Other support activities for air transportation 

Page 1 of 1, records 1 to 1 of 1 

Trade  Name  Information 

Business Name 
	

Business ID 	 Business Status 

Trade Name Owned By 

Name 	 Title 

PEASE AVIATION PARTNERS, LLC 

(/online/BusinessInquire/TradeNameInformation? Business 

businessID=689573) 

Address 

Good Standing 

   



Trademark Information 

Trademark 

Number 
Trademark Name Business Address 	Mailing Address 

No records to view, 
-•••■■•••■m■ 

Filing History 	Address History 	View AN Other Addresses 

	

Businesses Linked to Registered Agent 	Return to Search 	Back 

Contact Us 

tionline/Home/ContactUS) 

Version 21 C 2014 PCC Technology Group, LLC, All Rights Reserved. 



MINIMUM STANDARDS 
FOR COMMERCIAL AND NONCOMMERCIAL 

GENERAL AVIATION OPERATORS 

PORTSMOUTH INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT AT PEASE 
PEASE INTERNATIONAL TRADEPORT 

PORTSMOUTH, NEW HAMPSHIRE 
Dated: November 13, 1997 
Revised: August 17, 2006 
Revised: August 16, 2007 



CONTENTS 

Article 
1 	 Introduction 

1.01 Statement of Purpose 
1.02 Definitions 
1.03 Application Procedure 

Minimum Standards and Reauirements for Full-Service Fixed Base Operators 
2.01 Full-Service Fixed Base Operator Required Services 
2.02 Minimum Standards for Required Services 
2.03 Minimum Land and Facility Requirements 
2.04 Minimum Management and Staffing Requirements 
2,05 Minimum Hours of Operation 
2.06 Minimum Insurance Requirements 
2.07 Minimum Service Standards-Permitted Services 
2.08 Rates and Charges for Services 
2.09 State Registration 

Minimum Standards and Requirements for Limited-Service Specialty Op_erators 
3.01 Limitations on Limited-Service Specialty Operators 
3.02 Limited-Service Specialty Operator Permitted Services 
3.03 Minimum Standards for Permitted Services 
3.04 Minimum Land and Improvement Requirements 
3.05 Minimum Insurance Requirements 
3.06 Multiple Permitted Services 
3.07 Sub-operators 
3.08 Rates and Charges for Services 
3.09 State Registration 

Aircraft Sales  
4.01 General 
4.02 Minimum Service Standards 

Noncommercial Operators 
5.01 Permitted Activities 
5.02 Prohibited Activities 
5.03 Flying Clubs 

Aircraft Fractional Ownership Management Comp_anies 
6.01 	Definitions 
6.02 Aircraft Fractional Ownership Management Company Authorized 

Services 
6.03 Minimum Standards for Aircraft Fractional Ownership 

Management Company Authorized Services 
6.04 Minimum Land and Facility Requirements 



6.05 Minimum Management and Staffing Requirements 
6.06 Insurance 
6.07 State Registration 
6.08 Aircraft Hangar Space Subletting Services 

ii 



ARTICLE 1 

INTRODUCTION 

1.01 STATEMENT OF PURPOSE 

These Minimum Standards define minimum standards for the conduct of commercial and 
noncommercial general aviation activities at Portsmouth International Tradeport at Pease (the 
"Airport"). This document states the privileges and restrictions associated with each category of 
activity and sets forth the minimum standards for facilities, land area, improvements, services 
required, equipment, personnel, operating requirements and hours of operation. 

The general aviation development goals of the Pease Development Authority (the "PDA" 
or the "Authority") are to: 

a. Ensure that general aviation activities at the Airport are conducted in a safe, fair, and 
equitable manner, in accordance with PDA, state, and federal standards. 

b. Promote first-class general aviation services and facilities. 

c. Assist private developers in promoting business interests at the Airport. 

The operating standards outlined in this document are the minimum requirements that 
must be met by Commercial Operators as a condition of their right to conduct stated commercial 
activities on the Airport and by Noncommercial Operators as a condition of their right to lease 
premises on the Airport. 

1.02 DEFINITIONS 

As used in these Minimum Standards, the following terms will have the following meanings: 

a. "Aircraft" means any aeronautical device including, but not limited to, powered aircraft, 
gliders, ultra lights, kites, helicopters, gyroscopes, gyro copters, ground effect machines, and 
balloons. 

b. "Airport" means the entirety of Airport. 

c. "Apron" means a paved area suitable for aircraft parking. 

d. "Building" means the main portion of each structure; all projections or extensions there 
from; any additions or changes thereto; and all garages, outside platforms and docks, carports, 
canopies, eaves, and porches. Paving, ground cover, fences, signs, and landscaping shall not be 
included. 

1 



e. "Commercial Operator" means an Entity engaging in an activity that involves, or makes 
possible, the offering for sale of a general aviation service for the purpose of obtaining earnings, 
income, compensation, or profit, whether or not such objective is accomplished. All commercial 
operators must be duly registered with the New Hampshire Department of Transportation, 
Division of Aeronautics. 

f. "Entity" means any person, proprietorship, association, firm, joint venture, partnership, 
limited liability corporation, corporation, other business organization, or any combination of the 
above. 

g. "Equipment" means all machinery, together with the necessary supplies, tools, and 
apparatus necessary to the proper conduct of the activity being performed. 

h. "Exclusive Right" means a power, privilege, or other right excluding or debarring another 
from enjoying or exercising a like power, privilege, or right. The granting of an Exclusive Right 
to conduct a commercial aeronautical activity on an airport developed or improved with federal 
funds is expressly prohibited. 

"FAA" as used in this document shall mean the Federal Aviation Administration. 

j. "Full-Service Fixed Base Operator" means a general aviation Commercial Operator that 
is required  to offer for sale to the public a range of basic and essential general aviation services 
and products as specified in Article 2. Additionally, a Full-Service Fixed Base Operator may be 
permitted  to provide for sale other specialized general aviation services as specified in Article 3. 

k. "General Aviation" means that portion of civil aviation, which encompasses all facets of 
aviation except air carriers holding a certificate of public convenience and necessity from the 
Federal Aviation Administration and large aircraft commercial operators. 

I. 	"Improvements" means all buildings, structures, and facilities including paving, ground 
cover, fences, signs, and landscaping constructed, installed, or placed on, under, or above any 
leased area by or with the concurrence of a Lessee and the Airport. Plans and specifications for 
all Improvements must be approved by the PDA and must meet development standards 
established by the PDA. 

m. "Lease" means a contractual agreement between the PDA and an Entity in which the 
PDA leases or subleases real property and grants rights and privileges on the Airport to the 
Entity for the purpose of conducting stated general aviation activities, which agreement is 
defined in writing and enforceable under law. 

n. "Leased Premises" means the entirety of the ground area leased to an entity including all 
buildings, improvements, and fixed and removable structures identified as the premises in the 
lease. 

2 



o. "Lessee" means an entity having a valid lease with the PDA. 

p. "Limited-Service Specialty Operator" means a commercial operator that is permitted to 
offer for sale one or more of the permitted services listed in Article 3, but is not a Full-Service 
Fixed Base Operator. 

q. "Line Service" means routine day-to-day servicing necessary for the safe operation of an 
Aircraft and may include recharging batteries, oxygen, braking, and lubrication systems; 
cleaning Aircraft windows, etc. 

r. "Noncommercial Operator" means an entity or governmental agency, which maintains a 
facility or provides a general aviation service solely for its own benefit, and not for the benefit of 
the public. Such noncommercial operators are specifically prohibited from offering general 
aviation products or services for sale to others. 

s. "Sublease" means a sublease on the Airport granted to an entity by a lessee and approved 
by the Airport for the use of all or part of the property leased by the Airport to the lessee. 

t. "Sub-Operator" means an entity engaged in any of the general aviation services that a 
Limited-Service Specialty Operator may provide, which services are provided under a sublease 
with a Full-Service Fixed Base Operator having a valid Lease with the Airport. 

u. "Tie down" means the paved area on the airport suitable for the parking of aircraft 
wherein suitable aircraft tie down points have been installed. 

1.03 APPLICATION PROCEDURE 

Any entity wishing to establish a commercial or noncommercial general aviation activity on the 
airport shall be furnished a copy of these minimum standards and shall be required to make an 
application in writing to the PDA Executive Director detailing the following: 

a. The name and address of the applicant. 

b. The proposed land use and/or services to be offered. 

c. The requested or proposed date for commencement of the activity and the term. 

d. The facilities and/or amount of land to be leased. 

e. The cost of building facilities and the method of financing, if applicable. 

f. The financial responsibility and ability of the entity to carry out the activity. 

3 



g. 	The names and qualification of key personnel to be involved. 

h, 	The specific types and amounts of insurance to be maintained. 

i. The number of aircraft to be provided, if applicable. 

j. The tools, equipment, services and inventory. 

k. The number of persons to be employed. 

1, 	The hours of operation. 

Upon receipt of the application, it shall be referred to the Pease Development Authority 
Airport Committee with the recommendations of the Executive Director and considered at the 
next scheduled meeting of the Authority. 

4 



ARTICLE 2 

MINIMUM STANDARDS AND REQUIREMENTS 
FOR FULL-SERVICE FIXED BASE OPERATORS 

2.01 FULL-SERVICE FIXED BASE OPERATOR REQUIRED SERVICES 

A Full-Service Fixed Base Operator shall provide the following aeronautical services: 

a. Aircraft fuel and oil sales 

b. Aircraft deicing 

c. Ground handling (aircraft guidance, parking, and tie down) 

d. Customer services 

e. Line service 

f. Hangar Space 

g. Aircraft recover 

h. Collection of fees 

i. Snow removal 

2.02 MINIMUM STANDARDS FOR REOUIRED SERVICES  

a. 	Aircraft Fuel and Oil Sales  

1. Storage and into-plane dispensing of Jet A and lOOLL fuel together with a 
selection of lubricants of sufficient ratings, grades, quality, and quantity to meet the needs of 
general aviation aircraft using the airport. 

2. A minimum of two metered, filter-equipped fueling trucks for dispensing jet fuel, 
of which at least one has a capacity of not less than 5,000 gallons, which meet all applicable 
safety requirements. 

3. A minimum of two metered, filter-equipped fueling trucks for dispensing lOOLL 
gasoline, of which at least one has a minimum capacity of 500 gallons, which meet all applicable 
safety requirements. 

5 



4. 	Maintain fuel dispensing reports on file for a minimum of 12 months, and have 
such reports available for auditing at any time by the Authority. 

b. 	Aircraft Deicing.  

1. A minimum of one deicing vehicle capable of applying heated propylene glycol to 
general aviation aircraft using the Airport. 

2. Complete forms provided by the PDA documenting the type and amount of 
deicing fluid used and the location of the deicing event. Submit completed forms to the PDA 
Engineering Department within one hour of completion of the deicing event. 

c, 	Ground Handling (Aircraft Guidance. Parking. and Tie Down) 

1. 	Aircraft arrival and departure guidance on. the apron to include a properly marked 
and lighted follow me vehicle capable of two way radio communications with the Air Traffic 
Control Tower on ramp net frequency. 

2. 	Tie down facilities and equipment, including ropes, chains, or other types of 
restraining devices and wheel chocks for transient aircraft. 

3. 	Equipment capable of towing aircraft into and out of the hangar(s). 

d. 	Customer Services  

1. Passenger facilities for checking in general aviation passengers and baggage, 
together with a comfortably appointed lounge area with public telephone, light refreshments, 
current periodicals, and TV service. 

2. Conveniently located, heated, and air conditioned lounge area for crews. 

3. Restroom facilities for passengers and crews. 

4. Courtesy transportation for passengers and crews to general aviation facilities, the 
air carrier terminal, and downtown locations. 

5. A fully equipped flight planning facility with direct communication to the FAA 
Flight Service Station, local air traffic control, and National Weather Service briefers; adequate 
supplies of VFR and 1FR navigational charts; and other necessary flight planning equipment. 

6 



6. 	An aviation sales counter offering for sale a reasonable variety of pilot supplies, 
navigation and flight planning equipment, survival equipment, and aircraft and equipment 
manuals. 

e. 	Line Service 

1. Proper equipment for: inflating aircraft tires, cleaning aircraft windows and 
interiors, servicing aircraft lavatories, and disposal of aircraft waste (domestic and international). 
A full-service FBO may provide qualified personnel and equipment to repair aircraft tires, 
service aircraft braking systems, change aircraft engine oil, recharge oxygen systems, replace 
engine starters, and recharge aircraft batteries. 

2. Adequate ground support equipment for normal turnaround of aircraft, including 
energizers and starters, ground power units, and fire extinguishers, 

3. Adequate towing equipment to move aircraft up to 75,000 pounds gross weight 
safely and efficiently. 

f. Hangar Space 

A minimum of 12,000 square feet of hangar space to meet public demand for transient, 
temporary, and long-term aircraft storage. 

g. Aircraft Recovery 

Equipment, material, and personnel sufficient to remove a disabled aircraft of up to 
12,500 pounds gross takeoff weight. 

h. Collection of Fees 

Personnel to collect landing, parking, and fuel flowage fees from aircraft using the FBO. 

Snow Removal Services  

Adequate owned, leased or contracted equipment to remove snow from the parking apron 
managed by the FBO. 

2.03 MINIMUM LAND AND FACILITY REOUIREMENTS  

a. Lease a minimum ground area determined by the PDA. 

b. One aircraft hangar with not less than 12,000 square feet of aircraft storage space. 

7 



c. An office/terminal facility of not less than 2,000 square feet adequate to accommodate an 
office, pilot lounge, passenger lounge, telephone, and restroom facilities. This facility may be 
attached to/part of the aircraft hangar. 

d. Management of paved apron area of not less than 150,000 square feet for general aviation 
parking and tie downs with access to the aircraft hangar. Management responsibilities include 
installation and maintenance of tie down equipment, sweeping/FOD control, and snow removal. 

e. Permanent fuel storage for a minimum of 36,000 gallons of jet fuel and 5,000 gallons of 
lOOLL. The fuel storage tanks shall comply with all applicable federal, state, local, and PDA 
rules and regulations pertaining to installation, maintenance, operation, fuel handling safety, and 
environmental protection. 

f. Paved off-street parking outside the airport restricted area, but within the leased premises, 
for the minimum number of paved parking spaces approved by the FDA. 

The facility requirements may be met by leasing existing facilities or by new 
construction. Where existing facilities are to be leased, the foregoing criteria will be used as a 
general measure of the adequacy of such existing facilities. 

All improvements shall be constructed or leased in areas designated for general aviation 
use in the currently approved Airport Master Plan and shall be in conformance with local laws, 
ordinances, and regulations and such future property development and design standards as may 
be adopted by the PDA. 

2.04 MINIMUM MANAGEMENT AND STAFFING REQUIREMENTS 

a. The activities of a Full-Service Fixed Base Operator on the Airport shall be 
supervised by an on-site manager who shall at all times be responsible for conducting, in a first-
class manner, the services required and permitted herein and in the Full-Service Fixed Base 
Operator's Lease. 

b. An adequate number of properly trained, qualified and, where applicable, licensed 
staff shall be on duty during required minimum hours of operation, or on call during other times, 
to provide the level of service specified herein. 

c. All employees shall wear uniforms and protective clothing and equipment as 
appropriate or necessary. 

2,05 MINIMUM HOURS OF OPERATION 

8 



A Full-Service Fixed Base Operator shall be staffed adequately to provide the required 
services between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 10:00 p.m. daily. At all other times, the required 
services must be available on an on call or prior notice basis. 

2.06 MIMIMUM INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS  

A Full-Service Fixed Base Operator shall be required to carry insurance in conformance 
with the PDA's risk management requirements. 
2.07 MINIMUM SERVICE STANDARDS-PERMITTED SERVICES  

A Full-Service Fixed Base Operator may provide any or all of the permitted services 
listed in Article 3 and shall be subject to the minimum standards and requirements for Limited 
Service Specialty Operators set forth in Article 3 of these Minimum Standards. 

2.08 RATES AND CHARGES FOR SERVICES 

Rates and charges shall be determined by the Full Service Fixed Base Operator and shall 
be reasonable, competitive, and applied fairly to all users of such services. All rates and charges 
will be filed with the Airport Manager. 

2.09 STATE REGISTRATION 

All Full-Service Fixed Base Operators must maintain a current registration with the New 
Hampshire Department of Transportation, Division of Aeronautics, as required. 

9 



ARTICLE 3 

MINIMUM STANDARDS AND REQUIREMENTS 
FOR LIMITED-SERVICE SPECIALTY OPERATORS 

3.01 LIMITATIONS ON LIMITED-SERVICE  SPECIALTY  OPERATORS  

The PDA may enter into separate agreements with a Limited-Service Specialty Operator 
or a Limited-Service Specialty Operator may enter into a Sublease with a Full-Service Fixed 
Base Operator. In either case, such services will be permitted only in areas designated for such 
uses on the currently approved Airport Master Plan. Such specialized limited services shall 
specifically exclude:  

a. The sale of aviation fuel. 

b. Aircraft deicing services. 

Any Commercial Operator desiring to perform the services listed in subparagraphs a. or 
b. above must enter into a Lease with the Airport as a Full-Service Fixed Base Operator and 
fulfill the obligations of such an operation. 

3.02 LIMITED-SERVICE SPECIALTY OPERATOR PERMITTED SERVICES 

A Limited-Service Specialty Operator may provide one or more of the following 
permitted services: 

a. Nonscheduled and Air Charter Services and, as an adjunct to such services, (i) 
the sublease of aircraft parking space within the hangar facility owned or leased by said 
Nonscheduled and Air Charter Service Operator, but only if such sublease is allowed explicitly 
under the applicable lease with PDA or is otherwise approved by PDA, and (ii) the provision of 
general management services as described in Section 3.03a3 below for aircraft occupying 
subleased hangar space in accordance with (i) above. 

b. Aircraft Engine and Airframe Overhaul and Repair 

c. Avionics and Instrument Repair 

d. Flight Instruction and Aircraft Rental 

3.03 MINIMUM STANDARDS FOR PERMITTED SERVICES  

Except as provided in this subsection, Limited-Service Specialty Operators offering the 
permitted services listed above shall be subject to the minimum standards individually specified 

10 



in the Limited-Service Specialty Operator's agreement with the Airport. The following minimum 
standards shall apply: 

a. 	Nonscheduled and Air Charter Services  

1. 	A Limited-Service Specialty Operator offering nonscheduled and air charter 
services shall provide the following services and Equipment at least 8 hours per day, 7 days per 
week and on call at all other times: 

(1) An Aircraft charter or air taxi operation certificated under FAR Part 135. 

(2) Not less than one single-engine Aircraft available for charter or air taxi purposes. 
All such Aircraft shall be equipped for flight under IFT conditions and shall meet the 
requirements of FAR Part 135. 

(3) A sufficient number of qualified FAA commercial/instrument or airline transport 
rated pilots to provide the services required hereunder. 

(4) Adequate services and Equipment for providing passenger check in, handling 
luggage and ticketing, and suitable courtesy ground transportation. 

2. 	The aircraft hangar space sub-letting service allowed under Section 3.02a(i) shall 
require a minimum sublease term of ninety (90) consecutive days or greater and a minimum of 
3,000 square feet of available hangar space, exclusive of the space occupied by aircraft owned 
and/or operated by the sublessor Nonscheduled and Air Charter Service Operator. 

3. 	The general management services allowed under Section 3.02a(ii) may include: 
general walkaround visual aircraft inspection, maintenance record review and development of 
maintenance plans, preparation of damage history report, airworthiness directive searches, 
review/preparation of market studies, charter performance analysis, investment and capital model 
development and analysis, acting as agent to obtain aeronautical services available from other 
FBOs at the Airport, pilot services (pilot search, pilot pool development, drug testing 
administration, payroll services, safety and compliance overview assessment and management, 
and proficiency testing) and other similar general aircraft management and consulting services. 
The general manag ,r-nent services authorized under Section 3.02a(ii) shall not include aircraft 
maintenance or aircraft inspections that would require the possession of an Airframe and/or 
Powerplant certificate issued by the FAA or that would require oversight from a holder of an 
Airframe and/or Powerplant Certificate, brokerage services in connection with any sale of 
aircraft and/or any of the services authorized under Article 2 and/or Sections 3.02b through d 
unless such services are authorized pursuant to a written agreement with PDA and otherwise 
comply with all applicable requirements of these Minimum Standards. 

11 



4. All general management services allowed under Section 3.02(ii) shall be provided 
pursuant to a written agreement with the aircraft owner/operator and by duly qualified personnel 
pursuant to valid and current licenses or certificates to the extent required by FARs or other 
applicable provisions of law. 

5. Aircraft Fractional Ownership Companies which have been authorized to conduct 
business at the Airport under the provisions of Article 6 of these Minimum Standards may offer 
aircraft hangar space subletting services in accordance with Sections 3.02a(i) and 3.03a2 of 
Article 3. 

b. 	Aircraft Engine and Airframe Overhaul and Repair 

A Limited-Service Specialty Operator offering Aircraft engine and airframe overhaul and 
repair shall provide the following services and Equipment at least 8 hours per day, 5 days per 
week, with on call service available on one additional day per week: 

1. Sufficient Equipment, supplies, and spare parts as required for certification as an FAA-
approved repair station, in accordance with FAR Part 43 and FAR Part 145. 

2. Uniformed, efficient, and trained personnel in sufficient numbers to meet demand for the 
services offered, but never less than one person currently FAA certificated as both an airframe 
and engine mechanic, and (except for FAA certificated repair stations) Aircraft inspector, and 
one other person not necessarily FAA certificated. 

3. A minimum of 5,500 square feet of maintenance shop area. 

c. 	Avionics and Instrument Repair 

A Limited-Service Specialty Operator offering avionics and instrument repair shall 
provide the following services and equipment at least 8 hours per day, 5 days per week, with on-
call service available on one additional day per week: 

1. Sufficient Equipment and supplies and have available sufficient parts as required for 
certification as an FAA-approved repair station. 

2. Sufficient uniformed, efficient, and trained personnel to meet the minimum standards set 
forth herein for this type of specialty operation, but never less than one person appropriate to the 
work performed. 

d. 	Flight instruction and Aircraft Rental 

12 



A Limited-Service Specialty Operator offering flight instruction or aircraft rental shall 
provide the following services and Equipment at least 8 hours per day, 5 days per week, with on-
call service available during the remaining two days per week: 

1. A flight training school authorized to provide IFR and multi-engine flight instruction in 
accordance with FAR Part 61, 
2. Availability for use for flight training or Aircraft rental at least two certificated and 
currently airworthy Aircraft. Such Aircraft can be owned or leased. 

3. Make available as many flight and ground instructors as needed to meet demand. 

3.04 MINIMUM LAND AND IMPROVEMENT REQUIREMENTS,  

A Limited-Service Specialty Operator offering any permitted service shall be required to: 

a. Lease a minimum ground area determined by the PDA. 

b. Provide a Building of not less than 1,500 square feet equipped with suitable heating, 
lighting, air conditioning, accommodations for an office and customer lounge, restrooms, and 
public telephone. 

c. Manage a paved Aircraft parking apron of sufficient size for the activities contemplated, 
with paved access to the Airport taxiway system and suitable tie down Equipment for all owned 
or leased Aircraft, 

d. Provide paved off-street parking outside the airport restricted area, but within the Leased 
Premises, for the minimum number of paved parking spaces approved by the PDA. 

The facility requirements may be met by leasing existing facilities or by new 
construction. Where existing facilities are to be leased, the foregoing criteria will be used as a 
general measure of the adequacy of such existing facilities. 

All improvements shall be constructed or leased in areas designated for general aviation 
use in the currently approved Airport Master Plan and shall be in conformance with local laws, 
ordinances, and regulations and such future property development standards as may be adopted 
by the PDA. 

3.05 MINIMUM INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS  

A Limited-Service Specialty Operator shall be required to carry insurance in 
conformance with the PDA's risk management requirements. 

3.06 MULTIPLE PERMITTED SERVICES 

13 



A Limited-Service Specialty Operator shall be permitted to provide two or more of the 
permitted services listed in this Article only where it can be demonstrated to the satisfaction of 
the PDA that the services are in the public interest. 

The minimum standards for Limited-Service Specialty operators providing multiple 
services shall be the same as those established for the individual services outlined herein. Where 
the individual minimum standards are repetitious, the provisions will not necessarily be 
cumulative. In such cases, applicable minimum standards will be determined and agreed upon 
between the Limited-Service Specialty Operator and the PDA in their agreement. 

3.07 SUB-OPERATORS  

A Sub-Operator shall conduct its business on the Airport in compliance with the same 
minimum standards and the same terms and conditions as are applicable to the Operator. A copy 
of all Subleases shall be provided to the Airport Manager. 

3.08 RATES AND CHARGES FOR SERVICES 

Rates and charges shall be determined by the Limited-Service Specialty Operator and 
shall be reasonable, competitive and applied fairly to all users of such services. All rates and 
charges will be filed with the Airport Manager. 

3.09 STATE REGISTRATION 

All Limited Service Specialty Operators must maintain a current registration with the 
New Hampshire Department of Transportation, Division of Aeronautics, as required. 

14 



ARTICLE 4 

AIRCRAFT SALES 

4.01 GENERAL 

Any Entity wishing to sell new or used Aircraft shall be required either to (1) enter into a 
Full-Service Fixed Base Operator agreement and meet the requirements of this class of service 
provider or (2) enter into a subcontractor arrangement with an Entity that has a valid Full-Service 
Fixed Base Operator agreement with the Airport. 

4.02 MINIMUM SERVICE STANDARDS 

If Aircraft sales services are offered by an Entity, that Entity shall meet the following 
requirements and provide the following services at least 8 hours per day, 5 days per week, and 
shall offer on-call services on at least one additional day per week. 

a. Obtain a sales franchise or dealership agreement with an accredited Aircraft 
manufacturer, if the sale of new Aircraft is proposed. 

b. Employ as many qualified pilots (current and rated) as needed to demonstrate all the 
models being offered for sale. 

c. Establish an inventory of all new and used Aircraft for sale and provide a quarterly 
inventory report to the Airport Manager stating all Aircraft transactions. 

15 



ARTICLE 5 

NONCOMMERCIAL OPERATORS 

5.0I P EICylITTED ACTIVITIES 

A Noncommercial Operator may undertake the following activities: 

a. The parking on the Leased Premises of any Aircraft owned, leased, or operated by the 
Noncommercial Operator, and the housing on the Leased Premises of any function necessary to 
the permitted noncommercial activities. 

b. The maintenance and servicing of its own Aircraft, which shall include overhauling, 
rebuilding, repairing, inspection, and licensing. 

c. Using public Airport facilities and navigational aids and facilities for purposes of 
noncommercial landings, takeoffs, and taxiing. 

d. The acquisition, sale, exchange, or disposal of any Aircraft engines, motors, instruments, 
devices, supplies, and accessories associated with any Aircraft owned, leased, or operated by the 
Noncommercial Operator, as incidental to its noncommercial activities on the Airport. 

e. The location, construction, erection, maintenance, and removal of Improvements on the 
Leased Premises (including hangars, shops, and related office space) in accordance with the 
PDA Land Use Controls and applicable provisions of federal and state law for the purpose of 
carrying out noncommercial activities. 

f. Aircraft must have a current New Hampshire aircraft registration. 

5.02 PROHIBITED ACTIVITIES 

a. The rights and privileges granted to Noncommercial Operators are expressly limited to 
noncommercial aviation activities, as defined above. These rights and privileges specifically 
exclude the sale of aviation services, the sale of Equipment or supplies, and repairs of any type 
whatsoever on aircraft other than those owned or leased by the Noncommercial Operator. 

b. Noncommercial Operators shall not be permitted to acquire, store, or dispense fuel in 
connection with the operation of Aircraft other than the Aircraft owned, leased, or otherwise 
operated by the Noncommercial Operator. 

16 



5.03 FLYING CLUBS  

a. 	Exempt Flying Clubs 

A flying club shall be exempt from the requirements of these Minimum Standards if that 
flying club meets the following conditions. Violation of such conditions shall be grounds for 
termination of a flying club's exempt status. 

The flying club must be a non-profit New Hampshire corporation or partnership. 

2. Each member of the flying club must be a bona fide owner of the Aircraft or be a 
member of the corporation or a partner in the partnership operating the flying club. 

3. The flying club may not realize a profit from the operation, maintenance, or 
replacement of its Aircraft. 

4. Flying club Aircraft may not be used by other than bona fide members for rental 
and by no one for commercial operations. 

5. Flight instruction may not be given in flying club Aircraft except when such 
instruction is given by a Commercial Operator based on the Airport authorized to provide 
flight instruction or by an instructor who does not receive remuneration in any manner for 
such service. 

6. The flying club shall file with the Airport Manager a copy of its bylaws, articles 
of incorporation, partnership agreement, or other documents supporting its existence; a 
complete and current list of the flying club's membership including names of officers and 
directors; evidence that ownership of flying club Aircraft is vested in the flying club; and 
the operating rules of the flying club. The books and other records of the flying club shall 
be available for review at any reasonable time by the Airport Manager or his/her 
representative. 

7. Flying club Aircraft must have a current New Hampshire aircraft registration. 

b. 	Non-Exempt Flying Clubs  

Non-exempt flying clubs shall be considered commercial aeronautical activities and shall 
be subject to these Minimum Standards. 

17 



ARTICLE 6 

AIRCRAFT FRACTIONAL OWNERSHIP MANAGEMENT COMPANIES 

6.01 Definitions  

In addition to the Definitions set forth in Section 1.02, the following terms will have the 
following meanings for purposes of this Article 6 of the Minimum Standards: 

a. "Aircraft Fractional Ownership Management Company" shall mean an entity that is 
conducting aircraft flight operations and providing aeronautical services in accordance with 14 
CFR Part 91, Subpart K, and, if applicable, Parts 121 and 135. 

b. "Fractional Ownership Aircraft" shall mean (i) an aircraft owned or leased by an Aircraft 
Fractional Ownership Management Company or by an affiliated asset holding company and used 
in connection with the provision of Program Services by said Company; (ii) an aircraft owned or 
leased in part by an Aircraft Fractional Ownership Management Company or by an affiliated 
asset holding company and for which an undivided interest of at least the minimum percentage 
allowed by applicable federal aviation regulations is owned or leased for a multi-year tenn by a 
separate entity or entities unrelated to the Aircraft Fractional Ownership Management Company 
owner or lessee and which aircraft is subject to a Program Services multi-year contract with the 
Aircraft Fractional Ownership Management Company; and/or (iii) an aircraft previously owned 
or leased by an Aircraft Fractional Ownership Management Company or by an affiliated asset 
holding company that is now wholly owned or leased to an entity or entities separate from the 
Aircraft Fractional Ownership Management Company and which aircraft is subject to a Program 
Services multi-year contract with the Aircraft Fractional Ownership Management Company. 

c. "Program Services" shall mean the services required to be provided by an Aircraft 
Fractional Ownership Management Company to the owner(s) or lessee(s) of a Fractional 
Ownership Aircraft pursuant to a multi-year contract. "Subpart K" shall mean the regulations set 
forth in 14 CFR Part 91, Subpart K, as the same may be amended from time to time, applicable 
to the provision of Program Services at the Airport. 

6,02 Aircraft Fractional Ownership Management Companv Authorized Services 

a. 	An Aircraft Fractional Ownership Management Company may conduct the following 
aeronautical services at the Airport, but only to or for the benefit of the Fractional Ownership 
Aircraft for which the Aircraft Fractional Ownership Management Company owns or leases in 
whole or in part and/or for which it is obligated or authorized to provide Program Services: 

1. 	Sale and/or leasing of aircraft and interests in aircraft. 

18 



Aircraft fuel and oil sales and inter-plane dispensing of the same. 

3. Aircraft deicing. 
4. Ground handling (aircraft guidance, parking, and tie down). 

5. Aircraft hangaring. 

6. Customer services (checking in passengers and baggage). 

7. Aircraft maintenance and servicing (inflate and repair aircraft tires, service 
aircraft braking systems, change aircraft engine oil, recharge oxygen systems, replace engine 
starters, recharge aircraft batteries, repair and overhaul avionics systems, clean -windows and 
interiors, service lavatories and dispose of aircraft waste, and conduct general aircraft turnaround 
activity). 

8. Collection of fees (collection of all aircraft landing, storage and other fees due to 
PDA). 

9. Snow removal at designated apron areas of the premises leased by said Company. 

b. 	An Aircraft Fractional Ownership Management Company may conduct the following 
aeronautical services at the Airport for non-Fractional Ownership Aircraft or for the benefit of 
owners of aircraft operating at Pease who do not otherwise contract with said Aircraft Ownership 
Management Company for the provision of Program Services: 

1. Provision of flight crew (pilot, co-pilot, and/or attendant(s)) and flight 
management services (including flight planning and coordination with FAA Flight Service 
Station and air traffic control). 

2. Aircraft maintenance, servicing, and hangaring but only with respect to aircraft 
for which said Company is providing the services listed in subsection 6.02(b)(1), 

3. Sale of new aircraft pursuant to a manufacturer authorized agreement or used 
aircraft. 

4. Servicing of aircraft sold by said Company in accordance with subsection 
6.02(b)(3). 

c. 	An Aircraft Ownership Management Company may contract with a Fixed Base Operator 
authorized by PDA to operate at the Airport to perform any of the services listed in subsections 
6.02 (a)(2) through (8), (b)(2) or (b)(4) and, with respect to snow removal activity, with a snow 
removal contractor authorized by PDA. 

19 



6,03 Minimum Standards for Aircraft Fractional Ownership Management Company 
Authorized Services 

a. 	General 

The conduct by an Aircraft Fractional Ownership Management Company of any services 
authorized in Section 6.02 shall be in accordance with Subpart K; any other pertinent 
requirements of law; and standards or directives of the PDA relating to safety, environmental or 
Airport operating requirements. 

For services provided under Section 6.02(a) the additional requirements set forth in 
subsections (b) through (1) of this Section 6.03 must be met to the extent not covered by or 
inconsistent with Subpart K. For services provided under 6.02(b) the additional requirements set 
forth in subsections (g) and (h) of this Section 6.03 must be met. 

b. 	Fueling 

1. Fueling trucks used to dispense fuel must be metered and filter-equipped and meet 
all applicable safety requirements. 

2. Reports reflecting all fuel dispensed into aircraft must be maintained on file at the 
Airport for a minimum of 12 months and such reports shall be available for audit at any time by 
the Authority. 

c. 	Aircraft Deicing 

1. Application of heated propylene glycol or any other appropriate substance to 
aircraft for deicing purposes must be accomplished through appropriate equipment and at areas 
approved by PDA. 

2. Complete forms provided by PDA documenting the type and amount of deicing 
fluid used and location of each deicing event must be submitted to the PDA Engineering 
Department within twenty-four (24) hours of completion of the deicing event. 

d. 	Ground Handling 

1. 	Aircraft tie-down must be effected through appropriate ropes, chains or other 
types of restraint devices, or by wheel chocks. 

20 



2. 	Equipment capable of towing aircraft into and out of the hangar must be utilized. 

e. 	Customer Service 

1. Facilities, equipment and staff must be provided to ensure that all required 
security and safety standards are met. 

2. Management or Operations Standards or Specifications must be developed and 
implemented that provide for: flight planning with direct communication to the FAA Flight 
Service Station, local air traffic control, and national weather service briefers; and adequate 
supplies of VFR and IFR navigational charts or electronics flight books or other similar 
electronic chart system. 

Snow Removal 

1. 	Adequate equipment to remove snow from the apron under control of said 
Company shall be utilized and all snow removal activity shall be coordinated and not conflict 
with PDA Airport snow removal operations. 

g. 
	Provision of Flight Crew and Flight Management Services 

1. All such services shall be available to persons or entities with whom the Company 
has contracted under Section 6.02(b) and must be performed by personnel having appropriate 
licenses and/or certificates and in accordance with applicable federal aviation law requirements 
and must be supported with the facilities and equipment listed in subsections 2-5, below. 

2. Conveniently located, heated, and air conditioned lounge area for crews. 

3. Restroom facilities for passengers and crews. 

4. Courtesy transportation for passengers and crews to general aviation facilities, the 
air carrier terminal, and downtown locations. 

5. A fully equipped flight planning facility with direct communications to the FAA 
Flight Service Station, local air traffic control, and National Weather Service briefers; adequate 
supplies of VFR and IFR navigational charts; and other necessary flight planning equipment. 

h. 	Aircraft Maintenance and Aircraft Servicing 

1, 	Maintenance and servicing activity authorized under Section 6.03(b)(2) and (4) 
shall be limited to aircraft for which said Company is providing aeronautical services as 
specified in Section 6.03(b) and shall include: general repair and overhaul of avionics systems, 

21 



changing engine oil, recharging oxygen systems, replacing engine starters, recharging batteries, 
servicing braking systems, repairing and/or inflating tires, cleaning windows and interiors, 
servicing lavatories and disposal of aircraft waste (domestic and international). 

2. 	All such services shall be conducted by qualified, licensed personnel and with 
proper equipment in compliance with all applicable requirements of law and with PDA Airport 
operating and environmental directives. 
6,04 Minimum Land and Facility Reauirements  

a. Lease a minimum ground area determined by the PDA. 

b. One aircraft hangar with not less than 12,000 square feet of aircraft storage space. 

c. An office/terminal facility of not less than 2,000 square feet adequate to accommodate an 
office, pilot lounge, passenger lounge, telephone, and restroom facilities. This facility may be 
attached to/be part of the aircraft hangar. 

d. Management of paved apron area of sufficient size to accommodate the Company's 
operations for aircraft parking and tie downs with access to the aircraft hangar. Management 
responsibilities include installation and maintenance of tie down equipment, sweeping/FOD 
control, and snow removal. 

e. If the Company elects to provide fuel and is authorized by PDA to construct such a 
facility on its leased premises, permanent fuel storage tanks for jet fuel. The fuel storage tanks 
shall be of a capacity permitted by agreement with PDA and comply with all applicable federal, 
state, local, and PDA rules and regulations pertaining to installation, maintenance, operation, 
fuel handling safety, and environmental protection. 

f. Paved off-street parking outside the airport restricted area, but within the leased 
premises, for the minimum number of paved parking spaces approved by the PDA. 

The facility requirements may be met by leasing existing facilities or by new construction 
in accordance with a lease/operating agreement with PDA. Where existing facilities are to be 
leased, the foregoing criteria will be used as a general measure of the adequacy of such existing 
facilities. All improvements shall be constructed or leased in areas designated for aviation use in 
the currently approved Airport Master Plan and shall be in conformance with local laws, 
ordinances, and regulations and such future property development and design standards as may 
be adopted by the PDA. 

6.05 Minimum Management and Staffing Reauirements 

a. 	The activities of every Aircraft Fractional Ownership Management Company on the 
Airport shall be supervised by an on-site manager who shall at all times be responsible for 

22 



conducting, in a first-class manner, the services required and permitted herein and in said 
Company's lease/operating agreement with PDA. 

b. An adequate number of properly trained, qualified and, where applicable, licensed staff 
shall be on duty during specified hours of operation, or on call during other times, to provide the 
level of service specified herein. 

c. All employees shall wear uniforms and protective clothing and equipment as appropriate 
or necessary. 

6.06 Insurance 

An Aircraft Fractional Ownership Management Company shall carry insurance in 
conformance with the FDA's risk management requirements. 

6.07 State Registration 

An Aircraft Fractional Ownership Management Company shall maintain a current 
registration with the New Hampshire Department of Transportation, Division of Aeronautics, as 
required. 

6.08 Aircraft Hangar Space Subletting Services 

Aircraft Fractional Ownership Companies which have been authorized to conduct 
business at the Airport under the provisions of Article 6 of these Minimum Standards may offer 
aircraft hangar space subletting services in accordance with Sections 3.02a(i) and 3.03a2 of 
Article 3. 

PAMTNINIUM STANDARDS1Minnum StandardsFinal033011.cloc 

23 





1 OR .1111k Pri)PCJEIELI 
LEJCATION1; ITYPA-1) 

imp 

Hoyle, Tanner 
P.9 s o c les. Inc 

.1.64 	 tu-ar se. 
4.0.1.1 an try.. 	 1.1111,4 

Prt,_,IPVI;ED 
7:IJEL FAVAI DEL WFRIEi: 

fftpliGal 4.:ATE Its 10APORARN I :ICI 4 II GAii 
12.0 A1.1.+4 AVE-_ 

'o-AN 	 r  re! 

10,.416.1 11:est 

-  • 	r; . ■ I RVACES 1  

mei 

PORTS 





.1 	 . 

:.•,11 .5 :: -, -f... -: 
• •  I,.itLi't"-:i' ' 4  .,.."..',..".• 

...-ykiii  -  -  r 	::.;p...tea ;4si•i .,•!. 1.F 
--. , 	

,  (vat. 	w?Aatf.:: 
f 	I G  Arlf.  

4  „. 

I  A- 	1.," 
I 

t 	 - 	 • 

IC 

TEimPori.Arl PAR:tING FIE. 
DUNI LEA 73F. AREA ( -15.000 litr) 

Hoyle, Tanner 	' 

• %„ • 	 •-• 	fr'-* ,  

• ,ir,y.r.r.f  
Al,at Wei_ I 11 ,: 
am...re, Om 

ra 	 ilial•••• 
ft Imily4 

CJ ,  

Mr- - 

A%I rviovroi 
iimin.J.= 

.ff re. piE tEttffMr. r'gr 



Fty (pit Ncrif-.5: 

	

I. MD 	AcCt 54. I L*LfRialt 
4....An• lc WOO AN ticr:Fax 

	

L 	tiolusiNt. Lot7f1rno4p..,„  

MI! 
PORTS 

.1w A 	-NI Pic. ntilLZ3Enbmatearmii:040 
ILL REIM Uzi 11iE Ur:zit 

1 ALL arkLIANG ?X ORS g 
Wri11111. FURPLI/41 .3 ACC 

•11 v1 4 
1'4'4r 4LE, 

Tanner 
Assoctattr. Inc 	"...` 

DEW 
■-•■• ■••••■ 

• 

r 	r  • 
'1F +-11, 	Eit 

: 	•." 

kui'Lmu - 
41,011artie 

- 

PROPOCk 1.1 
AsT- 

1.4 ry 

& rto  p 
rI ,J51:3 

r _ 01111 ...11" 0.— Imirr 



'Vt.,1111 

•-• 4-APPRCIXIMAIEfIXt J 
" . 	Virl !AMA.  

"10Ell AM,Ji41:12 — 

-.Ina _a 
E ,..p.m4retir 

Alt 
4010 

Q.4“3 

:al N.  I :Utrl FA:41.AM tHIJEUt 
F 	AP.E.A. ADO 

1 • 

Witf.s;41.15W.1 Pitifilift,I  I 
ci utrad Artg.1 

1.141113 tn,..110 

7  -,, #4-PriCIPa3 1-D- 
Hitt Mill 

all  3117-37N 
PRUKTOEI  — 

/Auk, ..... 	
, 	(t1ki 6F) 

1 
WYE RED 

Luttlrultbover,- 	io-..... 
du rEgiltralle , ^ 

vtArat 	*ft 

CLIILLIJ 
"Ji11:7.1111Uttti 

HattU Alt 

7_ mariNG LEREE•  , 
Lahti Mil 

I 

Tert.•+(11.i 

BUILD!, PLI 

tt!Plitt 	 r 

Ootitl 

to, rot. • PI 7itAtti.3 

FtE.L 	r 

2921 
A:ALtl• 1"=1 ,19'itl".11r1 

isi 	Sara  
Calri 	f0.;IL 
ran ,  

fejt'  k7 

'1").  Ft 

- • 	 'll ; ■-• 
O 

re:styt 9 ,0)4SLE Vat( irl .Ml Zor 

HoyleFame 
Associ a la a. Inc 
MINNOW .e 1%.%•. PM 

'fa ■111 4.1.1.• 
414.0•A Yin Oa% tdoma-  Am.% 





401 ,,r4„ 
ILurir,9 

2uau 









( 	

AS0 ciaiesinc ft ....... or. ma ...... . u.
lha Ogi, ts. m... WI .0 	.... ................ 

..... ...1., .... . ....... 	 1 

Hoyle. Tanner 

%.,`• ".` 

- - 	 - 	 - - 	 - 	

- • • z4 Z*■-. 

• 
2•0 Lft..!:"!.. • 

r."3- 	 —4  • -I-, 
• -...... 	 -.... 	 ....... 	 --a 	....... ...-.. 	 ...".. 	-"." 	■ - -4." 	- ■-,1 	 j .......,.../ .m10. ...1'.....'-''',..e..■ ...  

	

7".....-- ".-7.-  _ -.-17.,-. ""•-- --.4...- ..... ...4... ...."41irr . '''.... --•.... -----' 	- •■■• — "''' 	■-••-• "*.. 	I--"-. -4_Lai_.--. ---e" . ---•-• . 	-----r36-‘ 	.16:: 	 ."-5:...ltgr- i 

	

....,- - 
	-0, 	- - 	-- 	- 	--• 	- „. ---••• 	 .6, '' ••••• 	- • ..- • •-• 	--,.• - 	..--.. •--• 	pa..-  '-‘11 	• ..-4 -.4', _.4-■r".  ilkil0".z ! 4.4....•■% ......... 	I • .....• 	 • •••,. 	 .. 

...AM, 	 • ... 	 . -9'' 
- 

-.. - 
,may 

	. ..____.- ,I 	,.... —e--... ....e. • -..----„ ,--....... ra4; -4  ' .4.:1,' 	1,,j_iT 4 F4ilt- -... •••••••• 	......, -^•41," 	........ 4" 	- -....-- 	-. 	------ 	 ,.......,"---- 	 ft...4 	.__,- -••■•• 	, ..d, -,- -v-  ..„.....,_ 	-..,... 	 _ 	 ......... 	 ...h.. 	 ...... 	 ......... 	 . 
...../ 

- -s- 	...., - •■• 	 .- ---.,--,...k..--k ..,j:.- - . , j, 1:7.7:4 ....1 -...0. .......„.. - • 41. 	_......_ ...ip, 	_ _ • • -•■ 	 Immlii, 7:144 A 
411....••• 

	

''",..- -...."',. 	. 	
.......•• ''''... ".4. 	''' 	' ...? . s'  --' 	. -.11...'"0,4'.4...... ....e 

'.".... 	,.....61r 	. -...fir 	 .-.-  
. •••••ka, 	-. 	 16 •LJI 	 •-■ _.,,"""7...-4  

-9r- --....„.• 	- ,..... 

	

_ - , 4, ....4,... „Air  • --"" 	A wal : ...Tr' , ' - .d.  ..."!,_,..e.6"t 0........, -1," 	 .".1F 	 -••-11' 	 Imre 

	

. ' 4.• 	 "...my, 	
.."..e.'"4,- , _.4.-- ...,,,, 

•....111/ 	 --". .ftr' 
- --• 	 ...... 

- --r• 
- --_,„ 	 ....rair 	-Y 	- --.1 

......- . 	-  

••• 

jr•-f•-"_Ag 	. • • 
••••••• 	

_ 	- --••• 	 _ 	 ••••-y• 

"-"Z._ 	=41. - 	 •■•-+ .... 	 .."-.• 
' "/"• 	 -••••■••••041. 

, 



Ito*, Tanner 
Associates. I n t 

a ma ma... m 

tcyrw dee ow. kow• ■••■••144 



MEMORANDUM 
From: 	Port City Air, Inc. 
Date: 	January 11, 2021 
Subject: 	Equal protection issues related to Million Air's application 

Introduction. 

Port City Air prepares this memorandum to identify the preferential treatment that 
Million Air asks of the Pease Development Authority, and to advocate for equal protection. The 
PDA required Port City Air to meet the PDA's Minimum Standards for Commercial and 
Noncommercial General Aviation Operators (the "Minimum Standards"), make major capital 
investments in buildings and equipment, and nearly complete its permanent facility before it 
could operate as a fixed-base operator ("FBO") or sell fuel from its interim location. Million Air 
wants FBO status to pump fuel far earlier in its application process than Port City Air was 
allowed, and without meeting the Minimum' Standards, so it can bid on a military fuel contract. 

The reason behind Million Air's rush for approval. 

The military accounts for over 76% of the current annual fuel need at Portsmouth 
International Airport ("KPSM"). The Defense Logistics Agency awards and administers the 
military fuel contract at KPSM. It only selects one vendor to sell fuel to the military. To bid on 
that contract, a bidder must either be a FBO at the airport, or it must produce a contract with an 
established FBO to provide the fuel. Since the PDA decides who operates as an FBO at the 
airport, or who has an "operational presence" at KPSM, the PDA effectively decides who can bid 
on the contract. 

The military fuel contract permits—but does not guarantee—business in Portsmouth. 
The Defense Logistics Agency awards the contract, but it does not decide where aircraft land. 
Mission planners within the various military branches decide where aircraft land. Traditionally, 
aircraft flying long-haul routes over the Northeast stopped in Bangor, Maine. Port City Air has 
captured significant market share by offering exceptional service and investing far beyond the 
Minimum Standards to provide the fast, efficient, and concierge-level service that earns repeat 
business. Port City Air's efforts benefit the PDA and the Seacoast economy. 

Port City Air, using its local network and relationships with local branches of government 
agencies such as U.S. Customs and Border Protection, ensures that crews can visit Portsmouth at 
any hour of any day and have the services, facilities, specialized ground-handling equipment, 
crew cars, food, and hotel reservations to make the most of their stay. 

With PDA-endorsed FBO status, or even an endorsement of "operational status," Million 
Air could bid on the military fuel contract without any of the necessary infrastructure in place to 
meet the minimum standard or properly service the contract. That means low or no financial risk 
to Million Air, but a potential loss for the PDA and the Seacoast economy. 

Equal protection through consistent process. 

For equal-protection reasons and to ensure fair competition, the law directs that the PDA 
should treat all FBO applicants the same. The State and Federal Constitutions require equal 

1 



ni-mpptinn ilnrIPr the lame N T-T Cnnct Pt 1 art TI• TT S Cnnct amend XTV F.niial prntprtinn 

means the government, including governmental bodies like the PDA, must treat similarly 
situated persons (including companies) the same unless an adequate basis exists for different 
treatment. 

Here, where both Port City Air and Million Air are or seek to be FBOs at the airport, they 
are similarly situated so the PDA should treat them the same. That means the PDA should not 
give Million Air procedural shortcuts that it did not provide to Port City Air because doing so 
would amount to an anti-competitive, unfair advantage that violates the PDA's own rules and 
processes. 

The PDA applied a rigorous process to Port City Air. 

The PDA set forth and documented its requirements of Port City Air when it became an 
FBO at the airport. In a 1998 memorandum, attached as Exhibit 1, the PDA spelled out the 
"conditions [Port City Air] needs to meet prior to becoming a full service FBO, i.e. before Port 
City may sell fuel". Ex. 1 at 2. The memorandum laid out the minimum standards that Port City 
Air had to meet. Of note, Port City Air had to: 

1) Secure 12,000 square feet of hangar space but was not allowed to count hangar space 
already leased for other purposes (in Port City Air's case, its Part 145 repair station that 
had been operational at KPSM for three years in 12,000 square feet of leased space 
within a 24,000 square foot hangar). Ex. 1 at 2. 

2) Remove "shade shelters," which are large aircraft shelters. Ex. 1 at 2. 
3) Commence construction operations for its permanent facility, which included obtaining a 

fully approved site plan, building permits, signed lease with the PDA, a signed contract 
with the contractor, and a construction bond/site review agreement. Ex. 1 at 2. 

Again in 2000, the PDA, as demonstrated by the letter attached as Exhibit 2, confirmed 
the above-described arrangement and provided further clarification. The PDA did not allow Port 
City Air to commence operations as an FBO, even though Port City Air had interim premises 

h ad been fully operational for over five years as I<PSIV's. only Part 145 repair station), 
until it: 

1) Met the Minimum Standards. Ex. 2 at 2-3. 
2) Commenced construction of the permanent facility, including "provision of evidence that 

Port City Air has placed a non-refundable order for the steel required to complete 
construction of the Facility, or the posting of a guarantee to ensure the Commencement of 
Construction of the Facility in such form as is acceptable to and has received the prior 
approval of the PDA Board of Directors;" Ex. 2 at 2-3. 

3) Incorporated all the Airport Committee's recommendations. 

The PDA's later communications show that the PDA withheld fueling permission until 
even later in the process than the 1998 letter or 2000 memorandum required. In July 2002, the 
PDA determined that Port City Air had met the Minimum Standards, but it did not permit fueling 

2 



operations for another eight months, until Port City Air had almost completed construction of its 
permanent FBO facility. The letters proving that sequence are attached as Exhibit 3. 

In general, it has consistently been the PDA's practice to apply a lengthy, highly detailed 
review process to all of Port City Air's requests related to new facilities or facility upgrades, 
including upgrades to Port City Air's fuel farm and lease expansion. Port City Air began the 
application process for its lease expansion in September of 2018, which it recently completed in 
September 2020. Port City Air applied for its fuel farm renovation in July of 2020 and the site 
and technical review process is still ongoing. While Port City Air fully supports and respects the 
PDA's review process, it is unfair and inequitable for the PDA to grant Million Air FBO or 
"operational status" on a faster and more expedited timetable than the PDA offered Port City Air 
even to improve existing facilities. 

Million Air seeks preferential treatment. 

Million Air requests a different, preferential arrangement. It does not want to be required 
to make the same capital investment before obtaining FBO status. Million Air explicitly states 
that it wants to terminate its Lease if it "is precluded from completing construction of the fuel 
farm before such date that would permit [Million Air] to bid for the upcoming military fuel 
contract." See Million Air's Letter of Intent ("L01") at 8. Million Air proposes to "commence 
construction of the fuel farm, followed by the FBO building and hangar" "[i]mmediately upon 
execution of the Agreement." LOI at 5. Further, it proposes a two-phase operations plan, where 
it would operate out of an interim premises. LOI at 5. 

Million Air's proposal is different, preferential, and unfair because, unlike the rules and 
procedures applied to Port City Air: 

1) Million Air would be allowed to establish an "operational presence" on the field without 
having invested any meaningful resources at KPSM. 

2) Million Air could immediately construct a fuel farm on a timeline that permits it to 
service the military fuel contract. The PDA is currently requiring Port City Air to follow 
a one-plus year process to simply renovate a pre-existing fuel farm. 

3) Million Air could begin fueling aircraft without commencing construction of its 
permanent facility; making a non-refundable order for steel to build its facility or posting 
a guarantee to ensure construction; or nearly completing construction of its permanent 
facility. The PDA required Port City Air to meet those steps before it could sell fuel. 

4) Million Air could run its first operational phase without meeting Minimum Standards. 
Million Air's LOT only proposes that Phase II will meet the Minimum Standards. LOI at 
5 ("Construction/Operating Phase"). 

5) Million Air's proposed interim hangar space is currently full of long-term storage 
aircraft. The proposed sublease does not grant exclusive rights to the hangar and there is 
no guarantee that the hangar space could be used to service FBO customers. The PDA 
would not allow Port City Air to count hangar space used for another purpose (a repair 
station) towards the Minimum Standards' 12,000 square-foot requirement. 

3 



NA;11 inn  A ir wrnild nIntain PP C1 otanic , tlip only r•rArli.ntial nrweccary to hid nn th military 

fuel contract, before beginning construction or making any capital investment. The PDA 
only granted F130 status to Port City Air after it made capital investments, met the 
Minimum Standards with an interim facility, and nearly completed its permanent facility. 
See Ex. 3. 

The PDA also required Port City Air to incorporate recommendations by the airport 
committee before it could sell fuel. Here, Million Air submitted a 55-page FBO application on 
January 7, 2021, which was not provided to the Airport Committee until mid-day on January 8. 
That left only one business day for the Airport Committee  to review the FBO application and 

make recommendations before potentially granting the FBO application. 

This hurry-up timeline precludes the Airport Committee from conducting a meaningful 
review of the application. It also precludes any meaningful opportunity for public review or 
comment. 

The preferential treatment poses a risk to the PDA and Seacoast economy. 

Approving Million Air's request for preferential treatment would permit Million Air to 
bid on the military fuel contract before it meets either the Minimum Standards or the heightened 
bar necessary to earn and keep repeat business with military customers. If Million Air fails to 
meet the concierge-level service that Port City Air provides, military customers could return to 
Bangor, Maine, or visit other locations in the Northeast such as Rome, New York, where Million 
Air has a new facility with its own military fuel contract.' If that happens, Million Air could still 
attract market share while Portsmouth would lose its military customers and the direct and 
indirect revenue it brings to the Seacoast community and the state. 

The erosion of the PDA's Minimum Standards and FBO admission program would not 
likely stop with the Letter of Intent or the FBO application. By throwing out the Minimum 
Standards and hastening the PDA's regulatory processes, Million Air could win the military fuel 
contract without any assets in place. In that event, KPSM's success will depend on Million Air's 
success, creating an environment where the PDA risks  having to make more concessions to 
Million Air or lose airport traffic. 

Conclusion. 

The Minimum Standards that were applied to Port City Air ensured that Port City Air 
was fully ready to service aircraft before it received PDA approval. Million Air proposes to 
become a PDA-permitted FBO or to claim operational footing at KPSM with little or no 
investment, and without having any assets in place. That would permit Million Air to win the 
military contract without any guarantee that it could support or keep KPSM's current level of 
military business. That unequal application of the law benefits Million Air but hurts Port City 
Air and puts the PDA and the Seacoast economy at risk. 

I  Million Air advertises its Rome, NY location as having a "DLA Approved Aviation Fuel 
and Ground Services" arrangement. See https://www.millionair.corn/locations/rrne/.  

4 





           

           

           

  

PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

  

         

           

Airport management DeparlMenT, Pease Internattonal Tracteport 
36 AirOne Avenue, Portsmouth. New Hampshire 03801 
(60:3) 433.6536 Fax: (603) 334-6135 TDD: Relay NI-1 1-800-73964 

Memo 
To: 	Richard Collier, Port City ' • 	epair, Inc. 

From: 	Mark Rowell 	 04, 

Subject: 	Full Service FBO 

Date: 	May 15, 1998 

CC: 	George Meyer, George Bald, Jerry Dexter, Lynn Hummel. 

********************* * ***************4* ** **4***** ****** ***** ******** *** ******* 

I have attached a list of conditions Port City Aircraft Repair, Inc. needs to meet prior to becoming 
a Full Service FBO and an outline of the process you need to follow. These documents are not 
intended to replace anything in the PDA Minimum Standards for Commercial and 
Noncommercial General Aviation Operators dated November 13, 1997. 

I have also attached a diagram of the southern end of the General Aviation Area with the she you 
might want to focus on highlighted. Please keep in mind our interest in developing the 201 acre 
lot to the south of the apron. We would be happy to review any preliminary layout you might 
have before you invest a lot of time in it only to find it is unworkable/unacceptable. 



300•d 	2900 . 0N ) 	I 	fig:OT 96/5g/S0 

CONDITIONS 

Conditions Port City Aircraft Repair, lac. needs to meat prior to becoming a lull service FAO, 
i.e. before Port City may sell fuel: 

A minimum of 12,000 e.£ of suitable tczoperary hangar space and 2,000 If. of 
suitnble/properly equipped temporary of 	space ( A.DA compliant) leased at $325 
per 5,t. Note: Bldg 1101307 is less than 2,000 s.f. (1,300 s.f.:1.--) so some office facilities would 
need to be located elsewhere, perhaps in Hangar 213. Also, 5,500 s.f. of Hangar 213 is required 
to meet the mirtirrnim standards for Port City's limited service speCialtY operation and slaohIcl not 
be applied to the 12,000 s_f. of hangar required of a full service #130. 

A minimum of 30 -temporary vehicle parking spaces. 

Removal of the three southernmost shade shelters. 

Installation of tie-dawns on the aircraft parking apron. 

Construction of the permanent hangar and or office/terminal facility must be underway to 
include an approved site plan, a building permit, a signed lease with the PDA, a signed contract 
with the contractor, and a cot:1st:ruction bondisite review agreement. 

All required insurance must be in place. 

All required equipment in place to include: 

2 - jet fuel trucks (1 5,000 gal rain) 
2 - 100LL trucks (1 500 gal min) 
1 - deicing vehicle 
1 - follow me vehicle 
1 - tow vehicle and tow bats (75,000 lbs capacity) 
Energizers 
Starters 
Ground power units 
Fire extinguishers 
Aircraft recovery equipment (for aircraft up to 12,500 lbs) 
Snow Lemoval equipment/contract 
Equipment to inflate tires, service potable water, service lavatories, dispose of domestic and 

international waste, cle.aning aircraft windows and interiors 

Necessary staff to meat minimum standards and required hours of operation must be 
hired, trained (to include FAR. Part 139 fueling training), and available. 

%/TY SlID 2.a0d 	 60IT OCT,  09 XYd ia:QT 86/W9O 



fid 	coca 	900'0N x"L 	87,;OT 86/9g/S0 

PROCESS 

1. DoTelop a- draft layout/site plan of the permanent facility to include; 

Hangar location and size 
Office/terminal location and si7it  

Aircraft parking apron location (150,000 s.f. minimum) 
Vehicle parking lot location and size (30 -vehicles minimum) 
Access road location 
Security fence location 

2. Submit the draft layout/site plan along with a time line and business plan  to the PDA for staff 
review. 

3. Develop the final larut/site plan, time line and business plan based on PDA. staff comments 
and recom ►eadations. 

4, Present the layout/site plan, time line and business plan to the Airport Committee of the PDA 
Board. 

5. Negotiate an LOI with the PDA. The LOX will address the requirements Listed under 
CONDITIONS as well as the proposed layout and lease outline- for pennarkant facilities. 

6. Present the LOI to the Marketing Committee of the PDA Board. 

7. Present the WI to the FDA. Board. 

S. Subrair the site plan to the Base Conversion. Agency for 60 day review process for areas 
construction in Areas of Special Notice. 

g. Schedule a public hearing with the Pease Technical Review Committee and then the PDA 
Board of Directors to approve the site plan. 

10. Satisfy CONDITIONS from page 1. 

-2- 

COOQJ 	 JTY SaTO ziod 	 OOTT OCt CO9 IV 	87,;OT 90/84/90 





K 



Exhibit 2 



  

EASE DEVELOPMENT UTHORITY 

 

   

       

       

  

atio corp': ime 	 EMemalional Tratieporr, E-,ortsmomh NH 03:.:11)1 

E,60:11 433-13088 Fax 16o.' ,14 •t.27-04:V3 11)13: H(.11% , 	E 440(j-735:49E14 

 

     

VRAtiT 
June 19, 2000 

  

  

Richard B. Collier, President 
Port City Aircraft Repair, Inc. 
44 Durham Street 
Portsmouth, NH 038.02-302 

Dear Mr. Collier: 

   

On beha[f of the Pease Development Authority' ("PDA"), we are pleased to submit the following outline 
of terms and conditions of a proposed agreement with Port City Aircraft Repair, Inc. ("Port City ") for 
aviation development at Pease International Tradeport ("Pease"). It is the intent of Nit City and PDA 

that this proposed agreement shall, upon execution, be forwarded. to the PDA Board of Directors for 

approval at its meeting on June 22, 2000. Please note that following approval by the PDA Board of 
Directors, the application to become a full service Fixed Base Operator will require approval of the PDA 
Airport Committee. 

When approved by the PDA Board of Directors, the terms set forth in this letter shall constitute a 
Memorandum of Understanding ("MOU") ben.veen the parties reflecting our mutual commitment in 
principle to conclude with due diligence and in good faith an appropriate Lease and/or Sublease (the 
"Agreement" and/or "Sublease') based upon these terms and such other mutually acceptable terms and 
conditions as are necessary and appropriate. 

The central business terms of our understanding and upon which I am prepared to make a presentation to 
the PDA Marketing Committee are as follows: 

Landlord: 	 Pease Development Authority 

1;-7 
Tenant: 	 Port City Aircraft Repair, [tic, dibta/ Port City ' 1  • 

Subleased Premises: For and in consideration of the rents and covenants to be paid and performed by 
Port City and subject to the terms and conditions set fOrth herein, PDA agrees to 
lease and/or sublease to Port City and Port City agrees to lease and/or sublease 
from PDA the land area described below, which land area is located in the 
Airport Zone and is shown on the plan (designated as "Second FOG") attached 
hereto as Attachment No. I 

A certain parcel of land located on the. General Aviation Apron ("Subleased 
Premises" or "Premises"). The Subleased Premises are estitnated to contain 
1* 14-1- square feet excluding any required access road. 

Port City at its option and sole expense may conduct a field survey to measure 
precisely the area square footage of the Subleased Premises. The square footage 
for the Subleased Premises shall be adjusted to reflect accurate certified survey 

PAP-orteity\LOldfinal 



Richard 13. Collier, President 
Port City Aireraft. Repair, Inc. 
June 19, 2000 
Page 2 

Right to Use 
Apron Area: 

Interim Premises: 

results, provided, however, that any such adjustment shall be effective only as of 
the first day of the next month following submission of the certified field survey 
to PDA and that Port City shall not be entitled to any retroactive benefits, 
including rent adjustments. Following receipt of the certified survey results, the 
Parties shall execute an acknowledgment reflecting the revised area square 
footage. Failure to execute such an acknowledgment shall not effect either the 
validity of the Sublease or the effective date of any adjustment to the Annual 
Ground Rent, 

Port City shall have the right in connection with its lease/sublease to certain 
apron space consisting of 150,000 +/- square feet, which space shall not be part 
of the Subleased Premises or Interim Premises. 

Until such time as Port City has completed construction and is in receipt of 
Certificate of Occupancy of the Facility, as defined below, PDA agrees to lease 
and/or sublease to Port City and Port City agrees to lease and/or sublease from 
PDA the land and buildings described below, which land and buildings are 
located in the Airport Industrial Zone, as more particularly shown on the plan 
attached as Attachment No. 2: 

Building 110 consisting of 1,300+/- square feet and Hangar 213 (also known as 
44 Durham Street) consisting of 28,400+/- square•feet. 

As a condition precedent to its execution of a lease and/or sublease for 
occupancy of the entirety of Hangar 213, Port City shall provide PDA with a 
letter from High-Tech Aircraft Corporation ("High-Tech") confirming High-
Tech's consent to relinquish its License with FDA and to enter into a sublease 
agreement with Port City for the portion of Hangar 213 it presently occupies. 
Port City agrees to enter into a sublease agreement with High-Tech should High-
Tech elect to continue occupying a portion of Hangar 213. 

Port City at its option and solo expense may conduct a field survey to measure 
precisely the building area square footage of the Interim Premises measured from 
the outside edge of the outside walls. The square footage for the Interim 
Premises shall be adjusted to reflect accurate certified survey results, provided, 
however, that any such adjustment shall be effective only as of the first day of 
the next month following submission of the certified field survey to PDA and 
that Port City shall not be entitled to any retroactive benefits, including rent 
adjustments. Following receipt of the certified survey results, the Parties shall 
execute an acknowledgment reflecting the revised building area square footage. 
Failure to execute such an acknowledgment shall not effect either the validity of 
the Sublease or the effective date of any adjustment to the Building Area Rent. 

Sublease Term an 
Term 
Commeneetnentt 	The Agreement shall be effective upon execution and shall continue for a base 

PAPonCityi.boidfinat 



Richard B. Collier, President 
Port City Aircraft. Repair, Inc. 
June 19, 2000 
Page 3 - 

term of twenty (20) years : (the "Base Term") commencing on the earlier to_ occur 
of the.following events: (i) occupancy of all or any portion of the Subleased 
Premises or Interim Premises, or (ii) October 1, 2000 (the "Term 
Commencement Date"), with three (3) successive ten (10) year options to extend 
the Base Term. In no event shall the Base Term and all option periods extend 
beyond fifty (50) years from the Term Commencement Date. 

Port City's right to exercise its options to extend the Base Term of its Sublease 
shall be contingent upon the comp letion.of all phases of its planned 

G- 	improvements to the Subleased Premises which improvements are more 
particularly described hereafter. Further,- the Sublease Agreement shaliprovide 
that in the event Port City does not construct the Expanded Facility within a 
mutually agreed period of time, the PDA may-require that a portion of the 
Subleased Premises reserved for-construction of the Expanded Facility be 
removed from the Sublease Agreement returned to the PDA for future 
development. 

Site Plan and 
Design Permitting: Notwithstanding the requirements on the Minimum Standards, Port City has 

agreed that it will undertake and continue with due diligence and_ atits sole 
expense construction of [1 +1- square feet of new hangar facilities, with related 
paving, utilities, landscaping, drainage and associated site improvements (the 
"Facility") for establishment, operation and maintenance ofa fixed base aircraft 
operation, to include the provision of basic aeronautical services to aircraft and 
related ground service equipment that may be based on and/or transit the 
Airport. 

Port City has indicated its present intent to undertake- at its sole expense the 
construction of an additional hangar consisting of [*] +1- square - feet with related 
paving, utilities, landscaping, drainage and associated site improvements (the 
"Expanded Facility") in connection with-the establishment, operationand 
maintenance of a fixed base aircraft operation, Which shall include the provision 
of basic aeronautical services to aircraft and related ground service equipment 
that may be based onand/or transit the Airport. 

Port City acknowledges that FDA's willingness to enter into a Sublease is 
contingent upon Port City establishing a time line for the construction of the 
Facility which is acceptable to PDA. 

1. 	Port City shall be solely responsible for the development of plans and 
specifications for any proposed renovations at the Premises and for 
makingatty required submission and .obtaining any necessary approval, 
including subdivision approval, in accordance with the provisions of the 
PDA Land Use Controls. PDA agrees to use its best efforts (without 

PAPonCitykLohtpaai 



Richard B. Collier, President 
Port City Aircraft Repair, Inc. 
June 19, 2000 
Page 4 

obligation on the part of PDA to incur any expenses) to assist Port City 
in such process. 

2. 	The following is a partial list of issues identified and required to be 
addressed by Port City and PDA during the negotiation of the 
Agreement in connection with Port City 's proposed development of the 
Subleased Premises: 

A) Conformance with ALP; 
B) PDA. Reservations of Access to Apron/Taxiways: 
C) Adequacy of Parking; 
D) Siting for Noise Mitigation; 
E) Siting for Air Traffic Control Tower Line of Sight; 
F) Subdivision and Site Plan Approval; 
G) Construction of Access from Grafton Drive; 
J) Area of Special Notice Approval; 
K) Deicing Restriction; 
L) Construction Access; 
M) Permanent Road Access; 
N) Location of Fuel Farm/Right of P.DA to Relocate Fuel 

Farm at no additional cost to Port City; 
0) 	Removal for the Facility of Shelter #'s 1,2, and 5; 
P) Removal for the Expanded Facility of Shelter #'s 3 and 

4., subject to a ground rent credit following receipt of a 
certificate of occupancy for the Expanded Facility not to 
exceed 530,000 per shelter; and 

Q) installation of utilities, as required. 

Building Area Rent: The Building Area Rent due for the Interim Premises, Building 110 and Hanar 
213, during the Base Term of the Agreement will be $3,25 per square foot. flie 
Building Area Rent due for Hangar 214 during the Base Term of the Agreement 
will be $2.00 per square foot Building area rent for the Interim Premises will 
commence on the Term Commencement Date. 

Annual Ground Rent: The annual ground rent ("Ground Rent") per acre for the Subleased Premises 
during the Base Term of the Agreement will be as follows: 

Years 1 - 5 
[commencing on 
Certificate of 
Occupancy] 

Years 6 - 10 

Years 11 - 1 . 5 and 

an annual amount equal to $,30 per square foot 

4%1 	A 

an annual payment equal 4 S35 Or square foot 
.1' 

PAPortCityli3Oldfinat 



t 	• 

11 kr OA/  ' 

Richard B. Collier, President 
Port City Aircraft Reps i 
June 19, 2000 
Page 5 

each five year period 
thereafter, including 
any applicable option 
period 	 an annual payment equal to the per square foot rate for 

the previous five year period plus CPI adjustment 

The Ground Rent will be based upon the total area of the Subleased Premises, 
estimated at[*1417  square feet, and is subject to adjustment upon final 
determination of the exact acreage of the Subleased Premises. 

n e/ Uf  
1() r, Inc. y  re/ 

r4) 

Escalation 
Adjustment: 

Condition 
of Subleased 
Premises: 

CPI Adjustment:  As of each adjustment date, the Building Area /Ground Rent 
shall be adjusted to reflect the change in the Consumer Price Index for All Urban 
Consumers applicable to the Boston area (base year 1982-1984=100) published 
by the United States Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics (the 
"Index."). 

On the first day following the expiration of the fifth year of the Base Term of the 
Agreement and on the first day of each fifth year thereafter (the "Adjustment 
Date(s)") Building Area /Ground Rent subject to escalation adjustment shall be 
adjusted as follows: 

For the first adjustment, the basis tbr computing such adjustment shall be the 
Index most recently published prior to the beginning of the first year of the Base 
Term ("Beginning Index"). if the Index most recently published prior to the first 
Adjustment Datc - ("Extension Index") has increased over the Beginning Index, 
the rental rates for Building Area /Ground Rent for the one year period 
commencing as of such Adjustment Date shall be equal to the result obtained by 
multiplying the rental rate itt effect on the Adjustment Date by afraction, the 
numerator of which is the Extension Index and the denominator of which is the 
Beginning Index. 

Except as otherwise provided herein, Port City shall take the Subleased 
Premises in an as is condition without warranty or representation of any kind; 
provided, however, Port City shall have no liability or responsibility to PDA for 
environmental impacts and damage caused y the use of tlie United States of 
America - Dcpartinent of the Air Force ("Air Force" or "Government") of 
Hazardous Substances on any portion of Pease, including the Subleased 
Premises. Port City and PDA acknowledge the obligation of the Air Force to 
indemnify FDA and Port City to the extent required by the provisions of Public 
Law No. 101-511 Section 8056. 

Taxes/Fees/Services: In accordance with the provisions of the Municipal Services Agreement by and 
between the PDA and the City of Portsmouth with an effective date of July 1, 

PAPortCity 11.01dfca, 



Richard B. Collier, President 
Port City Aircraft Repair, Inc. 
June 19, 2000 
Page 6 

Utilities: 

Net Lease: 

1998, Port City shall pay to PDA a municipal services fee to include the cost of 
providing police, fire and public works services. 

PDA will bring utility linos at reasonable capacities to the points.existing as of 
the Term Commencement Date or such otherpoints as may be designated by 
FDA. Port City will be responsible for installing and paying for all utilities, 
including electric, gas, telephone, water and sewer from such points to the 
Subleased Premises. 

The Agreement shall be triple net to PDA and all costs associated with the use, 
occupancy, maintenance and insurance of the Premises shall be borne by Port 
City. 

Use: 	 Full Service Fixed Base Operator and maintenance facility (consistent with the 
present use by Port City of a portion of Hangar 213) 

Sublease and 
Assignment: 	Port City may, subject to Condition 20 of the lease between the FDA and the 

Air Force ("Master Lease"), without the approval of PDA, assign its rights under 
the Agreement to or enter into a sublease of the Interim and/or Subleased 
Premises with an affiliate (i.e., any corporation that controls, is controlled by or 
is under common control with Port City ). For purposes of the preceding 
sentence, the term "control" shall mean ownership or other beneficial interest in 
at least fifty-one percent (51%) of the voting stock or other voting interest of a 
corporation. A ii other assignments shall be subject to approval of FDA. 

FDA shall not unreasonably withhold its consent to any sublease or assignment 
if: (.1) the use of the Interim and/or Subleased Premises associated With any 
sublease(s) or assignment(s) is permitted under the Agreement, (2) the 
subleases) are consistent with the terms and conditions of the Agreement; 
provided, however, that Port City may rent the subleased area at rentals deemed 
appropriate by Port City , (3) Port City remains primarily liable to FDA to pay 
rent and to perform all other obligations to be performed by Port City under the 
Agreement, and (4) the proposed sublessee is financially and operationally 
responsible. In the event the Building Area /Ground Rent for the Interim and/or 
Subleased Premises exceeds the rental charged to Port City under the 
Agreement, Port City shall remit fifty percent (50%) of such excess to PDA 
upon receipt by Port City; provided, however, that any rental received by Port 
City during a period in which no rental is due to FDA shall be paid in its 
entirety to PDA. 

Environmental 
Protection: 	Port City acknowledges that Pease has been identified as a National Priority List 

(NPL) Site under the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation 
and Liability Act (CERCLA) of 1980, as amended. Port City acknowledges that 

P:WortCitylLOIdfmal 



Richard B, Collier, President 
Port City Aircraft Repair, Inc. 
June 19, 2000 
Page 7 

PDA has provided it with a copy of the Pease Federal Facility Agreement 
("FFA") entered into by EPA, and the Air Force on April 24, 1991, as amended, 
and agrees that it will comply with the terms of the FFA to the extent the same 
may be applicable to the Subleased Premises and that should any conflict arise 
between the terms of the FFA and the provisions of the Agreement, thelerms of 
the FFA will take precedence. 

RSA 	5' 
Port City shall comply with all federal, state and local laws, regulations and 

?standards that arc or may become applicable to Pert City 's activities at the 
E Premises. Port City shall not assume any liabilityor responsibility for 

environmental impacts and damage caused by the Air Force's use of Hazardous 
Substances on any portion of Pease, including the Premises. The parties 
acknowledge the obligations of the Air Force to indemnify FDA and Port City 
to the extent required:by the provisions of Public Law No. 101-511, Section 
8056. 

Brokerage: 

To the extent the same is available and applicable, PDA will furnish the 
following data to Port City : relevant maps, diagrams, surveys, drawings, 
engineering studies and plans related to the PreMises, including but not limited 
to, the Environmental Baseline Survey; approved airport layout plan; existing 
property drawings and plans; Health and Safety Plans; Construction Work Plans 
and planning and engineering studies conducted for the PDA or for others, 
including available studies conducted for the Air Force, and pertaining to Pease 
and orthe Premises. PDA makes no warranty or -representation, actual or 
implied, as to the accuracy of any material to be furnished to the Port City , 

Each party warrants to the other that it has had no dealing with any real estate 
broker or agent in cOnnection with the negotiation of this letter or the 
Agreement. 

Repairs and 
Maintenance: 	Throughout the term of the Agreement, and without cost to PDA, Port City shall 

take good care of the Subleased Premises and related improvements, including 
sidewalks, curbs, apron areas designated for Port City 's exclusive use, and shall 
keep the same in good order and condition, and shall promptly at its own cost 
and expense, make all necessary repairs thereto. Port City 's obligation 
hereunder shall also include grounds maintenance and restoration and snow 
removal from the Subleased Premises, including any apron areas designated for 
Port City's  exclusive use. 

Minimum Standards: Port City and its sublessees' use of the Subleased Premises shall be subject to 
compliance with Minimum Standards as the same are from time to time 
promulgated by PDA. Notwithstanding any provisionof the Agreement to the 
contrary, Port City may not commence operations as a fixed base operator in the 
Interim Premises until such time as the following conditions have been met: 

P:kPortCity1LOIdlinal 



Richard B. Collier, President 
Port City Aircraft Repair, Inc. 
June 19, 2000 
Page 8 

1.. 	All requirements of the Minimum Standards, including 
submission of a time line for satisfying same; 

2. Commencement of Construction of the Facility, which shall be 
deemed to include the provision of evidence by Port City that it 
has placed a non-refundable order for the steel required to 
complete construction of the Facility, or the posting of a 
guarantee to ensure the Commencement of Construction of the 
Facility in such form as is acceptable to and has received the 
prior approval Of the PDA Board of Directors: 

3. The incorporation of the recommendations, if any, of the Airport 
Comm ittee. 

Restrictions on 
Aircraft Operations: Port City is aware of PDA's efforts to promulgate proprietary regulations that 

will include certain restrictions on aircraft operations. Port City has agreed to 
comply with all such future rules and regulations, and will agree and-obtain the 
agreement of its successors in interest, in accordance with the provisions of 14 
CFR Part 161, to voluntary operating restrictions which are reasonably 
consistent with the aircraft operation restriction provisions incorporated herein 
as Attachment No. 3. 

Neither this letter, nor the MOU constitutes a reservation of the Premises, an option to lease and/or 
sublease the Premises, or an offer to lease and/or sublease the Premises, and no legal obligation shalt 
arise with respect to the Premises or lease thereof until a Lease and/or Sublease Agreement is executed 
by the Parties. - 

I believe this proposal addresses the terms as discussed to date. It is my hope that you will be in a 
position to advise us of your commitment to Pease by executing this original and the enclosed copy in the 
space provided and returning the original to my attention. if you have any questions, please give me a 
call. 

Sincerely, 

George R. Meyer 
Executive Director 

GRM/mhg 
cc. 	David R. Mullen 

Lynn Marie Hinchee 
Gerald H. Dexter 
Mark Rowell 

( 

PO,PortCitylt.Oldfinal 



Richard B. Collier, President 
1 A 0" ." D 	T 

L 	 r1.11,"7“. 1.1.,114111, L114. 

June 19, 2000 
Page 9 

I have read the foregoing and it correctly states the terms upon which we will proceed to negotiate a 
mutually acceptable Lease and/or Sublease Agreement for the Premises with PDA, subject to the PDA 
Board of Directors, the PDA Airport Committee and any other governmental approvals that may be 
required. 

Port City Aircraft Repair, Inc. 

Date 	 By: 
Its duly authorized: 

P APonCity\LOldfinal 



Exhibit 3 



7 a‘ a-a)2_ 

PEASE, ENTLOPII4ENT AUTHORITY 

Aliport,MnflilfScaieris DopOrtmCrtl. 	Inu:maltonal TradcpOtt 

$0 Afalnc: AnnUal PWISITIcW111. Nc,:w iiVMpShfre 03801 
(6031 433-0536 Foxv(603) 334-61:Z MD: Relay NH 1-800.7:15•2964 

July 26, 2002 

Mr, Edward Stead 
7 1-lutelliFIR Coo Dr. 
Kittery, ME 03904 

Via PAX: 207-439-6866 

Dear Mr. Stead: 

This letter confirms  that Port City Aircraft Repair, Inc. emiciltly meets the tuinixourtflancl and 
facility requirements to operate as a full-service fixed base operator on an interim basis until 
construction of the permanent facilities is completed. 

MarkK. Rowell 
Airport Maaager 



FRai :AIRPORT IttANAGEIIENT 	 FAX NO. :6833346135 r. 2E3 2E103 - 03:07PM PI 

             

        

  

PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

  

Airport Mamgement Depurirnont. Pease: international Tredcport 
30 Aminc: Avcnue, PonsFriourn. Nem timroshire 03861 
(03031433-0536 Pax: (1303} 3346135 '101): I 'XiPy 	1-600-735.2D64 

       

  

March 28,.2003 

Mr. Richard Collier 
General Mamie:a 
Port City Aircraft 
44 Durham Stncl. 

Portsmouth; NH 03801 

Dear Mr. Collier 

        

Subject to Port City's ongoing obligations to comply with its Sublease and all applicable rules 
and regulations in connection with its FBCI operations, this will serve to confirm that Port City 
Aircraft may commence aircraft fuk:ling operations, effective March 28, 2003, 

Please do not hesitate to contact rrw with any questions by calling (603) 433-6536. 

Sincerely, 

Kim (Bill) Hopp =, 
Airport Operations Manager 

cc: 	George R. Meyer, Executive Director 
Mark Gardner, Staff Attorney 
Mark K. Rowell, Airport M anager 
Pease Airport Operations Division 
Deputy Chief William Huntekopf, 	ARFF 



110-77: 

PEASE 
;NTERNA'; 
	

55 International Drive, Portsmouth NH 03801 

DE VF LOP Al£N 7 
 A...)1HGv1 	ri 

January 7, 2021 

Charles Suma, COO 
Pease Aviation Partners, LLC 
7555 Ipswich 
Houston, Texas 77061 

Re: 	Letter of Intent 

Mr. Suma: 

The Pease Development Authority ("PDA") is pleased to submit to REW Investments, Inc. 
and Pease Aviation Partners, LLC d/b/a Million Air Portsmouth ("PAP") the following outline of 
terms and conditions of a proposed agreement with the PDA for aviation development at 
Portsmouth International Airport at Pease, located within the Pease International Tradeport 
("Airport"). 

If approved by the PDA Board of Directors, the terms set forth in this letter shall constitute 
a Letter of Intent ("LOI") between the parties reflecting our mutual commitment in principle to 
conclude with due diligence and in good faith one or more agreements, including an appropriate 
Lease and Operating Agreement (collectively, the "Agreement" and/or "Lease"), based upon these 
terms and such other mutually acceptable terms and conditions as the parties may deem necessary 
and appropriate. 

Without limitation of any other provision of this LOI, the general understanding of the 
parties is that PAP would sublease, on a short-term basis, an existing hangar and adjoining office 
space from a current tenant of PDA, subject to any required change of use approvals. During the 
term of the sublease, PAP would construct and operate a Fixed Base Operator ("FBO"), fuel farm, 
and hangar on the Leased Premises (defined below). As a term of the Agreement, PDA would 
grant PAP reasonable access to the common use apron areas adjoining the Leased Premises for 
purposes related to the operation of the FBO. 

The central business terms of our understanding include the following: 

1 

K c N.' CI YOU THERE 



Landlord: 	Pease Development Authority (see NH RSA 12-G) 

Tenant: 	 Pease Aviation Partners, LLC, a Texas limited liability company 

Leased Premises: 	The land area generally described as 53 Exeter Street in Attachment A hereto 
(collectively the "Leased Premises" or "Premises"). Final lot dimensions and 
access areas to be determined through survey work and/or subdivision and site 
plan review process. 

Without limitation of the foregoing, the understanding of the parties is that PAP 
would construct and operate an FBO, fuel farm, and hangar on the Leased 
Premises. Additionally, as a term of the Agreement, PDA would grant PAP 
reasonable access to all common use Apron areas (shown as apron areas on 
Attachment A) adjoining the Leased Premises for fueling operations and other 
purposes related to the operation of the FBO. 

Lease Term 
and Term 
Commencement: 	The Agreement shall be effective upon execution ("Effective Date"). The lease 

term shall be for a base term of forty-seven (47) years, commencing on the 
Effective Date (the "Term"). 

Annual Ground 
Rent and 
Additional Rent: The annual ground rent ("Ground Rent") per acre for the Leased Premises-during 

the Term of the Agreement will be as follows: 

Years 1- 5 	 an annual amount equal to $.35 per square foot 

Years 6 - 47 
	

an annual payment equal to the per square foot 
rate plus an annual adjustment equal to the lesser 
of CPI or 3%, not to exceed 12% in any  five  (5) 
year period. 

The Ground Rent will be based upon the total area of the Leased Premises 
(including any contiguous Ramp), as described in Attachment A, is subject to 
adjustment upon final determination of the exact acreage of the Leased Premises 
through survey work and/or subdivision and site plan review process. 

Airport Related 
Fees: 	 If applicable, PAP shall be responsible for the collection, disbursement and 

reporting of Landing Fees, Parking Fees and Fuel Flowage Fees in accordance 
with PDA policies and procedures. 

2 



Airport Use Fees: 

Condition of 
Leased Premises: 

With respect to any additional use of the Leased Premises requested by PAP, 
and specifically with reference to the conduct of future commercial and non-
commercial general aviation activities at the Airport, such use shall be subject 
to the execution of an appropriate agreement which shall include a provision for 
the payment of established fees and charges that may be generally applicable at 
the Airport. 

Except as otherwise provided herein, PAP shall take the Leased Premises in an 
"as is" condition without warranty or representation of any kind; provided, 
however, PAP shall have no liability or responsibility to PDA for environmental 
impacts and damage caused by the use of the United States of America -
Department of the Air Force ("Air Force" or "Government") of Hazardous 
Substances on any portion of Pease, including the Leased Premises. PAP and 
PDA acknowledge the obligation of the Air Force to indemnify PDA and PAP 
to the extent required by the provisions of Public Law No. 101-511 Section 
8056. 

Taxes/Fees/Services: In accordance with the provisions of the Municipal Services Agreement by and 
between the PDA and the City of Portsmouth with an effective date of July 1, 
1998, PAP shall pay to PDA a municipal services fee to include the cost of 
providing police, fire and public works services. 

Utilities: PDA will bring utility lines at reasonable capacities to the points existing as of 
the Term Commencement Date, or such other points as may be designated by 
PDA. PAP will be responsible for connecting to such points, wherever they may 
be, as necessary for its use of the Leased Premises, and for installing and paying 
for all utilities, including electric, gas, telephone, cable, water and sewer from 
such points to the Leased Premises. In addition, depending on the requirements 
of site review, PAP shall be responsible for installing any necessary or required 
connections of the Leased Premises to the PDA's stormwater discharge system 
at the points existing within the Airport as of the Term Commencement Date, or 
such other points as may be designated by the PDA, wherever they may be. PDA 
shall provide PAP reasonable access to the Airport prior to entering into the 
Agreement so that PAP may ascertain appropriate utility and stormwater 
connection points. 

Net Lease: 	The Agreement shall be triple net to PDA and all costs associated with the use, 
occupancy, maintenance and insurance of the Premises shall be borne by PAP. 

Right to Use 
Apron Area: 
	

PAP shall have the right in connection with its Lease to use certain common 
use apron areas, which space shall not be part of the Leased Premises, and 
such apron areas shall meet all requirements of the Minimum Standards. 

3 



T12-1- a a- 
rugut tt, vac 

Airport: 	 Subject to the provisions and additional restrictions as may be set forth in the 
Lease for the Premises, PAP shall have in common with other authorized Airport 
users the right to use the entrances, exits and roadways designated by PDA for 
common use at the Airport. PAP shall also have in common with other airfield 
users the right to use the runway, taxiways and available common apron areas 
of the Airport. 

Surrender of 
Leased Premises 
at Termination: 
	

PDA to assume ownership of the FBO facility and related improvements at 
termination of the Lease. 

Pease International 
Airport Access 
Requirements: 	The portion of the Airport within the perimeter fence is part of the Airport 

Security Identification Display Area ("SIDA"). Designated representatives of 
PAP and its contractors will be required to obtain security badges and qualify as 
escorts in order for representatives, employees and agents of PAP and its 
contractors to gain access to and remain within the SIDA. While in the SIDA, 
escort procedures per the requirements of the Airport Security Program must be 
met. Prior to accessing the SIDA, all persons providing SIDA escort must 
undergo a criminal history background check, verification of their employment 
history for the past ten (10) years, attend a training class that is offered no more 
than once every two weeks and pay any applicable fees. Information regarding 
escort requirements can be obtained by calling the Airport Management 
Department at (603) 433-6536, Monday through Friday, 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. 
No representative, employee or agent of PAP or its contractors will be allowed 
in the SIDA without escorts meeting the requirements of the Portsmouth 
International Airport at Pease Security Program. 

PAP acknowledges that it will be responsible for the payment of all fines 
imposed by the FAA and/or TSA arising or incurred as a result of the improper 
use of or access by PAP's officers, employees, agents, customers, vendors, 
guests, or invitees to Portsmouth International Airport at Pease and its SIDA. 

Sublease: Subject to PAP securing change of use/site review approval, PDA would consent 
to PAP's entry into a sublease with Executive Hangar LLC for the hangar and 
adjoining office space, located at Portsmouth Airport, and as described in 
Attachment B hereto ("Subleased Premises"). The sublease would be for a 
temporary term coextensive with the Construction/Operating Phase, defined 
below. PAP would conduct FBO operations out of the subleased space until the 
new FBO is completed. 

4 



Site Plan and 
Design Permitting: PAP would undertake and continue with due diligence and at its sole expense 

subdivision, site planning, design, permitting, and construction on the Premises 
of not less than 12,000 +/- square feet of new hangar space, and up to an 
additional 2,000 square feet of FBO Facilities and a Fuel Farm in support of the 
permitted uses, which shall meet or exceed all minimum standards set by PDA, 
with related paving, utilities, landscaping, drainage and associated site 
improvements, (the "Facility") for establishment, fueling aircraft and servicing 
customers of those aircraft for General Aviation, Military, Cargo and 
Commercial operations. Additionally, PAP would plan, design, permit, and 
construct the access road to the Leased Premises as shown on Attachment A, 
including any necessary security gate required by the PDA, which road would 
be a common use access area owned by the PDA. 

Phased Approach: 

Construction/ 
Operating Phase: 

PAP has developed a two-phase approach to the development, which phases are 
detailed below as the Construction/Operating Phase and the Operating 
Phase. 

During the Construction/Operating Phase, PAP would (i) operate an FBO out of 
the Subleased Premises, and (ii) construct an FBO facility that complies with the 
minimum standards for an FBO as described in Attachment C  hereto. 
Immediately upon execution of the Agreement, PAP would commence 
construction of the fuel farm, followed by the FBO building and hangar, as well 
as the access road. This phase shall take no longer than thirty (30) months from 
the execution of the Agreement. 

Operating Phase: PAP would operate the new FBO and related facilities under the terms of the 
Agreement. 

Anticipated 
Timeline: 	PAP acknowledges that PDA's willingness to enter into a Lease is contingent 

upon PAP establishing a time line for the Construction/Operating Phase and 
the Operating Phase that is acceptable to PDA and consistent with the terms 
and conditions set forth above. 

1. PAP shall be solely responsible for the development of plans and 
specifications for any proposed renovations at the Premises and for 
making any required submission and obtaining any necessary approval, 
including subdivision approval, in accordance with the provisions of the 
PDA Land Use Controls. PDA agrees to use its best efforts (without 
obligation on the part of PDA to incur any expenses) to assist PAP in 
such process. 

2. The following is a partial list of issues and costs identified and required 
to be addressed by PAP and PDA during the negotiation of the 

5 



Agrepment in connection with PAP's proposed development of the 
Leased Premises: 

A) Conformance with ALP; 
B) PDA Reservations of Access to Apron/Taxiways; 
C) Adequacy of Vehicle Parking; 
D) Siting for Noise Mitigation; 
E) Siting for Air Traffic Control Tower Line of Sight; 
F) Subdivision and Site Plan Approval; 
G) Installation of utilities, as required; 
H) Area of Special Notice Approval; 
I) Construction Access; 
J) TSA approval, as the same may be required; 
K) Protection of monitoring wells; 
L) Coordination of Air Force PFAS Remediation; 
M) Location of Fuel Farm and Fuel Farm Operations; 
N) Protection of stormwater, surface water, and ground 

water quality; 
0) 	Impacts to wetlands and wetlands buffer; 
P) Soils management; 
Q) Site dewatering; 
R) Airport security and access control; and 
S) Changes to Airport Layout Plan. 

Use: 
	 PAP will develop the Leased Premises to service General Aviation, Military, 

Cargo and Commercial operations meeting all PDA minimum Standards 
for such use. 

Sublease and 
Assignment: 	PAP may, without the approval of PDA, assign its rights under the Agreement 

to or enter into a sublease of the Leased Premises, or any part thereof, with an 
affiliate (i.e., any corporation that controls, is controlled by or is under common 
control with PAP). For purposes of the preceding sentence, the term "control" 
shall mean ownership or other beneficial interest in at least fifty-one percent 
(51%) of the voting stock or other voting interest of a corporation; provided the 
minimum net worth of the controlling or affiliated entity is not less than 
$500,000.00. All other assignments or subleases shall be subject to approval of 
PDA. 

Environmental 
Protection: 	PAP acknowledges that Pease has been identified as a National Priority List 

(NPL) Site under the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation 
and Liability Act (CERCLA) of 1980, as amended. PAP acknowledges that 
PDA has provided it with a copy of the Pease Federal Facility Agreement 
("FFA") entered into by EPA, and the Air Force on April 24, 1991, as amended, 

6 



and agrees that it will comply with the terms of the FFA to the extent the same 
may be applicable to the Leased Premises and that should any conflict arise 
between the terms of the FFA and the provisions of the Agreement, the terms of 
the FFA will take precedence. 

PAP shall comply with all federal, state and local laws, regulations and standards 
that are or may become applicable to PAP's activities at the Premises. PAP shall 
not assume any liability or responsibility for environmental impacts and damage 
caused by the Air Force's use of Hazardous Substances on any portion of Pease, 
including the Premises. The parties acknowledge the obligations of the Air 
Force to indemnify PDA and PAP to the extent required by the provisions of 
Public Law No. 101-511, Section 8056. 

In addition, PDA shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless PAP against and 
from any and all claims, judgments, damages, penalties, fines, costs and 
expenses, liabilities and losses (including, without limitation, diminution in 
value of the Premises, damages for the loss or restriction on the use of the 
Premises, and sums paid in settlement of claims, attorneys' fees, consultants' fees 
and experts' fees), resulting or arising from discharges, emissions, spills, 
releases, storage or disposal of Hazardous Substances, or any other action, by 
the PDA giving rise to PAP liability or responsibility under federal, state or local 
environmental laws. This provision shall survive the expiration or termination 
of the Lease, and the PDA's obligations hereunder shall apply whenever the PAP 
incurs costs or liabilities for the PDA's actions of the types described in this 
provision. 

To the extent the same is available and applicable, PDA will furnish the 
following data to PAP: relevant maps, diagrams, surveys, drawings, engineering 
studies and plans related to the Premises, including but not limited to: the 
Environmental Baseline Survey; approved airport layout plan; existing property 
drawings and plans; Health and Safety Plans; Construction Work Plans and 
planning and engineering studies conducted for the PDA or for others, including 
available studies conducted for the Air Force, and pertaining to Pease and or the 
Premises. PDA makes no warranty or representation, actual or implied, as to 
the accuracy of any material to be furnished to the PAP. 

Brokerage: 	Each party warrants to the other that it has had no dealing with any real estate 
broker or agent in connection with the negotiation of this letter or the Agreement. 

Repairs and 
Maintenance: 	Throughout the term of the Agreement, and without cost to PDA, PAP shall take 

commercially reasonable care of the Leased Premises and related improvements, 
including sidewalks, curbs, parking apron areas designated for PAP' s exclusive 
use, and shall keep the same in good order and condition, and shall promptly at 
its own cost and expense, make all necessary repairs thereto. PAP's obligation 
hereunder shall also include grounds maintenance and restoration and snow 

7 



removal from the Leased Premises, including any apron areas designated for 
PAP's exclusive use. 

Restrictions on 
Aircraft Operations: PAP is aware of PDA's efforts to promulgate proprietary regulations that will 

include certain restrictions on aircraft operations. PAP has agreed to use 
commercially reasonable efforts to comply with all such future rules and 
regulations, and will agree and obtain the agreement of its successors in interest, 
in accordance with the provisions of 14 CFR Part 161, to voluntary operating 
restrictions which are reasonably consistent with the aircraft operation 
restriction. 

Airport Minimum 
Standards: 
	PAP's use of the Leased Premises shall be subject to its compliance with 

Minimum Standards (Attachment C) as the same are from time to time 
promulgated by PDA. 

Termination Rights: PAP shall have the right to terminate the Lease upon thirty (30) days written 
notice to PDA in the event that PAP is precluded for a period of three (3) 
consecutive months or longer during the Construction/Operating Phase from 
proceeding with construction of the Facility as a direct result of (A) the issuance 
of an order or other adjudication of a state or federal court or determination of a 
governmental body of competent jurisdiction, or (B) exercise by the FAA, Air 
Force, EPA and NHDES of their rights under the Deed and/or FFA. In the event 
that PAP is so precluded from proceeding with construction directly as the result 
of any of the events listed in (A) and (B) above, irrespective of whether the 
period is long enough to provide PAP with a right of termination, any remaining 
established dates or milestones for payment or construction shall be extended by 
the time equal to the period of preclusion provided that PAP provides PDA with 
notice of any claim for extension within thirty (30) days of the occurrence of 
such event. 

The execution of this LOI does not constitute a reservation of the Premises, an option to lease the 
Premises, or an offer to lease the Premises, and no legal obligation shall arise with respect to the 
Premises or lease thereof until a Lease Agreement is executed by the Parties. 

Sincerely, 

Paul E. Brean 
Executive Director 

8 



I have read the foregoing and it correctly states the terms upon which we will proceed to 
negotiate a mutually acceptable Lease Agreement for the Premises between PDA and PAP, subject to 
t 	A Board of Directors approval, and any other governmental approvals that may be required. 

tr.  
rtes Suma, COO 

P \Pease Aviation Partners dba Million Air\LOIWInal LOI PDA PAP 01-07-21_docx 

9 



Attachment A 

Exhiboi A 
	

13f.1141*ED Flr. VFW 	!:, AT Es 1 1wi620 

maw ar rIWW LO 1M ENT Al I TH MR! TY 
	

1110111101ATI0MIAL 	PINITUIC16111. Ojai Olkil 

1 0 



Attachment B 

DU ILDING SUR.LEASE AGREEMENT 

This Aircraft Hangar ("Agreement -) is made this _clay of 	("Effective Date - ) by and between Design Box, 
LLC, via its assignee Pease Aviation Partners, LLC dttia Minton Air Portsmouth ("PAY'). (herein called 
'OCCUPANT") and Executive Hamar LLC. (herein celled "LESSOR") 

El:CHASE:Le 
In consniesation of the rent and the ro Laud covenants contained herein. and expressly subject to the terms. provisions 
and restrictions contained within LESSOR's lease agreement with Pease Development Agency (herein PDA). 
LESSOR. has let and demised and by these presents, does hereby lease and demise unto OCCUPANT and 
OCCUPANT does hereby rent and take from LESSOR the SPACE described in Section 1 below. TO HAVE AND 
TO HOLD the same for the term herein provided subject to all the following terms and provisions. 

SECTION 1: IDENTIFICATION OF SPACE 

The SPACE is the building and hangar located at 	Aviation Avenue. Portsmouth NH 038V 
SECTION 2: COMMON AREAS 
In addition to the SPACE identified and described herein above. OCCUPANT shall have access to and the right to 
use common areas at the airport including corn mon parking tines and driveways. 

SECTION 3: TERM 
The term of this Agreement shall be for ,months, beginning on the _ day of October 2f)2Q, and ending on the 31" 
day of March tl"" ("Initial Term"). OCCUPANT Li grunted on option to renew tins .4gneementfor one oeldnionot 
term of  6 rnx) winks!  ("Renewal Tenn"). OCCUPANT natii5i. LESSOR in writing of OCCUPA.NT'S intention 
to exercise the renewal option not more Mart sixty t601 days cold not kr: than thtny (M) dap. before the rapi moon 
of the Initial Tenn ("Option Exerriiv Petiod"I, otherwise the opnon shall automatically rentOnate. OCCUPANT 
shall be entitled to exercise the option if OCCUPANT vino! than m default =del.  the Agreement at any time during 
the Option Exercise Penal Subject to LESSOR'S neht to adjust the Rent as set forth in Section 4 below. all terms 
and conditions of this Lease shall tesuain in full for and effect for the duration of the Renewal Tenn 

SECTION 4: 
OCCUPANT agrees to pay the amount of li)t.x.xx.sa  per month as rent for the use of the Space payable in advance on 
the first day of each month ("Rent') Not less than sixty (30) days before the expiration of the Initial Terni. LESSOR 
shall provide OCCUPANT with written notice of the amount of Rent for the SPACE for the Renewal Term The 
existence and amount of any increase in Rent in the Renewal Term shall he solely within the discretion of LESSOR 
at the then cdsttrut Market Rates or space of such quality 

SECTION 5: SECURITY DEVSIT 
Upon execution of this Agreement, OCCUPANT shall deposit with LESSOR a sum equal to a minimum of one (1) 
month's Rent as a security deposit ( -SECURITY") for the performance by OCCUPANT of the terms of this 
Agreement LESSOR may use. apply, or retain the whole or any part of SECURITY so deposited fur the payment of 
any Rent or other sum as to which OCCUPANT is in default or which LESSOR may expend or may be required to 
expend by reason of OCCUPANTS default under this Agreement. In the event OCCUPANT has complied with all 
the terms of this Agreement. SECURITY shall be returned promptly to OCCUPANT after the date fixed as the end of 
this Agree/new and after return of possession of SPACE to LESSOR LESSOR shall hold SECURITY in accordance 
with applicable law, and, if so. permitted by Law. LESSOR shall have the right to commingle SECURITY with 
LESSOR's funds. to invest that amount and to retain any investment earnings as LESSOR'S sole property. 

SECTION 6: USE OF PREMISES 
The SPACE described herein is for the puipose of operatine a Fixed Base Operation (FPO). withregards to the Office 
Space and Hangar. Under no arcunistances shall OCCUPANT engage in aircraft heavy maintenance 

SECTION 7: LEGAL COMPLIANCE  

	

a. 	Subject to Section 6 above. OCCUPANT may not use or permit any part of the SPACE to be used 
for (1) any activity non-aviation related; (2) which is a nuisance or is offensive, noisy_ or damerous; (3) any activity 
that violates any applicable law, regulation, zoning ordinance, governmental order, Landlord rule, or this Agreement. 

	

Page I of 6 	 Lessor InitialsDate 	Occupant Initials/Date 	  

1 1 



b. 	"Hazardous Material' .  means any pollutant. toxic substance, hazardous waste, hazardous material, 
hazardous substance. solvent or oil as defined by any federal, state. or local environmental law, regulation, ordinance 
or rule exisiing as of the date of this Lease or tater enacted. 

OCCUPANT shall not use. generate, store, or dispose 	or permit the use, generation, storage, or 
disposal of Hazardous Materials on or about the Leased Premises or Buildinir except in a manner and quantity 
necessary for the ordinary performance of OCCUPANT'S business, and then incompliance with all applicable. laws. 
If OCCUPANT breaches its obligations under this ib.paragraph, LESSOR may inimediately take any and all action 
reasonably appropriate to remedy the same, including bikini!, all appropriate action to clean up or remedime any 
contamination resulting from OCCUPANT% use, ueneration, storage. or disposal of Hazardous Materials 
OCCUPANT SHALL DEFEND, INDEMATFE, AND HOLD HARMLESS LESSOR AM) ITS 
REPRESENTATIVES AND AGENTS FROM AND AGAINST ANY AND ALL CLAIMS, DEMANDS, 
LLABILLITES, CAUSES OF ACTION. SUITS, JUDGMENTS, DAMAGES, AND EXPENSES (INCLUDENG 
REASONABLE ,ATTORNEY'S FEES AND COST OF CLEANUP ANDREMEDIATION) ARISING FROM 
OCCLT'AINT'S FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH TILE PROVISIONS OF THIS SUBPARAGRAPH. This 
indemnity prov 'stint shall survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement 

d. 	LESSOR SHALL DEFEND, INDEMNIFY. AND HOLD HARMLESS OCCUPANT ANTI 
ITS REPRESENTATIVES AND AGENTS FROM AND AGAINST ANY AND ALL CLAIMS, DEMANDS, 
LIABILITIES, CAUSES OF ACTION, SUITS, JUDGMF.NTS, DAMAGES, AND EXPENSES (INCLUDING 
REASONABLE ATTORNEY'S FEES AND COST OF CLEAN UP AND REMEDLISION) ARISING FROM 
CONTAMINATION RESULTING FROM THE USE, GENERATION, STORAGE, OR DISPO&AL OF 
FLAZARDOUS MATERIALS IN THE SPACE THAT OCCURRED BEFORE THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF 
THIS AGREENIENT. 

SECTION 8: MAINTAINING SPACE  
During the Term. LESSOR shall maintain the SPACE and appurtenances in aood repair and tenantable condition, 
including, but not limited to, the maintenance and repair of the plumbing, heating_ electrical, air conditioning And 
ventilating equipment and fixtures to the end that all such facilities are kept in good operative condition esmept in case 
of damage arising from a willful or negligent act of die OCCLIPANT'S agent, invitee, or employee. 

SECTION 9: INSUR6NCE  
OCCUPANT shall, at its sole cost and expense, procure and maintain through the term of this Agreement a policy or 
policies of insurance insuring OCCUPANT against any and all liability for injury' to or death of a person or persons 
and for damage to or destruction of property occasioned by or arising out of or in connection with the use or occupancy 
of the SPACE (including the contractual liability of OCCUP.ANT to indemnify LESSOR contained herein), the limits 
of such policy or policies to be as follows: 

a. 	Workers Compensation (statutory -  limits) and Employer's Liability Insurance as required by law 
with a limit of $1,000.000,00 per occurrence. 

b 	Comprehensive Aviation General Liability including airport Premises Liability and endorsed to 
cover liability assumed by OCCUPANT under this Agreement, including such liability arising out of the use of 
Aircraft with a limit of $25,000,000.00 combined single limit per occurrence. 

c. C,Omprehensive Automobile Liability applying to all owned, hired, and non-owned vehicles entering 
upon the SPACE or otherwise utilizing OCCUPANT's rights of ingress and egress to the SPACE, with a limit of 
S500,000.00 per occurrence combined single limit when driven on the Leasehold ramp area. 

d. Aircraft Liability Insurance (Bodily Injury, including Liability to passengers and Property Damage) 
including non-owned aircraft liability, with an overall combined single limb of S50,000,00 1) per occurrence. 

The limits and type of insurance required above may be furnished through one or more primary anchor umbrella 
policies. OCCUPANT hereby agrees to maintain endorsements on its liability insurance policies to provide coverage 
for the obligations assumed by OCCUPANT pursuant to this Agreement subject to the indemnity obligations herein. 
OCCUPANT'S insurance policy or policies shall contain a precision whereby OCCUPANT'S insurer waives any 
right of subrogation against LESSOR its agents. employees and its affiliated or subsidiary companies subiect to the 
indemnity obligations herein. LESSOR its agents, employees and its affiliated err subsidiary companies shall be 
named as additional minted and shall provide that LESSOR must receive at least ten 00) days prior written notice of 
any cancellation of OCCUPANT'S insurance coverage. Prior to commencement of this Agreement. OCCUPANT 
shall deliver to.LESSOR certificates or binders ev idencing the existence of the insurance required herein, and renewals 
thereof as required shall he delivered to LESSOR at least f,30) days prior to expiration of the respective policy terms. 

Page 2 of 6 	 Lessor InitialsiDate 	Occupant Initials/Date 	  

12 



If OCCUPANT shall fail to comply with the foregoing requirements relating to insurance, LESSOR may obtain such 
insurance and OCCUPANT shall pay to LESSOR in demand as additional Renal the premium cost thereof plus 
interest at the maximum contractual. rate which could legally be charged in the event of a loan of such payment to 
OCCUPANT, such interest to accrue continuously from the date of payment by LESSOR until reptiad by OCCUPANT. 

SECTION 10: CASUALTY: INDENLNIT'r: al)RCE NLA.IEURk 
In the event the SPACE or the means of access thereto shall be dammed by fire or other casualty, LESSOR may 
terminate this Agreement upon A ritten nonce to OCCUPANT LESSOR and OCCUPANT in Loudly agree to release. 
indemnify and hold one another. and all their respective officers_ directors_ employees and noents, harmless from and 
against any and all liabilities. damages. delays. losses, claims or judgments of any kind whatsoever. including all costs, 
attorneys fees. and expenses incidental thereto, which may be suffered by, or charged to, one another by reason of 
any loss or damage to any property or injury to or death of any person arising our of or by reason of any breach. 
violation, negligent performance, or non-performance by one another's servants employees or agents of any covenant, 
obligation or condition of this Agreement or by any act or failure to act of thosepersons, Neither Party shall be itable 
to the other Party for its failure to perform this Agreement or for any loss_ injury, damage or delay of any nature 
whatsoever resulting therefrom caused by any act of God. fire. flood. accident, strike. labor dispute, riot, insurrection. 
war or any other cause beyond that Party's control &wept as otherwise provided herein, LESSOR shall not he liable 
to OCCUPANT for any loss. damage. destruction, theft_ death or personal injury caused by or resulting from any act 
to omission of any co-licensee, transient or other oxupant of LESSOR'S leased premises at the Airport or by any 
owner or occupant of adjoining or contiguous property 

SECTION 11: r E RMINA ION 
a. Unless OCCUPANT validly exercises its option to renew this Agreement as set forth in Section 4 

above, this Agreement shall terminate at the conclusion of the Initial Term. 
b. In addition, LESSOR may terminate this AD -cement during the course of the term upon the 

occurrence of any of the following, each of which shalt constitute a ra atertal breach of the Agreement by OCCUPANT 
(i) 	Rent is not paid by the 91  day of any month dunng the Term. 
fir) 	OCCUPANT has failed to comply with any material condition of this Agreement and has 

not reasonably corrected the compliance failure within Eve (5) days after receipt of 
written notice of each compliance failure from LPs-SOR. 

I in) 	If the OCCUPANT operations as an F130 moves to another location or ceases to operate 
as an F730 for any reason. 

c. Except as otherwise provided in this Aoreement, all fixtures, improvements, equipment and other 
property bought. testalled, erected. or placed in the SPACE by OCCUPANT shall remain the property of 
OCCUPANT OCCUPANT shall have the right to remove these fixtures, improvements, equipment and other property 
prior to the expiration or termination of this Agreement_ howevec OCCUPANT shall be responsible for any damage 
caused by such removal. Title to fixtures. improvements, equipment and other property not removed as of the 
expiration or tam Matron of this agreement, shall vest in LESSOR 

SECTION 12: WATTATICOS 
a. 	The OCCUPANT agrees to abide by and comply with all present and future rules. regulations and 

orders of LESSOR and the Airport Audbanty affecting the control. operation, and use of the SPACE and the Airport 
generally 

SECTION 13: UTILITIES 
a. 	All Utilities are included in the Rent. 
b 	OCCUPANT 410 comply with all rules and regulations, which the Airport requires, any 

governmental agency or authority, or any utility company may establish for the use, proper functioning and protection 
of any such utility or service. 

c. 	Unless directly caused by gross negligence of LESSOR. LESSOR shall not be liable under any 
circumstances for loss or injury to property or persons occurring through, in connection with. or incidental to the 
furnishing of UTILITIES LESSOR shall not be liable for any stoppage or interruption of UTILITIES caused by third 
parties or by acts of God, nor for needed repairs that LESSOR is unaware of, and no offset or deduction from rent 
shall occur by reason of such Interruption. 

SECTION 14: CONDUCT BY' OCCUPANT 

Page 3 de. 	 Lessor Mitialatate 	Occupant Mitigating_ 	  

13 



a. In the event that the hangar, the office facility, or any of the equipment affixed thereto or stored 
therein should be damaged as a result of any act of OCCUPANT, or its agents. servants, employees, invitees or 
contractors, OCCUPANT shall, upon demand, pay to LESSOR the cost of all required repairs, including structural 
repairs. LESSOR and OCCUPANT shall commit no act of waste and shall take good care of the office facility and 
the equipment affixed thereto and stored therein and shall, at its sole cost and expense in the use and occupancy of the 
office facility, conform to all laws, orders and regulations of all agencies having jurisdiction over the premises, 

b. OCCUPANT agrees that it shall not, without LESSOR'S prior written consent: 
(I) 	make any permanent alterations, additions or improvements in or about the office facility, 

or change locks or keys on any doors; OCCUPANT shall bear the sole cost of alterations. 
(ii) do anything un or near the facility which will increase the rate of fire insurance on the office 

facility: 
(iii) permit the accumulation of waste or refuse matter in or near the office facility except in 

containers provided therefor; 
mortgage, pledge, assign or encumber Isis Agreement In whole or in part; or 

fn i 	sublease any portion of the SPACE or assign this Agreement 
(m) 	store any hazards material any items that are non-aviation related or not consumable by the 

aircraft operation 
(vii) 	operate any business that is not related to the aviation operation 

Store any personal items or use Mcilityidesimmted space for any other use other than 
intended office use to conduct aviation operation. 

(ix) 	have a contractor on the grounds without first checking-in with LESSOR 

SECTION lSi NOTICk 
All notices and other communicationS required or permitted under this Agreement shall be in writing and deemed 
delivered: (i) one day after deposit with any ova night mail service which maintains delivery records addressed as 
follows. or (ii) five days after being deposited into the United States Mail, pottage prepaid and addressed as follows 
or (iii) upon email. tclecopy or facsimile transmission to the number set forth below In the event of telecopy or 
facsimile transmission the printed machine confirmation showing receipt at the numbers listed below shall be deemed 
prima facie proof of receipt: 

To LESSOR- 
	

Company Name : Executive Ranger LLC 

Address :120 Aviation Avenue Portsmouth, NH 
03801 

Attn Greg Mahanna 

Email gmahannaPaamine.biz 

To OCCUPANT: 
Pease Aviation Partners, LLC. 

7555 Ipswich Road 

liouston, TX 77061 

Attn• Roger Woolsey, CEO 

SECTION 16: SEVERABILJTV AND NON-WAIVER 
If any part of this Agreement is for any reason found to he unenforceable, all other parts remain enforceable unless 
the result materially prejudices either party. If either Party trails to require the other to perform a term of this 

Page -I 016 	 Lessor Initials!Dalc 	Occupant ininalvDale 	  

14 



Agreement, that failure does not prevent the party from later enforcing that term and all other terms. If either Party 
waives the other's breach of a term, that waiver does not waive a later breach of this Agreement. 

SECTION 17: DISCLAIMER OF LIABILITY 
OCCUPANT HERBY DISCLAIMS. AND LESSOR HEREBY RELEASES OCCUPANT FROM ANY AND ALL 
LIABILITY WHETHER IN CONTRACT OR TORT (INCLUDING STRICT LIABILITY AND NEGLIGENCE), 
FOR ANY LOSS, DAMAGE OR INJURY OF ANY NATURE WHATSOEVER SUSTAINED BY LESSOR, ITS 
EMPLOYEES. SUBLEASES. AGENTS OR INVITEES DURING THE TERM OF THIS AGREEMENT, 
INCLUDING Bur NOT LIMITED TO LOSS. DAMAGE OR DI JURY TO THE SPACE OR OTHER PROPERTY 
OF LESSOR UNLESS SUCH LOSS, DAMAGE, OR INJURY IS CAUSED BY OCCUPANT'S GROSS 
NEGLIGENCE OR WILLFUL MISCONDUCT THE PARTIES HEREBY AGREE THAT UNDER NO 
CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL. EITHER PARTY BE LIABLE TO THE OTHER PARTY FOR LNDIRECT. 
CONSEQUENTIAL, SPECIAL OR EXEMPLARY DAMAGES, WHETHER IN CONTRACT OR TORT 
(INCLUDING STRICT LIABILITY AND NEGLIGENCE). SUCH AS, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, LOSS OF 
REVENUE OR ANTICIPATED PROFITS OR OTHER DAMAGE RELATED TO THE LEASING OF THE 
HANGAR UNDER THIS AGREEMENT 1N NO EVENT WILL A PARTY'S LIABILITY TO THE OTHER 
PARTY EXCEED THE PROCEEDS AVAILABLE UNDER ANY APPLICABLE INSURANCE POLICIES  
COVERING SUCH LOSS. DAMAGE. OR INJURY. 

SECTION IS: GOVERNING LAW: WAIVER OF.11431 TRIAL: JURISDICTION: FORUM SELECTION 
a. 	This Agreement shall he construed and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of New 

Hampshire 
b 	EACH OF THE PARTIES HERETO HEREBY IRREVOCABLY WAIVES ANY AND ALL 

RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY LEGAL PROCEEDING ARISING OUT OF OR RELATED TO THIS 
AGREEMENT OR THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED HEREBY 

c. 	All Parties hereto consent to the junsdicuon of New Hompshlre state courts. as the exclusive venue 
for any dispute arising from or related to this Agreement All Parties waive and agree not to raise any defense that 
any such court is an improper or inconvenient forum. or any other defense related either to the Jurisdiction of Texas 
state courts or to the venue selected in this Agreem e.nt 

SECTION 19: INTEGRAXTON 
This Agreement constitutes the entire sat-cement between the Parties. and of its effective date supersedes all prior 
independent agreements between the Pantos related to the leasing of the SPACE Any change or modification hereof 
must be in writing signed by both Parties 

SECTION 20: SUCCESSORS BOUND  
This Agreement shall be binding and shall inure to the benefit of the heirs. legal representatives, successors and 
assigns of the parties hereto. to the extent this Agreement is assignable according to its terms 

SECTION 21: SkRORDINATIO/Y OF AGREEMENT  
This Agreement shall be subordinate to the provisions of any existing or future agreement between the Airport and 
the United Stares government relative to the operation or maintenance of the Airport, the execution of which has been 
or may be required as a condition precedent to the expenditure of federal funds for the development of the Airport.  

SECTION 23: INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR  
Each Party shall be and act as an independent contractor and not as partner, joint venture or agent of the other. 
LN WITNESS WHEREOF: the parties hereto have set their hand the date first written above. 

Page 5 of 6 	 Lessor initials/Date 	Occupant Initials/Date 	  

15 



For LESSOR: 

By: 	 

Print Name: 	 

Print Title 	 

Date: 

For OCCUPANT: 

By: 	  

Print Name: 	  

Print Title: 	  

Date: 

Pane 6 o16 	 Lesser Inittals,Datc 	Occupant Initials/Datc 	  

16 



Attachment C 

ARTICLE 2 

MINIMUM STANDARDS AND 
REQUIREMENTS FOR FULL-SERVICE FIXED 

BASE OPERATORS 

2.01 FULL-SERVICE FIXED BASE OPERATOR REQUIRED SERVICES 

A Full-Service Fixed Base Operator shall provide the following aeronautical services: 

a. Aircraft Fuel and Oil Sales 

b. Aircraft Deicing 

c. Ground Handling (Aircraft Guidance, Parking, and Tie Down) 

d. Customer Services 

e. Line Service 

f. Hangar Space 

g. Aircraft Recovery 

h. Collection of fees 

i. Snow Removal Services 

2.02 MINIMUM STANDARDS FOR REQUIRED SERVICES  

a. 	Aircraft Fuel and Oil Sales 

1. 	Storage and into-plane dispensing of Jet A and lOOLL fuel together with a 
selection of lubricants of sufficient ratings, grades, quality, and quantity to meet the needs of 
general aviation aircraft using the airport. 

17 



2. A minimum of two metered, filter-equipped fueling trucks for dispensing jet fuel, 
of which at least one has a capacity of not less than 5,000 gallons, which meet all applicable 
safety requirements. 

3. A minimum of two metered, filter-equipped fueling trucks for dispensing 100LL 
gasoline, of which at least one has a minimum capacity of 500 gallons, which meet all applicable 
safety requirements 

4. Maintain fuel dispensing reports on file for a minimum of 12 months, and have 
such reports available for auditing at any time by the Authority. 

b. 	Aircraft Deicing. 

1. A minimum of one deicing vehicle capable of applying heated propylene glycol to 
general aviation aircraft using the Airport. 

2. Complete forms provided by the PDA documenting the type and amount of deicing 
fluid used and the location of the deicing event. Submit completed forms to the PDA Engineering 
Department within one hour of completion of the deicing event. 

c. 	Ground Handling (Aircraft Guidance. Parking, and Tie Down)  

1. Aircraft arrival and departure guidance on the apron to include a properly marked 
and lighted follow me vehicle capable of two way radio communications with the Air Traffic 
Control Tower on ramp net frequency. 

2. Tie down facilities and equipment, including ropes, chains, or other types of 
restraining devices and wheel chocks for transient aircraft_ 

3. Equipment capable of towing aircraft into and out of the hangar(s). 

d. 	Customer Services 

1. Passenger facilities for checking in general avlaan passengers and baggage, 
together with a comfortably appointed lounge area with public telephone, light refreshments, 
current periodicals, and TV service. 

2. Conveniently located, heated, and air conditioned lounge area for crews. 

3. Restroom facilities for passengers and crews. 

18 



4. Courtesy transportation for passengers and crews to general aviation facilities, the 
air carrier terminal, and downtown locations. 

5. A fully equipped flight planning facility with direct communication to the FAA 
Flight Service Station, local air traffic control, and National Weather Service briefers; adequate 
supplies of VFR and 1FR navigational charts; and other necessary flight planning equipment. 

6. An aviation sales counter offering for sale a reasonable variety of pilot supplies, 
navigation and flight planning equipment, survival equipment, and aircraft and equipment 
manuals. 

e. 	Line Service 

1. Proper equipment for: inflating aircraft tires, cleaning aircraft windows and 
interiors, servicing aircraft lavatories, and disposal of aircraft waste (domestic and international). 
A full -service FBO may provide qualified personnel and equipment to repair aircraft tires, service 
aircraft braking systems, change aircraft engine oil, recharge oxygen systems, replace engine 
starters, and recharge aircraft batteries. 

2. Adequate ground support equipment for normal turnaround of aircraft, including 
energizers and starters, ground power units, and fire extinguishers. 

3. Adequate towing equipment to move aircraft up to 75,000 pounds gross weight 
safely and efficiently. 

f. 	Hangar Space 

A minimum of 12,000 square feet of hangar space to meet public demand for transient, 
temporary, and long-term aircraft storage. 

g. 	Aircraft Recovery 

Equipment, material, and personnel sufficient to remove a disabled aircraft of up to 
12,500 pounds gross takeoff weight. 

h. 	Collection of Fees 

Personnel to collect landing, parking, and fuel flowage fees from aircraft using the 
FBO. 

19 



Snow Removal Services 

Adequate owned, leased or contracted equipment to remove snow from the parking 
apron managed by the FPO. 

2.03 MINIMUM LAND AND FACILITY RLOUIREMENTS,  

a. Lease a minimum ground area determined by the PDA. 

b. One aircraft hangar with not less than 12,000 square feet of aircraft storage space. 

c. An office/terminal facility of not less than 2,000 square feet adequate to accommodate an 
office, pilot lounge, passenger lounge, telephone, and restroom facilities. This facility may be 
attached to/part of the aircraft hangar. 

d. Management of paved apron area of not less than 150,000 square feet for general aviation 
parking and tie downs with access to the aircraft hangar. Management responsibilities include 
installation and maintenance of tie down equipment, sweeping/MD control, and snow removal. 

e. Permanent fuel storage for a minimum of 36,000 gallons of jet fuel and 5,000 gallons of 
lOOLL. The fuel storage tanks shall comply with all applicable federal, state, local, and PDA rules 
and regulations pertaining to installation, maintenance, operation, fuel handling safety, and 
environmental protection. 

f. Paved off-street parking outside the airport restricted area, but within the leased premises, 
for the minimum number of paved parking spaces approved by the PDA. 

The facility requirements may be met by leasing existing facilities or by new construction. 
Where existing facilities are to be leased, the foregoing criteria will be used as a general measure 
of the adequacy of such existing facilities. 

All improvements shall be constructed or leased in areas designated for general aviation use in 
the currently approved Airport Master Plan and shall be in conformance with local laws, ordinances, 
and regulations and such future property development and design standards as may be adopted by the 
PDA. 

20 



2.04 MINIMUM MANAGEMENT AND STAFFING REQUIREMENTS 

a. The activities of a Full-Service Fixed Base Operator on the Airport shall be 
supervised by an on-site manager who shall at all times be responsible for conducting, in a first-
class manner, the services required and permitted herein and in the Full-Service Fixed Base 
Operator's Lease. 

b. An adequate number of properly trained, qualified and. where applicable, licensed 
staff shall be on duty during required minimum hours of operation, or on call during other times, 
to provide the level of service specified herein. 

c. All employees shall wear uniforms and protective clothing and equipment as 
appropriate or necessary. 

2.05 MINIMUM HOURS OF OPERATION 

A Full-Service Fixed Base Operator shall be staffed adequately to provide the required services 
between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 10:00 p.m. daily. At all other times, the required services must be 
available on an on call or prior notice basis. 

2.06 MIMIMUM INSURANCE REOIJIREMENTS  

A Full-Service Fixed Base Operator shall be required to carry insurance in conformance with 
the PDA's risk management requirements. 

2.07 MINIMUM SERVICE STANDARDS-PERMITTED SERVICES  

A Full-Service Fixed Base Operator may provide any or all of the permitted services listed in 
Article 3 and shall be subject to the minimum standards and requirements for Limited Service 
Specialty Operators set forth in Article 3 of these Minimum Standards. 

21 



2.08 RATES AND CHARGES FOR SERVICES 

Rates and charges shall be determined by the Full Service Fixed Base Operator and shall be 
reasonable, competitive, and applied fairly to all users of such services. All rates and charges will be 
filed with the Airport Manager. 

2.09 STATE REGISTRATION 

All Full-Service Fixed Base Operators must maintain a current registration with the New 
Hampshire Department of Transportation, Division of Aeronautics, as required. 

22 



PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

MOTION 

Director Lamson: 

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors hereby 

approves the concept plan for Pease Aviation Partners, LLC (d/b/a Million 

Air Portsmouth) ("PAP") at 53 Exeter Street, as submitted by PAP and 

attached hereto and incorporated herein; all in accordance with the 

memorandum of Maria J. Stowell, Engineering Manager, dated January 13, 

2021, attached hereto. 

Note: Roll Call vote required. 

N: \ RESOLVES \ 2021 \ Pease Aviation Partners (MillionAir) 53 Exeter Street - Concept Plan 1-21-2021.docx 

TAKING YOU THERE 



PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

MEMORANDUM 

To: 

From: 

Date: 

Subject: 

Paul E. Brean, Executive Director 

Maria J. Stowell, PE, Engineering Manager 

January 13, 2021 

Proposed FBO at 53 Exeter Street 

Pease Aviation Partners, LLC ("PAP") is requesting concept approval to build a facility to operate as a 

Fixed Base Operator (FBO) at PSM and has submitted the attached drawings in support of its request. 

To meet its obligations as an FBO, PAP is proposing to construct a facility at 53 Exeter Street that 

would include: 

1. An approximately 18,500 square foot building to house hangar space, offices, and customer 

services; 

2. Aircraft parking and tie-down apron; 

3. A fuel farm with tank configuration and sizes as shown on the attachment (Phase 1 Fuel 

Farm Detailed Plan); 

4. Fuel truck parking; 

5. Employee and customer parking; 

6. Outdoor entertainment area; 

7. Security fencing, vehicle circulation, and other associated improvements; 

8. Subdivision of an approximately 2.65 acre lot. 

PAP intends to implement the development in phases. The first phase includes approvals for and 

construction of the fuel farm, and approvals for the use of the existing hangar located at 120 Aviation 

Avenue for other FBO functions (Phase 1 FBO Detailed Plan). 

The proposed fuel farm would be constructed with safeguards to prevent spills from entering the 

stormwater system or surface waters. Fuel storage tanks would be double walled. The truck parking 

area would drain to a collection system that could be pumped. Details of the system, including how 

to remove collected stormwater will be addressed during Site Review. During Phase 1, access to the 

fuel farm would be through the existing airport Gate 16 (Phase I. Overall Plan). 

The use of the existing hangar at 120 Aviation as an FBO will trigger a Change of Use requiring site 

review. A 1993 Board interpretation of the PDA Land Use controls provides for administrative review 

when a proposed building addition or site changes are considered unlikely to have impact on traffic, 

safety or intensity of use. PAP has indicated how parking will be accommodated through the use of 

TAKING YOU THERE 



a shuttle to available parking on an adjacent lot'. Any extra traffic on Aviation Avenue should be 

negligible. Utilities are adequate, the use is compatible with other uses in the area, and there would 

be no impact on the site features. For these reasons, I anticipate that this review will be accomplished 

administratively. 

Approvals for and construction of the driveway, building and other improvements at 53 Exeter Street 

would be part of a Phase 2 effort (Full Build Out Overall Plan and Full Build Out Detailed Plan). The 

Phase 2 landside entrance to the new facility would be from Exeter Street. PAP would construct a 

new driveway adjacent to the Exeter Street Terminal Parking Lot C. The land containing the driveway 

would not be a part of the leasehold, but would remain as a common use feature for future 
development. Fuel deliveries would continue to be routed through Gate 16 to preclude mixing with 

Terminal traffic on Exeter Street. 

The driveway construction would impact wetlands and wetland buffers. At this time PAP has 

estimated the following impacts: 7,150 square feet in wetlands and 17,200 square feet in wetland 

buffers. If the Board accepts the concept plan, PAP would need to obtain a wetland permit from the 

State, as well as a Conditional Use Permit from the PDA Board. 

Some of the proposed parking and driveway areas are situated directly adjacent to wetland buffers. 
At this conceptual stage, it is not assured that these areas can be constructed, or that snow storage 
and stormwater treatment can be provided, as conceived without further buffer disturbances. Should 

these facilities (and others that may be identified during site review) disturb the buffer or not be in 

full compliance with the Land Use Control Requirements or other applicable laws, PAP acknowledges 
that the conceptual site plan is subject to modification and size reduction. 

As to lot dimensional requirements, this site is in the Airport Zone where dimensional requirements 

are not applicable and shall be subject to approval by the Board. Site data, including lot size, setbacks 

and open space are shown PAP's concept plan. 

If PAP's concept is approved, detailed site plans will be completed and submitted for Site Review and 

Subdivision approval. Because it is situated in the Airport Zone, the project would go before the Pease 

Technical Review Committee and then to the PDA Board acting as a planning board for final approval. 

The wetland buffer Conditional Use Permit application would go before the PDA Land Planning and 

Capital Improvements Committee and then the full PDA Board for final approval. 

Staff believes that PAP has a sufficient understanding of PDA's requirements and objectives so that 

its concept plan can be brought to the PDA Board for approval. At next week's meeting, please seek 

the Board's concurrence. 

1PDA controls the vacant lot at 42 Durham Street. The lot would be licensed to PAP for this temporary parking use at a rate consistent 
with other PDA parking rights of entry. Board approval of the concept plan would include consent to license all or a portion of 42 

Durham Street to PAP for satellite parking. 

N:\ENGINEER\Board  Memos \2021\PAP FBO concept approvalrev.docx 



4  I 

9 

• 

MILLIONla L t  
TtIVIOUTH FACILITit 
fiCEFIZIAL DESIGN 

EXEfER sfprET 
e ITT omit NH 

Hoyle, Tanner 
Tel 	431-2520 rox (603) 45)-8057 ?Job: oehDyfel {6 raconencom 

rArowirt1,1 7/111 	 . . 

Associates, InC. 
100 imundiand Dr, f360, Portunnuth, NH 03B01 

Internoiignal 
%deport 

P4,-cm 

EIEXHIL 
NIA ./ 71 



til LlUi1 
uitG-Jae,luuriit 

morosED 
LEASt sfrE 

AV) 

i-41.4601GAR 

• 

r •••; 	 "•••• 
• 44.T., 

rl 
veqlimpar 

f 
a 

PROPOEW-ID 
Lir:JC.111 13N:).  ( PYPA:1) 

•7mir 1111111111111,0 

MOW 
i IA:1E 

LAil 
JAPJUAF41 . 1 2U21 

( . 11 ,1:1171 

MI 	 r 
ME DOW.' L1 AREA 

riTJTAL 3 1 ricY1 1.7) 7-.W) 	Th 
f  Hoyle, Tanner Pease 

International 
Tradeport 

••••■■•••,■•■••■.. --  

Associates, inc. 
TOO latemotiorwl Or. pod Port.iii, ON 03801 

Rd (003) 431-2520 Fox (603) 631-8067 Web: rreeLhoylefoener.core 
0 Copyright 2021 Hoyle, Tanner 1k Associates, Inc 111 10 



I ALL ri,VIitli 	PP  - — r c UR! :7.  T.4111 1:-,--0 
..,. 	•.-::.:::., -t,,, 	. 

rnuci RF.P_JELIHr_Tia;-‘MIPIrj .. AFIE;A:3 WIL1  Eli! EIEFIefai ,,2. 
AT- FE.--.FileIFIETI Arlt.) IV 07.-a;21-) rc_. ► .Alitri3 Lfi;-11i\n`e ''''''''' 
CC./NITEE.- 17.--ZD rl.) API i...1kIDEFIS_IFIOUtIpte_VAIP TAtlilrq; 

V411LLIUil flit 
FAVALIflaj 

	

mi  , rit\  ;c1-.,. 	 12? GAL,  ccrivitcs 

	

rc)C1 	 rA;CF---PI 
- 

11.111A rEit 
ist„A ft 	;UM PciFt 

Y40;-‘117;." 	EL  a 

Ohl 

FtA r-;; 
i_if-'PL'( PUMP:4 

• • 
•  

FRUCifil WILL .i.1CCir--3-.11:L1r21  

rAiiic 2 
. 

!Jar, t:MJ 4.41i 	• 
Alf 

niuuro- FID 
R4e.AAIt/ VI Enr.,:,  	-7•Trti. 

, 	 

br•11t`f-7 fJ 5uhip - 4i,   

le.YA 1./ 
=r`;-L iLD 

PROPOSED 
PHASE 

1,T4 
LO i 1 ; 1P.) C/A' L. 

rAP.Iic5 
If ',TAY.) 

Ce 4l91110 DiUD 

arz;\ 
DRA)N 

F3Lw- Ft_r.7. 1  -72 

I 
Li EL 

E: 	ousi 
JAPP_Mri 	2UTI 

UEXHIL Hoyle, Tanner 
Assoclales.Inc. 

Ncse 
Iernaticm al 
Trodepart 

	 •••■=mast 11.114.6197  •4VVC"7 1 	'Uirri • AIM 'it.Pit 
Internotiorral Or, NM Palisrnoulh, NH 03901 

Td (003) 431-2520 Fox (603) 431-8067 urrthrlfetanftercom 
Copyright 2027 

r1°39 nc.r  "35°"4"' 

Pi-LADE I HU - _ _ 



S. 
fE.1111P011Afti Fi-31) ;-r.tIPICALE.-11 

IV; 
• 

g. PARKING 
REA. 

it' hIP 
•J2.9 4:1 11..IY.r.i.LeJJ :412 

VA. 
toJi 

Oz..) 

r-iAmtiPiC; 
EIE 	•13PE) 

• I.• • ,••.. 	• 

:TritiTiLE 'OiLL 

THE FEED A1'IE/T4:.4 
 its-41• 1 KJTE-. LEA:1E9 ?A;VrcliI.E1PAC.-- Ei-7.i. 

;,1`ii.t..1'fit)ii;1'LE 
• 

CIE 

f.);vi.b;cippi 	.riE;  

DOT ► 1 LEA 3E AREA (15,0 1.1 1./ -5F) 

JANUAF1 'if 	71.Iv 
r' .U11'1=1.PY (•I I", 

1 	Pease 
lrtternotiacal 

	

Associaies, Inc. 	Trodep al 

100 internationd DT. #350. Pirtsrr.twth. NH 0.3801 
Td (60.3) S31-2520 fax (e03) 431-8057 Mtn nwv.hilletanner.corn 

	

 
Copyright 9n91 1-7•,,, former N. A .. 	 • • 	 . 

	

....,......,.... .A.Ar.1... ...gm, purid ■ Wr & PlUccrotes, .inc. 	i 

lioyie8  Tanner BEXHILL' 



irr 

A 
rirj  4g-  E.) PA RAP.1 171 

(25,990 7.‘ 

licf !1 1-41 ' 1 " 

11  

••-•11Pleilk-1 

pews 
!Memo-Vend 

Associates,inc. 	Ndeport 
700 friferneliond Dr. 8550. Ponar•oult, NH 03801 

Tel (SO) 01-2520 Few (607) 431-3067 Web: NI:Inhoyletomersom 
CopyrIght 2021 Hoyle. Tonne/ & Assoclote% Fnc. 

Hoyle, Tanner 

FULL BUILD NOTE 

r.;4s aru te1/4mEs,srbfi r 
irtgbt7 Gett. le W1174 Mr:-Orr 
r FULL EitilLdrin CoN .D9777 

alk■ 
ltap .11r. 	="4-464.= 

! v-' 

fJlteiii'111 F! 
LIU0 

c.-on-ariuc-..nr_ro 'A 

. ...4i, 	-. THE--2.-iri.: (Z.ATil. .4119 AU_ il.P..11!..felli 

1-9 	
fli-2 Cs-11.wtr..)10.,A MU riff:41'HE „Au- 
rc.‘wrraf-.A...s. 	. . 

. ,._ 

ill 

It li 	

- 	

"-V4 
l 1 1 	 r- 
1.... 	J • - 
1 t I 
-a - 	• 4..... -..e. 

1 0 . . J _ ..." _,_ ....- 
* 
... 1 

k-. ip.4=- ;? '-._.''. = -"'- • 
.,- , ly : i. 

. 	' I .-- 	: ■ '-- 

beNI  t  OP up. 

1-1A111 GAR 
7"17 

16t 

11101,,am•' 

EldrirJR.Are F: r 
HAW:I:krt. PAFficIET:; 

• fig 
, 

r t 

to Ze• 
.L i 	V 	'*".. 

' . 	•••• 	' 

• .°1!: ifd4  

ti 

PROPOTEE) 
LOCATION3 •re P;13) 

S r 
i_,,,,,• 

4 p 

!!. !MILL) LIU 
traitILL LAO 

Patikit.PAitnino 
Drj'ioitl 	AF.EAJ 

-= 1s5, %J 3F) 

r  "BEXHILL 
WOE: CV—XDS:L.F. EArrr4 - gltar 



\lif 
i4 Vitl:11AULITi ACJLI 11 1E15 ;PID'il • 

(rJRAGE: 

ti-a. tom. • .410. 

PAiGUil 
16.4.P 	441. 

r hro)Chrf 
la. LOT ARE.A: 

N. L OT FRONTAGE% 

FriciNT 
sip?: 'Apo :  

FtEAR YARD: 

N. !.W 3PAC?.::, 

r rAt. = fJ 13PALCE-::= 

FLI"L Eitn ,  tear 
UELliLE19 OL,V1 

JANUARY 2021 
E : "= IOW I 1",i 17") 

311 LI 

Fri r:\ :{ 	 r 	7 

floyliee  Tanner 
Associates,inc. 
100 internallortol Dr, PK Portsmouth. Nil 03BO1 

Tel (603) 431-2520 Fax (BO) C31-P.,67 reb: rrnn.hoyietaaner-c om  
nay c. =nor st Associates, fnc 

11WAOE: GOOGLE 	MAY 29 . 1g 

BEXHILL 
Pease 

lat emotion el 
Tradeport 

Tr "Ts-  • 

4 	*h4mt  

irrrtimecretnsu 
v1'rn.4.ins 

25" 	LAND PUFFER 

PROPOSED 

'' .1---LbT 307 -3 
PROPDStir-r 

Htifmt.n 
(rail sr) 

ECIUIF-Y41 r7SIT F.°AftetING 

1 

734 	2097 TAAp_miE fiElJECT 
FREE AREA, AEIG V 

ENTnyirmoriov 
EtTrEnecir4t,mrxrin- -: 

PLtNITNISS (IIT) 

SECtRITY FEN:1112- 

PaIrJF-1 03i.71) ;JARMO() 
,11= TIE. DOWN AREA 
LIMIT3 (25,009 3F 

34'19W 
r +DRAGE PROPV:Yor -3" r 

OvErt WETLANDS 

PROPD3ED FEJO 
BUILDING* (4,590 3F) 

Lur 



-411101-•- - 	
0. o.  

4"10/".b  

• '611fl." 

.11•Z 	
tr up 	-, .thalt41; 

- =1,004-0"4,:• 4". • ;NW' • 

• 

• 

p 

r UAL 

DE.Cg1 1J1E.Fil 7, 'AA!) 

'BEXHILL Hoyle, Tanner 
international 

Associates. Inc. 	Trodeport. 

100 frierrnstional Dr, OM, Portsmouth, NR BO 
Tel (603) 43T-2520 Fah {603) 137-*007 V,Vtr orhu.hogetonser.com  



it 

r 	- 

StiiitEigtiAL 
VIET/ 

DPr,-1--- alEJP`ii 7, '1U9 r.) 

Hoyle, Tanner Pease Tanner international 

Associates, Inc. 	Tradeport 

10 Internalised Rt, WO, Portsmouth, IV 03501 

(603) 431-2520 Fes (583) .131-8057 Mb: virehoyeloaser.som 



. • - 

a 

111j11:..- r 

Mit 

_ - - 

Hoyle. Tanner Internotionol 
Pease 

Assoclates,Inc. 	Tradeport 

100 International Dr. 0350, Portsmouth, OH 03801 

Td (503) 431-2520 Fox (603) 431-5057 Pleb : mso.ho}letanner.com  
g1 Copyright 2020 Hoyle, Tanner x Associates. 



r UAL 

DEC;EblESPIS 

iloylee  Tanner Pease 
International 

Associates,Inc. 	Trocleport 

100 International Dr. fact Portsmouth. NH 03801 
Tod (603) 431-2520 Fen (603) {31-8057 Web: tray.hayletanner.com  

0 Copyright 2020 Hoyle, 7onner Fssociates, Inc. 



— 

• 

,7A 

--2 

- 	 rt  • 

• 
• - - 

r•-• .);". 

_ 

--r r 

CONCEPTUAL 
BUILDING VIEW 

DECEMETR MD 

1(Pease
irktetholk,...4 

Associates, Inc. 	Trodeport 

100 iritgrnaticrd Dr, FM, PprIsmouth, MI 03801 
'NI (6O3) 431-2520 Fat OM 431-80€7 Web: Trere.hcrifrIonners-am 

cr-r 	• 	 - 	 • --e- 	 • ft v 
• - 	 • 	 - 

- - 	 c-  - 	 - 	 r 

le; - 
tIEXHILL Hoylet  Tanner 



I-t—Torfleo  Tanner Papas 
InUmutionci 

Assorlates,Inc. 	Trodeport 

100 internalionol 0r, g360. Porlimoulh. NN 031101 

Tel (603) 137-2520 FtFx (003) 131-8087 Mb: enfulaYetanner.coin 
JD Copyright 2020 Floyfe. Tanner & Associotes, Inc 

• 	- 
lir-Aft:7 

......zr1 . .„..z4,.... 	:......,...:. =--- -... "gi--r, 

 -

-  
Ak .-Aigie-',. ...• .--- x— •-• 	•-•- `-. •'" . 	. - 

1...... . _  ,...1r. 

	

''.- .1.J.N.-0.  -..tfl.  'nil.... 	 •rr ir--•••• - 	s•-• 	 _ 	arl."--'-' ----7-7";`-...,—• • 	...... 	.... 
.i......=•_All,,, 7,4.7  ......... 

...... 45-. 	!ir':,1•1■41-±rt'  --s- - :711-: : - , -r 	:7,...--.  • i$,A: ' -.-  0. 

tarapro;ft. r -:77_, 

- 	/... 	 '--- . 	...Alio' •,,,"  "3" "  .... 	 . ' -  44e..  •-i 	• :fie 	4.-4Ib 
. . 	 . 

_, • ......,,1,77.7.10071.1"P"  
• - 	.:.- ; 'Aili:'.4-a 	 1  .77-7  - 

— -.--..,—.---- -- ' . .: • - • 	•-• - . ..: .-`. - ■•11.0 ' ..- 	-- 
... 	—ow .-.... 	— 

- 	 — ...--- 

• - 	• 	- 
1 

• 

• 

• 4 
- 

- 4 

r.witakoruai. 
I 

4 

•I` 

.re 



- ••••- ma. 

Ar it"-• 

Aist  se. 

,111":41, 

A*. 

. 
:„:„:•_--,„.1.•-•••• us. F 

. ••• 

--•••••:`1• 

,•,,........7 7' ......4-"' ,,.....,''''..,Z41_44. 	. • ..... 

O ar 	- Z."  -' . ai ... 4  -* - ... 1 1'- '-.. 	4 - ' . - • -.. -. - - -::1111!1.-1571;1111.  -. ._ _, , L . 
ar - ' 	

••••••••• 	.44-..r- 	.... -..... 	. 	- 

- 	

. .... 

.: 	....-- 	 . 	- 	. 
. - - 	• .---.. 	• --.. 	• :47. 4.• . 1  7 a-a 	• a 	 ■ -4 a . 	.- . a 

• 

a 	 a 	 ... -' 	- ■ 

4 	. ..A 	a 	
• . 

a 	 - mm  	. 	1 	 - 
• -.44 	r•- 	all 	 ...44. 	 - - -ft 

a 	 .4 	 m 	a 	••-■ 	 a 	- • 	 .... 	- 	• 
• 

4 

• •■ 

• - 	 • at • - 
-0 

.. 	_ 
.. 	 - 	• -4 	 - 	—4 	 - 4 

. 	 • 	• 	• , 	 . 
/ • • a 	4 • ' l'' 	/ 	- .1  

- 	• 	 4 	a 
• . -4 	 -4 

- 	— 	 ". 	 • . -4. 	 — 

• - 	 , 
• r 	 ••••• *al - • 	• • - • 	• --. 

• • •• _ 4 	. 	 . 
P—" A 	4- • 4 	. • .•a

... 	 .  
..... a 

- 	 • 	• • 
4 

• 
• • .44 	• —A 

- - 
• 

• 

DE:-..r..;;-.1);Ey.---Ti 	r.) 7 0 

Hoyle. Tanner , tePrrozTn 

Assoclates,Inc. 	Tmle"'t  

r 	 -••-% 

Internotionol Dr, 0350, Portsmouth, NH 03601 

Tel (1303) 431-2520 Fax (603) 431-8057 Vies: tromhoyletcsIner.com  
ID Copyright 2020 Hoyle, Tanner 8 Assaciotes, Inc. 	p 

[se mg Ll 

1'Es" 

••• 
■•• 



PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

MOTION 

Director Levesque: 

The Pease Development Authority ("PDA") Board of Directors hereby 

approves the Letter of Intent between the PDA and Spyglass 

Development, LLC ("Spyglass") and authorizes the Executive Director to 

sell the 36,000 square foot PDA owned building located at 30 New 

Hampshire Avenue to Spyglass for $1,750,000.00, contingent upon: 

1) The FAA granting a release of the building from Federal grant 

assurances and other airport obligations; and 

2) Execution by the parties of a long-term PDA ground lease for 

the premises at 30 New Hampshire Avenue of up to 74 years, 

with the final leased lot size of not less than 6 acres subject to 

the determination of the Executive Director and any requisite 

land use approvals; 

And further authorizes the Executive Director and General Counsel to 

negotiate and execute documents necessary or in furtherance of the sale 

and lease, including but not limited to, the Lease Agreement; all on 

substantially the same terms and conditions as set forth in the 

memorandum of Paul E. Brean, Executive Director, dated April 6, 2021, 

attached hereto. 

NOTE: Roll Call vote required. 
N: \ RESOLVES \ 2021 \Spyglass - 30 NH Ave Sale and Lease 4-15-2021.docx 

TAKING YOU THERE 



PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

55 International Drive. Portsmouth NH 03801 

 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: 	 PDA BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

FROM: 	PAUL E. BREAN, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR -V445 

SUBJECT: 	SPYGLASS DEVELOPMENT, LLC/PDA — 30 NEW I -IAMPSI-IIRE AVE. 

DATE: 	APRIL 6, 2021 

History: 

The PDA leased the subject premises at 30 New Hampshire Avenue to Ingersoll-Rand Energy Systems 
Corp (the "Lease") in September 1996. At that time, the premises consisted of a 36,000 square foot 
building owned by the PDA and contiguous land area. The building had been substantially improved 
by an EDA grant (which was released in 2019) and the lease was for period of not more than 11 years 
(including available options). The premises are within the Business Commercial Zone and the Airport 
District and subject to the Municipal Services Fee. The 30 New Hampshire Avenue parcel is 8.49 +/-
acres in size. 

In February 2002, the lease was assigned to Spyglass Development, LLC (a Kane Company affiliate) 
and the Lease was amended in the following salient ways: (1) to define and subdivide the premises to 
consist of the existing building and an 8.26 acre lot; (2) to permit Spyglass to design and construct at 
its sole cost and expense a 16,500 square foot addition to the Premises; (3)to identify a new lease term 
of 25 years expiring September 2020; and (4) identify a new rent structure applicable to building area 
rent at a blended rate for existing and new construction. 

Additional amendments to the Lease were executed in September 2006, December 2008, and 
November 2011. 

In August 2012, the parties negotiated a major amendment to the Lease to extend the term through 
July 2022 and to fix the building area rent to that date. Additional included amendments brought the 
Lease into conformity with Deed references. 

In 2018, the parties negotiated another amendment to the Lease to reflect a reduction in the square 
footage of the ground area by approximately 2 acres and an extension of the Lease term to July 2027 
(with the possibility of another 5-year extension through July 2032) subject to certain conditions. This 
Lease amendment converted building rent to ground area rent and provided Spyglass with additional 
years on the Lease at a reduced rent, while protecting the PDA's ability to utilize the property for future 
Airport development and PDA office needs, which PDA had noted as a priority at the time. 

0000 TAKING YOU THERE 

Phone: 603.4 3 3.6088 	Fax: 6 0 3.4 2 7.04 3 3 	www.peasedev.org  



Proposal for Building Purchase/New Lease:  

In the summer of 2020, Spyglass approached PDA staff to inquire about the parties again amending 
the Lease to provide Spyglass with a longer term given its desire to enter into a long-term lease with a 
tenant. If able to secure a longer term, Spyglass was interested in investing in significant capital 
improvements to the property in the form of interior and exterior upgrades, HVAC improvements, 
roof work, and site work improvements, with a projected cost upwards of $5 million. Additionally, 
Spyglass in contemplating constructing new commercial square footage on the site. 

Given the potential for a long-term lease, the desire to make significant capital improvements to the 
property, and as Spyglass already owns the 16,500 square foot building on the premises, the parties 
discussed the possibility of PDA selling its 36,000 square foot building to Spyglass, and the parties 
entering into a new 74-year ground lease for the property at 30 New Hampshire Avenue, as is presently 
authorized by the FAA. Spyglass sought two appraisals of the building and provided those appraisals 
to the PDA, the higher of which valued the building at $1,550,000. I asked real estate specialist Jeff 
Donohoe to review the appraisals on behalf of the FDA. His review and comments resulted in both 
appraisers adjusting their appraisals upward, with the higher appraisal coming in at $1,750,000. See 
attached, revised higher appraisal. 

While back in 2017/2018 the FDA had viewed this parcel as appropriate for future airport parking, as 
well as a location for FDA offices, and was hesitant to agree to a significant lease extension, PDA now 
believes the sale of the building and entry of long-term ground lease to be in the PDA's best interests 
moving forward. Specifically, the Airport currently has sufficient surface parking and believes if 
additional parking is needed in the future, a parking deck or garage would be preferable to another 
surface lot. Furthermore, the national trends indicated the anticipated increase in the use of ride-
sharing services will, over time, continue to cut into long-term revenue parking at airports. Regarding 
PDA offices, the facility at 30 New Hampshire Avenue would not be ideal for PDA Maintenance given 
its large fleet of equipment, without significant capital expenditures. Additionally, given the 2020 
departure of Granite State College from 55 International Drive, the FDA has sufficient space there for 
its headquarters, airport badging, and necessary classroom space. Ultimately, should the FDA require 
new or additional office space in the future, there are other appropriate locations within the 
Tradeport/Airport to consider. That being said, PDA staff is considering whether it is beneficial to 
the PDA to withhold any of the parcel's 8.49 acres from the lease to accommodate a future airport 
access loop road or improvements to New Hampshire Avenue. Any such withholding would not 
exceed an area totaling 2.5 acres along the parcel's eastern and/or northern boundaries and would 
require a lot line adjustment. 

In order to facilitate the potential sale of FDA's building at 30 New Hampshire Avenue the first step 
in the process was to seek a release of the building from federal grant assurances and other airport 
obligations from the FAA, through its regional office in Burlington, MA. At the Board's November 
19, 2020, meeting it authorized the submittal of a release request to the FAA. The release request was 
submitted via letter dated November 20, 2020. See attached, FAA release request (correspondence 
only). The release request contained the two appraisals obtained by Spyglass and FAA has been advised 
of the revisions to both. The FAA has informed PDA that a release needs the waiver of the National 
Emergency Use provision from the Department of Defense followed by a federal register notice 
thereafter. While that process is playing out, and should be completed in the near future, the FAA has 
provided an intent of release stating the FAA is in agreement with the release but that the required 
process needs to take place (NEUP and Fed Reg.). See attached, Intent of Release. In addition, in 
February, Spyglass and the FDA executed a non-binding letter of intent regarding the sale and lease. 
See attached, Letter of Intent. 



At this juncture, while waiting for final FAA authorization, Board approval of the letter of intent and 
authorization to sell the building for the higher appraised value and to negotiate and finalize a ground 
lease of up to 74 years, is appropriate. As mentioned, based on staff review and discussions with 
Spyglass, it is possible that a portion on the northern and/or eastern edge of the parcel would be held 
out of the lease to provide additional area for construction of a potential future loop access road for 
the Airport Terminal. 

Requited Action: 

I am asking the Board to approve the parties' letter of intent, and contingent on receipt of FAA release 
authorization, authorize the sale of the PDA building at 30 New Hampshire Avenue for the higher 
appraised value and negotiate and finalize a long-term ground lease of the property (final parcel size 
based on PDA needs and subject to any required lot line adjustment) for a term of up to 74 years. 

cc: 	Anthony I. Blenkinsop, Deputy Director / General Counsel 
Irving Canner, Finance Director 

P:\KANERD\Spyglass  Dev \Board Memos & Memos \Board Memorandum from Brean 4-2021.docx 

3 



PEASE 
E 	T I 0' 	 55 International Drive, Portsmouth NH 03S01 

E T 
„ 	 . 

T 

November 20, 2020 

Ms. Gail Lattrell, Director 
Federal Aviation Administration, Airports Division 
New England Region, ANE-600 
1200 District Ave. 
Burlington, MA 01803 

RE: Pease Development Authority Release Request for a portion of a building at 
30 New Hampshire Avenue at the former Pease Air Force Base, Portsmouth, 
New Hampshire 

Dear Ms. Lattrell: 

REOUEST FOR RELEASE OF AIRPORT PROPERTY 

1. WHAT IS REQUESTED 

The Pease Development Authority ("PDA"), as authorized by its Board of Directors (the 
"Board"), requests a release of certain non-aeronautical revenue producing property from 
Federal grant assurances and any other airport obligations. Specifically, the Board 
requests that the 36,000 sf building owned by the PDA located at 30 New Hampshire 
Avenue, within the Airport Business and Commercial Zone' of the Pease International 
Tradeport, be released from its grant assurances and airport obligations to the FAA. (See 
Exhibit A,  Pease International Tradeport Zoning Map with Business and Commercial 
Zone shaded blue and Site Map showing building). The building is located in the City of 
Portsmouth and is utilized for non-aeronautical purposes. The release is requested to 
facilitate the potential sale of the building to Spyglass Development, LLC ("Spyglass"), 
the entity that currently leases the premises at 30 New Hampshire Avenue and owns the 
other 16,500 sf of the building, if determined to be in the best interests of the PDA and 
PSM. No release of PDA owned land is being sought. 

I The Airport Business and Commercial Zone is intended primarily for uses involving business, commercial and 
trade-related enterprise. The area subject to the Airport Business and Commercial Zone consists of approximately 
503.5 acres and is bounded as described in PDA Zoning Ordinance, 303.05(a). 



Page Two 
November 20, 2020 
RE: Pease Development Authority Release Request for a portion of a building at 30 New 

Hampshire Avenue at the former Pease Air Force Base, Portsmouth, New 
Hampshire 

2. WHAT AGREEMENT(S) WITH THE UNITED STATES ARE INVOLVED 

The United States Air Force's determination to support a public benefit transfer for 
airport purposes of the majority of the former Pease Air Force Base to the PDA is set 
forth in its Record of Decisions dated August 1991, as supplemented in April 1992, April 
1997 and February 1999. 

The FAA was a cooperating agency with the Air Force. In each instance, the 
supplemental ROD's supported the inclusion of additional revenue generating property 
required to offset expected business losses due to airport operations and to facilitate 
implementation of the PDA development plan. Major components of the plan have not 
changed since the 1991 ROD and include the Airport, light industry, commerce center, 
office and a research park, hotels, retail, and a golf course. All revenue from the non-
aeronautical development, including that within the Business and Commercial Zone, is 
committed to make PSM financially viable. 

The property within the Business and Commercial Zone was conveyed by the United 
States of America to the Pease Development Authority pursuant to the powers and 
authority contained in 49 U.S.C. §§ 47151-47153 (formerly known as the Surplus 
Property Act of 1944 (58 Stat.765), as amended). By Quitclaim Deed made and entered 
into on October 15, 2003 and Quitclaim Deed dated September 16, 2005, including all 
exhibits thereto, (the "Deeds"), the Government, acting by and through the Secretary of 
the Air Force, did grant to PDA the land and improvements located within the Business 
and Commercial Zone. 

The PDA owned building at 30 New Hampshire Avenue, which was included in the 
transfer from the Federal government, was improved in the early to mid-1990's by an 
EDA grant. The EDA grant was released in 2019, (See Exhibit B,  EDA map and 
Release). 



Page Three 
November 20, 2020 
RE: Pease Development Authority Release Request for a portion of a building at 30 New 
Hampshire Avenue at the former Pease Air Force Base, Portsmouth, New Hampshire 

3. WHY THE RELEASE, MODIFICATION, REFORMATION OR AMENDMENT 
IS REQUESTED 

The Pease Development Authority supports its public airport by initiating economic 
opportunity and creating private sector employment at the unique facilities available at the 
Tradeport, while preserving the New Hampshire seacoast's quality of life and environment. 
(See NHRSA 12-G). The PDA seeks a release in order to sell the fee interest in PDA 
owned building at 30 New Hampshire Avenue to Spyglass, the current lessee of the 
building. Spyglass desires to enter a new long-term lease of the premises with the PDA so 
that it may enter into a long-term sublease with a sub-tenant. If able to secure a longer 
lease term from the PDA, Spyglass is interested in investing in significant capital 
improvements in the property to bring the premises up to date and make it more appropriate 
for subtenant use. Specifically, Spyglass intends to perform interior and exterior upgrades, 
HVAC improvements, roof work, and site work improvements, with a projected cost over 
$5 million. 

4. WHAT FACTS AND CIRCUMSTANCES JUSTIFY THE REQUEST 

Property in the Business and Commercial Zone has been developed with non-
aeronautical uses. This development has resulted, by in large, from long-term ground 
leases between the PDA and developers. The premises at 30 New Hampshire Avenue 
has been leased since the mid-1990's. The original building at 30 New Hampshire 
Avenue was the 36,000 sf building which was transferred from the Air Force to the PDA. 
The building was improved with and EDA grant in the early to mid-1990's prior to being 
leased. In 2002, the lease was assigned the Spyglass, the current tenant, who constructed 
(and owns) a 16,500 sf addition to the building. 

The PDA owned portion of the building is in need of capital investment at this time given 
its history as an Air Force era building, the passage of time since EDA improvements in 
the early 1990's, and the unique building layout. Given other capital projects at PSIVI, 
including the complete runway reconstruction and the terminal expansion in 2020, the 
PDA is not presently in a position to invest in such improvements, nor does it anticipate 
being in such a position over the coming decade. Spyglass is interested in purchasing the 
PDA-owned portion of the building, entering a long-term ground lease of up to 74-years 
with the PDA, and making these improvements, so that it may enter into a long-term 
sublease. The sale of the building at fair market value will provide an infusion of cash to 
the PDA and the entry of a long-term ground lease will provide the PDA with a 
consistent and dependable income stream from this property for decades to come. 



Page Four 
November 20, 2020 
RE: Pease Development Authority Release Request for a portion of a building at 30 New 

Hampshire Avenue at the former Pease Air Force Base, Portsmouth, New 
Hampshire 

Additionally, the improvements to the building and the site work will update and 
transform a highly visible commercial property at the Pease International Tradeport and 
entrance to PSM. 

5. WHAT REQUIREMENTS OF STATE OR LOCAL LAW OR ORDINANCE 
SHOULD BE PROVIDED FOR IN THE LANGUAGE OF A FAA ISSUED 
DOCUMENT IF  THE pFQ11T117CT IS CONSENTED TO OR GRANTED 

Subject to the requirements of the Deed, the Board has provided a vote acknowledging 
the authorization to make this request to the FAA. (See Exhibit C, Board motion). 

6. WHAT PROPERTY OR FACILITIES ARE INVOLVED 

The 36,000 sf building in question is located at 30 New Hampshire Avenue, a 8.49 acre 
parcel in Portsmouth, New Hampshire. The premises at 30 New Hampshire Avenue is 
the subject of a lease from the PDA to Spyglass. In the early 2000's Spyglass 
constructed a 16,500 sf addition to the building. The current lease expires in July 2022, 
but contains two 5-year extension options, which could result in the current lease 
extending through July 2032. 

7. HOW THE PROPERTY WAS ACQUIRED OR OBTAINED BY THE AIRPORT 
OWNER 

Consistent with #2, above, the Federal Government, acting by and through the Secretary 
of the Air Force, transferred the land within these zones to the PDA via the Deeds. 

8. WHAT IS THE PRESENT CONDITION AND WHAT PRESENT USE IS MADE 
OF ANY PROPERTY OR FACILITY INVOLVED 

As set out in #6 above, the 36,000 sf PDA owned portion of the building is connected to 
the 16,500 sf building owned by Spyglass. The PDA owned portion of the building is 
somewhat dated given its history as and Air Force building, and the entire structure is in 
need of capital investment to update the structure and make it attractive for tenants in the 



Page Five 
November 20, 2020 

RE: Pease Development Authority Release Request for a portion of a building at 30 New 
Hampshire Avenue at the former Pease Air Force Base, Portsmouth, New 
Hampshire 

current market. The entire building and 6.26 acres 2  of the parcel at 30 New Hampshire 
Avenue is presently leased to Spyglass by the PDA. Spyglass currently subleases the 
premises to FlexEnergy, an energy company. 

9. WHAT USE OR DISPOSITION WILL BE MADE OF THE PROPERTY OR 
FACILITIES 

As set out in #1 above, the purpose of the release is to facilitate the potential sale of the 
36,000 sf PDA owned building and improvements to Spyglass if the Board determines it 
is in the best interest of PSM to do so. Proceeds from the sale will be used to support the 
PDA and PSM. Concurrent with the sale, the PDA would enter into a long-term ground 
lease of up to 74 years with Spyglass, conditioned on its significant capital investment in 
the property in the early years of the lease. 

10. WHAT IS THE APPRAISED FAIR MARKET VALUE OF THE PROPERTY OR 
FACILITIES - APPRAISALS OR OTHER EVIDENCE REQUIRED TO 
ESTABLISH FAIR MARKET VALUE 

Spyglass had two appraisals of the PDA owned building performed in September 2020. 
The higher of the two appraisals, performed by RMA Associates, is for $1,550,000, 
which is the anticipated sales price. Both appraisals are attached hereto (See Exhibit D 
Cushman & Wakefield and RMA Associates appraisals). 

11. WHAT PROCEEDS ARE EXPECTED FROM THE USE OR DISPOSITION OF 
THE PROPERTY AND WHAT WILL BE DONE WITH ANY NET REVENUES 
DERIVED 

The net revenues to be derived from a sale of the 36,000 sf PDA building (anticipated to 
be the $1,550,000 appraised value) will be committed to the development, maintenance, 
and operations of PSM and the remaining Airport Property located at the Pease 
International Tradeport. 

2  A new long term ground lease would be for the 8.49 acre parcel minus a small area of the parcel (approximately 
0.5 acre in size) along the northern edge of the parcel to facilitate a potential future airport access loop road. 



Page Six 
November 20, 2020 
RE: Pease Development Authority Release Request for a portion of a building at 30 New 

Hampshire Avenue at the former Pease Air Force Base, Portsmouth, New 
Hampshire 

12. A COMPARISON OF THE RELATIVE ADVANTAGE OR BENEFIT TO THE 
AIRPORT FROM SALE OR OTHER DISPOSITION AS OPPOSED TO 
RETENTION FOR RENTAL INCOME 

The benefit of  the release requested is the ability to sell a FDA owned, Air Force vintage 
building, to its existing tenant, which also owns a connected 16,500 sf portion of the 
building. Concurrently, the PDA would enter into a long-term ground lease of up to 74 
years, contingent on the investment of significant capital improvements being made to 
the building and parcel over the initial years of the lease. As such, the PDA would 
receive a cash payment for the building, the long-term ground lease revenue, and an 
improved building at the conclusion of the lease term. Current (2020) rental rates under 
long-term leases for land in these zones developed at the Tradeport are a blended rate of 
$18,245 an acre per year. 

Should the PDA retain ownership of the 36,000 sf building, it will require the investment 
of funds for capital improvements over the coming years given the passage of time since 
the EDA grant improvements were performed. 

The FAA's consideration of this request is greatly appreciated. Please advise if you require any 
additional information from us to complete this Request for Release of Airport Property. 

reiy, 

Paul Brean 
Executive Director 

CC: 	PDA Board of Directors 
Anthony I. Blenkinsop, Deputy General Counsel 
Maria J. Stowell, Engineering Manager 
Irving Canner, Finance Director 

P.TAATAA Letters\ FAA Relase Request - 30 NH Ave (Spyglass),docx 



 

U.S. Department 
of Transportation 

Federal Aviation 
Administration 

New England Region 	 1200 District Avenue 
Burlington, MA 01803 

December 11, 2020 

Paul Brean 
Executive Director 
Pease Development Authority 
55 International Drive 
Portsmouth, NH 03801 

Dear Mr. Brean: 

This Letter of Intent to Release Airport Property, more specifically, to dispose of a former 
Air Force building located at 30 New Hampshire Avenue at Pease International Tradeport. 
This letter is being issued in response to your letter, dated November 20, 2020, and 
supporting documentation requesting the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) to release 
the Pease Development Authority (hereinafter referred to as "Sponsor") from its obligation 
to retain the building. This property is located within the business district of Pease 
International Tradeport. The land upon which this building lies will be retained by the Pease 
Development Authority and leased to Spyglass International. 

The FAA is authorized to grant a release of disposal of airport property if it is determined 
that (1) the property to which the release relates no longer serves an aeronautical purpose, 
and (2) the release will not prevent accomplishing the purpose for which the property was 
made subject to the terms, conditions, reservations, or restrictions, and is necessary to 
protect or advance the interests of the United States in civil aviation. 

The FAA finds that the disposal of the building at 30 New Hampshire Avenue is no longer 
required for current or future aeronautical purposes. The release therefore would not 
prevent the accomplishment of the public airport purpose for which the airport facilities 
were obligated and remains airport property. It will provide the airport with a new non-
aeronautical revenue source to support the airport. Accordingly, this Letter of Intent 
represents a decision by the FAA to dispose of the building to Spyglass Development, LLC. 



2 

The Airport provided a release request document dated November 20, 2020. FAA is in the 
process of reviewing the release documentation. The review process will take 
approximately three to four months to properly complete the release and disposal of this 
building. Upon satisfactory review of documentation, the FAA will move forward with 
approving the release, which will require a waiver from the National Emergency Use 
Provision from the Department of Defense and a Federal Register Notice. Once those 
elements are completed, the FAA will issue an approval letter for the release of the building. 

If you need further assistance or have any questions, please contact me at (781) 238-7618. 

Sincerely, 

Jorge E 
Panteli 

Digitally signed by 
Jorge E Panteli 

Date: 2020.12.11 
10:23:58 -05'00' 

Jorge E. Panteli 
Compliance and Land Use Specialist 

CC: 	Gail Lattrell — FAA 
Luke Garrison — FAA 
John Kirkendall — FAA 



PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 	 55 International Drive, Portsmouth NH 03801 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

February 1, 2021 

Mr. Michael Kane 
Mr. John Kane 
The Kane Company 
210 Commerce Way, Suite 300 
Portsmouth, NH 03801 

Re: 30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 

Dear Michael and John: 

On behalf of the Pease Development Authority ("PDA"), we are pleased to submit the following 
outline of terms and conditions of a proposed agreement with Spyglass Development LLC 
("Spyglass") for (1) sale to Spyglass of the 36,000 square foot of building area at 30 New 
Hampshire Avenue transferred in fee to the PDA by the Air Force on September 16, 2005 (the 
"Original Building") and (2) a lease to Spyglass of an 8.49 lot on which the Original Building and 
a 16,500 square foot addition constructed by Spyglass at its sole cost and expense (the "Addition") 
are located. 

If approved by the PDA Board of Directors, and upon receipt of any other required governmental 
approval, the terms set forth in this letter shall constitute a Letter of Intent ("LOP') between the 
parties reflecting our mutual commitment in principle to conclude with due diligence and in good 
faith a new lease agreement (the "Agreement" and/or the "2021 Lease") to replace the existing 
lease (the "Lease") dated September 6, 1996 and previously amended on February 18, 2002 
(Amendment No. 1), February 21, 2006 (Amendment No. 2), December 22, 2008 (Amendment 
No. 3), November 1, 2011 (Amendment No. 4), August 1, 2012 (Amendment No. 5) and August 
1, 2017 (Amendment No. 6), by and between PDA and Spyglass and a Purchase Agreement for 
the Original Building based upon these terms and such other mutually acceptable terms and 
conditions as are necessary and appropriate. 

The central business terms of our understanding and upon which I am prepared to make a 
presentation to the PDA Board of Directors are as follows: 

Lessor/Seller: 	Pease Development Authority 

Lessee/Buyer: 	Spyglass Development LLC 

0000 TAKING YOU THERE 

Phone: 603.433.6088 	Fax: 603.427.0433 	www.peasedev.org  



The Kane Company 
Spyglass Development LLC 
February I, 2021 
Page 2 

Leased Premises: 

Sale Premises: 

For and in consideration of the rents and covenants to be paid and performed 
by Spyglass and subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein, PDA 
agrees to lease to Spyglass and Spyglass agrees to lease from PDA the land 
area described below, which land area is more particularly shown on the 
plan attached as Exhibit A: 

The land area consisting of 8.49 acres as shown on tile plan entitled 
"Subdivision Pian, 30 New Hampshire Avenue, Pease International 
Tradeport, Portsmouth, New Hampshire" recorded at the Rockingham 
County Registry of Deeds on February 28, 2002 as Plan No. D-29647. 

The 36,000 square feet of building area transferred in fee to the PDA by the 
Air Force on September 16, 2005 (the "Original Building"). [Note: to the 
extent PDA has an interest pursuant to the Lease in the Addition, 
appropriate documents may be executed to clarify that title to the Addition 
will remain with Spyglass, subject to any obligations at the termination of 
the 2021 Lease.] 

Lease Term and 
Term 
Commencement: 	The 2021 Lease shall be effective upon execution and shall continue for a 

base term of 25 years with additional option terms of 49 years for a total 
term not to exceed 74 years. Ground Area Rent for the 30 New Hampshire 
land area shall commence on the later to occur of the following, (i) 60 days 
following receipt by PDA from the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) 
of a Release Deed, or other written confirmation permitting sale, for the 
Original Building (ii) execution of the 2021 Lease, except as otherwise 
agreed by the Parties. 

The 2021 Lease shall be expressly subject to and conditioned upon 
Spyglass's receipt of fee transfer of the Original Building. 

Annual Ground 
Rent: 	 The annual Ground Area Rent for the entirety of the Leased Premises, will 

be $18,430 per acre per year' with the first adjustment commencing on 
the first day following the expiration of the first year in accordance with 

1 $18,430 is PDA's estimate for the base year ending 12/31/21 of the fair market value annual per acre rent for 
business commercial zone property at the Tradeport. Consistent with its current practice, the PDA has presented this 
valuation to the FAA as part of PDA's justification for extending long term leases to the maximum 74 year term. The 
actual annual rent rate per acre will be calculated based on the current average in use as of the Term Commencement 
Date. 



The Kane Company 
Spyglass Development LLC 
February 1, 2021 
Page 3 

Years 1-25: 

Year 26: 

Years 27-50: 

Year 51: 

Years 52-74: 

the provisions of the 2021 Lease. Thereafter Ground Area Rent for the 
entirety of the Premises will be adjusted every year as provided below: 

Annual adjustment at lesser of CPI or 3% with a 12% cap over 5 years. 

Appraisal to FMV increase only. 2  

Annual adjustment at lesser of CPI or 3% with 12% cap over 5 years. 

Appraisal to FMV increase only. 

Annual adjustment at lesser of CPI or 3% with 12% cap over 5 years. 

All rent contemplated shall be payable in each case in equal monthly 
installments of one-twelfth thereof in advance on the first day of each month 
without offset, unless otherwise agreed by the Parties. 

The annual Ground Rent for the Leased Premises will be based on the total 
acreage of the Premises, including setbacks and open space, but excluding 
any contiguous wetland area of more than 0.5 acres. The actual chargeable 
acreage of the Premises will be determined on the basis of field 
survey/wetlands delineation of wetlands conducted by a qualified soil 
scientist or as otherwise agreed by the Parties. 

Fair Rental Value Rate" means the Fair Rental Value Rate determined by 
licensed real estate appraisers with MAI designation having at least ten 
(10) years' experience in the appraisal of commercial real estate at Pease 
International Tradeport; one such appraiser to be designated by each of 
Lessor and Lessee. In determining fair rental value rate, each appraiser 
shall comply with all applicable Federal Aviation Administration 
Guidelines which currently require the utilization of Federal Aviation 
Administration Compliance Guidance Letter dated August 27, 2018 and 
the orders, statutes, regulations and other matters therein or incorporated 
thereby by reference and shall be based on appropriate comparables, 
including the most recent land rental rates, for all properties located within 
the Business and Commercial zone of the Pease International Tradeport. 
If either party shall fail to designate its appraiser by giving notice of the 
name of such appraiser to the other party within fifteen (15) days after 
receiving notice of the name of the other party's appraiser, then the 
appraiser chosen by the other party shall determine the Fair Rental Value 
Rate and his/her determination shall be final and conclusive. If the 

2 At FMV appraisal in years 26 and 51, if the then current per acre rate exceeds FMV by more than 12%, annual rent 
adjustments will be suspended for a period of 5 years. 



The Kane Company 
Spyglass Development LLC 
February 1, 2021 
Page 4 

appraisers designated by Lessor and Lessee shall disagree as to the Fair 
Rental Value Rate, but if the difference between their estimates of Fair 
Rental Value Rate shall be five percent (5%) or less of the greater of the 
estimates, then the average of their estimates shall be the Fair Rental 
Value Rate for purposes hereof. If the appraisers designated by Lessor and 
Lessee shall disagree as to the amount of Fair Rental Value Rate, and if 
their estimates of Fair Rental Value Rate shall vary by more than five 
percent (5%) of the greater of said estimates, then they shall jointly select 
a third appraiser meeting the qualifications set forth above, and his/her 
estimate of Fair Rental Value Rate shall be the Fair Rental Value Rate for 
purposes hereof if it is not greater than the greater of the other two 
estimates and not less than the lesser of the other two estimates. If said 
third appraiser's estimate is greater than the greater of the other two 
estimates, then the greater of the original two estimates shall be the Fair 
Rental Value Rate for purposes hereof; and if the estimate of the third 
appraiser shall be less than the lesser of the other two estimates, then the 
lesser of the original two estimates shall be the Fair Rental Value Rate for 
purposes hereof Lessor and Lessee shall pay for the services of its 
appraiser, and if a third appraiser shall be chosen, then Lessor and Lessee 
shall each pay for one-half of the services of the third appraiser. 

Purchase Price: 

Sale Conditions: 

One Million Seven Hundred and Fifty Thousand Dollars 
($1,750,000.00) subject expressly to the terms of a mutually 
satisfactory Purchase and Sale Agreement (the "PSA") and execution 
of the 2021 Lease. 

Prior to transfer of fee interest in the Original Building to Spyglass 
and in addition to the requirement for execution of the 2021 Lease, 
the following shall apply: 

1. The Closing Date shall be the date of execution of the 2021 Lease; 
2. PDA shall convey title by quitclaim deed. 
3. A Release Deed or other written confirmation from the Federal 

Aviation Administration (FAA) authorizing the PDA to dispose of 
the airport property at 30 New Hampshire Avenue. 

Condition 
of the 
Premises: 	Except as otherwise provided, Spyglass shall take the Premises in an "as is" 

condition without warranty or representation of any kind; provided, 
however, Spyglass shall have no liability or responsibility to PDA for 



The Kane Company 
Spyglass Development LLC 
February 1, 2021 
Page 5 

environmental impacts and damage caused by the use of the United States 
of America - Department of the Air Force ("Air Force" or "Government") 
and/or PDA of Hazardous Substances on any portion of Pease, including 
the Premises. Spyglass and PDA acknowledge the obligation of the Air 
Force to indemnify FDA and Spyglass to the extent required by the 
provisions of Public Law No. 101-511 Section 8056. Additional 
environmental conditions with respect to the Premises shall be substantially 
as shown in Exhibit B; provided, however, that enhanced environmental 
protection provisions, including but not limited to compliance with any 
established TMDL or stormwater retrofits may be applicable to the 
Premises. 3  

Taxes/ 
Fees/Services: 	Municipal Services Fee. In addition to the Ground Area Rent required to 

be paid under the terms of a Lease, Spyglass shall also pay to PDA, as 
additional rent, a municipal services fee in accordance with the Municipal 
Services Agreement by and between the City of Portsmouth, the Town of 
Newington and the Pease Development Authority effective July 1, 1998. 
This fee is for fire, police and roadway services provided by or on behalf of 
PDA at the Airport and will be subject to increases each year only to the 
extent the cost to PDA of providing such services increases. The municipal 
services fee shall be paid quarterly in advance at the times and in the fashion 
provided for the payment of Ground Area Rent. To the extent the Premises 
are subject to municipal taxation, and provided such municipal taxes 
include the costs of the provision of fire, police and roadway services, 
Spyglass may offset against any fee paid to PDA the portion of such 
municipal taxes as are attributable to fire, police and roadway services, and 
PDA shall have no further obligation to provide such services. For so long 
as municipal taxes are imposed against the Premises, or on Spyglass for 
all three of fire, police and roadway services and PDA either has no 
obligation to provide such services (or ceases to provide such services), 
the municipal services fee required to be paid under the Lease shall 
terminate. 

In the event the Premises, the Original Building, the Addition, or any 
portion of these, are removed from the Airport District, Spyglass shall make 
payments in lieu of taxes to the appropriate municipality in accordance with 
the provisions of RSA 12-G:14, II (or any successor statute) regarding 
taxation by a municipality of property that is within the boundaries of Pease, 

3 In connection with the litigation pending in the United States District Court for the District of New Hampshire (CLF 
v. PDA, et al., Case No. 1:16-cv-00493-SM), PDA has entered into a settlement which may result in enhanced 
environmental protection provisions. It is anticipated that the Tradeport will be subject to an MS4 permit and 
Spyglass will be obligated to comply with all permit provisions. 



The Kane Company 
Spyglass Development LLC 
February 1, 2021 
Page 6 

but outside the Airport District and the remaining property shall be subject 
to the Municipal Services Agreement. 

Any tax, fee or payment in lieu of tax imposed for the provision of fire, 
police, public works or other municipal services shall be considered an 
Imposition under Article 5 of the Lease. 

Net Lease: 	The Agreement shall be triple net to PDA and all costs associated with the 
use, occupancy, maintenance and insurance shall be borne by Spyglass. 

Surrender of 
Premises: 	On the expiration or termination of the 2021 Lease, Spyglass shall surrender 

to PDA the Premises, including all buildings and improvements located 
thereon, broom clean and in good order, condition and repair, reasonable 
wear and tear and damage by casualty or eminent domain excepted, together 
with all alterations, decorations, additions and improvements that may have 
been made in, to or on the Premises; provided, however that Spyglass shall 
be allowed to remove its personal property or any improvements held in fee 
by Spyglass to the extent such personal property or improvements can be 
removed without damage Premises or Spyglass repairs at its sole cost and 
expense any such damage to the reasonable satisfaction of PDA. The 
Premises, including the buildings and improvements thereon, shall be 
delivered free and clear of all subtenancies, liens and encumbrances, other 
than those, if any, existing upon execution of the 2021 Lease. If requested 
to do so, Spyglass shall execute, acknowledge and deliver to PDA such 
instruments of further assurance as in the opinion of PDA are reasonably 
necessary to confirm or perfect PDA's right, title and interest in and to the 
Premises including said building and improvements. On or before the end 
of the term, Spyglass shall remove all of its personal and other property 
allowed to be removed hereunder, and all such property not removed shall 
be deemed abandoned by Spyglass and may be utilized or disposed of by 
PDA without any liability to Spyglass. Spyglass's obligation under this 
provision shall survive the expiration or termination of the 2021 Lease. 



The Kane Company 
Spyglass Development LLC 
February 1, 2021 
Page 7 

Use: 

Alterations: 

Engineering, machining, welding, brazing metal forming, assembly, testing, 
office administration, computer support, management and sales related to 
consulting services, research and development activities, manufacturing, 
sales and service and for no other uses without PDA's prior written consent. 

Spyglass shall not place or construct any improvements, changes, 
structures, alterations or additions (collectively "Alterations") in, to or upon 
the Premises without PDA's written consent. 

Sublease and 
Assignment: 	Lessee shall not have the right to delegate any of its responsibilities or 

obligations under the Lease provided, however, that this provision shall 
not be construed to prevent Lessee from fulfilling any of its 
responsibilities or obligations through a contractor, sublease, agent or 
assign. Lessee may not enter into any sublease of the Leased Premises 
without Lessor's prior written approval. A building space lease which 
includes an appurtenant right to use land area for parking or other 
purposes shall not be deemed to be a sublease of land area for purposes of 
this Section 

Environmental 
Protection: 

Brokerage: 

In accordance with Exhibit B  which supersedes and replaces Article 25 of 
the Lease. 

Each party warrants to the other that it has had no dealing with any real 
estate broker or agent in connection with the negotiation of this Letter of 
Intent or the 2021 Lease. 

FAA Grant 
Assurances: 	The 2021 Lease, as amended, shall be subordinate to the provisions and 

requirements of any existing or future agreement between the Lessor and 
the United States, relative to the development, operation or maintenance of 
the airport including, but not limited to, Federal Airport Improvement 
Project Grant Assurances as the same are deemed applicable to Portsmouth 
International Airport at Pease and the Lease as amended. 

This letter does not constitute a binding agreement of the Parties. This letter does not alter, amend 
or waive any rights and obligations of the Parties under the Lease, as amended. This letter does 
not constitute a reservation of the Premises, the Original Building or the Addition; an option to 
lease or purchase the Premises, the Original Building or the Addition; or an offer to lease or 
purchase the Premises the Original Building or the Addition, and no new legal obligation shall 
arise with respect to all of any portion of these until the 2021 Lease is executed by the Parties. 



The Kane Company 
Spyglass Development LLC 
February 1, 2021 
Page 8 

I believe this proposal addresses the terms as discussed to date. It is my hope that you will be in 

a position to advise us of your commitment to PDA by executing this original and the enclosed 
copy in the space provided and returning the original to my attention. If you have any questions, 
please give me a call. 

45 
S' cerely, 

Paul E. Brean 
Pxpciiti ve  Director 



The Kane Company 
Spyglass Development LLC 
February 1, 2021 
Page 9 

I have read the foregoing and it correctly states the terms upon which we will proceed to negotiate 
a mutually acceptable Lease Amendment for the Premises with PDA, subject to the approval of 
the PDA Board of Directors and any other governmental approvals that may be required. 

   

Spy 	pment LLC 

 

  

Date 	( 

 

   

By its duly authorized :  /14fti6eirs  

 

      

cc: 	Anthony I. Blenkinsop, Deputy Director and General Counsel 
Irving Canner, Director of Finance 

PAKANERD \ Spyglass Dev LO1 (2020)\LOI New Lease and Purchase LMH001.docx 



t 	• 

K. 600,1011 

d.O.od snow. 
.14 ISO NA WI. 

MOP 

adV1117 Au 
0.V0110,0 
auvaast Isa ," • 

it 

1/ 

OIV•7 1•101 
se-Va• atit 

111 • •• 
FACOOSED LOT 

.114,110 
..aua 

• 

	

I 	, 

Off 

	

MalarnalrJ1L WV( 	 1N-.."1  on* Irani= Arm. (mow re) 
100  • 	 10• 9) 

--- 

	

II 1 	6 	 _ 
vg., 

edi 1

01 Ng IN/ 

‘1?.. • 	- 

I 	
qus 

I V•rIE=VOL 
11.=.21a,.. 

von 

 MY 
•te< iftnne 

101 x. 
•l19 004...  olt 

ft.., 
4.1.43. g0,00 

.13MA. 6. 
-10 a.. 

triT “.1,11,• ■ 11 
01.4a.10.13001 

0,0,4i 
v. la 

°mg.-  

4=. 	 6.'41 wL..ML gp.e. 

:7441.11";:ir 
EIriVerler4:=Varr .  

.141.91.P.M 	L. n 	1INPIrKll wwranxo. 	ar 
10V 104,‘ WC% VOL lot VD ,410 

711.15E • E.114.141..11•• won. 	.111 
1....ar kw ,v.1 ....10111601.1. 

TO..011, 

 =5:1:rj.1474:4finr 

Im 	

"414,7007.7•1:: 

 reel 
PATO=:40"".10"arrn:'  " fa Ina 

1=:;•'.1:1= "n'  

1.4 	SOW •14.• 1.•0 
21.1,•:„........arre24:Zror•711: 

101( .210■• ■••I• •• 	TM= •Pr.  •••• 

00/0(0 ••■ 1•7•110.•71.• 
• .• ■••1 	111.1•1 

CZAILIZMI 
• ■• 

••••■•"%::::";■■•r0K7"rt n. 111 

.0  

1.,•■ ••••• Y. UN MN 

1.0C1;5 PLM, 
lo•-414111. 

•••••••• 

6.:4:::•";727A 

C0  POO LVOV* .00 1■03.1.44 
ttiVg :mrs=ortr_4"4"" ‘"  via ax•11.0 1.4.11 giros mot 01"10 

FirtiAMPSIITiVIAFF.  

•••••••4,• ■•11•,4,0 •91 

L11 	. 1:1.121424IFEtITI.;7 1474.•.7=119/11.••1•L. tag. 

11•11:=171:::11 =AV 

314 

2"...00"9altEr001 70004:1.".  

;r1=11=04" ‘7,71:TM 

  

110EM: 

   

ot ••••I 
24*/$1.• 
am 

r•LL 

•■■• 

      

elIVV•ej .  

• IN Kimball 
VA Chem 

1111 11/1M PUNS!. 114. 
110 COYYpICC 114 NM 100 

ta$11101/71. OIL 01191 

•••••0. a al ►await OM41 
run OfflIff1004. rualtar 

IMO= NV 
MOM Or 1003/0.0 

SU1301KSICN PLA11 

"" u VOn 

Arr 
sc 

k._  

	

1•11•1•al. 	 

	

° =""virStro 	AV 	P...=7,7Z". ,  
40,0  

The Kane Company 
Spyglass Development LLC 
February 1, 2021 
Page 10 

EXHIBIT A 

Plans Depicting the Leased Premises 



The Kane Company 
Spyglass Development LLC 
February 1, 2021 
Page 11 

EXHIBIT B 

ARTICLE 25 ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 

ARTICLE 25. 

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 

25.1. Lessee and any sublessee or assignee of Lessee shall comply with all Legal Requirements 
that are or may become applicable to Lessee's or sublessee's or assignee's activities at the 
Leased Premises, including but not limited to, the Land Use Controls, the applicable 
environmental laws and regulations identified in Exhibit E  ("Environmental Laws"), as 
amended from time to time. 

25.2. Lessee and any sublessee or assignee of Lessee shall be solely responsible at their sole 
cost and expense for obtaining all environmental permits and authorizations, filing all notices 
with the appropriate regulatory authorities and taking all actions required under Legal 
Requirements for their operations under this Lease or any sublease or assignment, independent of 
any existing Airport permits, authorizations or notices. 

25.3. Lessee shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Lessor against and from all claims, 
judgments, damages, penalties, fines, costs and expenses, liabilities and losses (including, 
without limitation, diminution in value of the Premises, damages for the loss or restriction on the 
use of the Premises, and sums paid in settlement of claims, attorneys' fees, consultants' fees, and 
experts' fees), resulting or arising from discharges, emissions, spills, releases, storage, or disposal 
of any Hazardous or Regulated Substances as defined in Section 25.5, or any other action or 
omission by the Lessee, or any sublessee or assignee of the Lessee, giving rise to Lessor 
criminal, civil or administrative liability or responsibility under Legal Requirements. 

This indemnification of Lessor by Lessee includes, without limitation, any and all claims, 
judgment, damages, penalties, fines, costs and expenses, liabilities and losses incurred by Lessor 
or Air Force in connection with any investigation of site conditions, or any remedial or removal 
action or other site restoration work required by any federal, state or local governmental unit or 
other person for or pertaining to any discharges, emissions, spills, releases, storage or disposal of 
Hazardous or Regulated Substances arising or resulting from any act or omission of the Lessee 
or any sublessee or assignee of the Lessee at the Leased Premises after the Occupancy Date. 
"Occupancy Date" as used herein shall mean the earlier of the first day of Lessee's occupancy or 
use of the Leased Premises or the date of execution of this Lease. "Occupancy" or "Use" shall 
mean any activity or presence including preparation and construction in or upon the Leased 
Premises or any portion thereof. 



The Kane Company 
Spyglass Development LLC 
February 1, 2021 
Page 12 

The provisions of this Section shall survive the expiration or termination of the Lease, 
and the Lessee's obligations hereunder shall apply whenever the Lessor incurs costs, liabilities or 
responsibilities for the Lessee's or its sublessees or licensees actions or omissions of the types 
described in this Article 25. 

25.4. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Lease, Lessee and its sublessees and 
assignees do not assume any liability or responsibility for environmental impacts and damage 
caused by the use by the Air Force of toxic nr 	wastes, substancc or materials or PFAS 
(as defined below) on any portion of the Airport, including the Leased Premises. The Lessee 
and its sublessees and assignees have no obligation to undertake the defense, remediation and 
cleanup, including the liability and responsibility for the costs of damages, penalties, legal and 
investigative services solely arising out of any claim or action in existence now, or which may be 
brought in the future by any person, including governmental units against the Air Force, because 
of any use of, or release from, any portion of the Airport (including the Leased Premises) of any 
toxic or hazardous wastes, substances or materials or PFAS prior to the Occupancy Date. 
Furthermore, the parties recognize and acknowledge the obligation of the Air Force to indemnify 
the Lessor and Lessee to the extent required by the provisions of Public Law No. 101-511, 
Section 8056 and/or Public Law No. 102-484, as amended. 

In addition, Lessor shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Lessee against and from 
any and all claims, judgments, damages, penalties, fines, costs and expenses, liabilities and 
losses (including, without limitation, diminution in value of the Premises, damages for the loss or 
restriction on the use of the Premises, and sums paid in settlement of claims, attorneys' fees, 
consultants' fees and experts' fees), resulting or arising from discharges, emissions, spills, 
releases, storage or disposal of Hazardous or Regulated Substances, or any other action by 
Lessor giving rise to Lessee's criminal, civil or administrative liability or responsibility under 
Legal Requirements. This provision shall survive the expiration or termination of the Lease, and 
the Lessor's obligations hereunder shall apply whenever the Lessee incurs costs or liabilities for 
the Lessor's actions of the types described in this Article 25. 

The provisions of this Section 25.4 do not relieve the Lessee, its sublessees or licensees 
of any obligation or liability with regard to third parties or regulatory authorities by operation of 
law. 

25.5. As used in this Lease, the term "Hazardous or Regulated Substances" means any 
hazardous or toxic substance, material or waste, oil or petroleum product, or per- or 
polyfluoroalkyl substance, including without limitation perfiuorinated compounds and their 
precursors, (collectively, "PFAS"), that is or becomes regulated by any local governmental 
authority, the State of New Hampshire or the United States Government. The term "Hazardous 
or Regulated Substances" includes, without limitation, any material or substance which is (i) 
defined as a "hazardous waste," under New Hampshire RSA ch.147-A, (ii) defined as a 
"hazardous substance" under New Hampshire RSA ch.147-B, (iii) oil, gasoline or other 
petroleum product, (iv) asbestos, (v) listed under or defined as hazardous waste pursuant to Parts 



The Kane Company 
Spyglass Development LLC 
February 1, 2021 
Page 13 

Env-Hw 100 or Env-Hw 400 ("Hazardous Waste Rules") of the New Hampshire Code of 
Administrative Rules, (vi) designated as a "hazardous substance" pursuant to Section 311 of the 
Federal Water Pollution Control Act (33 U.S.C. §1317), (vii) defined as a "hazardous waste" 
pursuant to Section 1004 of the Federal Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, 42 U.S.C. 
§§6901 et seq. (42 U.S.C. §6903), or (viii) defined as a "hazardous substance" pursuant to 
Section 101 of the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act, 42 
U.S.C. §§9601 et seq. (42 U.S.C. §9601), (ix) defined as "perfluorinated compounds" or 
"precursor" to a perfluorinated compound pursuant to New Hampshire RSA ch. 125-C, and (x) 
so defined in the regulations adopted and publications promulgated pursuant to any of such laws, 
or as such laws or regulations may be further amended, modified or supplemented. 

As used in this Lease, the terms "release" and "storage" shall have the meanings provided in 
RSA 147-B:2, as amended, and the term "disposal" shall have the meaning provided in RSA 
147-A:2, as amended. 

25.6. Lessor's rights under this Lease specifically include the right for Lessor to inspect, at all 
reasonable times and upon reasonable notice, the Leased Premises and any buildings or other 
facilities thereon for compliance with Legal Requirements, including but not limited to 
Environmental Laws and occupational health and safety laws, whether or not the Lessor is 
responsible for enforcing them. Such inspections are without prejudice to the right of duly 
constituted enforcement officials to make such inspections. Lessor agrees to comply with 
Lessee's reasonable requirements and procedures with regard to access to the Leased Premises, 
and if applicable the rights of the tenants under the building space leases. 

25.7. Lessee is advised and acknowledges that portions of the Airport, more fully described in 
Exhibit C of the Deed as "ACM Zones" may contain current and former improvements, above 
and below ground, that contain asbestos. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Lease, 
Lessor is not responsible for any removal or containment of asbestos. If Lessee and any 
sublessee or assignee intend to make any improvements, alterations or repairs, including 
demolition, that require the removal of asbestos, an appropriate asbestos removal and disposal 
plan, complying with all Legal Requirements, must be incorporated in the plans and 
specifications and submitted for prior approval. The asbestos disposal plan shall identify the 
proposed disposal site for the asbestos. In addition, non-friable asbestos which becomes friable 
through or as a consequence of the activities of Lessee will be abated by Lessee at its sole cost 
and expense. 

25.8. Lessor and Lessee acknowledge that the Airport has been identified as a National Priority 
List (NPL) Site under the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability 
Act (CERCLA), as amended (42 U.S.C. §6901 et seq.). Lessee acknowledges that Lessor has 
provided it with a copy of the Pease Federal Facility Agreement ("FFA") entered into by EPA, 
and the Air Force on April 24, 1991, and Modification No. 1 thereto, effective March 18, 1993, 
and Lessee agrees that it will comply with and be bound by the terms of the FFA to the extent the 
same may be applicable to the Leased Premises and that should any conflict arise between the 



The Kane Company 
Spyglass Development LLC 
February 1, 2021 
Page 14 

terms of the FFA and the provisions of this Lease, the terms of the FFA will take precedence. 
The Lessee further agrees that the Lessor assumes no liability to the Lessee or any sublessee(s) 
or assignee(s) of Lessee should implementation of the FFA interfere with their use of the Leased 
Premises. The Lessee and its sublessee(s) and assignee(s) shall have no claim on account of any 
such interference against the Lessor, Air Force, EPA, State, NHDES, or any officer, agent, 
employee or contractor thereof, other than for abatement of rent. 

Pnrqu9nt to itg nbligatinn‘ ,  ! , rder FPAPral. 1, 	the Air Fr,re ,- has prov:- 1 -'d and 1. 	 

acknowledges receipt of the "Notices and Covenants Related to Section 120(h)(3) of CERCLA, 
as amended." The notice and a description of remedial action by the Air Force are set forth in 
Paragraph VI of the Deed. 

25.9. The Air Force, EPA, and NHDES and their officers, agents, employees, contractors, and 
subcontractors have the right, at no cost, upon reasonable notice to the Lessee and any sublessee 
or assignee, to enter upon the Leased Premises for the purposes enumerated in this subparagraph 
and for such other purposes consistent with the FFA: 

(I) 	to conduct investigations and surveys, including, where necessary, drilling, soil 
and water sampling, testpitting, testing soil borings and other activities related to the Pease 
Installation Restoration Program ("IRP"), the FFA or any order issued to Air Force by EPA or 
NHDES or by a court of competent jurisdiction addressing Hazardous or Regulated Substances 
(collectively, "Order") (the term IRP as used herein refers to the broad Department of Defense-
wide program to identify, investigate and clean ups contaminated areas on military installations 
as described in the Department of Defense Instruction Number 4715.7); 

(2) to inspect field activities of the Air Force and its contractors and subcontractors in 
implementing the IRP, the FFA or any Order; 

(3) to conduct any test or survey required by the EPA or NHDES relating to the 
implementation of the FFA or environmental conditions at the Leased Premises or to verify any 
data submitted to the EPA or NHDES by the Air Force relating to such conditions; 

(4) to conduct, operate, maintain or undertake any other response or remedial action as 
required or necessary under the IRP, the FFA or any Order, including, but not limited to monitoring 
wells, pumping wells and treatment facilities. 

25.10. Lessee and its sublessees and assignees agree to the extent applicable to the Premises, to 
comply with the provisions of any health or safety plan in effect under the IRP, the FFA or any 
Order during the course of any of the above described response or remedial actions. Any 
inspection, survey, investigation, or other response or remedial action will, to the extent 
practicable, be coordinated with representatives designated by the Lessee and any sublessee or 
assignee. Lessee and any sublessee or assignee shall have no claim on account of such entries 
against the United States or the State or any officer, agent, employee, contractor, or 



The Kane Company 
Spyglass Development LLC 
February 1, 2021 
Page 15 

subcontractor thereof. 

Lessee and its sublessees and assignees agree to the extent applicable to comply with the 
provisions of the "Environmental Use Restrictive Covenants" set forth in Paragraph VI.B of the 
Deed. It is the intent of the Air Force and the Lessor that the Environmental Use Restrictions 
bind Lessee and its sublessees and assignees, and that the Air Force reserves to itself the 
enforcement of this restrictive covenant against Lessee hereunder. 

25.11. Lessee further agrees that in the event of any authorized sublease or assignment of the 
land area of the Leased Premises, it shall provide to the Air Force, EPA and NHDES by certified 
mail a copy of the agreement of sublease or assignment of the Leased Premises within fourteen 
(14) days after the effective date of such transaction. Lessee may delete the financial terms and 
any other proprietary information from any sublease or assignment submitted to the above 
mentioned entities. 

25.12. The Airport air emissions offsets and Air Force accumulation points for hazardous and 
other wastes will not be made available to Lessee. Lessee shall be responsible for obtaining 
from some other sources) any air pollution credits that may be required to offset emissions 
resulting from its activities under the Lease and establishing any waste accumulation locations as 
may be required under Environmental Laws or other Legal Requirements. 

25.13. Any permit required under Hazardous or Regulated Substance Laws for the management 
of Hazardous or Regulated Substances stored or generated by Lessee or any sublessee or 
assignee of Lessee shall be obtained by Lessee or its sublessees or assignee and shall be limited 
to generation and transportation. Any violation of this requirement shall be deemed a material 
breach of this Lease. Lessee shall provide at its own expense such storage facilities for 
Hazardous or Regulated Substances, complying with all Legal Requirements, as it needs for 
management of its Hazardous or Regulated Substances. 

25.14. Lessee, and any sublessee or assignee of Lessee whose operations utilize Hazardous or 
Regulated Substances, shall have a completed and approved plan for responding to Hazardous or 
Regulated Substances spills or other unauthorized discharges and emissions prior to 
commencement of operations on the Leased Premises. Such plan shall comply with changes in 
site conditions or Legal Requirements and shall be updated from time to time, as may be 
required to comply with changes in site conditions or Legal Requirements and shall be approved, 
where required, by agencies having regulatory jurisdiction over such plan. Such plan shall be 
independent of, but not inconsistent with, any plan or other standard of Lessor applicable to the 
Airport and except for initial fire response and/or spill or release containment, shall not rely on 
use of the Airport or Lessor personnel or equipment. Should the Lessor provide any personnel 
or equipment, whether for initial fire response and/or spill or release containment or otherwise, 
on request of the Lessee, or because the Lessee was not, in the opinion of Lessor, conducting 
timely cleanup or corrective actions, the Lessee agrees to reimburse the Lessor for its costs. 



The Kane Company 
Spyglass Development LLC 
February I, 2021 
Page 16 

25.15. Lessee, and any sublessee or assignee of Lessee, must maintain and make available to 
Lessor, the Air Force, EPA and NHDES all records, inspection logs, and manifests that track the 
generation, handling, storage, treatment and disposal of hazardous waste, as well as all other 
records relating to Hazardous or Regulated Substances required to be maintained pursuant to 
Legal Requirements. The Lessor and the Air Force reserve the right to inspect the Leased 
Premises and Lessee's, its sublessee's or assignee's records for compliance with Legal 
Requirements relating to the generation, handling, storage, treatment and disposal of hazardous 
wa stes, as well as the clinhgrg ,, emissiFT: or relP ,,s. of Haz-rdous or Regulated Substais. 
Violations of Legal Requirements may be reported by Lessor and the Air Force to appropriate 
regulatory agencies, as required by Legal Requirements. The Lessee, its sublessees or assignees 
shall be liable for the payment of any fines and penalties nr costs that may accrue to the 
Government or Lessor under Legal Requirements as a result of the actions or omissions of 
Lessee, its sublessees or assignees, respectively. 

25.16. Lessee acknowledges that the Premises may contain wetlands protected under Federal 
and State laws and regulations, which, among other things, restrict activities that involve the 
discharge of fill materials into wetlands, including, without limitation, the placement of fill 
materials; the building of any structure; site-development fills for recreational, industrial, 
commercial, residential, and other uses; causeways or road fills; and dams and dikes. The Lessee 
covenants and agrees that in its use of the Premises, it will comply with all Legal Requirements 
minimizing the destruction, loss, or degradation of wetlands. The Lessee, its successors and 
assigns, further covenant and agree that any development of any portion of the Premises 
containing wetlands will be subject to Section 404 of the Clean Water Act of 1977 as amended, 
the State of New Hampshire Fill and Dredge in Wetlands Act as amended, the Pease 
Development Authority Wetlands Management Plan (adopted June 25, 1998), and the Land Use 
Controls, as amended. For purposes of this provision, development includes new structures, 
facilities, draining, dredging, channelizing, filling, diking, impounding, and related activities.# 

Lessee, its sublessees and assignees agree to comply with the provisions of any Wetlands 
Management Plan and the Land Use Controls in effect at Pease. Lessee, its sublessees and 
assignees will minimize the destruction, loss or degradation of wetlands on the Leased Premises. 
Lessee, its sublessees and assignees will obtain prior written approval from Lessor before 
conducting any new construction in wetland areas. 

25.17. Prior to the development of any portion of the Leased Premises on which a wetland has 
been identified in the Final Supplemental Environmental Impact Statement dated August 1995 
("SEIS"), the Lessee, its sublessees and assignees, as applicable, shall, if one has not previously 
been completed, perform a wetland delineation. 

25.18. Prior to the storage, mixing, or application of any pesticide, as that term is defined under 
the Federal Insecticide, Fungicide, and Rodenticide Act, the Lessee, its sublessees and assignees 
shall prepare a plan for storage, mixing and application of pesticides ("Pesticide Management 
Plan"). The Pesticide Management Plan shall be sufficient to meet all applicable Legal 



The Kane Company 
Spyglass Development LLC 
February 1, 2021 
Page 17 

Requirements. The Lessee, its sublessees and assignees shall store, mix and apply all pesticides 
within the Leased Premises only in strict compliance with the Pesticide Management Plan. The 
pesticides will only be applied by a licensed applicator in accordance with Legal Requirements. 

25.19, The Lessee, its sublessees and assignees must notify the Lessor and the airport manager 
of its intent to possess, store, or use any licensed or licensable source or byproduct materials, as 
those terms are defined under the Atomic Energy Act and its implementing regulations; of 
Lessee's, its sublessees and assignees intent to possess, use, or store radium; and of Lessee's, its 
Lessees and assignees intent to possess or use any equipment producing ionizing radiation and 
subject to specific licensing requirements or other individual regulations, at least sixty (60) days 
prior to the entry of such materials or equipment upon the Airport. Upon notification, the 
Lessor and the airport manager may impose such requirements, including prohibition of 
possession, use, or storage, as deemed necessary to adequately protect health and human 
environment. Thereafter, the Lessee must notify the Lessor and the airport manager of the 
presence of all licensed or licensable source or other byproduct materials, of the presence of all 
radium, and of the presence of all equipment producing ionizing radiation and subject to specific 
licensing requirements or other individual regulation; provided, however, that the Lessee, its 
sublessees and assignees need not make either of the above notifications to the Lessor and the 
airport manager with respect to source and byproduct material which is exempt from regulation 
under the Atomic Energy Act. The Lessee shall not, under any circumstances, use, own, 
possess or allow the presence of special nuclear material on the Leased Premises. 

25.20. The Lessee, its sublessees and assignees acknowledge that lead-based paint may be 
present in and on facilities within the Leased Premises. Prior to beginning any Alterations, 
other construction or construction related work, (to include paint stripping or sanding), 
excavating, demolition, or restoration, the Lessee, any sublessee or assignee must test any paint 
which would be disturbed unless a conclusive determination has been made that lead-based paint 
is not present. If paint is lead-based, the Lessee, any sublessee or assignee is required to handle 
it in accordance with the Residential Lead-Based Paint Hazard Reduction Act of 1992, 42 U.S.C. 
Section 4852(d) and all Legal Requirements at its own expense. The Lessee is required to 
ensure that any lead-based paint is maintained in good condition. 

The Lessee hereby acknowledges that it has received in Paragraph VII.D. of the Deed the 
required disclosure in accordance with Title 10. 

25.21. The Lessee acknowledges that chlordane was used at selected housing units formerly 
located on or around the Leased Premises. The Lessee, its sublessees or assignees will follow 
Legal Requirements should the Lessee, its sublessee or assignee choose to disturb or excavate 
any of this material. Any cost associated with this action shall be at the Lessee's, its sublessee's 
or assignee's expense. 

25.22. In addition to the environmental compliance obligations set forth in the Lease 
Agreement, Lessee and its sublessees and assigns agree to comply with the provisions of any 



The Kane Company 
Spyglass Development LLC 
February 1, 2021 
Page 18 

current or subsequently implemented Legal Requirement relating to the management, treatment 
or control of stormwater, including but not limited to Total Maximum Daily Limits (TMDLs) 
established under either Environmental Laws or other Legal Requirements and applicable to any 
watercourse or watershed at the Tradeport and the Leased Premises. 

END OF ARTICLE 25  



The Kane Company 
Spyglass Development LLC 
February 1, 2021 
Page 19 

EXHIBIT E  
LIST OF ENVIRONMENTAL LAWS AND REGULATIONS 

Air Quality: 

Hazardous Materials: 

Hazardous Waste: 

Water Quality: 

(a) Clean Air Act & Amendments, 42 U.S.C. 
7401 et seq. 

(b) 40 CFR Subchapter C 
(c) RSA ch. 125-C, Air Pollution Control, and 

rules adopted thereunder 
(d) RSA ch. 125-I, Air Toxic Control Act, and 

rules adopted thereunder 

(a) Hazardous Materials Transportation Act, 
49 U.S.C. 1801 et seq., and Department of 
Transportation Regulations thereunder 

(b) Emergency Planning and Community Right-
To-Know Act, 42 U.S.C. 11001 et seq. 

(c) 49 CFR Subchapter A 
(d) RSA ch. 277-A, Toxic Substances in the 

Workplace, and rules adopted thereunder 

(a) Resource Conservation and Recovery Act 
(RCRA) of 1976 and RCRA Amendments of 
1984, 42 U.S.C. 6901 et seq. 

(b) Comprehensive Environmental Response, 
Compensation, and Liability Act 
(CERCLA) of 1980, as amended, 42 U.S.C. 
9601 et seq. 

(c) 40 CFR Parts 260-271, 300, 302 
(d) RSA ch. 147-A, Hazardous Waste 

Management and rules adopted thereunder 

(a) Federal Water Pollution Control Act 
(Clean Water Act) and Amendments, 33 
U.S.C. 1251 et seq. 

(b) Safe Drinking Water Act, as amended, 42 
U.S.C. 300f et seq. 

(c) 40 CFR Subchapters D and N 
(d) RSA ch. 146-A, Oil Spillage in Public 

Waters, and rules adopted thereunder 
(e) RSA ch. 485, New Hampshire Safe 

Drinking Water Act, and rules adopted 
thereunder 

(f) RSA ch. 485-A, Pollution and Waste 
Disposal, and rules adopted thereunder 



APPRAISAL REPORT 

FLEX OFFICE/INDUSTRIAL BUILDING 
(WAREHOUSE PORTION OF THE ENTIRE BUILDING) 

LOCATION  
30 NEW HAMPSHIRE AVENUE 

PORTSMOUTH NH 03801 

OWNER OF RECORD  
SPYGLASS DEVELOPMENT LLC 

CLIENT  
THE KANE COMPANY 

PREPARED BY  
RMA ASSOCIATES 

25 YORK LANE 
LEE, NH 03861 

RMA GROUP FILE #332020 
VALUE ESTIMATE AS OF 

SEPTEMBER 16, 2020 



Ft II SIM 

MANAGEMENT 	ASSOCIATES 

January 14, 2021 

The Kane Company 
210 Commerce Way, Suite 300 
Portsmouth, NH 03801 

RE: Flex Office Industrial Building 
30 New Hampshire Avenue 
Portsmouth, New Hampshire 
RMA Group File #322020 

Dear Mr. Kane: 

In accordance with your request for appraisal services, we have completed an appraisal 
on the real estate referenced above. This appraisal is presented in an Appraisal Report 
format. This appraisal report summarizes our Assignment Results. It is prepared in 
accordance with the 2020-2021 Edition of the Uniform Standards of Professional 
Appraisal Practice (USPAP). It also conforms to Title XI of FIRREA. 

The purpose of this appraisal is to conclude an opinion of the most probable "as is" 
market value of the fee simple interest of the subject property. Support for this market 
value is documented in the attached appraisal report. This letter of transmittal is not an 
appraisal report, but a component thereof. 

As a result of our investigation and analysis of the data contained in this report, we find 
the most probable "as is" market value of the fee simple interest, as of September 16, 
2020 for the warehouse portion of the subject property (not the entire property), based 
upon the scope of work outlined on pages 8-9, to be: 

("AS IS") 
(ONE MILLION FIVE HUNDRED AND FIFTY THOUSAND 

DOLLARS) 
($1,750,000*) 

25 York Lane, Lee NH 03861 603-767-4987 

rconcannon@aol.com  



*Extraordinary Assumptions (An extraordinary assumption is defined by USPAP as  
an assumption, directly relating to a specific assignment, which. if found to be false, 
could alter the appraiser's opinions or conclusion):  

1) The subject section of the building totals 36,000SF of space. 

*Hypothetical Conditions (A hypothetical condition is defined by USPAP as a 
condition, directly related to a specific assignment, which is contrary to what is known  
by the appraiser to exist on the effective date of the appraisal results. but is used for  
the purpose of analysis.):  

1) The subject value assumes that there is no existing lease agreement in place 
between the owner and Flex Energy. 

Probability of Value Change: 

The estimated market/use values of the property appraised in this report are 
estimated as of the aforementioned date. Constantly changing economic, social, 
political and physical conditions have varying effects upon real property values. 
Even after the passage of a relatively short period of time, property values may 
change substantially and require a new appraisal. 

The value indicated is subject to the General Assumptions and General Limiting 
Conditions located at the end of the report. 

Sincerely, 

Robert P. Concannon, MAI 
Chief Appraiser — NHCG-657 

25 York Lane, Lee NH 03861 603-767-4987 

rconcannon@aol.corn 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

ASSIGNMENT ELEMENTS 	 6 

DEFINITION OF MARKET VALUE 	  

SCOPE OF WORK 	 8 

HAZARDOUS CONDITIONS 	 10 

COMPETENCY STATEMENT ....................................................... 	..... 	 10 
TIFQCPTPTUINT C2F T'Flic AirTINTTC113 ,■ T TTV 	 1 

DESCRIPTION OF MARKET 
AREA 	 12 

DESCRIPTION OF MARKET AREA 	 18 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY 	 23 

HISTORY OF CONVEYANCE 	 29 

OCCUPANCY & USE 	 30 

ASSESSMENT AND TAXES 	 30 

ZONING 	 31 

HIGHEST AND BEST USE 	 33 

INCOME APPROACH 	 38 

SALES COMPARISON APPROACH 	 55 

RECONCILIATION 	 75 

FINAL VALUE ESTIMATE 	 76 

GENERAL ASSUMPTIONS AND LIMITING CONDITIONS 	 

CERTIFICATION 	 81 

ADDENDA 	 83 

RMA Associates 
	

30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 4 



ADDENDA 

• Subject Photographs 
• Tax Map 
• Area Maps 
• Municipal Tax Card 
• Appraiser Qualifications 

RMA Associates 
	

30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 5 



ASSIGNMENT ELEMENTS 

SUBJECT: 

APPRAISAL REPORT: 

DATE OF INSPECTION: 
1/2-111-2,3 'Jr V ZALAJ 

DATE OF REPORT: 

PRoPFRTy F TC,FTIN: 

CLIENT: 

INTENDED USER: 

PROBLEM TO BE 
SOLVED: 

USE: 

Flex Office/Industrial Building 
City of Portsmouth Parcel ID 37835 
30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth New Hampshire 

Appraisal Report 
Defined as a written report prepared under Standards Rule 2-2(b) 
performed under Standard 1 of the Uniform Standards of 
Professional Appraisal Practice (USPAP). 

September 16, 2020 
Sepiewbei 16, 2020 
January 14, 2021 

Leasehold Interest 
The interest held by the lessee (the tenant or renter) through a lease 
transferring the rights of use and occupancy for a stated term under 
certain conditions. (Appraisal Institute, The Dictionary of Real  
Estate Appraisal, Fifth Edition, (Chicago, 2010). 

Market Value 

Extraordinary Assumptions — (See Transmittal Letter) 
Hypothetical Conditions — None 
Jurisdictional Exceptions — None 

The Kane Company, Mr. Eric Nelson 

The Kane Company, Mr. Eric Nelson 

The purpose of this appraisal is to estimate the most 
probable "as is" market value of the "leasehold interest" of the flex 
portion (office/industrial section) of the subject property. 

The intended use of the report is for estimating market value for a 
potential sale of a portion of the subject property. The appraiser 
does not intend use of this appraisal by any other party than those 
disclosed above, or for any other purpose by the client. 

VALUE TYPE: 

ASSIGNMENT COND: 

RMA Associates 
	

30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 6 



DEFINITION OF MARKET VALUE 

The most probable price which a property should bring in a competitive and open market under 
all conditions requisite to a fair sale, the buyer and seller each acting prudently and 
knowledgeably, and assuming the price is not affected by undue stimulus. Implicit in this 
definition is the consummation of a sale as of a specified date and the passing of title from seller 
to buyer under conditions whereby: 

1. The buyer and seller are typically motivated; 
2. Both of the parties are well informed or well advised, and are each acting in what they 

consider to be their own best interest; 
3. A reasonable period of time is allowed for exposure in the open market; 
4. Payment is made in terms of cash in U. S. dollars or in terms of financial arrangement 

comparable thereto; and 
5. The price represents the normal consideration for the property sold unaffected by special 

or creative financing or sales concessions granted by anyone associated with the sale. 

The definition of market value was taken from the Department of the Treasury, Office of the 
Comptroller of the Currency, 12CFR Part 34, dated 8/24/90 (Section 34.42 Definitions) 

Market Value Comments: The factors of utility, scarcity, desire and effective purchasing power 
is apparent in the definition. The implication that buyer and seller are working under equal 
pressure is seldom completely true, although typical motivation for each does imply a reasonable 
balance for a market value transaction. Market prices do not necessarily follow all of these 
concepts, and are often affected by salesmanship and the urgency and need of the buyer and/or 
seller. The central difference between market price and market value lies in the premise of 
knowledge and willingness both of which are contemplated in market value, but not in market 
price. Stated differently, at any given moment of time, market value denotes what a property is 
actually worth under certain specified conditions, while market price denotes the actual sales 
price. 

Probability of Value Chance:  The estimated market value of the property appraised in this 
report is estimated as of the aforementioned date. Constantly changing economic, social, 
political and physical conditions have varying effects upon real property values. Even after 
the passage of a relatively short period of time, property values may change substantially 
and require a new appraisal. 

RMA Associates 
	

30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 7 



SCOPE OF WORK 

According to the 2020-2021 Edition of the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice 
(USPAP). for each appraisal assianment an appraiser must: 

1. Identify the problem to be solved; 
2. Determine and perform the scope of work necessary to develop credible 

assignment results; and 
3. Disclose the scope of work in the report. 

In order to determine the appropriate scope of work, the appraiser must properly identify the 
problem to be solved. That scope of work must be sufficient to produce assignment results that 
plc ^.IcuIVIC.  FUI st.,upc 	woik  i.0 bc a1/4.A.;cpiabic, ii. must mcci. 01 cxeccd. 

1. The expectations of parties who are regularly intended users for similar 
assignment; and 

2. What an appraiser's peers' actions would be in performing the same or a 
similar assignment. 

Identification of Relevant Property Characteristics 

Physical 
• The appraiser will inspect the subject parcel and the existing 

improvements at a level necessary to gather information about the physical 
characteristics of the parcel and improvements that are relevant in the 
valuation problem. 

• The appraiser will interview the property manager. 

Legal 
• The appraiser will review the site leasing agreement. 
• The appraiser will examine the municipal tax card and tax map, and fully 

review all pertinent ordinances relevant to the property in Portsmouth. 
• The appraiser will review all provided the lease documents. 

Economic 
• The appraiser will review the Portsmouth and Seacoast flex office/ 

industrial market. 

RMA Associates 
	

30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 8 



Development of the Highest and Best Use Opinion(s) 

In developing an opinion of highest and best use, the appraiser applied the four tests (physically 
possible, legally permissible, financially feasible, and maximally productive) with research into 
each factor, testing for feasibility. 

Application of the Three Approaches to Value 

The Cost Approach was considered but not developed. It is not relevant when the 
improvements are over 20+ years old as any attempt to estimate physical depreciation or 
functional obsolescence would not be reliable, or credible. 

The Income Approach was fully developed. The subject is an office/industrial building that has 
historically been leased on a multiple tenancy basis. The income, expenses, and NOI were 
accurately estimated. A credible capitalization rate (OAR) rate was obtained from national and 
regional survey data. Since this type building would initially appeal to an owner occupant and 
secondarily to an investor, this approach produced a slightly less credible, and secondary value 
conclusion. 

The Sales Comparison Approach was fully developed. A search within the Southern New 
Hampshire industrial market(s) produced a number of recent office/industrial building sales. 
Although, none of the sales were completely analogous to the subject, they were considered 
reasonably similar enough in terms of location, size, condition and occupancy to develop a 
credible analysis. While the subject building is currently rented out to a single tenant, it could be 
used by an owner-occupant who could occupy the entire space. Since the building could also 
appeal to an owner occupant, this is deemed to produce a credible and primary value conclusion. 

Reporting Type 

This results of this appraisal assignment is being reported as an Appraisal Report, which is 
intended to comply with the reporting requirements set forth under Standards Rule 2-2(b) of 
USPAP. As such, it presents summary discussions of the data, reasoning, and analyses that were 
used in the appraisal process to develop the appraiser's opinion of value. Supporting 
documentation is retained in the appraiser's file. The depth of discussion contained in this report 
is specific to the needs of the client and for the intended use stated. 

Sources of Information Included: 
• Physical inspection of the property performed on September 16, 2020 
• Property Manager's Representatives — Mr. Eric Nelson & Ms. Stacey Abel 
• City of Portsmouth 
• Real estate brokers active in the office market 
• NECPE 
• Appraiser's files and published data 

RMA Associates 
	

30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 9 



HAZARDOUS CONDITIONS 

An opinion as to the extent of any hazardous waste on the subject property and any associated 
re moval and/or remediation costs is beyond the scope of this assignment and the expertise of the 
appraiser. No environmental issues were noted at inspection. 

COMPETENCY STATEMENT 

Mr. Robert P. Concannon, MAI is competent to perform the appraisal in which they have been 
engaged. The appraisers are experienced in the valuation of all types of real estate, including but 
not limited to, general and medical office buildings, industrial/warehouse buildings, research and 
development facilities, retail developments, mixed-use projects, multi-family residential 
developments, and undeveloped land. Qualifications of the appraisers are included in the 
Addenda of the report. 

RMA Associates 
	

30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 10 



DESCRIPTION OF THE MUNICIPALITY 

Location: Portsmouth is located in southeastern New Hampshire within Rockingham County. 
Manchester is approximately 50 miles west; Boston, Massachusetts is approximately 50 miles 
south; and Portland, Maine is approximately 50 miles north. The city is bordered by the State of 
Maine to the north, Newington and Greenland to the West, New Castle to the east and Rye to the 
south. Within a short proximity are a number of state beaches in New Hampshire, Massachusetts, 
and Maine. Other attractions include the University of New Hampshire in Durham, a number of 
public and private golf courses, and various historical sites. Given the city's location and access 
to Interstate 95, makeup of its downtown area and numerous attractions, the city has become a 
tourist destination for a significant portion of the year. 

Transportation/Road Access: Both Interstate 95 and U.S. Route 1 run north/south through the 
city. Additionally, the Spaulding Turnpike provides access northwest to the cities of Dover, 
Somersworth and Rochester. N.H. Routes 4 and 101 provide access west to the cities of 
Concord and Manchester, respectively. Also, N.H. Route 33 provides access to the south to 
Greenland, Stratham, and Exeter. Accessibility to the city is considered excellent. The airport at 
the Pease Tradeport offers limited commercial flights. Much larger commercial airports in 
Boston, Manchester, and Portland are all within one hour's drive. The city has a deep-water port 
and access to the Boston & Maine Railroad. 

Size: 15.6+/- square miles. Most of the developable land area has been improved. The majority 
of the remaining vacant land is wetlands. 

Population: 21,426 (2015). There has been little change in the population since 2000. 

Demographics: Per capita and median household income in 2015 was $45,062 and $71,392, 
respectively. Residential improvements as of 2014 included 5,326 single-family units, 4,384 
multi-family units and 292 mobile homes. The 2015 civilian labor force totaled 13,155. 
Approximately 50% of the city's resident's work in Portsmouth, with the remaining commuting 
to other municipalities. 

Government: Portsmouth has a City Manager/City Council form of government. 

City Services: Eversource supplies electricity. The City of Portsmouth has water provided by 
the Portsmouth Water Works. There is a municipal sewerage system covering approximately 
85% of the city. Unitil provides natural gas to a portion of Portsmouth. There are full-time 
police and fire departments. The city offers curbside trash pickup and a mandatory recycling 
program. The city has a public library and the Portsmouth Regional Hospital (209 beds) is 
located on Borthwick Avenue. There are four elementary schools, one middle school and one 
high school in Portsmouth. 

RMA Associates 
	

30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 11 



Area Unemployment 

Unemployment rates also provide a window into the health of not only an areas general 
economy, but also the health of its real estate market (often with some lag time). Since people 
use buildings, the more people working, the more space that is needed. The following compares 
and contrasts unemployment rates in, around, and outside of the subject market area: 

MEIMINI■■=14 

• 

In general, unemployment has been declining in most markets since the recession began in 2008. 
In particular, NH is doing better than the US, New England, MA, and Maine; and the Portsmouth 
area (even during the recession that started near the end of 2008) better than all submarkets even 
relative to other major NH Cities. Since people use buildings, the more people working, the more 
space that is needed. 

RMA Associates 30 New Hampshire Avenne, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 12 



DESCRIPTION OF THE MARKET AREA 

According to the Dictionary of Real Estate Appraisal, a market area is defined as "the geographic 
or locational delineation of the market for a specific category of real estate, i.e., the area in which 
alternative, similar properties effectively compete with the subject property in the minds of 
probable, potential purchasers and users." 

The subject property consists of a single tenant (flex) office/industrial building at the highly 
desirable Pease Tradeport. The market area is considered to include New England. 

MARKET ASSESSMENT 

The subject is located in the seacoast portion of Rockingham County, the most southern county 
within eastern NH. With a population in 2015 of 302,000 (rounded), Rockingham is the second 
largest NH County. Combined with abutting Strafford County, the population in 2015 was 
431,000 (rounded). From 2010 to 2015, these two counties had the largest population growth in 
NH: Rockingham County at 2.2% (+6,557), and Strafford at 3%, (+3,679). 

Portsmouth, the community in which the subject resides (including Pease), unlike the rest of the 
country, New England, MA, northern MA, and even much of the rest of NH, never suffered 
economically to the same extent during the rest of the country's recession. While cranes were in 
mothballs and crane operators unemployed in nearly all other areas nationwide from 2009 to 
2013 and 2014, newly developed commercial properties at Pease and in Portsmouth were being 
developed due the overall attractiveness of the area. While many empty see-through buildings 
dotted the landscape along 1-93 from Woburn, MA to Manchester, NH including Nashua, the 
only see-through buildings in Portsmouth were the new ones just being built where the windows 
had yet to be installed and were in process. 

The following is a brief synopsis of the New Hampshire industrial market from Colliers 
International for the 2nd quarter of 2020. The report provides the most recent update for 
occupancy levels, available space and average rental rates by various submarkets in New 
Hampshire for industrial space. The reported is followed by a second quarter (newsletter update) 
from Colliers International for industrial sub-market. 

RMA Associates 
	

30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 13 



SEACOAST NEW HAMPSHIRE INDUSTRIAL MARKET FORECAST 

07. 	tINAFSHIRE SNAPSHOT 

 

rf 	 t 	 2.111, 

  

 

taucklam  %mom 

  

Mfr  ...ammo  • 

LkFY 14110$1101 

FUIPMININ 

 

ILIBINICI 

 

RMA Associates 
	

30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 14 



CONCORD IXIKR P01113111011111 

NA5111111 

RMA Associates 
	

30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 15 



BY KRISTIE KYZER - COLLIERS INTERNATIONAL 

AUG 3, 2020 

The occupancy rate in the New Hampshire industrial sector remained relatively flat, with a dip of 
0.02% year-over-year, while rents increased by $0.21 PSF, or 3.1%. With occupancy remaining 
above 94%, a steady amount of owner-user construction was either started or completed during 
the quarter. 

Two notable expansions broke ground; 13,000 SF at TRM Microwave in Bedford and 15,810 SF 
at Integra in Nashua. in Londonderry, MuShield completed its 6,000 SF expansion of 
manufacturing space on Ricker Avenue, bringing the total building up to 18,000 SF. This activity 
is a positive indicator for the industrial market and we hope this trend continues. 
Due to the pandemic ;  some industrial companies are eNrwirtneing growth Vapotherm 
announced plans to expand its manufacturing capabilities due to COVID and could add 350 
manufacturing jobs in Exeter. The company is focused on developing and commercializing its 
H1-VNE 'technology products used to treat patients in respiratory distress. Lydali, a Rochester 
company, is ramping up manufacturing efforts to produce more N95 respirators and surgical 
masks, adding two new production lines. The company plans to produce five times its current 
capacity by May 2021, creating a need for more employees as well. These are just a couple 
examples of manufacturing companies thriving, which could lead to an increased need for 
production space in the state. 

As NH moves through the pandemic, much is unknown of the long-term impact this will have on 
commercial real estate. The industrial market has such a high demand for space, occupancy rates 
will most likely stay strong. We will need to distance ourselves further from the pandemic to 
fully understand the lasting impact it will have on the commercial real estate market. 

RMA Associates 
	

30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 16 



Area Unemployment 

Unemployment rates also provide a window into the health of not only an areas general 
economy, but also the health of its real estate market (often with some lag time). Since people 
use buildings, the more people working, the more space that is needed. The following compares 
and contrasts unemployment rates in, around, and outside of the subject market area: 

il- C -e7:=E•0 117 5 	 L.. ■ ":7; 	5,:ate 

7 17$1.7. 

fr" 

••• 	 , 	 - 	 :".;; ETE'S.1 

UnerrIployrrwni 

111111111111! 	 
11■11 	 

1=1111b 	  

In general, unemployment has been declining in most markets since the recession began in 2008. 
In particular, NH is doing better than the US, New England, MA, and Maine; and the Portsmouth 
area (even during the recession that started near the end of 2008) better than all submarkets even 
relative to other major NH Cities. Since people use buildings, the more people working, the more 
space that is needed. 

RMA Associates 30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 17 



DESCRIPTION OF THE PEASE TRADEPORT 

The 59-year-old Pease Air Force Base, the home of SAC's 509th Bomb Wing closed on March 
11 1994 The Peace Development Authority wag crented in 1990. The PDA is an independent 
state agency. The base was officially transferred from military to civilian control in 1991. The 
PDA was granted powers needed to implement the base redevelopment plan. Those included the 
authority to accept title of the land disposed by the Air Force, and the authority to market and 
develop the land. Zoning at the Pease Tradeport includes 797 acres in the airport zone, 448 acres 
in the airport industrial zone, 333 acres in the industrial zone, and 466 acres in the 
business/commercial zone. 781 acres were set aside for natural resource protection and wetlands 
mitigation. 

Pease is located just off interstate 95 and the Spaulding Turnpike in Portsmouth and Newington, 
NH. There is an extensive network of roads that existed from the former air force base. The PIT 
is served with municipal water and sewer, and natural gas. The PIT offers a Foreign Trade Zone 
and customs facilities. Portsmouth international Airport offers an 11,321-foot runway. There is 
also a 27-hole public golf course. 

Pease is home to over 250+ companies employing close to 10,500+/- people (direct) and 
5,125+/- (indirect). There is roughly 4.86 million square feet of office and industrial space. For 
a business/commercial or industrial use, there are only seven remaining parcels of land that have 
either not been developed or controlled for future development. There are also several sites 
under improved with old Air Force buildings. Most developers think with typical absorption, 
those seven sites should be developed within five or so years. 

RMA Associates 	30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 18 



Pease is improved with a variety of building types and uses. In addition to those connected with 
the airport, they include the following: 

Newly constructed single and multi-tenant class A office buildings 
Newly constructed research and development buildings 
Newly constructed light industrial buildings 
Former air base buildings renovated for a variety of uses 
Vacant former air base buildings 
Hotels 
Restaurants 
Retail 
Financial institutions 
Health care facilities 
Colleges 
Day care facilities 

An aerial of the Pease Tradeport is below: 

From a flex space perspective, the number of sites that may accommodate new development 
providing office/industrial space for rent is rapidly diminishing. On the following page is the 
most recent chart from the Pease Development Authority showing the unimproved development 
sites: 

RMA Associates 
	

30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 19 



Arn 
G1_403 

itIC. J t41 

\ 
— 	 s:-Arp nvu.  ri.. s'----__________ 

41, 2 
44 	

P 

I'r 
• 2 	 0 	 I i 

• - - 	is fa 	 L 

-- 0 40 	-- - 	-.• . • ' A 	0 is 	 0 
A 	 (.4...-., 

toro 
0:.1 ! .-:1  ; 	41) 	• 	:..D 0 	0  ; 

: 	. 	. 

kni 	. -- 	 . .1 21 . i 1. • __. 0_ .c,-.4 	- 	6  

	

: 	49 
cp ... .... 	 0 

	

.5 	4i 

:r• 

RMA Associates 	30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 20 



11.2 Acres / 5.6 Acres Useable-Arboretum Drive 

This site is adjacent to the Sig Sauer facility and they have a right of first refusal. It is doubtful 
they will not eventually take the site for future expansion of their facility. 

9.3 Acres / 7.1 Acres Useable-Corporate Drive 

This site is adjacent to the Wentworth Douglass office building and they have it under option for 
future medical office expansion. 

5.4 Acres / 4.0 Acres Useable-Corporate Drive 

This site is adjacent to the Wentworth Douglass office building and they have it under option for 
future medical office expansion. 

24.1 Acres / 22.0 Acres Useable-Corporate Drive 

This site is adjacent to the Lonza Biologics facility and they have it under option for future 
expansion. 

8.7 Acres / 8.7 Acres Useable-160 Corporate Drive 

Summit Development of Dover is in the process of permitting the site for a total of 100,000 
square feet of office. Phase I which is 45,000 square feet will commence shortly and will be 
taken by a single tenant. Phase II which is 55,000 square feet is slated for that tenant's future 
expansion. 

7.1 Acres / 3.3 Acres Useable-Corporate Drive  

Summit Development has this parcel under option. They have conceptual designs for a single or 
multiple buildings with a total of 100,000 square feet of office. 

11.2 Acres / 3.2 Acres Useable-Corporate Drive  

This site is available. According to Two International Group, it has the potential for 30,000,000 
square feet of office. 

6.1 Acres / 5.2 Acres Useable-New Hampshire Avenue  

This site is adjacent to the Great Bay Community College facility and they have it under option 
for future college expansion. 

11.0 Acres / 11.0 Acres Useable-100 New Hampshire Avenue  

Two International Group has this parcel under option. They have conceptual designs for 200,000 
square feet of office. 

RMA Associates 
	

30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 21 



6.6 Acres / 2.4 Acres Useable-Durham Street & Aviation Avenue 

This site is available. According to Two International Group, it has the potential for 20,000 
square feet of office. 

The appraiser is aware of two existing site infill possibilities. 50 International Drive that is a part 
of current 75 International Drive has a 30,000 square foot office building under construction. 
The developer is Two International Group. They indicated they have two LOIs in place for the 
entire building. Two International Group owns 14 Manchester Square. They indicate there is 
roughly 4 excess acres that may accommodate 100,000 square feet of office. 

The thirteen remaining sites are all on land that requires an airport use. 

By removing owner user sites and sites were tenants have already been secured, there are five 
remaining development sites with the ability to produce roughly 360,000 square feet of leasable 
office space. With a total buildout of around 2,400,000 square feet this represents only an 
additional 15%. Looking at Pease and Portsmouth in totality, this only represents an increase of 
9%. Given the recent absorption rates at Pease, this amount of space should be built and 
occupied within the next five to ten years. 

Pease Industrial Space Overview (9/30/20 — Colliers International) 

Industrial - Total Space: 1,628,812 SF - Current Occupancy Rate: 97.74% - Average Rental 
Rate: $9.33 NNN — there are only two current availabilities in the market, so the listing rates are 
higher than average. 

RMA Associates 
	

30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 22 



DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY 

The following is a summary of the site and building components of the subject property. This 
has been based upon property data provided by the subject ownership, on-site property 
inspections, and on information provided from public sources. 

The existing improvements are situated on land leased by Spyglass Development LLC (ground 
tenant) from the Pease Development Authority. Based upon a review of city of Portsmouth 
Flood Insurance Rate Map #330139 0005 B, effective May 17, 1982, the subject is not located in 
a flood hazard area. According to municipal records, the leased land is identified as Map 301 / 
Lot 3. 

The leased land may be summarized as follows: 

SITE 

RMA Associates 
	

30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 23 



The subject lot is 6.63 acres with 625+/- feet of frontage along New Hampshire Avenue and 
545+/-feet along Exeter Street. The subject is a highly visible and a highly accessible lot from 
New Hampshire Avenue. Traffic counts here are minimal, however, there is easy access to Route 
16 and Interstate 95 within one mile of the subject property. Most of the lot is level or nearly 
level to street grade. Utilities include municipal water and sewer, natural gas, three-phase 
electrical, land line and cell phone service, and cable. 

The character of the site is almost entirely open areas with no woodlands along 
the left and right sides. The entire site appears suitable for development. 

Access is via New Hampshire Avenue (one access point) and Exeter Street (one access point). 
Otherwise, no easements or encroachments exist that would materially diminish the utility of the 
subject property The subject site does not appear to possess any expans-ion potential based 
upon its current layout. 

There  are no  wetlands  nr wetla nds boundaries  on the subject  ht. In ncirlitinn, the lot is in 
Zone X, an area determined to be outside the floodplain area. 

RMA Associates 
	

30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NI-I 	 Page 24 



AERIAL VIEW 

RMA Associates 
	

30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 25 



STRUCTURAL DESIGN AND ANALYSIS 

7C 

1 

Suilding Sub-Areas sq ft) Legen d 

Code Description 
Gross 	Living 

Area 	i 	Ares 

• 

RMA Associates 
	

30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 26 



The subject property consists of a mixed-use complex with an original flex office/industrial 
building constructed in 1960 connected to a two story office building constructed in 2002. The 
subject section consists of a large warehouse and office space (ground floor and mezzanine) with 
36,000SF of space. This section of the property is steel frame construction with fabricated steel 
exterior and roof on a concrete slab. The building possesses 4 bay doors (drive in), numerous 
exterior windows and 4 entry doors. The building possesses a 15' 3" clear height in the 
warehouse. The gross building area (GBA) is 54,065SF and the gross leasable area is 54,035SF. 
The building is fully sprinklered. There are no elevators. The building possesses office space 
(26,012SF) on two floors at the front of the building and warehouse space (single floor — 15' 3" 
ceiling height) at the rear of the building. 

The building is occupied by one tenant (Flex Energy). This tenant also occupies the office 
section of the complex. The office space was deemed to be in average to above average 
condition with recent updates. It is fully heated, air-conditioned, and sprinklered. The finishes 
are in average to above average quality with primarily painted sheetrock walls, suspended 
acoustic tile ceilings and with thin-tube efficient fluorescent lighting. The flooring is a mix of 
carpet, linoleum and ceramic tile. The warehouse space is not clear space (various columns) with 
unfinished concrete floors, open fabricated steel ceilings and insulated walls. 

RMA Associates 
	

30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 27 



The subject section of the complex was constructed in 1960. Overall this property is in average 
to above average condition and deemed to be Class C flex (office/industrial) space. 

the grniinrk innQtly in thP frnnt  nrici renr thPrP are an amnia 
and lined parking spaces with 176 spaces shared by both sections of the building. There is a 
limited amount of landscaping at the front of the property. 

RMA Associates 
	

30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 28 



HISTORY OF CONVEYANCE 

In accordance with the Standards of Professional Practice of the Appraisal Institute, we are 
required to indicate the subject's ownership history for the preceding three-year period; no 
transfers of the subject property have occurred within this time period. The property is not 
currently being marketed for sale. 

RMA Associates 
	

30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 29 



OCCUPANCY & USE 

The subject property is occupied by one tenant. The subject property (entire complex) is 
occupied by one tenant. The entire property is subject to a master lease agreement with Flex 
Energy. 

No lease information was provided to the appraiser by the owner. 

At the request of the client, the appraiser is valuing the subject (section) space assuming no lease 
agreement is in place. 

ASSESSMENT AND TAXES 

The Assessor identifies the properties as Map 301 Block 003. The (entire) subject property is 
currently assessed for $4,982,900. The City of Portsmouth's current tax rate is $14.86 (2019). 

The State of NH Department of Revenue Administration's determined the median valuation ratio 
for Portsmouth for 4/1/20 at 91.3%. 

RMA Associates 
	

30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 30 



City of Portsmouth Zoning, 1\1.31) 
direr 1 of 

ZONING 

Zoning is the public regulation of the character and intensity of the use of real estate through the 
employment of police power. This is accomplished by the establishment of districts or areas in 
each of which uniform restrictions relating to structure heights, lot sizes, setbacks, frontage, 
impervious coverage, density and other limitations are imposed upon the use and development of 
private property. 

Zone 
The subject is located in the ABC (Airport Business Commercial) Zoning District. The purpose 
of this district is to provide for business, commercial and trade related enterprises in a campus 
setting. 

Within the ABC zone allowed uses include military aviation, medical emergency flights, school, 
performance indoor facility, outdoor recreational use, office, medical services, restaurant, 
hotel/motel, industrial, manufacturing, passenger terminals, parking, and wireless 
telecommunication facilities. 

RMA Associates 
	

30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 31 



Dimensional requirements for the ABC Zoning District are as follows: 

Air PI AI ABC 

',iii initim Lot Dimensions 

Area "R 5 acres 5 acres  0 a Cr tl... 

C ontimions street frontage 

Depth 

-\-,, _,51,,, NiT) iNr-, 

NR 

100' 

100' 

300 . 

 7, 00' 

Minimum Yard Dimension's 

Front NR 711' 70' 70' 

Sjdf- NP. ;iv ± co' co' — co .  ;0 .  — ;0 -  

Rear NR 50* 50 50' 

-2,1aximum Structure Dimensioils 

Structure height S5," S5' 05 .  `._;5' 

Roof appurtenance hei2-lit 10' 10' 1 0' 10' 

Building coverage Ni 30 0 0  500,:, Go0, 0  

_,In anum open space NR 5( 	0 50').0 5106  

NR = No requirement. 

Status of Conformity  
The subject site does not meet current dimensional requirements but is grandfathered. The 
improvements are deemed to be a permitted use in the ABC Zoning District. 

A definitive opinion regarding conformity to zoning is beyond the scope of the appraisal 
assignment and the professional expertise of the appraiser. Should the client require a definitive 
conclusion as to zoning conformity, it is suggested that either a licensed surveyor and/or attorney 
be consulted. 

RMA Associates 
	

30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 32 



HIGHEST AND BEST USE 

Highest and Best Use is a basic concept in real estate appraisal. It is an analysis of the subject 
property's optimum use. It reflects the assumption that the price a buyer will pay is based on his 
or her conclusions about the most profitable use of the property. 

The determination of highest and best use carefully considers prevailing market conditions, 
trends affecting market participation and change, and the existing use of the subject property. 

Highest and best use is defined as: 

"The reasonably probable and legal use of vacant land or an improved property, which is 
physically possible, appropriately supported, financially feasible, and that results in the highest 
value. The four criteria that highest and best use must meet are legal permissibility, physical 
possibility, financial feasibility and maximum profitability." 
(The Dictionary of Real Estate Appraisal, 4 th  Edition, dated 2002, Appraisal Institute) 

The four criteria are defined as follows: 

Legally Permissible: 
Those uses that are permitted by zoning and other legal restrictions. 

Physically Possible: 
Those uses that are physically possible for the site. 

Financially Feasible: 
Those permissible and possible uses that will produce any net return to the 
owner. 

Maximally Productive: 
That use among the feasible uses that will produce the highest net return. This is 
the highest and best use of the property. 

Based on the lot size, configuration, and zoning, as a hypothetical vacant lot and with 
office/industrial use allowed, considering it has grandfathered rights, it could be developed with 
office/industrial space, which would bring the highest return to the land if vacant. 

With the present improvements in place the current use adds significant value to the site. 
Therefore, as improved, it is considered the highest and best use. It is noted that the subject 
property is located on leased land provided by the Pease Development Authority (PDA). 

RMA Associates 
	

30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 33 



As Improved Analysis 

Legal Permissibility 

The building improvements and use are all legally permissible based upon the site plan approval 
obtained from the city of Portsmouth Planning Board. 

Physical Possibility 

The improvements evidence their physical possibility. For a single tenant office/industrial use, 
no modifications are required. 

Financially Feasible & Maximally Productive: 

The,  subject section was constructed roughly 60+/-y  ears ago as an office  /industrial property The 
subject property (entire complex) consists of a larger sized (Class C) office/industrial property 
with a large amount of office space compared to flex style industrial buildings. The office section 
was reportedly constructed 20+/- years ago. Although most office/industrial buildings can be 
converted to other uses, typically these properties are repositioned (older buildings) or further 
subdivided (newer properties). When there is demand, functional utility depends on whether or 
not the building conforms to competitive standards. This translates to the amount of office space 
is offered in a building. Additional office space beyond 10% to 20% of the gross building area is 
typically deemed to be a superadequacy. The subject section (not the entire property) meets this 
requirement. 

Based upon the other improvements and uses in the area, it would appear that the highest and 
best use (subject section) is office/industrial uses. While the property could be modified or 
altered for additional tenants or a single tenant, the current improvements are consistent with 
current demand at Pease. 

When valuing an office/industrial building, the key components are demand and functional 
n 1- ; 1 ;ty In the case of the subject, those components must be considered through the eyes of an 
investor as the rights being appraised are the leased fee. In other words, is the potential rent to 
be paid by an office user(s), the highest rent possible based upon those higher end office 
improvements. 

When analyzing the functional utility of a property, some of the key components to consider 
include: 1) Compatibility 2) Suitability 3) Comfort 4) Efficiency 5) Safety 6) Security 7) 
Accessibility 8) Ease and cost of maintenance 9) Market standards 10) Attractiveness 11) 
Economic Productivity. 

RMA Associates 
	

30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NI-I 	 Page 34 



THE APPRAISAL PROCESS 

The appraisal process is a systematic analysis of factors that affect the value of real estate. The 
objective is to utilize the process to develop support for a final value estimate of the subject 
property. 

The analysis is based on market data for each of the three approaches that are commonly used by 
appraisers: 

1. The Cost Approach 
2. The Sales Comparison Approach 
3. The Income Approach 

Depending on the availability of data, one or more of these approaches may be developed. The 
value indication and relative strength of each developed approach is summarized in the 
reconciliation. The final value estimate, which completes the valuation process, is the value 
suggested by the analysis. 

The Cost Approach 

The Cost Approach assumes the principal of substitution. This principal affirms that no prudent 
buyer would purchase a property for more than it would cost to purchase a site and construct a 
property of similar desirability and utility. It is particularly applicable when the property being 
appraised involves relatively new improvements that represent the highest and best use of the 
land. 

The following outline is a step-by-step procedure utilizing the Cost Approach to derive a 
property value: 

1. Estimate the value of the site as though vacant and available to be developed to its highest 
and best use. 

2. Estimate the direct and indirect costs of the improvements as of the effective appraisal date. 
3. Estimate an appropriate entrepreneurial incentive from analysis of the market. 
4. Add estimated direct costs, indirect costs, and the entrepreneurial incentive to arrive at the 

total cost of the improvements. 
5. Estimate the amount of depreciation in the structure and, if necessary, allocate it among the 

three major categories: physical deterioration, functional obsolescence, and external 
obsolescence. 

6. Deduct the estimated depreciation from the total cost of the improvements to derive an 
estimate of their depreciated cost. 

7. Estimate the contributory value of the site improvements not already considered. 
8. Add the site value to the total depreciated cost of all the improvements to arrive at the 

indicated value of the property. 
9. Adjust the indicated value of the property for any personal property that may be included in 

the cost estimate. 

RMA Associates 
	

30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 35 



The Income Approach 

The Income Approach is defined as "that procedure in appraisal analysis that converts 
anticipated benefits (dollar income or amenities) to be derived from the ownership of property 
into a value estimate". The Income Approach is a basic tool for estimating the value of income 
producing property, based on the thinking and motivation of the typical investor. It is based on 
the principal of anticipation reflected in the definition of value as the present worth of all rights 
to future benefits accruing to ownership. The Income Approach is practical only when an 
income stream attributable to the real estate can be estimated. The basic steps in the procedure 
of the Income Approach when Direct Capitalization is used are: 

1. 	Estimate the market rent or rents. 
From the market rent(s) calculate  the stallilized potential gross income. 

3. Estimate and deduct the forecast vacancy and credit loss allowance to arrive at effective 
gross income. 

4. Estimate the fixed expenses, variable expenses and a replacement allowance and deduct 
them from effective gross income to arrive at net operating income. 

5. Select an appropriate capitalization method and develop the capitalization rate. 
6. Use the formula of VALUE equals INCOME divided by RATE to arrive at the value 

estimate by this approach. 

The Sales Comparison Approach 

The Sales Comparison Approach involves a set of procedures in which a value indication is 
derived by comparing the property being appraised to similar properties that have been sold 
recently, applying appropriate units of comparison, and adjusting the sale prices of the 
comparables based on the elements of comparison. The basic steps in the procedure of the Sales 
Comparison Approach are: 

1. Research the market to identify similar properties for which sales, listings, and/or 
offering data is available. 

2. Qualify the prices as to those factors that appear to have affected price. These factors are 
property rights, financing (including favorable financing), conditions of sale 
(motivational factors), and market conditions (including appreciation or depreciation over 
time). 

3. Compare each of the important attributes of the comparable properties to the 
corresponding ones of the property being appraised. These general categories include 
location, physical characteristics, and conditions of sale. 

4. Analyze all dissimilarities and adjust for their probable effect on the price of each 
property to derive new market value indications for the comparable properties. 

5. From the pattern developed, formulate an opinion of market value for the subject 
property. 

RMA Associates 
	

30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 36 



Methods Considered and Applied  

The Cost Approach was considered but not developed. It is not relevant when the 
improvements are over 20+ years old as any attempt to estimate physical depreciation or 
functional obsolescence would not be reliable, or credible. 

The Income Approach was fully developed. The subject is an office/industrial building that has 
historically been leased on a multiple tenancy basis. The income, expenses, and NOI were 
accurately estimated. A credible capitalization rate (OAR) rate was obtained from national and 
regional survey data. Since this type building would initially appeal to an owner occupant and 
secondarily to an investor, this approach produced a slightly less credible, and secondary value 
conclusion. 

The Sales Comparison Approach was fully developed. A search within the Southern New 
Hampshire industrial market(s) produced a number of recent office/industrial building sales. 
Although, none of the sales were completely analogous to the subject, they were considered 
reasonably similar enough in terms of location, size, condition and occupancy to develop a 
credible analysis. While the subject building is currently rented out to a single tenant, it could be 
used by an owner-occupant who could occupy the entire space. Since the building could also 
appeal to an owner occupant, this is deemed to produce a credible and primary value conclusion. 

RMA Associates 
	

30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 37 



INCOME APPROACH 

The income capitalization approach using direct capitalization is the most commonly applied 
approach and typically provides the most accurate measure of value for a stabilized industrial 
building. 

The steps in this approach are as follows: 

1. Analyze the subject property's leases if there are any in place. 
2. Analyze the market to determine a market rate for any vacant space. 
3. Analyze the subject property's operating expenses for the past several years. 
4. Forecast gross revenues. 
J. Forecast a vacancy level for the building and ail operating expenses. 
6. Select an appropriate capitalization rate. 
7. Capitalize the projected net cash flow into an estimate of market value. 

INCOME ANALYSIS 

Rental Survey 

Current market rent or economic rent form the basis of this approach to value. According to 
Real Estate Appraisal Terminology, economic rent is defined as "the rental income that a 
property would most probably command on the open market as of the effective date of the 
appraisal". A survey of the marketplace was conducted to determine what market rent would be 
applicable to the subject. 

Contract Rent 

The subject property (entire complex) is occupied by one tenant. The entire property is subject 
to a master lease agreement with Flex Energy. No lease information was provided to the 
appraiser by the owner. 

t the request of the client, the appraiser is valuing the subject (section) space assuming no lease 
agreement is in place. 

Market Rents 

A survey of the marketplace was performed to analyze market rents. The following comparables 
indicate typical rental rates for industrial/office space (medium size properties) in the subject's 
location. Details are as follows: 

RMA Associates 
	

30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 38 



Lease 1  
Property: 
Location: 
Lease Date: 
Lessee: 
Size: 
Rental Rate: 
Term: 
Source: 
Comment: 

Industrial Building 
200 West Road, Portsmouth NH 
5/1/19 
Cirrus Systems 
31,058SF (Light Industrial Space) 
$7.50/SF — NNN basis (2% rent escalations) 
5 years 
Appraiser Files 
Slightly inferior location compared to subject property. This light industrial 
building contains 31,058SF of space. The space is in good condition. The 
building was constructed in 1995 and is in an industrial park along Route 1. There 
is adequate on-site parking. This deemed to be a good industrial location. 

RMA Associates 
	

30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 39 



Lease 2  
Property: 
Location: 
Lease Date: 
Lessee Type: 
Size: 
Rental Rate: 
Term: 
Source: 
Comment: 

Industrial /Office Condominium Units 
199 Constitution Avenue, Building #1 Portsmouth NH 
2/1/17 
Regional Dunkin Donuts Franchises Owner 
14,515SF (Industrial/Office Space) 
$7.00/SF —NNN basis (CAM - $2.00SF) 
5 years (1 — 5 year renewal) 
RPC (10/18) 
Slightly inferior location compared to subject property. The space was leased on a 
shell basis with the lessee fitting it out as a bakery to supply various Dunkin 
Donuts stores. This is a multiple unit flex building with 17,500SF footprint. The 
space was in average condition. There are multiple loading docks areas. This 
deemed to be a good flex space location. 

RMA Associates 
	

30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 40 



1'11111011i 111 1 1 1 111 1 1 

Lease 3  
Property: 
Location: 
Lease Date: 
Lessee Type: 
Size: 
Rental Rate: 
Term: 
Source: 
Comment: 

Industrial /Office Condominium Unit 
199 Constitution Avenue, Building #2 Portsmouth NH 
6/1/17 
Expansion of Existing Tenant (Computer Parts Company) 
6,050SF (Industrial/Office Space) 
$7.00/SF — NNN basis (CAM - $2.00SF) 
5 years (No renewals) 
RPC (10/18) 
Slightly inferior location compared to subject property. This is a multiple unit flex 
building with a 22,000SF footprint. The space is in average condition. There was 
mostly warehouse space with a minimal amount of office space. There are 
multiple loading docks areas. This deemed to be a good industrial location. 

RMA Associates 
	

30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 41 



Lease 4  
Property: 
Location: 
Lease Date: 
Lessee Type: 
Size: 
Rental Rate: 
Term: 
Source: 
Comment: 

Industrial Office Condominium Unit 
170 West Road, Unit #1, Portsmouth NH 
1/1/17 
Undisclosed 
23,775SF (First & Second Floor) 
$6.19/SF —NNN basis 
61 months 
Leasing Broker's Representative 
Slightly inferior location compared to subject property. This is a multiple unit flex 
building with a 50,000SF footprint. The space is in average condition. There are 
multiple loading docks areas. There is limited rear parking at the complex. This 
deemed to be a good industrial location. 

RMA Associates 
	

30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 42 



Lease 5  
Property: 
Location: 
Lease Date: 
Lessee Type: 
Size: 
Rental Rate: 
Term: 
Source: 
Comment: 

Industrial Office Condominium Unit 
170 West Road, Unit #8 & #10, Portsmouth NH 
1/1/17 
Home Audio & Visual Company 
23,775SF (First & Second Floor) 
$6.19/SF — NNN basis 
61 months 
Leasing Broker's Representative 
Slightly inferior location compared to subject property. This is a multiple unit flex 
building with 50,000SF footprint. The space is in average condition. There is 
approximately 1,846SF of finished office space (14.4%) with the remainder being 
warehouse and delivery space. There are multiple loading docks areas. There is 
limited rear parking at the complex. This deemed to be a good industrial location. 

RMA Associates 
	

30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 43 



Lease 6  
Property: 
Location: 
Lease Date: 
Lessee: 
Size: 
Rental Rate: 
Term: 
Source: 
Comment: 

Industrial Building 
166 Corporate Road, Portsmouth NH 
October 2016 
Lonza 
102,400SF (Light Industrial Space) 
8.75/SF —IN'NN basis (3% rent escalations) 

10 years 
Appraiser Files 
Similar location compared to subject property. This light industrial building 
contains 102,400SF of space. The space is in good condition. The building was 
constructed in 2001 with 18' clear height. There is adequate on-site parking. This 
deemed to be a very good industrial location. 

RMA Associates 
	

30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 44 



Lease 7  
Property: 
Location: 
Lease Date: 
Lessee: 
Size: 
Rental Rate: 
Term: 
Source: 
Comment: 

Industrial Building 
9 Batchelder Drive, Seabrook NH 
5/1/19 
Functional Coatings (Guaranteed by Tesa Tape) 
43,808SF (Light Industrial Space) 
$7.85/SF — NNN basis (2% rent escalations) 
5 years 
Appraiser Files 
Similar location compared to subject property. This light industrial building 
contains 43,808SF of space. The space is in good condition. The building was 
constructed in 1997. There is adequate on-site parking. This deemed to be a good 
industrial location. 

RMA Associates 
	

30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 45 



Lease 8  
Property: 
Location: 
Lease Date: 
Lessee: 
Size: 
Rental Rate: 
Term: 
Source: 
Comment: 

Industrial Building 
35 Woodworkers, Seabrook NH 
June 2019 
Arch Medical Solutions 
15,498SF (Light Industrial Space) 
$7.50/SF — NNN basis (escalations in Years 3 & 5) 
5 years 
Appraiser Files 
Similar location compared to subject property. This light industrial building 
contains 36,800SF of space in two units. The space is in good condition. The 
tenant completed significant improvements to build out FDA certified production 
area. There is adequate on-site parking. This deemed to be a good industrial 
location. 

RMA Associates 
	

30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 46 



Comments on Comparable Leases  

Emphasis was placed on Comparables #1, #6, #7, & #8. These are most similar to the subject's 
location and time of valuation. The Pease Complex office is uniquely situated near the 
Spaulding Turnpike and Interstate 95, providing a leverage point for businesses operating north 
of greater Boston. 

The comparable leases reflect current rentals rates for flex space near and around Portsmouth. 
All were rents are on a triple-net (net) basis. As shown, lease rates range from $6.19/SF to 
$8.75/SF with older leases at the lower of the range and newer leases at the middle to upper end 
of the range. There was one comparable rent (#6) in the Pease Complex. The majority of 
comparables were considered generally similar to the subject in terms of location, building type, 
configuration and functional utility. 

For additional guidance with regard to market rental rates, we have also held discussions with 
numerous real estate professionals and market participants active within the local marketplace, 
including, Kent White — CBRE, Jean Kane — Kane Real Estate, David Choate — CBREW and 
leasing brokers from the other local firms. All of the participants were active within the local 
market and familiar with the subject property. These discussions indicated a general market 
rental range between $7.00/SF and $9.00/SF to a single-tenant on a NNN basis for flex 
(industrial/office) space at Pease. 

As such, based upon the available market rent data and from our discussions with market 
participants, I estimate a market lease rate of $8.00 per square foot on a NNN basis to be 
appropriate for the subject property. This proposed rental rate will be applied within our direct 
capitalization analysis. 

RMA Associates 
	

30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 47 



Direct Capitalization Method — "As Is"  

The Direct Capitalization Method is an estimation of value prepared on a fee simple basis. One 
year's income expectancy or an average of several years' income expectancies is capitalized at a 
market-derived capitalization rate. 

Direct capitalization involves developing an estimated net operating income for the subject with 
forecast market rental rates, a vacancy factor, and fixed and variable property expenses. That net 
operating income is then capitalized into an estimate of value using an appropriate overall 
capitalization rate comprised of several component rates, which include provisions for risk, 
recapture of wasting assets, etc. 

The Direct Capitalization  Method is considered the most approprite based upon the subject's 
location, condition and highest and best use. The method is considered the most accurate in 
mirroring investor assumptions in this type real estate transaction. 

Stabilized Year One Potential Gross Income (PGI) 

Synonymous herein with overall gross income. The income applied reflects the rent deemed 
representative of the market as summarized in the market rent survey section of this report. The 
rent for the subject is applied on a NNN basis. In this type lease, the tenant is responsible for real 
estate taxes, insurance, maintenance and repairs (normal), management fees, utilities, and utility 
expenses. The landlord is responsible for administrative expenses, leasing commissions and 
replacement reserves. Stabilized Year One PGI is projected to be $288,000 for the holding 
period. 

Vacancy & Collection Loss 
The Colliers 2019 analysis and 2020 outlook representing industrial space within Portsmouth is 
as follows: 

RMA Associates 
	30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 48 



'OW ORD MANCI-if STEA 	ree.si-oliA 	SAi I ki PCP SADO r ■-• 	r47n/Fg 

NI • 
i 	2 I 	27.4.7 

n,•::,7; 55  

',':;:::,,':. 9::::::,4 ,!.',..:■ 	ic,  •••04.2;i 
OCCUPANCY : *. ) 

•:-.7 	 1 :3 f„4ti :Fic. 77 .•?-:)j,  

1:.1,47n A 53 !•'..-: 	:.:. 

AVAILABLE L27 
1,) r2 I 45 

I 2427C,  
:;UEILEASE :11";,  

AVA ILA:T:4LE 	 ) 

FE 

As can be seen above, the recent vacancy rate was below 3% in all segments of the industrial 
market in Portsmouth. It is also similar in the Dover industrial market area. 

Based on the above, a vacancy and collection factor of 2.5% shall be used for the subject 
property. 

The survey of rentals shows that most space similar to the subject is predominantly leased on a 
triple net (NNN) basis. This means that the owner might incur the following expenses: 

• Property Operating Costs (vacant space only) 
• Property Taxes (vacant space only) 
• Leasing Commissions 
• Tenant Improvements 
• Reserves 

Vacancy and Real Estate Taxes - During times of possible vacancy the owner would pay RE 
taxes and other minimized expenses on the property. Assuming the vacancy allowances of 2.5%, 
that percent of the effective tax rate will be added to the cap rate to account for the period of time 
when the owner might be paying the RE tax expense. When a space is vacant there is no tenant 
to reimburse the property owner for that portion of the facility. 

RMA Associates 
	

30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 49 



Additionally, approximately 3.0% of the gross leasable area, or 1,080SF are expected to be 
vacant or in this case to the same effect, the subject (section) of the property about 3.0%+/- of the 
time. Expenses without RE taxes, land rent, management, and reserves are estimated at $6.50 to 
$7.00 per SF based on comparable spaces under full operation. That would translate to the 
equivalent of about $7,300 SF per year. Since during unoccupied periods (many expenses could 
be minimized such as utilities including heat, A/C, lights, and water/sewer as well as many 
maintenance items) this expense while unoccupied is estimated at $5.00 per SF. Therefore, for 
when the building may be unoccupied, $5,400 both years will be included to accrue for owner 
expenses that may result from expected vacancy periods over a holding period. 

Lease Commissions — Most investors (over 80%), according to PWCoopers RE Investor Survey, 
incorporate leasing commissions into a cash flow item only as a "below-the-line" item. Since, 
most investors don't consider them as a recurring expense item,  but instead consider them to he 
part of the risk of ownership, which is part of the cap rate or discount rate, rarely are they an 
allowable expense. 

Tenant Improvements - Since the tenant sometimes pays tenant improvements (TIs) either up 
front or as additional rent to amortize their costs, and in cases where they are paid by the owner 
according to PWCoopers RE Investor Survey more than 80% incorporate TIs into a cash flow 
item only as a "below-the-line" item. Since most investors don't consider them as an expense 
item, but instead consider them to be part of the risk of ownership, which is part of the cap rate 
or discount rate, no allowance will be explicitly included. The subject (section) of the subject 
property warrants minimal upgrades/renovations at this time. 

Leasehold Estate Adjustment — The subject property is under a master land lease with the 
Pease Development Authority (PDA). The subject (section) is currently responsible for 
$145,624 of an annual land leased payment ($212,372 x 68.57%). This amount shall be included 
as a deduction from the subject's operating results 

Replacement Reserves - Under most of the current lease structures, the property owner is 
responsible for building structural repairs. Because these repairs generally do not occur on an 
annual basis, most property owners will establish a reserve account in anticipation of repairs at 
some future date. Local brokers report a estimated reserve replacement expense of between 
0.10/SF (newer effective age) to $0.50/SF (older effective age) with an average of $0.30/SF. 
Based upon the subject's newer effective age and average to above average condition, an 
estimate of $0.25/SF shall be utilized. 

RMA Associates 	30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 50 



Development of Income Statement 

Estimated Annual Rent 	 Year 1  

36,000SF 	x 	$8.00/SF 	= 	 $288,000 

POTENTIAL GROSS RENT 	= 	 $288,000 
Vacancy @ 2.5% 	 $ 7,200 

EFFECTIVE GROSS INCOME 	 $280,800 

EXPENSES: 

Vacancy and RE Taxes 	 $ 5,400 
Leasing Commissions 	 $ 	0 
Land Lease (Subject's Section) 	 $145,624 
Replacement Reserves @ $0.25/SF x 36,000SF 	$ 9,000 

Total Expenses 	 $160,024 

NET OPERATING INCOME 	 $120,776 

RMA Associates 
	

30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 51 



Development of the Overall Capitalization Rate 

The next step in this approach is choosing an appropriate overall capitalization rate, which is 
defined as: "An income rate for a total real property interest that reflects the relationship between 
a single year's net operating income expectancy, or an average of several year's income 
expectancies, and a total price or value; used to convert net operating income into an indication 
of overall property value." 

The overall capitalization rate (Ro) in this case may be developed via Market Extraction from 
comparable sales, via the Band of Investment-Mortgage & Equity Components or the Debt 
Coverage Formula. Market extraction is the preferred technique when sufficient comparable 
sales are available as it is an actual rate in the market, and not one created by the appraiser. The 
appiaisct t;undueicd a scan ii and tcvicwcd his daiabasc Vl ieLGlll. satus Vl indusniai buildinp 
that were fully leased at the time of sale and sold to an investor. There was very limited 
capitalization rate data available in the greater Portsmouth. The available data (obtained by the 
apprniger) is  qflmmgri7ed  helnw 

LOCATION PROPERTY TYPE SALE DATE SALE PRICE OAR 

Unq A, 230 P?SlitaC16.4:.ar 	Portsmouth. NH Singia-tenant industrial '7015 ::355;2: ;.-00 0.15% 

2 ,- 3 Grrifir Rcad Portsmoullt. NH Single-•tanant industrial 3;o:7 016 :33,5 1 5 ; ,:::00 6.22% 

953 islinton Street. Fortsmouth, NH Muld-tenart cornet 	.A1 11.2012 :31,050,000 6.51% 

4 Kitty Havdc. Landind, LonnnCerri, N'H Sindle-tenant industrial 019 013 :35,500,000 7 15% 

6 Old Ro. heater Road, Dover 	'11-: f!...lulti-tenant commercial 1 :1'20 1 3  :31,255,000 7.63% 

53 Church Street. 	.nos on. ltd Multi -:snarl comma'cial 2r- n .,:li 0 — ,,, 35,050,000 7.63% 

.- 	Vent re Drive, Dcver, NH Singia-tanant industrial 3."2013 (0.000 '.32% 

203 ROule '.01, Bedford. NH Multi-tenart. commercial 12;2012 52.500,000 3.20% 

1 South River Road, Bedford NH Multi-tanart commeffal 9; --)01? 3,i 5' ,  002 3.•)3% 

40-42 Portsmouth Avalue Statham, NH 7.pc-t-enant contntarcia: 1 ...7.,7c,i'3 :31,375.000 8.01% 

28 Pond Vie ,.....: Drive, ScarbcroL5h, i, Single-tenant industrial .4:2015 3.5,3:32,13 11 0 3.92% 

22 Industal Dr.ve, Err -zetrarr 	ki-I im.vo-tenant ;11 	ezial 2p2017. =3420,0 0 0 !:-.:.77;i: 

1 Provress Dive: Dover, NH Muiti-tenant ii.ndustrial 2;2013 $3,470,000 10.33% 

The above produces a capitalization rate range of 6.15% to 10.33%. All of the properties were in 
slightly inferior to similar locations in Southern New Hampshire. Most however were sold 
without credit tenant(s) in place. 

As a check on the locally extracted rates, the appraiser consulted the Realty Rates Investor 
survey (1st Quarter of 2020) that is detailed below: 

RMA Associates 
	

30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 52 



Inpii (OAK 

LI112.Ft technique 2,1 	I 	1  t; 	-II 

s.  F.::: 

Swiveled fates 

Band of lituk.:;tuteht Technique 

r: 

4:Jit9 

!: 	-II 	1.1: VC k 

0.01071 :0 

Surveged Rates 

1147F3 1 echnique 	 Iti 

Band of hive:Ante tit Tet:hniguo ,  

F 

Suiveted R ates 

; 	• 

.•1 :• 1 4 

11577:15:1..: 

6.36 

`.L37 

11'r7 

13.62 

12_84 

rwii echiague 

Band of hivestineirt Technique 

1.,-)4T4r1 

(1 , .1114K 

roc. rfl 
E:Vit 9 

8 26 

881 

9:31 

RealtgRates.caln INVESTOR SURVEY - 1st Quarter 21128' 

INDUSTRIAL - FLEX/MD 

"4 tt 	to: 97=1.3 	 ri 11, 	 rr 

This is a national survey so a property like the subject should fall slightly below the average 
9.3 1% surveyed rate. 

Capitalization rates are driven by a number of factors. Those include: 

• Location of property 
• Type of improvements 
• Age and condition of improvements 
• Quality of tenant and length/terms of lease 

The subject is located in a desirable area at Pease. It is noted that there have been very few sales 
of properties at the complex. This is a result of the limited number of available industrial 
warehouse properties and lengthy period to develop and construct a new property. This has led to 
increased demand for this type of space and low vacancy rates. The subject improvement is in 
good condition for a 20+ year old property. The tenants are mix of different types of users. 

RMA Associates 
	

30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 53 



Several have retained additional (office) space which has not been fully occupied. If they were to 
vacate the premises, they would have to build another facility as none would be available in the 
market. This should lead to a lower than average capitalization rate. 

Based upon these factors, it is the appraiser's opinion a capitalization rate of 7.75% is 
reasonable. 

When applying direct capitalization, Income divided by Rate equals Value 

I = V 

Projected NOI 
	

$120,776 	= 	$1,558,400 or $1,560,000 
Capitalization Rate 
	

7.75% 

Estimated Market Value via the Income Approach 

$1,560,000 

RMA Associates 
	

30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 54 



erfarld 	tnt i*P161 
Ik 

11.1111 	21 
• 

3606 /.11 

 Cmow. 

From. iA 

0•441111 

1.0.401 ' Fr • 

mg 	 -e... 

SALES COMPARISON APPROACH 

The Sales Comparison Approach, or market approach, is based upon a comparison of the prices 
that are paid for similar competitive properties in the same market. This approach is most 
effective in an active market where these prices serve as good indicators of the most probable 
selling price of the subject property as of the valuation date. 

Comparable sales are analyzed and adjusted for property rights conveyed, conditions in the 
market, terms of financing, unusual sale conditions, differences in physical characteristics and 
location. The adjusted sales price should be what the comparable property would have sold for if 
it had possessed similar characteristics of the subject property at the time of sale. 

A search was conducted for recent sales of medium to larger sized (30,000SF to 80,000SF) flex 
buildings located in southern New Hampshire. One sale was found the Pease Tradeport in 
Portsmouth. Three other sales were found in industrial sections of Portsmouth. A fifth sale was 
found off Interstate 95 in Greenland. Two other sales were found in Seabrook. Based upon this 
amount of sales data, no further research was required. 

tt"  

11•riowon 

/06Ob.J. 

STFArr.)5(.. 

•t6011. Caolom 

MAST,  

I .w Clio 

0.511• 41,‘..mt 	 '5•611 Bes. 

161 	 MAINE 
- C No. Net 

	

Yaw g‘‘Ali 	""" 
FON 

	

S.. 	VOA 14. 

Tobrys Coo., 

Ca00.1110 SI 
1 20 Dulian A 

/iN OWN 

ia• tNN.rr 144 	nth V 1.0•1 

5,6‘t P.C.*/ 
No* .WOOWO Ave 

NotonO.M. C0801 

416v3/41, 	1f2 
  Ar 	

411_ 

Iguma 	 1114e1r1iall• 
'1.4.1 Clump 

HANIFSnini 

P11 
P.n... sn• 

Slrethm PIN. 11 new Csatte 

Coloarokla *2 
210 G4r. Rd 
Portsieaksts N103031 

Fr= 	 enftwead /*.At 
...o. a 

4g1h Rd 	
,.. 

.iii ii 
r_.91.-  _ 	 Portoki 

. 06.46. 	KO 	
#56 5.1..e 	,C wow 

	

*Wk. 	 - C.m. 	Ii... 

0jsrolle 	SI 	 Lamar 	*6 
'''''..',... S BotthOdet Rd 

41 	. 	Sub.* PH M74 
i .o•= Cloo• 

S•on 	 W..1.1 
111A 	D '.."'" 	 larrpto. 	 (111 0.410,1,  1 atmam 

Ca.. 
:Alia. 716 ,.., 

00.. 
M00.040,•0 	 130 . 

6.0 N.*Oon . Am. [wow- 
'14wWNOOO 	KWOO. *lotion 	,..‘61*. 

It. 	iii 	iIIIWI 	1, *3/44r,t 
i 	

,
621

ir 	
c... 

1% . 	rsi".°*04 .''' 	' 

C00,0010 '24000R' 1201  071,000000 C1(0001100 255+00112 Str68i4r2 At Agrasse 0 env-04' 

P .> 	 0 *I OCmKaH1 s5 

, 

eifflas herv, 
!e,1' oft. 	 "=, ,WWW 

co
a44

14
110

_ 	 60/41.1.1 

NI ,. Cemae 

111,0'  

'," " 
239 NOW., Ad 

61 Fill 5•.bobk M103 14 

. 111t 

med. 
AIWA, Seatotell 

Duel 

Sento 
141020 

C-11.1 14.1 
tae 11%/• 

RMA Associates 
	

30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 55 



Comparable Sale #1 
Property Type: Single Tenant Warehouse Building 

Location: 20 Durham Street 
Portsmouth NH 

Grantor: GEB Inc. 

Sale Price: $6,900,000 ($84.56/SF) 
Sale Date: 6/26/19 
Financing: Conventional 
Confirmed By: RPC (9/20) 

Property Description 
Lot Size: 10.0 Acres 
Utilities: Electricity, Tele., Gas, 
Water & Sewer 
GBA: 81,600SF 
Condition: Average to Above Average 

Map/Block/Lot: 311/3/0 

Grantee: 1635 Realty LLC 

Sale Conditions: Normal 
Book/Page: 6011/2076 Rockingham County 
Property Rights: Leasehold Estate (Leased Land) 
Source: Assessor & Sales Broker 

Frontage: 400' on Durham Street 
Zone: PI (Pease Industrial) 

Year Built: 1996 (New addition in 2001) 
Construction: Steel Frame 

RMA Associates 	 30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NTI 
	

Page 56 



Comments: The subject property is located in the Pease Complex and was listed for sale at 
$7,350,000 in mid 2018. The property was placed under contract within 342 days. The buyer is 
an owner occupant that operates an electronics manufacturing and distribution company. The 
building contains 81,600SF of space. The building was deemed to be in average to above 
average condition with no deferred maintenance. The clear height is between 32' and 37'. There 
are 2 loading docks and 2 drive in doors. The building is fully sprinklered. There are also 5 
remote control cranes and 1 mass crane. There are 66 parking spaces on the site and 3 
phase/3,000 amp electrical service. The site has the potential for up to 24,000SF of additional 
space for the site. The subject property is on leased land (similar to the subject property). The 
current annual rent is $39,168 which is paid to the PDA. 

RMA Associates 
	 30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 57 



Comparable Sale #2 
Property Type: Single-Tenant Light Industrial 

Location: 218 Griffin Road 
Portsmouth NH 

Grantor: Elder Family Portland Associates 
Sale Price: $3,535,000 ($101.85/SF) 
Sale Date: 8/17/16 
Financing: None 
Confirmed By: RPC (9/20) 

Property Description 
Lot Size: 4.56 Acres 
Utilities: Electricity, Tele., Gas, 
Water & Sewer 
GBA: 34,705 SF 
Condition: Above Average  

Map/Lot: 263/1/5 

Grantee: Griffin Road Realty LLC 
Sale Conditions: Normal 
Book/Page: 5743/2256 Rockingham County 
Property Rights: Leased Fee Estate 
Source: Assessor & Sales Broker 

Frontage: 210+/- Griffin Road 
Zone: Commercial 

Year Built: 1990 (Renovated in 2016) 
Construction: Steel Frame & Masonry 

RMA Associates 
	

30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 58 



Comments: This building was listed with an undisclosed price. After being on the market for 
5+ years, it sold for $3,535,000. This is a single tenant building occupied by Federal Express 
with 4+ year remaining on the existing lease agreement. The light industrial building contains 
approximately 10% finished office space with the remainder being R&D, manufacturing and 
warehouse space. The building has a 17' 7" clear height, 6 loading docks, and 10 truck high 
doors. The site has 89 on-site parking spaces. The building was fully sprinklered and possessed 3 
phase 600 ampere electrical service. The property has 34,705SF of space and was in above 
average condition at the time of sale. There was no deferred maintenance reported on the 
property. The buyer was a local real estate investor. 

RMA Associates 
	

30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 59 



Comparable Sale #3 
Property Type: Light Industrial Building 

Location: 225 Heritage Avenue 
Portsmouth NH 

Grantor: Nash Family Investment 
Properties 

Sale Price: $2,200,000 ($84.91/SF) 
Sale Date: 8/29/19 
Financing: None 
Confirmed: RPC (9/20) 

Property Description 
Lot Size: 2.75 Acres 
Utilities: Electricity, Tele., Gas, 
Water & Septic 
GBA: 25,909SF 
Condition: Poor 

Map/Lot: 284/1/0 

Grantee: MMCT Realty LLC 

Sale Conditions: Normal 
Book/Page: 6030/815 Rockingham County 
Property Rights: Fee Simple 
Source: Assessor & Sales Broker 

Frontage: 300' on Heritage Avenue 
Zone: I (Industrial) 

Year Built: 1980 (renovated in 2020) 
Construction: Concrete Block 

RMA Associates 	 30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 
	

Page 60 



Comments: This building was originally listed with an asking price of $2,200,000. After being 
on the market for 22 months, the building sold for $2,200,000. The previous tenant (Smuttynose 
Brewery) was evicted from the building and left behind a number of pieces of equipment. A 
legal dispute occurred between the tenant and the landlord and the property was taken off the 
market for 12 months. The property was deemed to be in poor condition with a new roof, 
electrical service, gutter, parking lot, etc.) needed. The sales broker reported that the buyer 
invested $1,000,000. --The buyer is an owner occupant who decided not to occupy the building 
and listed it for sale. The building possesses 3,000SF of office space 11.5% of total space. The 
building possesses 16' clear height and 4 dock doors, and 2 overhead doors. The structure is 
fully sprinklered. 

RMA Associates 
	

30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 61 



Comparable Sale #4 
Property Type: Industrial/Warehouse Building 

Location: 200 West Road 
Portsmouth NH 

Grantor: 200 West Road LLC . 
Sale Price: $2,900,000 ($93.22/SF) 
Sale Date: 11/23/15 
Financing: None 
Confirmed By: RPC (9/20) 

Property Description 
Lot Size: 2.3 Acres 
Utilities: Electricity, Tele., Gas, 
Water & Sewer 
GBA: 31,108SF 
Condition: Above Average 

Map/Block/Lot: 267/22/00 

Grantee: Cirrus Systems Inc. 
Sale Conditions: Normal 
Book/Page: 6134/2715 Rockingham County 
Property Rights: Fee Simple 
Source: Assessor & Sales Broker 

Frontage: None (ROW access) 
Zone: I (Industrial) 

Year Built: 1995 
Construction: Masonry & Steel 

RMA Associates 
	

30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 62 



Comments: This 31,108 square-foot, industrial warehouse building contains 4,708 square feet 
(15.1%) of office space with the remainder being open manufacturing and warehouse space. The 
warehouse areas have clear height of 20' to 24'. There are 3 dock-high delivery doors (2 
levelers) and 2 drive-in overhead doors. The building contains an office area and some (25' x 
50') of unfinished mezzanine space. The building was deemed to be in above average condition 
with no deferred maintenance. The property contains an adequate amount of on-site parking and 
was vacant at closing. The building is fully sprinklered with 3 phase 800 ampere electrical 
service. The buyer is a local real estate investor that had a tenant to occupy the space. No 
environmental issues were reported by the sales broker with the property. 

RMA Associates 
	

30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 63 



Comparable Sale #5 
Property Type: Industrial Distribution Building 

Location: 125 Ocean Road 
Greenland NH 

Grantor: Harbour Links Estates, LLC 
Sale Price: $4,388,300 ($72.28/SF*) 
Sale Date: 9/20/16 
Financing: Conventional 
Confirmed By: RPC (10/18) 

Property Description 
Lot Sizes: 8.67Acres 
Utilities: Electricity, Tele., Gas, 
Water & Sewer 
GBA: 60,711 SF 
Condition: Fair 

Map/Lot: R21/051 

Grantee: Bluebird Greenland LLC 
Sale Conditions: Normal 
Book/Page: 5754/1312 Rockingham County 
Property Rights: Fee Simple 
Source: Assessor & Sales Broker 

Frontage: 425.64 feet on Ocean Road 
Zone: IND (Industrial) 

Year Built: 1976 
Construction: Steel Frame & Brick/Masonry 
Exterior 

RMA Associates 30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 64 



Comments: This is the sale of a two story industrial located near Interstate 95 in Greenland. 
The buyer was a self storage company that converted the building into storage spaces. The 
building contained a mix of office space (8,320SF) in poor condition and warehouse space 
(38,400SF) in fair condition. The warehouse has a 22' clear height with various columns. There 
are 8 loading docks and 3 drive in doors. There was also upper level space that was unfinished. 
There was adequate parking on the site. The building was vacant at closing. There are no 
elevators in the building. There are no outbuildings. There was no excess development potential 
with the site. 

RMA Associates 
	

30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 65 



Comparable Sale #6 
Property Type: Industrial/Warehouse Building 

Location: 9 Batchelder Road 
Seabrook NH 

Grantor: Corium Real Estate Corp. 
Sale Price: $4,250,000 ($97.01/SF) 
Sale Date: 4/19/19 
Financing: Conventional 
Confirmed By: RPC (9/20) 

Property Description 
Lot Size: 4.57 Acres 
Utilities: Electricity, Tele., Gas, 
Water & Sewer 
GBA: 43,808SF 
Condition: Above Average 

Map/Block/Lot: 5/14/2 

Grantee: JPO Seabrook LLC 
Sale Conditions: Normal 
Book/Page: 5993/2159 Rockingham County 
Property Rights: Fee Simple 
Source: Assessor & Sales Broker 

Frontage: 220.12+/- feet Batchelder Road 
Zone: I (Industrial) 

Year Built: 1997 
Construction: Masonry & Steel 

RMA Associates 
	

30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 66 



Comments: The property is located 1+/- mile off Interstate 95 in Seabrook. This 43,808 square-
foot, industrial warehouse building contains 4,528 square feet (10.3%) of ground floor - office 
space with the remainder being open manufacturing and warehouse space. The warehouse areas 
have clear height of 27' to 30'. There is 3 phase (1600 amp) electrical service. The building is 
fully sprinklered. There are 2 dock-high delivery doors and 1 drive-in (10' x 12') overhead door. 
The buyer is distributor of leather book covers. There was no deferred maintenance at closing. 
The building was vacant at closing. There are 50 on-site parking spaces at the property. The 
property is deemed to be in a good location. The buyer was a local real estate investor who 
brought in a tenant. No environmental issues were reported by the broker. 

RMA Associates 
	

30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 67 



Comparable Sale #7 
Property Type: Industrial/Warehouse Building 

Location: 239 Walton Road 
Seabrook NH 

Grantor: Rebacca Nash 
Sale Price: $2,414,000 
Sale Date: 9/1/17 
Financing: Conventional 
Confirmed By: RPC (10/18) 

Property Description 
Lot Size: 24.10 Acres 
Utilities: Electricity, Tele., Gas, 
Water & Sewer 
GBA: 54,859SF 
Condition: Average 

Map/Block/Lot: 13/47 

Grantee: Mowbray CP Realty LLC 
Sale Conditions: Normal 
Book/Page: 5950/2922 Rockingham County 
Property Rights: Fee Simple 
Source: Assessor & Sales Broker 

Frontage: 65+/- feet Walton Road 
Zone: C-1 

Year Built: 1976 
Construction: Masonry & Steel 

RMA Associates 
	

30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 68 



Comments: The property is located one to two miles off Interstate 95 in Seabrook. This 54,859 
square-foot, industrial warehouse building contains 4,459 square feet (8.12%) of office space 
with the remainder being open manufacturing and warehouse space. The warehouse areas have 
clear height of 16' to 20'. There are a total of 5 dock-high delivery doors and 2 drive-in 
overhead doors. The buyer is manufacturer of dumpsters. There was a modest amount of 
deferred maintenance at closing. The buyer invested $10.00/SF in office upgrades and made 
roof repairs. The building was vacant at closing. There is ample on-site parking at the property. 
The property is deemed to be in a good location. 

RMA Associates 
	 30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 69 



Comments on Comparable Sales  
Comparable sales data for industrial properties within the subject marketplace is limited and 
generally reflects a significant range of differences from one property to another with regard to 
market conditions, location, building type, unit size, configuration, and the condition and quality 
of the improvements. As a result, attempting to quantitatively adjust for each of these 
differences is difficult, and typically not substantiated by market data. As a result, a qualitative 
analysis considering each property will be employed. Initially, we compared the seven sales to 
the subject property in terms of financing terms, conditions of sale and overall market conditions. 

Financing arrangements may alter the transaction prices of two identical properties. Therefore, 
favorable financing terms of the comparable sales must be investigated to determine which sales, 
if any, require adjustments to reflect normal market financing terms; analysis of the sales 

that ail ilansaacci a.J GiL11G1 all uaNii 01 with uulivciiiiunal finaming. vv lul icgaid Lk) 
conditions of sale, investigation of the sale comparables revealed that all involved arm's-length 
transactions reflecting typical buyer motivations. 

An adjustment for market conditions may be required to the comparables if property values have 
appreciated or depreciated between the consummation of the sale and the effective date of 
appraisal. Price changes for industrial properties could not be reliably extracted from available 
market data. However, discussions with market participants indicated that prices for industrial 
properties similar to the subject in terms of use, age and condition have remained generally 
stable during this time period and are reflective of current market conditions. 

We then compared the sales to the subject property in terms of location, type and quality of the 
improvements, physical condition, building size, land area and occupancy. We have 
qualitatively rated the building size of the comparables as either inferior, superior or similar, 
relative to the subject building. Due to economies of scale, smaller properties tend to reflect a 
higher (superior) price on a per square foot basis, while larger properties reflect a lower (inferior) 
levels. Those sales considered most similar to the subject property, based on our areas of 
comparison, were given the most weight in our reconciliation process. 

The following is a brief discussion outlining each sale and its relative comparability with the 
01 	 • 	 ,,,,s-sc.rf .1 I ut_d,, Fl %.11/1/4/1. Ly • 

Sale 1  
This property is located in the former Pease Air Force complex in Portsmouth. The 
property is deemed to be similar to the subject in terms of condition and location. 
Constructed in 1996 (new addition in 2001) for use as a warehouse/distribution 
building, it was reportedly in average condition at the time of sale. The property was 
considered similar to the subject in terms of overall utility. Overall, this sale was 
considered similar to the subject property due to all of these factors. This sale has been 
given significant weight within in our reconciliation process. This property also 
involves a leasehold estate (ownership interest) with leased land. 

RMA Associates 
	

30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 70 



Sale 2  
This property is also located off Interstate 95 in an established industrial area. The 
property is deemed to be in a similar location compared to the subject property. 
Constructed in 1990 (renovated in 2016) for use as a warehouse/industrial building, it 
was reportedly in above average condition (after renovations) and was considered 
similar to the subject in terms of overall utility and condition. The building was built 
out for a single tenant (Federal Express) who has 4+ years remaining on its lease term. 
Overall, this sale was considered similar to the subject due primarily to its similar 
condition and similar size. This sale has been given higher weight within in our 
reconciliation process. 

Sale 3  
This property is also located just west of Route 1 in Portsmouth in an established 
industrial area. The property is deemed to be in a slightly inferior location compared to 
the subject property. Constructed in 1980 (renovated in 2020) for use as a 
warehouse/industrial building. It was reportedly in poor condition after the time of sale 
and was considered to be inferior in terms of overall utility and condition. The buyer 
invested $1 million of improvements to the property. The building was suited for a 
single tenant. Overall, this sale was considered inferior to the subject due primarily to 
its slightly inferior location, inferior condition and smaller size. This sale has been 
given modest weight within in our reconciliation process. 

Sale 4  
This property is also located just west of Route 1 in Portsmouth in an established 
industrial area. The property is deemed to be in a slightly inferior location compared to 
the subject property. Constructed in 1995 for use as a warehouse/industrial building. It 
was reportedly in good condition after the time of sale and was considered to be similar 
in terms of overall utility and condition. The building is suited for a single tenant. 
Overall, this sale was considered slightly inferior to the subject due primarily to its 
slightly inferior location. This sale has been given higher weight within in our 
reconciliation process. 

RMA Associates 
	

30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 71 



Sale 5  
This property is located off Interstate 95 in Greenland in an established retail/office 
area. The property is deemed to be inferior to the subject in terms of condition and is 
considered slightly superior in terms of location. Constructed in 1976 for use as a 
warehouse/distribution building, it was reportedly in poor condition at the time of sale. 
The property was considered similar to the subject in terms of overall utility. Overall, 
this sale was considered slightly inferior to the subject property due to its inferior 
condition. This sale has been given moderate weight within in our reconciliation 
process. 

Sale 6  
This property is in a similar location, near Interstate 95 in Seabrook. The property is deemed 
to be slightly larger in size to the subject. Constructed in 1997 1b use as an 
industrial/warehouse building. It was reportedly in above average condition at the time 
of sale. The building is occupied by one tenant. Overall, this sale was considered 
similar to the subject Ane primarily to its lnoatinn, conditi on  and size  at the tim e  of sal e . 
This sale has also been given significant weight within in our reconciliation process. 

Sale 7  
This property is in a slightly inferior location, east of Route 1 in Seabrook. The property is 
larger in size to the subject. Constructed in 1976 for use as an industrial/warehouse 
building, it was reportedly in average condition at the time of sale. The buyer invested 
$10.00/SF in upgrades after its purchase. Overall, this sale was considered slightly 
inferior to the subject due primarily to its slightly inferior location and larger size at the 
time of sale. This sale has also been given lower weight within in our reconciliation 
process. 

The matrix located on the following page summarizes our comparative analysis between the 
subject property and our data set of sale comparables. 

RMA Associates 
	

30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 72 



74= 

74" 

-g 
i-1; - ' 

< 2-  z12, 

8 

"!" 

\ 7 $| !\ !§  

S
al

es
  C

o
m

p
ar

is
on

  M
at

ri
x  

30
  N

ew
  H

am
ps

hi
re

  A
ve

nu
e,

  P
or

ts
m

ou
th

  N
H

 
R

M
A

 A
ss

o
ci

at
es

  



The following table indicates the apportioned weight applied to each sale in our reconciliation 
process. 

Sale # 	Location 

Adjusted 

Price 

Per SF Weight 

Esti mata,c 

Price 1  

Pe-r SF 

1 20 Durham Street 

2 218 Griffin Road 

$102.70 

$96.97 

20.00% 

20.00% 

$20.54 

$19.39 

3 225 Heritage Avenue $100.58 9.00% $9.05 

4 200 West Road $101.40 9.00% $9.13 
5 125 Ocean Rnad 5aqin .)n.nn% 5iszg .) 

6 9 Ekm- chelder Ro a d $100.89 70 00% $20 18 

7 239 Walton $88.73 2.00% $1.77 

Totals 100.00% $98.69 

Based on the preceding comparable analysis and weighted reconciliation process, the estimated 
value of the subject property, on an "as is" basis, has been established at $104.50 per square foot 
as of September 16, 2020 per square foot. 

36,000SF x 	$98.50/SF 
Less Land Value 
Adjusted Value 
Rounded 

= 
= 
= 
= 

$3,546,000 
$1,713,223 
$1,832,770 
$1,835,000 

As a result of this analysis, we estimate the retrospective market value of the fee simple estate of 
the subject property, on an "as is" basis, as indicated by the Sales Comparison Approach, as of 
September 15, 2020 to be: 

$1,835,000 

*LEASEHOLD ADJUSTMENT 

Based upon the existing ground lease in place, an additional adjustment to account to the land 
ownership. The subject's current allocated ground lease payments are $145,624 per year. 
Within an Income Capitalization analysis in this report, a capitalization rate of 8.0% of utilized. 
Adding a 50 Basis Point to this rate given the nature and term of the lease, a ground lease rate of 
8.5% will be used. 

This results in a land allocation of $1,713,223 which we have deducted from the overall value. 

RMA Associates 
	

30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 74 



RECONCILIATION 

Reconciliation is the process of coordinating and integrating the facts in order to develop a 
unified conclusion. Its purpose is to develop the most reliable estimate of value based on an 
analysis of the quality, quantity and durability of all the data developed. In the estimation of the 
most probable market value of the subject property, the appraisers considered the Income 
Approach and Sales Comparison Approach. These approaches have provided the following 
value indications: 

Summation of Value Indications 

Income Approach 
	

$ 1,560,000 
Sales Comparison Approach 

	
$ 1,835,000 

Each of the valuation approaches has been employed independently of the other. The following 
discussion presents our evaluation of the contribution, which each approach lends to a final value 
estimate. 

Income Approach — Income producing properties are purchased on the basis of 
anticipated net income. The income approach is reliable when rental income, operating 
expenses, capitalization rate, and method of capitalization are estimated from adequate 
information relating to the existing market conditions. The subject has been exclusively 
operated as an income property by the current ownership. As such, the appraisers 
believe this approach to be an appropriate and reliable indicator of market value for the 
subject property and has been given weight in our reconciliation process. 

Sales Comparison Approach — The Sales Comparison Approach meets the criteria of 
appropriateness, quality of data, and quantity of data. Both buyers and sellers in the 
marketplace heavy reliance on transaction data in the negotiation of purchase and sale 
agreements for properties such as the subject. Industrial properties of similar size and 
use to the subject are often acquired by owner-occupants who primarily utilize this 
approach in evaluating target properties. In addition, owner-occupant purchasers often 
pay a price premium over investors due to long-term property control and stability 
factors. As such, the appraisers believe this approach to be a reliable indicator of 
market value for the subject property, and therefore has been given weight in our 
reconciliation process. 

RMA Associates 
	

30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 75 



FINAL VALUE ESTIMATE 

As a result of our investigation and analysis of the data contained in this report, we find the most 
probable "as is" retrospective market value of the leasehold estate, as of September 16, 2020 
based upon the scope of work outlined on pages 8-9, to be: 

("AS IS") 
(ONE MILLION AND FIVE HUNDRED AND FIFTY THOUSAND DOLLARS) 

($1,750,000) 

MARKETING & EXPOSURE TIME ESTIMATE 

We have considered whether a "current" sale, i.e., a sale that can be completed within twelve 
months, is likely, and concluded that it is. This conclusion was drawn based on a thorough 
analysis of market activity, market conditions and desirability of the subject property. We have 
further considered a reasonable exposure times should be between six and twelve months for 
both valuation periods. 

Probability of Value Change: 

The estimated market/use values of the property appraised in this report are estimated as 
of the aforementioned date. Constantly changing economic, social, political and physical 
conditions have varying effects upon real property values. Even after the passage of a 
relatively short period of time, property values may change substantially and require a new 
appraisal. 

The value indicated is subject to the General Assumptions and General Limiting Conditions 
located at the end of the report. 

RMA Associates 
	

30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 76 



GENERAL ASSUMPTIONS AND LIMITING CONDITIONS 

This appraisal is subject to the following assumptions and limiting conditions. 

General Assumptions  

No responsibility is assumed for the legal description provided of for matters pertaining to legal 
or title considerations. Title to the property is assumed to be good and marketable unless 
otherwise stated. 

The property is assumed free and clear of any or all liens or encumbrances unless otherwise 
stated. 

Responsible ownership and competent property management are assumed. 

The information furnished by others is believed to be reliable, but no warranty is given for its 
accuracy. 

All engineering studies are assumed to be correct. The plot plans and illustrative materials are 
included only to help the reader visualize the property. 

It is assumed that there are no hidden or unapparent conditions of the property, subsoil, or 
structures that render it more or less valuable. No responsibility is assumed for such conditions 
or for obtaining the engineering studies that may be required to discover them. 

It is assumed that the property is in full compliance with all applicable federal, state, and local 
environmental regulations and laws unless the lack of compliance is stated, described, and 
considered in this forecast of valuation. 

It is assumed that the property conforms to all applicable zoning and use regulations and 
restrictions unless a non-conformity has been identified, described and considered in the value 
range forecast. 

It is assumed that all required licenses, certificates of occupancy, consents, and other legislative 
or administrative authority from any local, state, or national government or private entity or 
organization have been or can be obtained or renewed for any use on which the value range 
forecast is based. 

It is assumed that the use of the land and improvements is confined within the boundaries or 
property lines of the property described and that there is no encroachment or trespass unless 
noted in this report. 

The appraisal should not be considered a report on the physical items that are a part of this 
property. Although the appraisal may contain information about the physical items being 
appraised (including their adequacy and/or condition), it should be clearly understood that this 
information is only to be used as a general guide for property valuation and not as a complete or 

RMA Associates 
	

30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 77 



detailed physical report. The appraisers are not construction, engineering, environmental, or 
legal experts, and any statement given on these matters in this report should be considered 
preliminary in nature. 

The observed condition of the foundation, roof, exterior walls, interior walls, floors, heating 
system, plumbing, insulation, electrical service, and all mechanicals and construction is based on 
a casual inspection only and no detailed inspection was made. For instance, we are not experts 
on heating systems and no attempt was made to inspect the interior of the furnace. The 
structures were not checked for building code violations, and it is assumed that all buildings meet 
applicable building codes unless so stated in the report. 

Some items such as conditions behind walls, above ceilings, behind locked doors, or under the 
61ui11a aic 1101 c.N.pucki tu GQJUa1 V1l.VV and L11G1 GIVIG werc 1101 ifispectcd. 1111 eXi6tei eir.; Of 

insulation, if any is mentioned, was found by conversation with others and/or circumstantial 
evidence. Since it is not exposed to view, the accuracy of any statements about insulation cannot 
he guaranteed 

Because no detailed inspection was made, and because such knowledge goes beyond the scope 
of the value range forecast, any observed condition or other comments given should not be taken 
as a guarantee that a problem does not exist. Specifically, no guarantee is made as to the 
adequacy of condition of the foundation, roof, exterior walls, interior walls, floors, heating 
system, air conditioning system, plumbing, electrical service, insulation, or any other detailed 
construction matters. If any interested party were concerned about the existence, condition, or 
adequacy of a particular item, we would strongly suggest that a construction expert be hired for a 
detailed investigation. 

Engineering analyses of the subject property were neither provided for nor made as a part of this 
value range forecast. Any representation as to the suitability of the property for uses suggested 
in this analysis is therefore based only on a rudimentary investigation and the value range 
forecast is subject to such limitations. 

The Americans with Disabilities Act ("ADA") became effective January 26, 1992. We have not 
made a specific compliance survey and analysis of this property to determine whether nr not it is 

 in conformity with the various detailed requirements of the ADA. It is possible that a 
compliance survey of the property, together with a detailed analysis of the requirements of the 
ADA, could reveal that the property is not in compliance with one or more of the requirements of 
the Act. If so, this fact could have a negative effect upon the value range forecast of the 
property. Since we have no direct evidence relating to this issue, possible noncompliance with 
the requirements of ADA in estimating the value range forecast of the property has not been 
considered. 

Unless otherwise stated, the existence of hazardous materials, which may or may not be present 
on the property, was not observed. The preparer of this value range forecast, however, is not 
qualified to detect such substances. The presence of substances such as asbestos, urea-
formaldehyde foam insulation, and other potentially hazardous materials may affect the value of 
the property. The appraisal value estimate is predicated on the assumption that there is no such 

RMA Associates 
	

30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 78 



material on or in the property that would cause a loss in value. No responsibility is assumed for 
such conditions or for any expertise or engineering knowledge required to discover them. The 
client is urged to retain an expert in this field, if desired. 

General Limiting Conditions 

Any allocation of the total value estimate in this report between the land and the improvements 
applies only under the stated program of utilization. The separate values allocated to the land 
and buildings must not be used in conjunction with any other appraisal and are invalid of so 
used. 

Possession of this report, or a copy thereof, does not carry with it the right of publication. 

The appraiser, by reason of this appraisal, is not required to give further consultations or 
testimony or to be in attendance in court with reference to the property in question unless 
arrangements have been previously made. 

Laws of the Appraisal Institute govern disclosure of the contents of this report. Neither all nor 
any part of the contents of this report (especially any conclusions as to value, the identity of the 
appraiser, or the firm which the appraiser is connected) shall be disseminated to the public 
through advertising, public relations, news, sales, or other media without the prior written 
consent and approval of the appraiser. 

The appraiser may not divulge the material (valuation) contents of this report, analytical findings 
or conclusions, or give a copy of the report to anyone other than the client or his designee as 
specified in writing, (except as may be required by the Bylaws and Regulations of the Appraisal 
Institute as they request in confidence for ethics enforcement), or by a court of law or body with 
the power of subpoena. 

If this appraisal is used for mortgage loan purposes, the appraiser invites attention to the fact that 
(1) the equity cash requirements of the sponsor have not been analyzed, (2) the loan ratio has not 
been suggested, and (3) amortization method and term have not been suggested. 

The function of this report is not for use in conjunction with a syndication of real property. This 
report cannot be used for said purposes and, therefore, any use of this report relating to 
syndication activities is strictly prohibited and unauthorized. If such an unauthorized use of this 
report takes place, it is understood and agreed that The Stanhope Group has no liability to the 
client and/or third parties. 

Furnishings and equipment or business operation, except as specifically indicated and typically 
considered as a part of real estate, have been disregarded with only the real estate being 
considered. 

On all appraisals subject to satisfactory completion, repairs, or alterations, the appraisal report 
and value conclusions are contingent upon completion of the improvements in a workmanlike 
manner. 

RMA Associates 
	

30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 79 



The forecasts, projections, or operating estimates contained herein are based on market data and 
conditions as of the date of this report. Although reasonably expected trends are projected, it is 
impossible to accurately anticipate the future conditions that could influence the value. Any 
substantial changes in market conditions could have a favorable or unfavorable influence on the 
value. There is no responsibility assumed regarding future changes in the market that could not 
be anticipated as of the date of this report. 

Acceptance and Use 

Acceptance of and/or use of this appraisal report constitutes acceptance of the foregoing General 
Assumptions and General Li—if;ng Conditions. 

RMA Associates 
	

30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NIA 	 Page 80 



CERTIFICATION 

We certify that, to the best of our knowledge and belief: 

we have complied with the client's instructions, standards, and specifications in 
conducting the research and analysis, and formulating the value conclusion. 

the statements of fact contained in this report are true and correct. 

the reported analyses, opinions, and conclusions are limited only by the reported 
assumptions and limiting conditions and are our personal, impartial, and unbiased 
professional analyses, opinions, and conclusions. 

we have the requisite knowledge and experience to undertake the assignment. 

this appraisal assignment was not based upon a requested minimum valuation, a 
specific valuation, or the approval of a loan. 

the reported analyses, opinions, and conclusions are limited only by the reported 
assumptions and limiting conditions, and is our personal, unbiased professional 
analyses, opinions, and conclusions. 

we have no present or prospective interest in the property that is the subject of this 
report and we have no personal interest or bias with respect to the parties 
involved. 

our engagement in this assignment was not contingent upon developing or 
reporting predetermined results. 

our compensation for completing this assignment is not contingent upon the 
development or reporting of a predetermined value or direction in value that 
favors the cause of the client, the amount of the value opinion, the attainment of a 
stipulated result, or the occurrence of a subsequent event directly related to the 
intended use of this appraisal. 

our analyses, opinions, and conclusions were developed, and this report has been 
prepared, in conformity with the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal 
Practice. 

Robert P. Concannon, MAI has inspected the interior and exterior of the subject 
property on September 16, 2020. 

no one provided significant professional assistance to the persons signing this 
report. 

RMA Associates 
	

30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 81 



we certify to the best of our knowledge and beliefs, the reported analyses, 
opinions and conclusions were developed, and this report has been prepared, in 
conformity with the requirements of the Code of Professional Ethics and the 
Standards of Professional Practice of the Appraisal Institute. 

we certify that the use of this report is subject to the requirements of the Appraisal 
Institute relating to review by its duly authorized representatives. 

As of the date of this report, Robert P. Concannon, MAI has completed the 
Standards and Ethics Education Requirements for Practicing Affiliates of the 
Appraisal Institute. 

Robert P. Concannon, MAi has performed no services, as appraisers or in any 
other capacity, regarding the property that is the subject of this report within the 
three-year period immediately preceding acceptance of this assignment. 

Robert P. Concannon, MAI 
Chief Appraiser - NHCG-657 

RMA Associates 
	

30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 82 



ADDENDA 

RMA Associates 	30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 83 



Subject Photoarauhs 

Front of Subject Complex 

Front of Subject Complex 

RMA Associates 	 30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 
	

Page 84 



Front of Subject Section 

Subiect Photographs   

Left Side of Subject Section 

RMA Associates 	 30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 
	

Page 85 



Subiect Photographs 

Rear of Subject Section & Office Section 

RMA Associates 	 30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 
	

Page 86 



Subject Photographs 

Rear of of Subject Section 

Rear of Office Section 

RMA Associates 	 30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 
	

Page 87 



Subiect Photographs 

 

 

 

Front Entranceway — New Hampshire Avenue 

 

Street Scene — New Hampshire Avenue 

RMA Associates 	 30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 
	

Page 88 



Subject Photographs 

Street Scene - New Hampshire Avenue 

Street Scene — Exeter Road 

RMA Associates 	 30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 
	

Page 89 



Interior of Warehouse 

RMA Associates 	 30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH Page 90 



Subject Photographs 

Interior of Warehouse 

Building Layout 

RMA Associates 	 30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 
	

Page 91 



. 130 

101 
Marshall 
Corner 

lei fi I N E 
Payneton Chases Pond 

? 1 . Scituate 
Sootlandt,  

Bacon 	• 	Cider Hill • , 

York Corner 

Area Maps 

tam, 
	 0/044 

/31 
	

• gc,„5, 

z 

	
•'•.0m 	

,,tcf "

▪  

), 

\St 
	Eliot 

Park 4 	Piscetaqua 	 103 

'Newington 

Go 

Wentworth 
	

Atlantic Heights,. 
Acres 

.01.40fs 

anr13 

suboct Property 
	

X 

30 New Hampshire Ave 
Portsmouth, NH 03001 

	

v,..:P - 	€4. 

	

,,eit 	-3, 	 'Cs 
4 	 o 

it 
tiA,,, 	

Ck 
-2r 

t;,,,_ 

	

Cr 	6' 	'- 
45 

 E,-..c'PV-4' 
ili 	‘S‘E 	

Ate kf

:pilood  

4.
7-.4 Pef.SE• 

	

& e 4.  '... 	
0 ‹,. 

'0, a> 
,....0 , 

lt' 10 	V.,..s: 
^0 

-ici, 	v=:-.= 	/is 
c'4C' \S'  -7, -.1. 

1. . 	.a Creek, 

Securest 
Vivaae 

Market St 

a 	 Oak PSG  

E 	 5, 	 515  

eto 	 l'-e* 
&'- 	 ‘, 
z 

Mnarinwhrnnk 
135 

aDover 

  

 

efbcham 

  

Sawyers 

Mafibury 155  

   

  

Gould Corner 

   

et, 

  

Lee Five 	 9 

• 

• 	.Rosemary 
t't 

Corners 	 ,... 
'Xi 	 230 0. 	 East' 

. 305A 	 103 	Eliot 	101 

Durham 

th ,Lee 
ryttadley Falls 

Newmarket -  "  

:It 
4 I 

 

FourCorneaur   	.44,trot 	Stnemn 	
P ann away' 

Stattrah, 	 Manor 
Clak , 	 Greenland 

:amp Hedding 	Hill 	 Baysid: 	 Station 

Littlefield .  Newfig* , 	. 	- -Oreenland.  

R 0 ,, 1 ,. 1 if - G 1-' •A kit 	 ,
Camp Gundalow 

Winnloonle 	 1 5 1 	Breakfast 
.5 	 Hill 
Blinn taut 

	

Parkm an 	Mills 	 West Rye ,  , 	. 

Corner 

South 
Side 

Cape 
Nei:lack 

York Cliffs 

York Beach 	Concordville 

Long 
Beach 

York Heights 

'Yelik Herb*,  
Seaburf 

	as 
Bedell Crossing 

Kittery Pont 
New 
Castle 

10 

Grams C.pmer 
Subject Property 

iferibr0041% 30 New Hampshire Ave 
Teriani'''' 	Portsmouth, NI-10380i 
Newington 

Station 
icranfmrth 	 Atlantic Heights 

Be in Gardens 	Kitter , 

Portsmouth0._ shams Will. 

Portsmouth 
Plaihs 

F oyes Come' 

Fairhill 
'Elwyn Pak 	Manor 

Lanus 	• Wallis Sands 
Comer 

' RVe IA rjorth  

RMA Associates 
	30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 92 



I NO 

Municipal Tax Card 

Portsi-ntxqh, NH VISION 

Search 	Street ._sting 	Sales Sea r::;h 	Feedback 	Back. GM F..-  

30 NEW HAMPSKRE AVE 	
Ci Sales •  Pnnt g f teld and 9 Mon 

132(: - :!COD3f 

Acti::4 :373:35 	 3F-":' ■2 ASS DEVELOPMENT 
LLC 

AsseSZMent :54 a82901 

KIP R.4 isa 	$4.,c32,900 
	

Pi 1 37835 

Appraisal 

Impicramards 

A &as 5 sn-A,It 

4 m rex,  reintnLE 

Eafvf 

Civiner 	Flecoffd 

Or 	 CEVELCFAMENT L.C.L 

Co-r_Lwe,e;- 	 ,;.AVE 
cIzir.ass 	2": 	 St: ,TE- 

RMA Associates 
	

30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 93 



; Portsmouth, NH 

Search 	Street 	 Sales Search 	Feedback 	Back 	Home 

NEW HAMPSHIRE AVE 
Sim • Print ficidtkre 

Loc:ati.r.o 	3;3; i . 1:1*!;:!!-A --;.PSH RE AVE 	 iv 	03;i3 -:;!i3003i 

ct# 3723E; 	 .0wq;ar 	 DEVELOFMEI-1-  

PaN 	 Ass&ssrnen 

zr;;;prgrit4 54 532X0 	 p!D 37335 

Com;ii' 

As5s.A5rilant 

vaWatitm Year 	 ".134,11**111ie:ItS 
	

top; 	 `4u1 

C'WF,:,7 0.f 

	

avatar 	cf Ctiera CE. -ELCFk 

	

.loess 	2 - C 	 SL 

11;-. 03;01 

Szla 

ec,r'.ifiente 

zo3.1,. 

S7.1:: 0 lea 

RMA Associates 
	

30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 94 



.......... 

     

    

     

     

    

wr..lirmi ,r-A-726z (IN 

r. s frolur 

RMA Associates 	30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 95 



Ci...:rompratt 13o1laicei• rapj-3 of 3 

[,s_:) 

e. za 

  

1.,;arai,a 
Lam 

!If 

    

    

Pun.,21, ■.: 	 i CAgr,01 

RMA Associates 30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 96 



Qualification of the Appraiser 

Robert P. Concannon, MAI 
Real Property Appraiser (NHCG-657 & ME 2393) 

25 York Lane, Lee New Hampshire 
603-767-4987 

Education 

B.S. Business Administration 1986 

Marquette University, Milwaukee, Wisconsin 

Appraisal Classes 

Real Estate Principals 101 (1987) 
Introduction to Real Estate (2003) 
Basic Real Estate Procedures (2003) 
National USPAP Standards (2004) 
Introduction to Income Capitalization (2004) 
Advanced Income Capitalization (2004) 
Report Writing (2005) 
Advanced Applications (2005) 
General Highest and Best Use (2009) 
General Applications (2011) 
Advanced Highest and Best Use (2012) 
Capstone Class (2013) 
Rates and Returns (2017) 
USPAP Updated (2017) 

Employment History 

THE STANHOPE GROUP, LLC (Portsmouth, NH) 

Staff Appraiser 2002 - 2005 

Commercial Staff Appraiser - Performed appraisals on multi-family, apartment complexes, 
industrial buildings, and proposed sub-divisions and vacant tracts of land. Clients included; 
small and large sized financial institutions, private parties, developers, and various law firms and 
accounting practices. Specific work includes marketing studies, rent studies, and feasibility 
analysis. Work assignment locations range from northern Massachusetts (Essex County) to 
southern Maine (York County) and throughout New Hampshire. 

RMA Associates 30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 97 



S & J TRANSPORTATION SERVICES, INC. (Lee, NH) 

General Manager 1997 - 2001 

Oversaw the daily operation of a $10 million freight shipment company. Responsibilities include 
handling the maintenance, safety, operations and accounting departments. Specifically, the 
company employs 60+ drivers, 12 mechanics and yard people, and an administrative staff of 10-
12 individuals. Additionally, successfully handled the negotiation and sale of a storage trailer 
leasing company for $2 million in March 1999. Specific work includes; overseeing the letter of 
intent, financing terms, sale agreements, and disposition of company equipment. 

EASTERN BANCORP (Vermont Federal Bank, Williston, VT) 

Vice President Risk Management 1993 - 1997 

Oversaw the credit administration of a $100 million troubled commercial loan portfolio, with 
specific responsibilities including: workout and real estate owned disposition, loan and appraisal 
review, and loan loss reserve analysis. Managed loan review, internal audit, compliance, 
workout, collections, and real estate owned activities at this community bank. 

OFFICE OF THRIFT SUPERVISION (Boston, MA) 

Field Examiner, Team Leader 1986 - 1993 

Handled Safety and soundness examinations, compliance examinations, credit updates (bank 
wide), liquidation assessments, and reviews of formal applications from member banks. Initially, 
provided support to senior level examiners with increased complexity and administrative 
responsibilities through successful completion of assignments. With proven technical 
proficiency and oral/written communication skills, eventually led training teams of up to seven 
examiners. 

Additionally, participated in several special assignments including the examination of Lincoln 
Savings (controlled by Charles Keating) and an organized crime controlled bank in southern 
New Jersey. Other assignments including analyzing new applications (mergers, acquisitions, 
appointments) for regulated institutions and supported internal review of local agency. As a part 
of this work experience, successfully completed over 20 professional education classes and two 
separate certification programs. 

Personal 
Member: R.M.A., Appraisal Institute (MAI), NH & ME & MA Certified General Appraiser, E —
Licensed Youth Soccer Coach, VP of NH/VT Appraisal Institute Chapter 

REFERENCES UPON REQUEST 

RMA Associates 30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 98 



State of New Hampshire 
REAL ESTATE APPRAISER BOARD 

APPROVED TO PRACTICE AS A 
CERTIFIED GENERAL APPRAISER 

ISSUED To: ROBERT P CONCANNON 

Certificate No: NHCG-657 
	

EXPIRATION DATE: 03/31/2021 

State of New Hampshire 
REAL ESTATE APPRAISER BOARD 

APPROVED TO PRACTICE AS A 
Certified General Appraiser 

ISSUED To: ROBERT P CONCANNON 

	

Certificate No: 
	

EXPIRATION DATE: 

	

NHCG-657 
	

03/31/2021 

For additional information please contact the Board office at colleen.giffin@ople.nh.gov  or visit our web site at 
hap 	ww.0 olc.n 1).2o vireal-estate-anora ise rsiin ex.11   

RMA Associates 
	

30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 99 



RMA Associates 
	

30 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth NH 	 Page 100 



PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

	 55 Inierm8Wonal Drme Portsmouth, 	03801 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

Date: April 6, 2021 

To: 	Paul Brean, Executive Director 

From: Iry Canner, Director of Finance 	,t4(  

Subject: Executive Summary- Financial Reports 

In anticipation of the upcoming April 12, 2021 Pease Development Finance Committee meeting, the following 

is an Executive Summary of the two financial reports for your review and comment: 

Report #1 - Financial Report for the Eight -Month Period Ending February 28.  2021 

We are reporting on the first eight months of operations specific to FY 2021. At this time, there are no 

meaningful trends that have been identified that would challenge the FY 2021 operating budget. 

Actual operating revenues of $11.1 million are slightly below budget by 0.3% primarily due to the increase in 

fee revenues associated with facility rentals and golf course related public play revenues. Slightly offsetting 

these revenue gains were the decreased fuel revenues associated with the reconstruction of the Portsmouth 

Fish Pier Wall as well as, due to the Covid-19 pandemic, pay for parking and fuel flowage revenues at PSM. 

Actual operating expenses of $8.0 million are below budget by $1.2 million primarily due to expense under 

runs in facilities maintenance, legal, marketing, utilities, and the cost of fuel at the Portsmouth Fish Pier. In 

addition, the favorable winter season through February also contributed to lower operating costs. 

The resulting Operating Income of $3.1 million is $1.2 million greater than expected which directly 

contributed to our ability to address internal working capital requirements and somewhat minimize the need 

to draw-down from the $15.0 million Revolving Line of Credit (RLOC) with the Provident Bank. 

Business Unit Performance 

Portsmouth Airport 

Operating revenues total $1,073,000 which is under budget by $198,000. The primary reason for the budget 

variance underrun, was associated with the Covid 19 pandemic highlighted in lower pay for parking revenues 

and fuel flowage fees. Current enplanements of 9,197 are less than the prior year to date (14,500) due once 

again to the Covid 19 pandemic. Slightly offsetting these revenue shortfalls were monies received under the 

Affordable Cares Act. 

Skyhaven Airport  

Operating revenues total $ 159,000 which is above budget by $27,000. The primary reason for the favorable 

variance was primarily due to higher fuel sales of 14,115 gallons versus 9,625 gallons on a fiscal year to date 

basis. Cumulative net cash flow losses, since accepting the operational responsibilities for Skyhaven Airport 

during FY 2009, now total approximately $1.7 million. 

TAKING YOU THERE 
	 1 

ph 503-433-6088 	fa:.. G03-427-0433 	 peasedev.org  



Report #1- Financial Report for the Eight-Month Period Ending February 28. 2021  (continued) 

Business Unit Performance  (continued) 

Tradeport 

Operating revenues total $6,288,000 which is above budget by 1.8%. The primary reason for the favorable 

variance is associated with rental of facilities. 

Golf Course 

Operating revenues total $2,072,000 which is above budget. The primary reasons are associated with public 

play at the golf course. A total of 62,315 rounds were played through November versus 55,321 rounds the 

prior season. Gross revenues at the Grill 28 of $1,067,000 are somewhat less (9.0%) than the prior eight-

month period ending February in part, due to the Covid 19 pandemic. The course opened the new season on 

March 26th 

Division of Ports and Harbors 

Unrestricted operating revenues total $1,383,000 which is slightly less than budgeted revenues of 

$1,716,000. The lost fuel sales at the Portsmouth Fish Pier have been slightly offset by incremental mooring 

and facilities fee revenues. 

Balance Sheet  (Page #8) 

Total current assets are $8.6 million consisting primarily of $3.8 million in unrestricted cash and $4.2 million 

in accounts receivables. Net  cash balances (PDA $1.9 million and DPH $1.9 million) have decreased by 

$1,439,000 since June 30, 2020 due to the following activities: 

Operating Income 	 $ 3,109,000 

RLOC Line of Credit Draw Down 	 3,500,000 

Contributed Capital 	 12,294,000 

Accounts Receivable 	 4,707,000 

Accounts Payable 	 (3,789,000) 

Capital Expenditures 	 (21,050,000) 

All Other- Net 	 (210,000) 

Total 	 $ (1,439,000)  



Report #1- Financial Report for the Eight-Month Period Ending February 28. 2021  (continued) 

Balance Sheet  (Page #8) 

The majority of the accounts receivable balances can be attributable to federal or state construction 

activities. 

Restricted assets total approximately $1.6 million and consist primarily of the Revolving Loan Fund which has 

total assets of $1.2 million. At present, there are 20 participant loans outstanding with a principal balance 

outstanding of $904,186. 

Capital assets have increased approximately $17.5 million, net of depreciation, to $93.1 million primarily due 

to the extensive capital improvements at PSM including the terminal expansion and runway reconstruction 

project. During the eight-month period ending February 28, 2021 the more significant capital expenditures 

included: 

• PSM Runway Reconstruction Project $ 10,494,000 

• PSM Terminal Expansion 8,720,000 

• DPH Main Pier BUILD Grant 628,000 

• DPH Bulkhead and Construction 369,000 

• PSM Alpha South Hold Bay 335,000 

• Volvo L9OH Wheel Loader 176,000 

• PSM Eldorado Bus 72,000 

• All Other 256,000 

Total $ 	21,050,000  

Total current liabilities are approximately $10.4 million, representing a $0.2 million decrease from June 30, 

2020. Accounts payables represent $6.1 million, reflecting a $3.8 million decrease from June 30, 2020. In 

addition, during the eight-month period we requested a net $3.5 million draw down from our RLOC at the 

Provident Bank to help offset the cash requirements in supporting of the two primary capital projects at PSM. 

Updated net pension and OPEB liability for the PDA at June 30, 2020 total $9.8 million which was a $1.9 

million decrease from the prior year. The 16.2% reduction was associated with the investment returns of plan 

assets being in excess of targeted benchmarks and changes in investment assumptions. The New Hampshire 

Retirement System reported a 1.1% return on investments in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. 

As noted on page #5, the current PDA Organization Chart reflects 59 filled benefited positions and 6 open 

benefited positions. 



Report #2- Cash Flow Projections for the Nine Month Period Ending December 31, 2021 

During the next nine-month period internal cash flow projections are dominated by approximately $12.3 

million in capital expenditures primarily in support of the PSM Runway Reconstruction Project and the PSM 

Terminal Expansion. Of these monies, $7.0 million will be grant funded requiring the PDA to draw upwards of 

$7.0 million through our $15.0 million RLOC with the Provident Bank. Based on current expectations of actual 

grant reimbursements during this period, the net debt outstanding is projected at $5.2 million at December 

31, 2021. 

Revenue projections have been modified due to the coronavirus environment as associated with the 

reopening of the golf course and Grill 28 operations. To a lesser extent PSM Pay for Parking revenues and fuel 

flowage fees are also anticipated to be less than budgeted. 

Page # 3 of the report provides the detailed monthly cash flow projections noting the minimum cash balances 

remain at approximately $1.5 million to allow the PDA to address its ongoing working capital requirements. 

Again, a critical component in developing these cash flow projections is the timely reimbursement process 

associated with grant funded capital projects. 

PROJECTED CASH AND DEBT BALANCES 

8,000 

PROJECTED  DEBT 
OF 5 5,1.50 

6,000 

4,000 

PRO3OCTED 
CASH  $ :I.S:t7 

2,000 

0 
APR 	 MAY 	 JUN 	 JUL 	 AUG 	 SEP 	 OCT 	 NOV 	 DEC 

UNRESTRICTED CASH 

• 	BANK DEBT 

Through March 31, 2021 the PDA has $2.0 million outstanding under the $15.0 million RLOC with the 

Provident Bank at a rate of approximately 2.9%. 

At your convenience, I would be pleased to address any questions or supplemental information 

you may need. 



N 
0 
N 

(4' 
14 

 

 



N 

141 
N 

z 
, 	 • 

-1 

■ 

N 

.--. 	 - 

z: 	0 	 • 	 .. 	as 
.....t CC ' 	s'n 	 - 	 .' 	r•-•■ 	its 
▪ ,...i  	4 	 •I 	r4 	ry er  ,  — 
m -.  ._. 	-4 	 .-4 
J  ° 

	

LW ....-.' 	
.44". 

	

.4-7 	CO I-, 	O. 	
•  .1 	CO 	0 Z  V r) CI 

44.■  12f 7-• 	•.-4 	
r aj 	 I.,. 

r,  W ,- 	 r.i. 	
r. 

4 
4..:, 	.> 

• <C  L"..) 
=4  1-1 

4ia  I:1  74 	
1-41 

N 

	

4.:- 	 4 	
• 	

14 • 

	 •i 	N 
T 

t 

0 	o- 

)4,  

.....- 	
- 	1 

,... 
 

_ 	
.... 	1- 

L....-; 	.. 	. 	 .."',1 	4,-4 
CI 	...--i 

4 
4.  -,"  1'7. 	 03 	/47: 

ti ,  42,  Lc 	,-4  
..3.- 	 ' 1-,  

. - 
-..--: 

(11 	VI 	 P 
-, 

 Z 
 (.0 	..-''3-:  ■7'. 	... 	

. 

;.;  . 
Z 	 ,:-, ,: 	 CI 
ii.: U „i 

LL 
	 : 

Lr-}  p  ... 	•••-•-! 
' : 	5E 	 :7 	

.-.: 

7:'...:. 	 :.,. 

44t 	:••••i;  	, 	71 	;•-; 
• Ah 	.:■:: 

....  • 

	

0 
a 	•-,:”. 

■.•' 	t--- 	 . 	fm 

te 	._ 
: : '  :•L..

••.J.; 

O.  4 	0., 	 ;- ■,.. .:::-. 	 ,:.,  ': 	 .:-:-..  ,r1-, 
t F.:  X g: 444,  N 

■-.,  _ 	o 	0_  '  .;_ 	. 7:  .71: 	 — 

q 

b ...  : 
 ia 
,z 

•:::  ',-r, 	 :..1-' :.> 
iti 	 •,-1.' '..i..... 	 -:.-- 	._.: n 
0,4 

>•• 	6 	 ..,,  .. 	-.; 

< 

--4.. 
-■'' 	r 	

. 

. 	. 	
. 
r 

.S7 	Z 	 ;'

i  '.'. 	
.. 	

,  . 	U)  C; 

< .'.  Ef 	 . 	..".. 
 0  ''':. 

• rs 

ct Z 	
-Op I-1 	1.4 It  

Ce 	—   
	,., 

.. 	 . 	
"  .." •-•. 04  

< . LELiC4 	 . 	.24 LLi  

8 	 0  -4 2, 	- .7,1  .11F 
. 

_:.:.. 

CC 

t 



F
U

E
L

 SA
L

E
S

 

Mom 

r-f 

0 

 

< 
LL 

4 <  

7*'"4 	

7'•  ; 

•-;.; 

Z W 

Z z  
LLJ  ui  

LLJ 
Ce 0 

re 
Z 

ce 
Z 

CI" 0 T44  
Z 0  

(NI 
W 
is— 	CO 
'act 

LLJ 
1.04 	iv 

vg" 

(/)
ca  Z ca 

0 0 w  
L.) 14. LL, 

--s 



•,,r1 

ei7 
zo 
LL  N 4  0 

Z 	 , 

.75 

N1 

7i  . 

4 

.11 

:".. 

0 
1.-- 
LI) 
0 

Ci 

!- 
)--4 
Li. 
4-0 

J... 
co 
CI 
IIJ 

—I 

Li. 

:.-  

CL  

MIMI . 

MIMI  LX,  

...1 

= 

x- - • 

'• 

,  . 	.. ■ -; 	 ...27/ 	-  - 	,-,, a 	N, 

-r 	:,...-:: 	4 	7 	i  ,-1 

F.4 	6,_-... 	 ...., 

K-.... 	 -.:-. 	z 	
....., 8 

,13 

 

r- . 	

tni 
ri 

4 

Lr1 
f  • 



	

U. 	 I- 

	

I- 	 I- 

	

W 0 	ix Z Z -I Z 	0 
Z W 

ce W•-• 0) 0 
„-w o  

	

Li rgi-̀t 	2 a 6 	> ca  
cc 01  

„ _, - z — 	 a < 

	

o•-• <col-.0._ -IZ X 	LU Ce 7 uj , Z N  0 0 <- 

	

< w 0 -1 ›- 	0 
ZW< z<10- 	LO 0 0 < ° 	< 0 

I- 
-I ZWX < /X LL 	0 0 Ct. 	 0 

< CO LL 	3 	 4 	4 	a 
0 

0 0  	1 	1 	1 	1 

w 	„, co z 	0 9- zi-,„ct = o< 	_, z oco2w I- z2 	0 < w 	rew 0 a I- D 
co= 4. 0 . w< ow 

cc 
O qui 

5 LU  < 

0 
 W Z Z 

W < 
O 2 

o. 
0 

ILA 

1J. 

V.) 
z 
0 

ij) 

O 
Q. 

 

w z = 

—[:;j:c2°-  
,,,, ci_ 	

Ex  
,L0  04  0 

g °W  0 In  

CC LU 0<001 CO Ce  0 	
ce 0  
Q u-' 0 u.  

0 
<1)  

u. I- 

Fe 0 	
o_re a_ < 

a 
....■...II 

- 1 re cC 
tcc

- 

 tu 
< 

O Z 
Z < 

U) IL, 

S
H

E
E

H
A

N
 

z 

R
E

L
A

T
IO

N
S

 

	

1- 	1- 

	

cn 	(n Z - 
W_ u) U) y2 

	

- CO1- 	 ce < 	;',,E 

	

.., ..i  z 	 ce 	co •-■ < 	 w Z D z 

	

W< I- 	 X  E 7  E 

	

u.,0  u) 	. Op 
 

	

b-,2 	0 

	

0 ,..,1-  1- 	a 	a 

	

a 	u 0  	I 

	

cc 0 w 	 co 
< a. et 	 re ra. 

	

x 8 	z 	< 

• 

o re 

tn 0 a (• 7) 2  22 N W LLI 0 < 
0 a, 
Z 0 

° Z 6' 	 <  --I CO 	.it 
U. 

Z ju ..., W 
< > 5:  
ILI ..., .... 0 
C4 I- 
ea 7 
-.1 0 a 	

Apx 
W 

 Ce cc 
1-1- 0 ui 

CO I- D  - 
03

• ' 

 

0 lu .., < X 0 	 w < 5 4' <u)  c,Lua- 
a. LU 	 ›- „ 0 ce 

O ..- Z w 03 S
5 

CL i0 < 0 	
I  

ILI Z M < m ■.- < a_ 
a
z 

O < 2  
a ,.-' o 2 

0 

2 CO CC 
O W 

Z CC 0) 
< < 
I I 

2 
z z 

• 

z 
x z O N  5 a. 	12.1 	11) 

zS 0 QQ 
W 0 

	

,_ i- 	 i- 	 i- 	i- 	z 	 i- 	1- 	i- 	
)- 

c co  i., 

	

CC :3 
	I- • , 	 = CO 

	

N

o_ = a  	Z 0. (1) 	
CO :, 

• 

 :‘ 

0- <  u-1 	1- a. "t 	W 'LI  5 	z o. 1.4 	IX a. 't 

	

0 (n - 	 I:: N J 	o 71 	FJ2./ 	
co u) 

	

0 0  -a 	1.- M 	- M 
0 >- lz 	0 E  (4 	w I- 
,..m 1- w 	 OW 	OW 	00 	o ou 	ce 	 0 	-I  00 	

0_ < 	 ..1 < 

	

74 0W LU  .1.-,  I < 	WO 	 X X W 	W D W LU W 	0 	0 (7 	a z ) W E w 	... 
m < 	

m 0 °  c.,  a 0 -1 "' 2 0 

	

W a uj 	co 
a. 	co 	a_ 

	

co 	
0. 	0  a 	M a_ 

	

co 	 a)  a 
• m 	

s E 0 I- X  , o Z 	 u) 	Lu 0 5 
O U• 	In 	 < W 0 , 	0 0  Lu < 
• ce ce z 	

(0 	...... j 	2 LU 0_ 	
I 	I 	I 	I 	I 	I 	I 	I -1 0)  

111 
W 0_ 

,,, < cd  17r—lj  .. z J < 
< O cc 

U  V1 0  

> uj re al 1- z 
x co a 1 	w a. 

5 0 
< c,. 	0 S  

a_ 

0 a. 

Lu cl. 0 	0 co 2 	 _1 5 	o J m < 	z co c.) 	W 	:=1  a a _ 	w < Lu 	0, 	wca 
0 w : 	 zrFc 	n 2 
0 	 x 	u.t 

Z 2 0 
< w < ce 1- 
LL 2 < 

7FC 2  
2 

Ce Z g  
10 0 
4 05  z x z w
I- < cc 	wZ 

"I. 	I- 1-1 
W I X 0 	V) x 
(3 0 z 	0 

F 
w u. u 	< 
cil z i_w 	I- 
. 	- 

	

a. 	a. 

	

z 0 	0  ,"••• 

	

z a. 	 144 

	

3 	5 

	

° W 	W °  

E
L

E
C

T
R

IC
IA

N
 

	

F 	ce 	 1- 
O 0 	o w 	

g r- 
° y 	co 

	

2 ILI 	Z CL 	0. 	0- 

	

111 	C7 

	

< 	< -I 	X 	0  2 	0 	0  .--; 

	

-1 W 	CC 0) 	0-  111 	0-  [ti 	- 	ILI co 
O a 

	

ILI 1_ 	 5  °- 	5  ,, 	5 M 

	

LU co 	I-  z 	 x 5 	4  z 

	

2 < 	 0 	 a. 

	

z (7, 	al a, 	 a  .•"- 	re < 	2 w 	w 

	

2 w 	m _1 	 u- 	0 

	

I 	I 	1 	i 	1 	1 

	

4 	0 	 < 

I 	0 
ce 

 O 

• 

0 	a o 	< 0 	cu 0 	 ' 

	

1- a. 	1-- 	w 	.., 	o 

- 0 

	0 co 

	

cn - 	tr) °- 	0 0- 	0 0- 	3 a' 	7 CL 

	

IX X 	< 7 	0 7 	
gD 	

o 5 	a  

	

a a 	z a 	-I a 	a 	o a 	Y a  

	

CO W 	< W 	E W 	co u, 	o ul 	z w  
-> 



) 
1.• 
Q.! 

c 4  

4, 0 

-7) 1-  - ,-471 

, 	 , 

1.1 ...i:'•  

a-  
-,, 

......, 114-4 
..----  -r '.1.1 ..._.: 

LI-. ', 11.1:'il. 
„-. 

.C4 
el 	

.--i 	 ....‘...- 

,  .. 

Ir..", 

of Li./ E I- 	.4 . 

!Y.'  :,...I 

1...4 	 :23  

j 	i--  - 	.61'. 	
.  -  • 	 -  -4; 

IS 
• 4: 4 • W  ' 
D .4 
CI > 

	

C

▪ 	

4..!- 

' 1i. P. 

	

C; 

• 	

CE1  

41 	0 

of 
O 4-,  

4t3 
0 

4.4 
5,, 	CO 

!.. 1: 	
..;., 

t. 	
. 

,..k 

••4. 	 -, 
!,0 	 ..r., 	 .4... 

a  a  

01 
UI O y  "• 

X 
4 

z 	t.. 
,-..! 	gii 	w  m  ,

4
.,.. a. ..,-  1, 

Lti 	a 44  

LI 	11/  

1 	at 

1.4 

ri 

es 

0 
.:.: 	

-- 	•- .:1 
1: .7  ■ 

,:. 5 

r•-• W at  4' 

ce. 	Oc"  



z 
g 

re 

  

r4 

 

n. 

11i 
0, 
X 

LU 

O z 
U 
Z 

LL.1 

Z 
1-1  0 

0-1  

LJ 
LL1 
0. 
O I. 
ZZ 
O 0 N 

0 
C3 
LL1 

<N 1(.117  
CI U.1 >w 

ce 
Ul 

O I 

Z 
O 0 w 
U 	LL. 



asi 

Z  Ci 

C 
) 

sp 

 

1:11 

ry  """ 

d 

  

0 ' 

 

C
 U

  R
E

N
D

  A
S

S
E

T
S

 

144 
LU 

• r 

• 

0 

O u D., 	 f., 

6 	
....) 
W :,7,-.., 	 .., 41 

U ;- 	- 	.--, ,.., 	 #9. 	 4. 
.-ei 	

c.,---.' 	, n 	if, 	 :  - 	 4.4 
(.1d  	i 	P'4 	C.  `-. 	 a. 	 ...77.--'. 

-,2  • 	 4 	fi...-q 	. 	

< 

..--. 
 ■,---, 	 ----..' r ) , '''.. 	'.'-- 	 0 

iii   ,...  ;, 	i 	- 	rr,"•,,,, 	 14 t".". 
i■-, 	 -....-1 

iij  
2:: 	4 	7••••'.; :...., LL, 	al 

0.4 	j..... 	)  .  ) 	L',.:!. 	•-.-..,. 	'.:-._• 	ce

▪ 

	:,._--; 	 -  -- 	,,t:, 	ra .., 
••• 	 ,:: 	 L-,,.. 	 :...i, 	̀::::- 	„..' 	ft 	:f., 	H: 	 !'.'''':-.; 	 114 	 -- - 

'.:.') 
 

,..-: 	U.  :,.:71 	l' 	 ef. 	r.-13, .ii...„--..„ 	 ,   	
tc6•J. 	:.;:: 	,i.  

6   --;: 	ii.,/ 	') 

CI 	''■;.. 	"I 	:1' 	,IX. 	 ,-::. 	Z  Z 	,'':1, 	0 	.., 7.'. 	r 	2: 	:I,: 

1-1 M 	141 
r•-• 

• La 

rs 

in I 	

■ 
" 
''.  1 1Y-  ! 

,1:1'.'  

Zuj 	 71 
CO 171 IN  43 	

▪ 	

ni  

CI 	0 	 ! 

...I 	IN 

ea 
cr3 

en  0 

C,, 

cs5r.  
ry  f4  

LL'  ry 

C7 
,),1) 	

▪ 	

d 

CO "11 N 

C
O

N
S

O
L

ID
A

T
E

D
 S

T
A

T
E

M
E

N
T

S
 O

F
  N

E
T

 P
O

S
IT

IO
N

 
rt. 	ch; 

ci+= xr 	r~,j 

:1  

.4; 	 :1 ,  

W. 

-7-: 

	

LI,., 4,t  VI 	i, ,, . :  
').-: 	-.•  '...1, 	i-1 

C  ''C- 115g 
''.. '', 	:.:;--,  '). 	

,  Z 	'L 

	

64' eg 	 ii.i ..... 	 ■ 

	

e r, et 	 ,:-7 

	

.  .- 	72 
a:  dx ca 

	

f....  /..,-,,  = 	 •,::'; 	 -1--  !,-:; 	I.,- 

17.; 
ww 



CO 

C7) 

Z 

c ..0,-.) 
-,i- 

< 

,-.1-. 
f'•-, 
,-! 

!',.), 

C.) 

!!---:!' 

,, 
L..--, 

C!!!..7! 

LLI 
ce 
—J 

..--; 

, 

,--t.: 	 ... ! 	 cy,-, 
 

c„) 	in  i=.   !!!!!-! 	ta 	C- -1 	---: 	tO 	N 	 ..,...) 	p.i 	,.;. 	 . 

	

, 	 ..0 

'-i. 	 ---!: 

L!!) 	c.,!) 	 ! 	
—4  , 	

!!"--.! 	T--- 	T--- 	A 	a; op ',:,Ji.-..... 	. 	r4 	 ,-,-, 	c), 
.

,„ 
„) 	c) 	 7, 	 .7-, 	 ,..0 	 ['••• 	. 

r .22 	 72: 	 7--- ! 

r--- ' 

--.  

112 

Cs,  0 

LI1 	 co 	pg. 
sr. 

! 	--; 
< 	,---1

1.... 	 OR 
•., 	

:1...• 
7• ••• , 	 ••1 	Ci.! 	 •4.  >  ; 	 "'-'I 

	 :::" 	0 0 14  
, I 

'... 	CO 	 c.,.., 	
'••■•••. 	 .....-,. 	e 4  

	

,-,... 	 T.', 	 ,....... 	 .,..,.. ,•••■•I 

1.... 
• , 

!-■=, 	 :  :. 	---' -C. 4.0  CC 

_ 

.  .7' 3 	et 
g * 

Z 	 E. 



O
N

 W
O

R
K

  I
N

  P
R

O
G

R
E

S
S 

L.? 
00 
r% 
ri 

00 
Pl 
gi 
,1 
ei 

E :.1 z 
3 
,:e 	.. 	

..r.: 

.,..„., 

4.__. ...:- 

, 
i= 	;,.1 	,..., 

1-3 	!•../-J 

< 

r• 7. 

--.., 

l'fi 
- , 

:- 	

-.../-- 	

-_...- 

, 

:-7: 

._ 
 

•.-.::: 	 ..1. 	,._   . 	-:-.. 
O -.. 	 - 	-I.' 	. -. 

...4: 
2. 	...7 	• ,• , 7!.. 	

.. 
. - 

r., 	 _ 	 : _-.. 	 , 
,%:-. ..- 

-  . 	 - - _  , 	 I: 

• 7,  

0 

; sr. 
- 

- 

o
„ 

. 

15. 	
. 



P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
A

M
E

 

S
IM

I  
A

V
  N

 A
IR

P
O

R
T

 

0 

A
D

M
IN

  I
S

T
R

A
  f
l0

N
 



1: 

P
R

O
JE

C
T

  N
A

M
E 

0 

. 

- 
G 

in 
co 
N 
v-1 

0 
1•4 

IO
N

 W
O

R
K

 I
N

  P
R

O
G

R
E

S
S

 

U 

0 

0 

X 

(I) 

1.0 
Ni 



Cr■ 

1;1 1 

u_ 0 

.....t.;.. 	,{.„....!,:...: 
c--: ,.... 



O  ta 

to 

crA 
Le) 

r.4 

LU 

C 	 rn :7"fl 

co 

::::=.: 
v,  
44  

Lr 

O 

1.: 
0 
i'..,1 
4•••:, 

tv 

;i.:'  

4 
‘1' 
1.: 

X ;,,..; 	tu 

=:;.' 	..-' 
'i:".. 

.-c 	4 
0 

ii 	3 

LJ 

C 	R 	 ^ 

ri 

i-1 	fr.-; 	W )-• 	 z  u-, 
.,:f 	Z  '7, 

 a. 	a. 
0 	0 	̀cid 

- 	L 

I 
ri 



O
P

E
R

A
11

N
G

 R
E

V
E

N
U

E
S 

2.7  .5..; 

'-" 

7,-•• 

LU 

''  
..-41 	ri 	

Lci 	
•••■ 

...., 

'-:', 	 L- 	
, 	■-i 

:, 	
,:-.,.-) 
Lo 

.., 

...„" ,:-7, 
--,-- 	-a 

.46 

b 	9 	 c...i 
0 	c 
Z 	Z 

,..-, 
■••1 	

+.4 

w 	 Z Z 
U.- 

 g E 
r Lnw 

0 71  
,-- 

g 4:4 
4( 

O 

< 	 = 

J-
p 
	 L7
 

 -,
-.:

•, 

	 .4
 
	

.
 

—
 ,
- 

cC
 

Z
 

.
7
. -

,
)
 
	

1
7

f
.
 
	 Z2
 
	 0 Z

 
	 MI
 
	 I li

 

Z
 
	 CI Z

 O
PE

R
A

T
IN

G
  E

X
P

E
N

S
E

S
 

LU 



'!;,:?. 	r■ 	 '  ,'•••• , c, 	, 

01), 

•-•41 

a 

' 	 : 

75  

ca 
T"' 

03 
Q 

ttit 	t.„, w 	..:. 
z z. 
1..tA 	ILI 

Li; 	;.<  
C't 	I  :fr. 

; 0   L  i 	,.."-.2  :-. .-i' 	.-.„'. 	
Q 
1%, 	< 

,. 

'::  9. 	',-:'._.]}• 	.2 	

, u 
:—. 	f—,  zUj L.,,]  < 	-,,:  	 til  	r ; .S Z  

	 I-.E  ':   w ki: 	
:.---;! 	 7- J.  D =2  .tK Z  ','  .2E 	 '  .'r.  C4  --g a. 	a. 	E-U 

 •
-. 0 	c 	a..  1-4 	ea Li-  2 	 :::  < 	 :-.2,  '..c.  iii .=•...  0_ 

01 
LE 

LI 0 	el 
  „.., ,` 	 Z  z &.• 	.-,  •... 
Z  0  p 

0 */ 4 	0  Ci 
Z.: 	C4  •  ", 	< 	."." LE./ 
:-'-' 	0. ':  0 	Li 	 ' 	 ,,, <4' 	1.7)  rt Z 	o., 	..-'-. I 
1...=  	,.„ 	L'z- 	

°p ;:. 	z  1,../  c,-,  E 	0 C. 	a  Z x: 	,.:, 	u, 7, 
0 	;.,.', -.:,  •-_,, 	,c). 	.i:  Izi 

C•I' 	
...... 

IC 

.-... 5 	z 
,  •., 	 ,....4) ... 	,i, 

........44 

r:41 ,  .....1 

!.._' ; 04  7,-•::: 	 __vi 
r. 	 ,---,, -,•-•-•• 	 -0 

CQ 
•!:C 



I0 

   

 

C 
eit 

Cr: 

   

    

    

op 

tLt 

1.1.1 

W 
eL 

c 

In 0 

W 
lfl 

:77( 	sn 
	(2,1 	 nN 

c) 	rq 

7C 	I  ±'  >7 	
,(  Z 	,.. 

 z 
 

C.1:.  
LI  '-, 	 '  

4C a 	 27, 2: 	. .  U..] 	II p.; 	m < 	0  :..:  , L) 	'  .71 .. 

i 

UJ 	 Z 
WO 
ow 	 :: 	 ',',) 	. 	-::: 	CD 
CD CC 	.;..,  — 

0  (s.) 	2! 61 	.....- 	...,D ----" 	7,E 

ti 

L.) 
LO 	In 	CD 	 "A 	IS) 

C-4 	 ",7- 	Cr,  
f 

cc) 

8 1 

Z 

CD  CO  N 
U 	 QI 

ri 

Ul 	W 
--1 	 •-, .7.: .... 	,f, 

-,':: z 	2: 	 ..... 
--, 

.-.> 	II. 	:-. 	.... 
Lu■ 	X 	.7 

-   J  
C. 

' ....:1 
 

2: 	2: 	. 

ti: !! W-.....1 	1  	:., 	",  ... 
"•'' 	....... 	 i 
ct 	ct 	..',  ;_ 	_._  ...,-, 	

<: 
,.., 	̂,- ,..,.... 

'..i...;: 	
, .1.; 	:L..?  

-- 	:1...   
..., 

LU 

yi 

N
H

  O
P

E
R

A
T

IN
G

  j
:P

iC
k
4

 



rr! 
r L.1 +I 	'.7•J 
E 

 
.) 	

:I- 
r, r, 	...-, ,-.. 	 >.. 	).. Ln  

u4 

r,.??. 	.n sr-  

-cr 
4-i 4:. 

ta-1 
r 

rt44 .-.-: 	0 

 
b. 

r -.... 	-, 	u..r 

4-.. k 	-=? 	Cg 

	

LI . 	'.....  

...,,, 	u„; 	1Z 

	

_, 	z 	Z 

	

'ee 	0 	AC 	., 

	

C.: 	Li.. 	i- 	: . 

.. 	.„ . s' 	z 

Z 	62 

= 	E.7 	,. 
LLI 

, 

'LC 

eri 	 141 

L-4 

8  

g tri 

z co 
< 	Z±: 

* 

Z 	 ',I 	
;■ ,,4 	 ',; 	sc.6 

O ..7  tti 	, ,,- 	 vl 
us 	 -4  .te 

ulr 

Z

C.: 
LL 

G

—  n 
—'. •:' 

I: 	

M

i  . 
Ln 

r -1; 
-  ii! 
N 
0 
N 

i.W 

:: 

 immommi l•M■1■1=111:is  ;!: 

'  11.771.I.: 

I  - 

CU 	
,..... 

IV Z 	172 	'7"7" 	0 : 

a.. 	 N 	 u.1 

i .._i 
CI 	

7-,c° 	 umm111.1   Lk. 

K
E

Y
 G

O
L

F
 C

O
U

R
S

E
 B

E
N

(H
M

A
R

K
IN

G
 D

A
T

A
  



rn 

iV 

od p4 
5 25  I  

t  >- 

In 

FE
E

  R
E

V
E

N
U

E
,  

Qt. 	,C 	CC 
CCt 	cc 

CAD,  

,C 

--, 

M 	
C'''..i_, 	 riI iN 	. cp 	I'l 

'‘ .0I....,  

0n 

cL-0 

to 

Yf 

R
EG

IS
T

P1
, ,T

IO
N

S 

er 

ret 

Ai 

"l  4.7.  01 
'4) a' r,  Crt 

141 

M I 9 

NI 



44, 

. 71 	fY 

A:p1 

• - 

•n• 

ii.: 

til 

 

•L., ,::_ 
...i"., 	I= 	 _ . 	 Li 

:•—, 	-1.... 

 

z 	LLI 	rl 	 -: 	 0 	.V 

0 	> 	 :.".„ 	 --- 	:-.. 	 --, 	0 	 0 
i' 	

Z 	Z .4;4 	i'i=, 	 .:1:. 	 ^, 	
,--, 	e r, 	.:-.,.. 	

', ' H 	'.-E '• 	

i. 	 i.  -  04 	tp :--, 

 K.  
Jr,  z 	w  e, 	¢ re. 	 .--.. 	z  .t.r.5 	' ,5  :.;;: 	 •  ; 	Z  .L. 	a  - 	5.i.,  1.1 	rt. i 	 ,--; 	 t. J.1 

,— 	 -5-- 

	

 
j7 	Z 	1ii 	'"' 	/:.4  ),   

` 	
0   i.:1   1_, 	•  „ 	 ..... Z„ 	 9  tu 	us  9.; 1E 

su 	ks.t 	 i_os.,... ii.,te.  1:  Li...1 - . •c-i'. 	ft. 	Et-. 	 .f: 	Eu  f_-,. 	9 	 —, 

;   

•- II 	i•f  ' 	 101 

	

c. I 
	

COI 

0 

; . 

i1.-  

rNi 	 -.., 

t  .2, 
ii.4 	lif 	 -i, 

Z.-  ....t Z 	Z 
0 	k „..:.; 
4,--: 

— 
r. 
1-- 
.1, 
....r_. 	

"_..;.,1, 	''',.; 	F.::-.1:,  
IAA 

C 	4.  
Ir., 	0  

.--, 

4,..,. 
X 
0 
I...i 

w  Z 
0 X 

	

4.1H.  -'-'  ,  ,  ;' • '-'''  ' 	2  '  H7( 1  :  "  : :  $: 	

.... -..- 
Z. 

1  :  : 

 
.-- 	.. ,....,  w 
4:  If' 

.5=1',  

L 	2'1. :  f.T: 

Le.,—  4, 	r.  .... 

	

Z 	•''  r-u 
-,- 	.,---  ri.   

-:--. 	!---  Lo,,, 	0 	.,-?:.  4 



R
E

V
O

L
V

IN
G

  L
O

A
N

 

C
A

S
H

 B
A

L
A

N
C

E
S

 

 

w 
U 

z 

 yy 

vs 

6 

al  
Z   
7.. „ 
,..... 

■A 
 <C 

:CI 
...., 

< 
2;. 

,... 
-,. 

,"--"; 
,̀L.! LLI 

= 
U .:..] 

r. 

A.A. 

,.... 
7X. 	 E 
o., 	p 
;,<`. 	i...) 

	

,,,c.:2•;: 	;ci  

..., 	T. 	''', 

	

.... 	 Z 	.1.S. 

:::•,-.: 	

- 	

...■ 	 v. 

.-,'. 	

• 	

y 
 

.:: 7 	Li 	.-..:-: 	 ...• 	7:-; 
::::, :,... 

 

--- 	L. 

 

fili Z 	I.LL 	 ....; 	 ‹- 	 !.--; :c:',! 	:.-:-I'' 

	

,.2c- 	 ex; 	'7 '.-', 	'''. 

W 	
' 	

0  < 
 5;  0  	1g 

'- 

	

CI 	Q

•-....  
.....  ...,, 	 i 

	

' ...7. 	6E. 	-::4': 	w. 
	

Z 7 4. 	:•-, 







0 
0 

D
IS

C
U

S
S

IO
N

 

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
E

D
 C

A
S

H
 A

N
D

 D
E

B
T

 B
A

L
A

N
C

E
S

 

1-1 	y• 	VI 
1-i 0 

z 

O 
0 1' 0 
01 1-1 	•'-1 

• 

0 0 

D
E

SI
G

N
A

T
E

D
  

T
O

T
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 B

A
L

A
N

C
E

S
 

U
N

R
E

ST
R

IC
T

E
D

 

0 	0 	0 

(s,000 

Lr) 	o o co Ln  L() 	Ln 	Lf) 
N tf oo 	kto 	rl CO N N CO N N LA 

CO M N Cr) ,--i CO 	 CI) 	N 	 N ch 

	

tD LO N Lri N 	/NI 1-1 c-4 0 

T
R

A
D

E
PO

R
T

 T
E

N
A

N
T

S 

O
P

E
N

IN
G

 F
U

N
D

 B
A

L
A

N
C

E
 

S
K

Y
H

A
V

E
N

 A
IR

P
O

R
T

 H
A

N
G

A
R

 A
N

D
 FU

E
L

 R
E

V
E

N
U

E
S 

R
E

V
O

L
V

IN
G

 L
IN

E
 O

F
 C

R
E

D
IT

 (
P

R
O

V
ID

E
N

T
 B

A
N

K
)  

M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
 F

E
E

 (
C

O
P)

  

PS
M

 A
IR

PO
R

T
-  

LE
A

S
E

S
,  F

U
E

L
 F

L
O

W
A

G
E

 F
E

E
S

 A
N

D
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
 

G
R

A
N

T
 A

W
A

R
D

S  
(S

E
E

  P
A

G
E

  #
9
)  

G
O

L
F

 C
O

U
R

S
E

 FE
E

 A
N

D
 C

O
N

C
E

S
S

IO
N

  R
E

V
E

N
U

E
S 

U
S

E
S

 O
F

 F
U

N
D

S
 

S
O

U
R

C
E

S
 O

F
 F

U
N

D
S

  

S
T

A
T

E
 O

F
 N

H
-  

P
O

S
T

 R
E

T
IR

E
M

E
N

T
 

N
E

T
  C

A
S

H
  F

L
O

W
  

O
PE

R
A

T
IN

G
 E

X
PE

N
SE

S 

C
A

P
IT

A
L

 E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

S-
  N

O
N

- G
R

A
N

T
 (S

E
E

P
A

G
ES

 #
5

-
#

8
)  

M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
 F

E
E

 (
C

O
P)

  

C
A

PI
T

A
L

 E
X

PE
N

D
IT

U
R

E
S-

  G
R

A
N

T
 (S

E
E

 P
A

G
E

  #
4
)  

C
L

O
S

IN
G

 F
U

N
D

 B
A

L
A

N
C

E
 

N 



OI 
CO 

`Sul 

fOrl
CD  

OBI 

ri 

O 
O 

6- 1 O 

1-1 

] 

001 

`$1 
LO 

N  

OII ri 
LD 

cp 	Lc) 
.1- 	 N 

LO 
•1- 	71- 	N 

O c)in 0 N 
N Ln co 1- 
N N N 

0 0 in in co Ln 
N 	 LO 7-1 

LO N N N 

N 

cri 
ri 0 

— 

WI nj‘1;) 

ri O 0> 1 

NChl 1-1 

L( 
N 
CO 

L0 

N 
LC) 
LID 

LI) 
00 
CO 

L0 

N 

LI) 
N 
‘.0 
N 

Ln 

II) 0 
1:4) N 
N cr 

7-7.  

Lf) 	u-) 

Ln 
CD 
V) 

LC) 

1-1 
N 
7-I 

N 
7-1 

0 
in 
7-1 

CO 

0 
CO 

LID 
,-I 
CO 
7-i 
N 

a, 
00 
Lon 

N 
N 
C71 

Ld 

N 

0 
CO 
CN1 

ins  

p 

V- 

in o 
N 0 
N N 

N c. 

CD 
Ln 

co 	rn 

LC) Lc) Ln 0 0
co 

 Ln Ln 	 Ln co 	0 	N MI 
LO CO

N 	 N 
N N in in 

N m CO 	
COJ 	 op 
71" 

ri 

O Ln c) in LnI' 0 	 Ln co 	 Er, Ln N. 	Lc) -I 	 71- 	N 
M N 	 co 	c

▪  

o 
▪ ri 

a, in0 Ln v.) 	1- u-) 

▪  

%..0 	Ln 	 N 	N in 
o 	in CD CO 

	

LID MI 	
N 

▪  

Q1 
N N N 	

▪  

O 111 	 cr co CO CO 	Lnfl  

	

0 CD CD 	 a  cAj  Ln LC) 

	

LC) N CO Li-) is) 	C, 	
CD 	74- 

• Ln 
Lc) 	 00 	 1-1 	Om  

rn CD LO LC) 

▪  

Mm 0 0 
Ln 

• 

N 	71-  rl Ln 	cr) 	 cr 
N N Lf) 	 Cf) 	OD 	 CO 

 Ln 
1-1 LID v ' 

N 	In 
N 	7-I 	 LO 

Lc) 	LL!')
1- 	0 	CD 

00 

CD N 
N 

LC) in Ln CD 	N 

N 
 

Or 
Tr 
ri 

cn,ij
in  

1.0 .41 

ri 

P
S

M
 PA

Y
 F

O
R

 PA
R

K
IN

G
 /  

FL
O

W
A

G
E 

PO
R

T
SM

O
U

T
H

 A
IR

PO
R

T
-  

(P
SM

)  

U
S
E

 O
F

 F
U

N
D

S
 

EX
T

ER
N

A
L

 FI
N

A
N

C
IN

G
-  

N
E

T
 

M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 SE

R
V

IC
E

 FE
E 

SK
Y

H
A

V
E

N
 A

IR
PO

R
T

 

O
P

E
N

IN
G

 F
U

N
D

 B
A

L
A

N
C

E 

S
O

U
R

C
E

S
 O

F
 F

U
N

D
S

 

G
O

L
F

 C
O

U
R

SE
 

TR
A

D
E

PO
R
T

 TE
N

A
N

TS
 

G
R

A
N
T

 A
W

A
R

D
S

 (S
E

E
  P

AG
E

 #
9

)  

N
E

T
 C

A
S

H
 FL

O
W

 

M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 SE

R
V

IC
E

 F
E

E 

ST
A

T
E

 O
F

 N
H

-  
P

O
S

T
 R

E
T

IR
EM

E
N

T 

C
L

O
S

IN
G

 F
U

N
D

 B
A

L
A

N
C

E 

O
PE

R
A

TI
N

G
 EX

PE
N

SE
S 

CO LC) 	
' LO 	01) 	'C') 

N 	
71- 

N 
N nIIri 

ri 

ri 

Tr  
'0  

O 
ri 



1- 
z 

re 
O 
on 
X 

I- 
zz 

 

Ii 

P
O

R
T

SM
O

U
T

H
 A

IR
P

O
R

T
 

er 
rl 	CO I/1 0 CO 0 0 	0 N 

	

N N 	 o o o N 
N 

• 	

N 	 M 	11 CO 	 CI1 

	

.4 	 LO 

I- 
0 

	

Ei 
	 ri 

1-1

• 	

1 	 ri 

0 

RI 1-1 	 cs, 

OI 

N 

	

01 

	
N 	an d 

Ln 
141 

r91 	
Co 	 CO 	 CO 

tr) 	Co 	 t.0 01 

	

0 	in 	 ti 

CO 	 N 	 0 
0 I' 

	

CO 	 011 	 1-1 

Co 	 LE) 	0 
N(NI 

z z z z c). 
r! '"(71 V)  64 

LLI 
N 0 kID 

Z Z 
O 0-O 0- 

< 17) < „ 
<z <z 
0- 0 0- x x 
LLI  
- < 

Z 
(f)  X Lr)  
Z Z 

w0 w0 
U H U 

0 

0 

C) 
0 

z 

WZ 
0 0 

 z*   

R
U

N
W

A
Y

 16
-3

4
 D

E
SI

G
N

 (
A

IP
 58

)  

T
W

 A
 SO

U
T

H
 H

O
LD

 B
A

Y  
(A

IP
 67

)  

PE
A

S
E

 B
O

U
LE

V
A

R
D

-A
R

B
O

R
ET

U
M

 A
V

E 

 

S
N

O
W

 R
EM

O
V

A
L 

EQ
U

IP
M

EN
T 

 

T
E

R
M

IN
A

L
 A

PR
O

N
 D

E
SI

G
N

 (
S

B
G

 9)
  

LO
W

E
R

Y
 L

A
N

E
 PA

V
IN

G
 

SK
Y

H
A

V
E

N
 A

IR
P

O
R

T
 

     



PE
A

SE
 D

E
V

E
L

O
P

M
E

N
T

 A
U

T
H

O
R

IT
Y

 

O 
N 

O 

UI ▪ L

- 	

MI 

O 2  1 

II

N  
Lnl 01 I 	o r  

1-1 

O O I  

NI 	0 0 111 0 	111 	 0 0 0 0 0 Tr 
N N 	tfl 	et (.0 	rs 	M N d ^ N I 

L.r) 	 Crr 	COI 

cc 

0 

(f) 
ce z 
1— 0 z r 
'E2 < 
a. 

z 
0 
cc z 
LLJ 

0 
fa. U 

Lu 

0 LU 0 
E-- 	cn 

A
R

E 
U

PG
R

A
D

E
S

 *
* 

-y  
0 

El 
n1 

I I 	. 

N
O

N
-G

R
A

N
T

  R
E

IM
B

U
R

S
E

M
E

N
T

  P
R

O
JE

C
T

S
  

D
O

O
R

 A
C

C
E

S
S

 C
O

N
T

O
L

 **
 

TE
C

H
N

O
L

O
G

Y
 

S
K

Y
H

A
V

E
N

 A
IR

P
O

R
T

 

0 
N OIO) 

PA
Y

C
H

EX
 P

A
Y

R
O

L
L

 K
IS

O
SK

S
 **

 

PR
O

P
E

R
T

Y
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
 SY

ST
EM

 

M
A

IN
 S

E
R

V
ER

  R
EP

L
A

C
E

M
E

N
T

 **
 

o 

U
T

IL
IT

Y
 G

O
LF

 C
A

R
T

S
 

G
O

L
F

 C
O

U
R

S
E

 

B
A

TH
R

O
O

M
 U

PG
R

A
D

ES
 

SP
E

ST
IC

ID
E

 SP
R

A
Y

ER
 

FA
IR

W
A

Y
 R

O
U

G
H

 M
O

W
ER

 

T
E

C
H

N
O

L
O

G
Y

 EN
H

A
N

C
EM

EN
T
S

 **
 

G
R

E
E

N
 T

E
E

 A
E

R
A

T
O

R
  

C
LU

B
H

O
U

S
E

 K
IT

C
H

EN
  E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T
  *

* 

O 

1-11 



P
O

R
T

S
M

O
U

T
H

 A
IR

P
O

R
T

 

FE
N

C
E

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 *

* 

M
O

B
IL

E
 R

A
D

IO
 U

P
G

R
A

D
E

 **
 

13
9 

IN
S

P
E

C
T

IO
N

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
 S

O
F

T
W

A
R

E
 *

* 

R
E

P
E

A
T

E
R

S
 **

 

T
E

R
M

IN
A

L
 C

A
R

PE
T

IN
G

 **
 

T
E

R
M

IN
A

L
 E

X
PA

N
S

IO
N

 

G
E

N
E

R
A

T
O

R
 U

P
G

R
A

D
E

 **
 

A
IR

FI
E

L
D

 S
IG

N
A

G
E

-  
L

E
D

 **
 

0 

o 	in 	 In 	0 0 
0 	in 	IN 

In 	
[1" 	1

0

-1 	 N 

O 

Z>I 
O 	 01 

LO 

OI 

aIin 

 

N 	 NI 

5'1 

5 
n1 

aIx 

Lr") 
N 

0 	 Li) 
LI) 	 ("0 

N. 

o LO 

CO 

Q 
Q 
0-) 

MiN 

is) 
o 

O 
O 

0 

01 



SE
C

U
R

IT
Y

 

a C
C

T
V

 S
E

C
U

R
IT

Y
 G

A
T

E
S

 **
 

D
O

O
R

 A
C

C
E

S
S

 C
O

N
T

R
O

L
 **

 

S
E

C
U

R
IT

Y
 S

Y
S

T
E

M
 U

P
G

R
A

D
E

 **
 

D
O

O
R

 A
C

C
E

S
S

 C
O

N
T

R
O

L 
**

 

T
A

X
IW

A
Y

 R
E

LA
M

P
IN

G
 *
* 

J
E

T
 A

 F
U

E
L

 T
A

N
K

 *"
 

F
U

E
L

 S
Y

S
T

E
M

 C
R

E
D

IT
 C

A
R

D
 

S
R

E
 D

O
O

R
 R

E
P

LA
C

E
M

E
N

T
 

R
E

R
O

O
F

 T
E

R
M

IN
A

L
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
  *

* 

N 
o 0 0 	 IA 	 Ln IA In 
0 0 N N 	 N N  o 

	
N 0 

N er 	 rI iIin 
O 

UI0 
8 8 1 CD 	 01 01 

1 	1-1 

OIz 
0 0 1 N N 

O 
N 

UI0 

O 	 u-) 
u-) 	 El ' 	141 	PI 

1-1 

 

r 1 	(01 
0 
1-1 

 

LC1 
N NI 41 

z l 
	 Ln LU 	

ONI RI 

1-4 NI LNI LO 

P
E

A
S

E
 D

E
V

E
LO

P
M

E
N

T 
A

U
T

H
O

R
IT

Y
 

 

   

   



UIa 

OIz 

'81 

u.i°1 
LA 

DW I 

=

▪  

I 

 

T
R

A
D

E
P

O
R

T
 

Ooco  

N 1 

Lfll 
O LA 

OI 

FrJ 

ccsi 
M, 

cr:3 1LA 

OI03 

r

▪  

i 
rl 

OI 
T

O
T

A
L

 N
O

N
-G

R
A

N
T 

R
E

IM
B

U
R

SE
M

E
N

T
 P

R
O

JE
C

T
S 

M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

 

C
O

R
PO

R
A

T
E

 D
R

IV
E-

.  D
R

A
IN

A
G

E
 

ST
O

R
M

W
A

T
E

R
 T

R
E

A
T

M
E

N
T

 (
ID

D
E

 

P
A

IN
T

 M
A

C
H

IN
E

 **
 

T
A

N
K

 M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
 

V
E

H
IC

L
E

 F
LE

E
T

 R
E

PL
A

C
E

M
E

N
T

 *
* 

T
R

A
C

K
 S

K
ID

 M
O

W
E

R
 **

 

M
O

W
E

R
 R

E
P

L
A

C
E

M
E

N
T

 **
 

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 IN
FR

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

 **
 

JO
H

N
 D

E
E

R
E

 T
R

A
C

T
O

R
 R

E
PL

A
C

E
M

E
N

T
 **

 

C
R

A
C

K
 S

E
A

L
IN

G
 M

A
C

H
IN

E
 **

 

CA IA 	VI 0 0 co  • ?I 	wi 

• 

IA  

(ID  

Co 

Oi 

Lnl 
(NI 	 •zr 	 d- 

in 	
11)1

141 	 Ni 
 

Ni 



O 

21 

N 
511  

'O 	o 	t,f) 

gl
M 	O 	

cr•
N 

O 	CO 
(y1 

O 
N 

01 N 

ri 

N 

MI 

QI 

R
U

N
W

A
Y

 1
6-

34
 D

E
S

IG
N

  (
A

IP
 5

8)
  

R
U

N
W

A
Y

-  
A

IR
 N

A
T

IO
N

A
L

 G
U

A
R

D
 

T
W

 A
 SO

U
T

H
 H

O
L

D
 B

A
Y

 

P
E

A
S

E
 B

O
U

L
E

V
A

R
D

-  
A

R
B

O
R

E
T

U
M

 A
V

E
 

W
H

E
E

L
 LO

A
D

E
R

 

L
O

W
E

R
Y

 LA
N

E
 P

A
V

IN
G

 

S
K

Y
H

A
V

E
N

 A
IR

P
O

R
T

  

T
E

R
M

IN
A

L
 A

P
R

O
N

 D
E

S
IG

N
 (

S
B

G
-7

)  

0 

0 

	

O 	N 	0 	t0 	V 0 LA LA IA 	 M 	

1
ri 

V 	1-1 	0 	03 	N 	CA N CO 	 1-1 
N 	1-1 

z 

O 

0 CY) 	 0  
00 	 (v) 

LUC61 (Nr 

00 

zE (Do (.91) (Do 
V) ,4 w4A- w-o9- 

r:4 	,e, 
Z ,c)  Z 
0 0- 0 0- 
(7) 
zv Z"--" 
<CZ <CZ 

WC >L66 >L6E 

1-11- 
Ztr)  E 0  
ceZ ceZ 
w0 w0 P

O
R

T
S

M
O

U
T

H
 A

IR
P

O
R

T
 



0 
0 
yr 

! 0 

• 

O 0 O O O 00 

V 	of 	
1.11 	CD 

0-1 	M 	Csi r•J 

12
-3

1-
20

22
 

N
O

 M
IN

IM
U

M
 

U-1 
w 

F- w 
>- Z g 

a , 
LD 0 

Z U-I 

 ILI 

o '  

T
E

R
M

 D
A

T
E

  

U) 
0 
13. 
ce 

IN
T

E
R

E
S
T

 R
A

T
E

 16-  
N 
U, Z 

X 0 
 

z g 
E 0 

0. 

U.1 
I- 
< 

1- 
z 

0  
• N 

H 0 1-1 
tn 
▪ D 
- J (/) 
L.) I2 

02 > 

- N U.  0  
• N 

z 
0 
x 
z 
O 

I- 
Q 

z 

M
A

T
U

R
IT

Y
 

12
-3

1-
20

22
 

W

▪  

ICI 

0
3
-3

1
-
2
0
2
1
 

CO 
CO 
N z 

co 

0 
1-1 



D
IS

C
U

S
S

IO
N

 

P
R

O
JE

C
T

E
D

 U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 C

A
S

H
 B

A
L

A
N

C
E

S 

< N 
W 0 

 C.) N  

< tn 

< en 
CO 

I- 
0
0 

<  
Lu 

N  
Z 

< 
0:1 

T
O

T
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 B

A
L

A
N

C
E

S 

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 F

U
N

D
S

  

H 	 (.9 
kil 

U16 lej 	 U-I Z 
Z IL z  
0 OC .zr --J Li_ 	

g 12  4 E OZ I O L1- w ,. , 	/-• Of 

0 D , 	cq2Lu 

Ci_C  t R V12 
es z- 	t.0 

rzi.,...c t_ 
I._ a. ct.. L., 0 	

o.cco zi--1 muJ ,-, ---,  
p6ozu < 6 
I-L z 0 	0 V) Lli 
Gi< 

▪  

Ew 	Clia...z 
---,,--L' aLiM2 

 
L.1.1 <4.  

gi6Cdj 	
0- I  

Z 
■ u_wo 	Z LL L L__--  in a_ Z 

0 th2, 0 ce 0 tj 
1.---"w W 7-I2tf,„).--, 

(.../c4 v,"cr1121 	CC  CO 

5 g 
i 

2Lcf,'2'.. Ern 
Dfx.< 1-  u<ce ‘: O I L 

v)zu.,c zog>11-r 2 )- •zt 
vI %-ii0.-,Eu.J zw < ¢i-1-  

o o 
o in o 

(S,000 $) 

N

• 

 M 	m 
tO 	 N N 	d. 

CO CO 
II) CO 1-1 NI N 	LA 

HwwN 

LU-.DulDo r482-  
ceucizzo- 	1-nul't71 z zDcjE 'Nu-1¢ 
U w. ∎ <LLULLi hT¢ CO  

8 
n 

N fe) 
03 ul 

,4" 

D
E

S
IG

N
A

T
E

D
 F

U
N

D
S

 

R
E

S
T

R
I C

T
E

D
 F

U
N

D
S

:  

H
A

R
B

O
R

 D
R

E
D

G
IN

G
  

R
E

V
O

L
V

IN
G

  L
O

A
N

  F
U

N
D

  

FO
R

E
IG

N
  T

R
A

D
E

  Z
O

N
E

 

0 

N 

• 

Lr) 	 N 	 N 0 CO N 
O N 

• 

N 	CO VD 	 V-  0 	 N 

	

Co1rs 	 M 3-1 ID 	 CO LI) CO 	 Ln 
7-1 

N
E

T 
C

A
S

H
 F

L
O

W
 

O
P

E
N

IN
G

 F
U

N
D

 B
A

LA
N

C
E

 

S
O

U
R

C
E

S
 O

F
 F

U
N

D
S

 

FA
C

IL
IT

Y
 R

E
N

T
A

L
S 

A
N

D
 C

O
N

C
E

S
S

IO
N

S 

F
U

E
L

 SA
L

E
S  

R
E

G
IS

T
R

A
T

IO
N

S
 / 

 W
H

A
R

FA
G

E
 

M
O

O
R

IN
G

  F
E

E
S

 

PA
R

K
IN

G
  F

E
E

S
 

U
S

E
S

 O
F

 F
U

N
D

S
  

PE
R

SO
N

N
E

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 A
N

D
 B

E
N

E
FI

T
S 

FU
E

L
 P

R
O

C
U

R
E

M
E

N
T

 

O
PE

R
A

T
IN

G
 E

X
PE

N
SE

S 

C
A

PI
T

A
L

 E
X

PE
N

D
IT

U
R

E
S 

A
N

D
 O

T
H

E
R

 

ST
A

T
E

  O
F

 N
H

-  
P

O
S

T
 R

E
T

IR
E

M
E

N
T

  

C
L

O
S

IN
G

 F
U

N
D

 B
A

LA
N

C
E

 

0 
0 
0 



CO 

Cvl 	C 	' D 	 II) 	CO 	 L.11 	N. 	co LU co 	
OM 
	 N 

co 
O N I 

7-I 

col 

 Oi Ni  

in 
LU 	co 

LI) LC) 
.
n -+ M-  a-, 

N 

of o 11)1 
03 

V) CD 	o Lo 
ka 	

N 

Ln LU N co al 

N 	 co 

NI 
Ln 
N 

N in 	in 	 CD N 00 
N 	 LO 

NL a 	0 	N 
CO N LO 

Lt1
N 	

1-1 

Lif NO VC010000 N 
of 0 M 	oo 	et N 01 
4.0 	LA 	1-I O 

CO 
NO 

LC) t.D CO NI CO 
cn 

CDNIN 

ks) N. co NI 
CO co -4 —1 
N 

I 	 I CO CO 
N tD 

ri `;;-- 
N 

co er 
ri 

LU N
E

T
 C

A
S

H
 F

L
O

W
 

R
E

G
IS

T
R

A
T

IO
N

S
  /

  W
H

A
R

FA
G

E 

O
P

E
N

IN
G

 F
U

N
D

 B
A

L
A

N
C

E 

U
S

E
 O

F
 F

U
N

D
S

 

C
A

PI
T

A
L

 E
X

PE
N

D
IT

U
R

E
S 

A
N

D
 O

T
H

E
R

 

FA
C

IL
IT

Y
 R

E
N

T
A

L
S  

A
N

D
 C

O
N

C
E

S
S

IO
N

S
 

S
O

U
R

C
E

S
 O

F
 F

U
N

D
S

  

P
E

R
S

O
N

N
E

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S 

 A
N

D
 B

E
N

E
F

IT
S

 

FU
E

L
 SA

L
E

S 

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

S
 A

N
D

 FA
C

IL
IT

IE
S

 

ST
A

T
E

  O
F

 N
H

-  
P

O
S

T
 R

E
T

IR
E

M
E

N
T

 

FU
E

L
 P

R
O

C
U

R
E

M
E

N
T

 

PR
O

F
E

SS
IO

N
A

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S 

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 A

N
D

 A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IV

E
 

PA
R

K
IN

G
 F

E
E

S 
 

M
O

O
R

IN
G

 F
E

E
S 

C
L

O
S

IN
G

 FU
N

D
 B

A
LA

N
C

E
 

(v) 	L.f) 
CO 

Ln 	
' 

	 MI CNI CO 0 CD NI 
NI 

ri 

r9z1 

0

ri 

oo 

Ni

a t0 

 ai n 

rn 	CD 	' 	CD 
%M0 	Tr 	cc) 	CO 

1-1 

co 	 Lr) 	co 
it) 	.1- 	N N 	L.C) 

ro 	 cep 	col 	11) 	t0 N. co 
N co 

N 	CD 	 ' 	N I 	Li) CD N. CO CD CD 	 1-1 
71- 	 1-1 	 N 	co 	1-1 	 1-1 

7-1 

CO 

,171 



OI 

col 

WI 

OI 

col 

col 

OI 

N rs1 

N 

N N 

O InC°IN 

R
E

G
IS

T
R

A
T

IO
N

S
 

FU
E

L
 FL

O
W

A
G

E
 FE

E
S 

G
R

A
N

T
 FU

N
D

IN
G

 

O 

z 

w 
z 
w 
LAJ 

0 
fg CO 
O re 
ca 
< 

• 0 
Z 

`

• 	

I- 
v)  
1- (1) oC 
O p p 
a. 9 ,  

O I'm L‘ 
Z  z LIA 

z 

> a V 
CI V) 

N 

O 

Ul 	31 
fv•I 

OI 	41  

fu`,1 

>- 
4 

Le l 

N 

N 

O
P

E
N

IN
G

 F
U

N
D

 B
A

LA
N

C
E 

3,1 41 

001 	N 
N 
N 

'1 	31 

col 	col 
In 

NI COI 	21  
N 

O 
LO 	LA 

cCIN 

c°1 

co

N  

OI O 
N 

N 
N 

N
E

T
 C

A
S

H
 F

L
O

W
 

A
L
L

 O
T

H
E

R
-  

(C
B

O
C

)  

C
L

O
S

IN
G

 F
U

N
D

 B
A

LA
N

C
E

 

CO N 

co 	 'I 

PE
R

SO
N

N
E

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 A
N

D
 B

E
N

E
F

IT
S

 

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

S
 A

N
D

 F
A

C
IL

IT
IE

S
 

PR
O

FE
SS

IO
N

A
L

 SE
R

V
IC

E
S 

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 A

N
D

 A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IV

E
 

U
S

E
 O

F
 F

U
N

D
S

 



O 

O 
M O 

'41 Chril  
N 

OI 
O 
N 

NI 	L1) 

- N 	NI 	u-)1 

O N (VI 

O N NI 

011 
M 

rIl 

N! 

0 
N 

N
E

T
  C

A
S

H
 F

L
O

W
 

 N
I 

	

r-
il

 

A
L

L
 O

T
H

E
R

 

IN
 I C

R
E

S
T

 IN
C

O
M

E
- L

O
A

N
S 

IN
T

E
R

E
S

T
 I

N
C

O
M

E
-  

FU
N

D
 B

A
L

A
N

C
E

 

N
E

W
  L

O
A

N
S

 P
R

O
JE

C
T

E
D

 

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

S
 A

N
D

 F
A

C
IL

IT
IE

S 
 

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 A

N
D

 A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IV

E 

PR
O

FE
S

S
IO

N
A

L
 SE

R
V

IC
E

S 

L
O

A
N

 R
E

PA
Y

M
E

N
T

S 

PE
R

SO
N

N
E

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 A
N

D
 B

E
N

E
F

IT
S

 

S
O

U
R

C
E

S
 O

F
 F

U
N

D
S

  

O
P

E
N

IN
G

 F
U

N
D

 B
A

LA
N

C
E

 

C
L

O
S

IN
G

 F
U

N
D

 B
A

L
A

N
C

E
 

U
SE

  O
F

  F
U

N
D

S
  

crl, N 41 	NI 	N 
1-1 

• co M 
0 

411 

59  Vkfl 
O 

• 

NI MI 

• I 

N 	'I rn 

%61 N 

In 
N 

QI 
	

011'1 N 

:3 Oe.1 	1 • C•4 

(n1 

MI 



01 Z 

N
E

T
 C

A
S

H
 F

L
O

W
 

A
L

L
 O

T
H

E
R

 

PR
O

FE
S

S
IO

N
A

L
 SE

R
V

IC
E

S 

PE
R

SO
N

N
E

L
 SE

R
V

IC
E

S
 A

N
D

 B
E

N
E

F
IT

S 

FA
C

IL
IT

Y
 R

E
N

T
A

L
S 

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

S
 A

N
D

 FA
C

IL
IT

IE
S 

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 A

N
D

 A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IV

E
 

A
L

L
 O

T
H

E
R

 

U
S

E
  O

F
 F

U
N

D
S

 

S
O

U
R

C
E
S

 O
F

 F
U

N
D

S
  

O
P

E
N

IN
G

 F
U

N
D

 B
A

LA
N

C
E 

C
L

O
S

IN
G

 F
U

N
D

 B
A

LA
N

C
E

 

14 	 IN 	
'I 
	r4 

ri l 	 ri 	 ri 
co 	 'I CO 	Tr 	L41 

U 1 
O 

I-1 7,1 	
I' I 	Lr) 

u-) 	'I 	Li.) 

11 

,-.'-'I 

Chi 

v-II 
ril 

v■II 
rif 

vil 
.11 

r‘.1 

' 1 

'1 

, 	 1 

, 	 1 

, 	 1 

(-.1 

1 

cv 	 'I 

1 

1 

69 1 a 

<1 x 

I 





PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

To: Paul Brean, Executive Director 

From: Suzy Anzalone, Assistant Finance Director 

Date: April 1, 2021 

Subject: Capital Improvement Plan FY2021 — FY2027 

In anticipation of the upcoming April 12, 2021 Pease Development Finance Committee meeting, the following is an 

overview of the Capital Improvement Plan budget process: 

Each year the Finance department works together with the Department Management (DM) team and the Executive 

Director in preparation of the annual Capital Improvement Plan (CIP). The prior year's CIP is updated with current fiscal 

year information, and "rolled forward" for a six year forecast which is split between "Grant Funded" and "Internally 

Funded" capital projects. Projects are also classified between infrastructure, expansion, health and safety, equipment 

and regulatory related. 

The Finance department meets with each DM to update or add capital projects. A joint meeting is then held with the 

Executive Director to provide project details and prioritize (A, B or C priority). After this extensive review, a financial 

analysis is performed to measure the projected cash and debt levels to make certain our current line of credit is sufficient 

to meet our capital and operating needs. At this point, projects may be moved to outer years to keep it on our "radar", 

reprioritized or removed altogether. 

The current CIP plan shows capital investments of $78.4M over the next six years consisting of $50.8M in grant funded 

projects and $27.6M internally funded. We anticipate 95% sponsor funding and 5% PDA funding for grant related 

projects. You will also note that we have provided a summary showing the financial impact of implementing ALL projects, 

"A&B" or "A" priority projects only. 

The majority of the capital expenditures in the current presentation (71.3%) are directly related to Portsmouth and 

Skyhaven airports with the remainder split between the Tradeport, golf, technology, maintenance and security. 

Significant projects include the following: 

• Finalize runway reconstruction 

• Phase II terminal expansion and additional terminal parking lot 

• Apron repair and construction (PSM and DAW) 

• Snow removal equipment building construction and equipment replacements (PSM and DAW) 

• Tradeport intersection improvements 

• Terminal loop road 

• Equipment and vehicle purchases (maintenance, golf, security, communications) 

• Technology upgrades 

We believe this Capital Improvement Plan incorporates prudent current and future investment in our Airport(s) as well 

as Tradeport infrastructure, equipment replacements and technology upgrades. As a reminder, this plan is purely a 

presentation of anticipated expenditures and each individual project will be presented to the Board for approval prior to 

initiation. 

TAKING YOU THERE 







N
E

T
 C

A
S

H
  F

L
O

W
  

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
I C

T
E

D
  C

A
S

H
  A

N
D

 I
N

V
E

S
T

M
E

N
T

S
  

IN
T

E
R

N
A

L
L

Y
  F

U
N

D
E

D
  

G
R

A
N

T
  F

U
N

D
E

D
  

O
U

T
S

T
A

N
D

IN
G

  D
IE

B
T  

A
N

A
L

Y
S

IS
  

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
 F

IN
D

IN
G

S
 

F
IN

A
N

C
IN

G
 C

O
N

S
I D

E
R

A
T

IO
N

S
 

C
A

P
IT

A
L

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 R
E

Q
U

E
S

T
S

 

11
,1

1
:1

1
1_

111 

NJ 

L 
m 

M d• VI 	0 
1-1 1-1 1-1 	ri 



0 

o co 	co 
o 	co 

N 
O kO 
N 
tA- 

›- 

LL 

Uh 

N 

0 

K
E

Y
 S

E
N

S
IT

IV
IT

IE
S

 I
N

C
L

U
D

E
:  

R
E

G
U

L
A

T
O

R
Y

 

IN
F

R
A

S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

E 

E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

 

E
X

P
A

N
S

IO
N

 

I  
M

A
R

Y
 F

IN
D

IN
G

  .
.
  

LU 

	

eL 	 2 
.,... 

	

nl- 	 Z 	 VI Lu 	'Lj 	6 0  —uz 	 < 	 IJJ 

m < 

r.r10 --. -cel--1 	
< 	 > 	WO 

	

i—i _I cy, 	
Z 0 
Uk 

W0 1;-7M 	I—  --1 Ce . 

	

MI-(1) 	W001- 	<1-D1±1(_11 	Q
OHM 	 0WZ 	ZW 

	

Z 	1-1 LJ- 	 J 

	

m 	 O 
I- --I<< . 	-cCLU 	 <4 

	

<cemm 	a ;-_r,) O 0 • 	p..owm-EA- 
cwiLxw 	W 	I-IN 	I-"":1-MEI-1- 	Ca 0 

	

-6,1-Li->N rW 	0 
I Lc  E w c) C) CD -j  I--  < 

	

<m i.... 	od 
wououLL 	z  --"Jw mceN 

	

l 	_I ' 	 a k  

	

D 	1-1 HZ 	,__;' 	C911-71Eila 	Ow WHU0 H  

	

nTm 	Z- 	Lucl 	01/4-' EW Z ZW 
075,<0 (L)°(-9I-W 1E20:-Z 

	

. io 	ILJ (2) 
MMJ M 

Lg(T)(9T) ;;I41: 

r-- __,,z 	W 	1 < 	(^% 
CC CL cl. F- 0.. 	up c:- 	2 po 	-- 	2: ..., W 	

1.-Z 
Um 
If10 
MZ D E Z O 

M O W  
zzu El- 	 W Z 

	

HLU<< 	
I-4 
CA 

0 ,.., el_ Z 	W rij  > ce W 	>- c) > F- W 	11,6- rt I- ,._, >_ 15  W 	W LLI 2 0 g Lu C) m H ce 	 z n  

<HwU 
HLuce z 1-x H, zl- w wR <wouw 	 wm, 	D 0 
U 	 Uw-I 00 LIJ-...<_i 	ceOZI-Lu 	OE. 

	

1 1-ct 'Z 	7 	

m 

-i „ F-  LU Q0 	W t: -1  U_ F- 	wm 
1-..‹.-IP.‹ 
i- m pi- i  --its-i_mw D Z <o 

	

WO< ce 01-0 1--
< 	I.- 

U W  M 	Z Huz 	 w 
Lu ILI  LU a-110'cll 

	OHS 	
0 

D (6 -2  .-. 	8 al 

	

E 	0 < (il 0 x 

	

H F- LuLLI LuD-Z Lu 1-1zU010 	ct Z 

	

<.--,www 	et 
U>-->D MZ Z 	 a. 
w 1- w oz 0..--i a

= 00,,wp 
m„„u(,) 

,nwww ml- wo  y 	<woM-. Oau-m> OZ 0 _1 , w z  ,- 
Ww<zw ce0..„.w, 2,,z 

i_ 
 Z Z 

m ce V) .--, W m Ci 5 ....5 F- u_ .--, < =D 

< 
W 	LL'W 

 > ,PoE 
cim.u9,-p 

ce-1.1(7ir'.1=0 
gL(4.‹,‹ 

-Joce., 0 „, ‹, 

• "z  w,„ 
uo —‹ce W UJ UJ LL 	 F_ n:  
M (4mW OZI- 

W uj  12' 
• i CDr lL-11 mz 

<LLI 
W 1:1,-1 1=w0WI-- 
HrL.z ZMX 

M 121 0 ° MCC 
r UJ E- Uj  

▪ Q<Vm<M 
Z 	••• 

WOM-1  
WUvi.NWW‹ 
cecx4A-1-11-i 

WC4 F- OH 0  
M-JOWUZ 

P
H

A
S

E
 I
I
 E

X
P

A
N

S
IO

N
 P

S
M

 T
E

R
M

IN
A

L 

F- ZzW 
L.'T.' 	<0 .-.10-MCL 	Z 0 

O LL.P W  "1-0 W O ce F- 	F-irtj 
-1 <01- u_ ce 0 0 U  

cLOL .,,t4(=ez W-WD 
_II- Woz MOLL <w 	(.9<m 

1 

• 

110Z I-
LL.0

• 

<<wzw -(5 ,7Li 
wm 172  c7:1 'z '-' p z ce cewzz . (9 Li., 0 
PecILE8T)L±JaLe L710 (fc mwoH0_,wo z xo u_ I__ cL (.,0 0_ .‹ ci_ co __, W CL 

< a 
w >- ua 	o 

	

, z ll 	° 

V)  0 

	

1—W11(.9y 11-Z 	‹, 

O O < HZ11,7(
w 	

29 IL:t2 u_ 	z  

< a. > 

	

(1)  „zw  (-) ctz tun. (.7 < o3 	0  
wL4 m  >- F.- I-U 0 0 Ce 1-1  r.:: 17 

	

.Q..)1--JOZW 	<I_ 
'''' 0 	Z 	CeLnU‹ 
W-1-ILU LL OHUZ 
(9u_ 

° Ce 
LU < Z 0 LD 2  Z D 

4,/ 	L41 1 -  

CO 

14.IN 
N 

1:= `- CD 

0 
N 

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 C

A
S

H
 B

A
L

A
N

C
E

S
  
-

IN
--

D
E

B
T

  O
U

T
S

T
A

N
D

IN
G

 

J
U

N
E

 3
0
 F

IS
C

A
L

 Y
E

A
R

 E
N

D
 B

A
L

A
N

C
E

S
 

414- 

kO 	kr) 	N 	N 	/-1 
CO 	6 6 N 

r, 	N 	<7) 	LO 

	

M 	cr 	CO 	Lr) 

	

N.N 	N 

	

0 	Mul 

	

Cr) 	N 	N 

et 
ts 

N 
0 
N 

Z 
V) a. 
U) 
Lu Lu 
U 
CD 
z 

ce 



T
E

R
M

IN
A

L
 L

O
O

P
  R

O
A

D
  

R
O

O
F

 R
E

P
LA

C
E

M
E

N
T

S
 

S
N

O
W

 M
E

L
T

E
R

 

W
IN

D
B

R
E

A
K

  F
O

R
  W

A
L

K
W

A
Y

 A
T

 P
S

M
 

S
T

O
R

M
 W

A
T

E
R

 T
R

E
A

T
M

E
N

T
 

S
O

L
A

R
 P

A
N

E
L
 F

A
R

M
  

(P
S

M
 A

N
D

 D
A

W
)  

O 
O 
O 
0 
0, 

O 
O 
O 
O 
O 

0 
O 
0 

-1 
CI_ 
F- 

Z 
w o 
> N 

ra. 

0 
0 0 a_ 

N 

O 

In 
N 
fi 

In 
fPr  

z 
0 
I- 

I- 

0 c,) 
I- 

8 cc a. 
Ct 
111 

U 

N 

In 
T

E
C

H
N

O
L

O
G

Y
 

M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

 

re 
0 a 

S
K

Y
H

A
 

r
 A  P

IT
A

L
 P

R
O

JE
C

T
 R

E
  •  U

E
S

T
S

..
  

H 
cn (r) z 
H z w 

-1 	Z 0 y 
< 	w 
I- 	E RI u) cIt- 
0 	w z < 	151  

›- F-  > > 0 0,
-I 2 	

(D 0 I-LI  w 
ce z ...I 	 -... 

C.) 	CI_ LU 
< 
Z 12 	Z tY  0 (r)  

----.. z Z 
Z Z In  LU 1/1 , 	0 0 cZ 

I--  (/) 
	(-7) I-  W 

Z F- 	 0 U 
1-1 C.) 	0 z _j z  w  
I- 	 < - 	(I) a(..9  
Z 6 	IY x z = 
< ct 	1-i Z 

I- 	Y 11-1 (.) ci_ .. , 	Z -I CC uj 
< LL. __I I-U

0 	F- 	V) 1-1 < 	 Z a_ ce 
Z F... D 	cc '-' _1 Z (9 1-1 _I 	0 a < 0 

r-1-  U 	a JCL w Z u V) < z 	I— zi--1  
Lu V 1-1 	0 	U_ 

< Z CL -J  
tYarsi 	cCu) Lu0 
0 wTr 	I- CL I- (-7 
Z 13 

Z 
tO 

u_i l'•:.  
2 n N 
I-- U. -LA- 

i 
sK 
0 
0 

I—  1_ 

	

-- cC 	0 U _.,— 

	

Tk Z 	I—  1.1.1 `4,  

	

0 (r) 	,---, rn 10 

	

....°- 	2 ,_111  

0 co"' 	.- 	
'' (-9 	0 a_ -,-1-  

	

, z Z 	_I 	--.• 
11.1 	.. 	(r) a. 	(1) E 	u et. 	_ a z 
0 0 	 (r) n. ' 	

(11 1-,  

	

_J 	I I- 
C21 

Z In 	 Z 'I- 	- 	1-----si  

	

_J 	U) 	(r) CY") U) 1--1 	 Z  (U D 41)- 	1 ci, I-1 0 CO 	< 
..._. -- U P Li] IL. ---I 	tC) ‘-- LU r_   (f) u 	 cy I- I- 1!&.- 	>- >- < D z 	I- I--  < 

Z 0 	< < = CC Lu 	Z 
< H 	 Ci_ H < < N  
i 	Z 12 	 5-1‹ i (r) a0_ 	

0 
(9  U 	

ce NI 
z ( el 

D < 0 0 
Z Z 34  

ce E-- 	 1--( — NI 
I-  2 	(7)  u a  (.9 Li j 	0 

< 	 00 
Z 	 Z Z 	W 	 0 

	

ZZ_I 	i-I 0 	
Z u) 0  i Lf) 

U - 	P P < a. cc < 1-1 v) 	 ce  ci_ (..9 c\l' 
1-1-1 

 
D D til < 0 1 0 

z (..) 	CY 1Y _J _I Z 	(f) C[ 0 >- 
CD IAI 	I- I- <  

	

Z CLaj 	I-  ,,, 1 U-I 
(7) 2 

	u) 
Z z z . 	u) .-.- ,_ I- 

 0   ui ti. - 	u u iy 	0 

	

ce_j im wwwwZ 	
U Mu_ - 

I- 
0 < 0 	ce eC 1- F- u) 	< V)  5-.<1  0 ° In  0 

r.L.1 	0' 

LuCL 	ct.c:  
iii :EL-I  01  
2 < z 



ir1.1
cn  

N M o Ln CD CD 0 
a) 	0 N000 

Cr) M N Ln Ln 
N 	cri (-4 •-■ tO 
tA- 

r--I 	CO CO CD 0 Ul 01 
	in  N 	-.4-  LnN ,-I CD al 	in 

t.0 	•--I N CO c.0 01 0 	V 
N 	Ln In CT Oi N CO 00 -EA- 	 Cri 	N 

CD 	CD L.11 CD 0 In Ln 	Ln 
Ol N ct Cr) PI to to ph 
415,- 

Ln Ln OD LI) Ln Ln op 0 
r-I 	VO Ol Lfl 	 N 	LO 
to M N 	Op 

rN 

tr o Ln o o O Ln cr 
N Ln N CD 0 N 

N 	 N •Ej- 

CD CD CD Ln o o o 
Ln N d N 1-1 Ln N 
-EA- ct 1-1 rt at 

o Ln Ln Ln Ln Ln 
N co N al CO ON 

iF1- .4-  VD CD •-■ 	Ln 	7:1  

Ln Ln In o o o o 

lfl N 	
ch 

 

0  rsi 	 tar■ 
NWNNNN N N 
00000000 
N NNNNNN 

In 
to 

1. 
N 
N 
I.' 
46 

T
E

C
H

N
O

L
O

G
Y

 

▪ 

S
K

Y
H

A
V

E
N

 

T
R

A
D

E
P

O
R

T
 

■
 

S
E

C
U

R
IT

Y
 

IN
T

E
R

N
A

L
L

Y
 F

U
N

D
E

D
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 (

$
2

7
,6

4
2
)  

A 
O 
to 

ri 
fit 

• 

Ln 

G
R

A
N
T

 F
U

N
D

E
D

 P
R

O
JE

C
T

S
 (

$
5
0
,8

1
2

)  

2 
NA a • 

•
 

S
K

Y
H

A
V

E
N

 

8 

T
E

C
H

N
O

L
O

G
Y

 

U 

ct 
...Z 

LL 

0 

i 

2 
0. 

a 
O 
O 

P
E

N
D

IT
 R

E
 .
.  

•  
E

C
T

E
D

 C
A

  •  
IT

  



L. 
N 
O 
N 
›- 
U. 

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
  D

E
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

 

0 
LH 

re 

1-1 •

• 

-• 

i- 

O F. 
Z re 
of 0 1- a, 
rt 
0 I-1 
o. et 

R
U

N
W

A
Y

 1
6
- 3

4 
R

E
C

O
N

-  
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

 

T
E

R
M

IN
A

L
 E

X
P

A
N

S
IO

N
-  

P
H

A
S

E
 I

I 

N
O

R
T

H
 G

A
 A

P
R

O
N

  D
E

S
IG

N
  &

 R
E

P
A

IR
 

A
R

E
A

 4
  A

P
R

O
N

 D
E

S
IG

N
 &

 R
E

P
A

IR
 

S
R

E
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
  

T
E

R
M

IN
A

L 
E

X
P

A
N

S
I O

N
-  

P
H

A
S

E
 I
 

LO
W

R
Y

 L
A

N
E

 P
A

V
IN

G
  

S
N

O
W

 R
E

M
O

V
A

L 
E

Q
U

I P
M

E
N

T
 

T
W

 A
 S

O
U

T
H

 H
O

L
D

 B
A

Y
 

V
A

C
U

U
M

 R
E

C
O

V
E

R
Y

 T
R

U
C

K
 

P
E

A
S

E
 B

LV
D

  I
N

T
E

R
S

E
C

T
IO

N
  

FA
A

  M
A

S
T

E
R

 P
LA

N
 

H
I P

R
E

S
S

U
R

E
 W

A
T

E
R

  L
IN

E
 R

E
M

O
V

A
L 

FR
O

N
T

 E
N

D
 S

N
O

W
 C

O
M

P
A

C
T

 

H
IG

H
 P

R
I O

R
IT

Y
 

0 
ro. 

tJf 

r  
R

A
N

T
 F

U
N

D
E

D
 C

A
P

IT
A

L
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 R
E

  •
  U

E
S

T
S

..
  

Lo 

O o o o o rn O tr) CO 0 0 o o Ln N 
Ln O 0 0 0 t.0 0 0 01 0 [I-  0 0 (V co 

0 0 0 0 d M M 	111 cY N CO 1. Cr/ to t.6 ‘.6 Ln 

O o 
O o 

O 
0 0 

LL 

0 I 	 I 0 

Ln 	 LA 

rL 
N 

 

I 0 
0 
Ln 

CD 
0 esi 

O 
N 
>- 
LL 

I/1 
N 
0 
N 

>- 
IL. 

O ' 	 0 	 0 0 o 	 0 	 0 0 
N CO 

0 
0 

N 

0 
0 
03 
LA 

z 
Q _I 
0_ 

I o . 	1  o , 	 ■ 	0 	 F 
 rl 

N 	 0 	 0 	 0 	 z 
❑ Ln 	 N 	 N 	 w ,.., 

(-4 N .--.1. 	 rt 	 Wto 
> (-4 
0 _1 U. 
0 .J. 
o_ ce 
E CL  

CD 	 1  0 	1 	0 	 1  in LO 	 .. <_, N 	 0 	 0 	 't 	 N to  N 
 C 	
o 	 ,--, 	 Tr 	 1-1 	tO 	 I- 

,--Z  

	

N 	
0_ 
< N 	 ,-Is 

U >' 
U. 

N O 
0 
N 

)- 

O 	1 	 1 CO o t.0 CO ' 	 N 
1.0 	 0 0 	CT1 	 ri 
N 	 .4-  CO 	 V3 
cos 	

13' 



O 
O 
Ln 

O 
Ln 
✓ l 

O 
Ln 
1.0 

S
R

E
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 E

X
P

A
N

S
IO

N
  

O 
O 
Ln 

0 
0 
Ln 

z 

u-I 
0 

z 
LLJ 

V) 
Ln 
LLI 

z 
(I)  0 < 
LLJ 

Z 
LJJ 

LIJ z 
LL  0 

U 
_I 0 

1§1 Z  

0 

O 
O 
M 

    

 

.J 
4 
I-. 
0 
I- 

N 
N 
0 
N 
)- 
(L. 

N 
0 
N 

LL 

LA 
N 
O 
N 

LL 

N 
0 
N 

LL 

1v1 
N 
0 
N 

N 
N 
0 
N 

U- 

  

 

N 0 
0 LI 

0 

r 

  

 

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N
  

 

S
K

Y
H

A
V

E
N

 A
IR

P
O

R
T

 (
D

A
W

)  

    

ti) 

CY 
ILI 
et 
I- V 
1 
0 
ce 
a. 

1-4 
a. 

z 
LL. 

ce 

■
 N

T
IN

U
E

D
rE

E
  

0 

N 

0 
Ln 
N 

0 
z 

z 
(.9 

u.1 
O z  
Z 0 
0 
▪ U o_ 
< 
= 

cn 

00 
(f) 

N 
ri co 
O 
Ln 

0 
O 

1/9.1 
N 
ri 
N 

0 
N 

CI 

m°1 

ri 

N 

T
O

T
A

L
 G

R
A

N
T

 F
U

N
D

E
D

 

H
I G

H
 P

R
IO

R
IT

Y
 

N 

O 
O 
O 
,-Z 

O 
O 
O 

1 

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 A
C

Q
U

IS
IT

IO
N

 (
J A

C
K

S
O

N
)  

O 

co 

O 
O 
O 
ri 

O 
In 
N 

O 
O 
M 

O 
O 

O 

0 
ri 

■ 



itt 

0  I  

N 
O 
N 
3- 
U. 

O 
N 
O 
N 

In 
N 
O 
N 
3- 
LL 

N 
0 
N 

N 
0 
N 

N 
N 
0 
N 

N 0 
0 15 
N 0 

 

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N
  

N
T

E
R

N
A

L
L
Y

 F
U

N
D

E
D

 C
A

P
IT

A
L

  P
R

O
J

E
C

T
  R

E
  •  U

E
S

T
S

..
  

O In 
03 
IO 

   

Lfl 	 In 
N 	N 

‘,0 

N 

O 
	

O 
1-1 

IN
T

E
R

S
E

C
T

IO
N

 IM
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

S
 

P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
  

A 

S
T

O
R

M
W

A
T

E
R

 T
R

E
A

T
M

E
N

T
 

T
E

R
M

IN
A

L 
P

A
R

K
IN

G
  L

O
T

 

T
A

N
K

  R
E

M
O

V
A

L 
P

R
O

G
R

A
M

  

00 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
0 N 0 	o 	in 	o 	Cr) 	lf) 	71- 	0% 
,--1 	CO 	Lfl 	In 	vo 	cr 	m 	7-1 	Tr 
ops  iri -is  

0 01 
CO 

0 0 	 In 0 
0 N 	 N 	LC) 

Mr:
0  

O 	 o 
O N o 
k0 	Cr) 	LC) 

0 	 lfl 
0 
t.0 

0 

O 
ID 

H
IG

H
 P

R
IO

R
IT

Y
 



P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N
 

O 

N 
O 
N 

u., 

N 
O 

II ill 
In 

0 

O 

u. 
LL 

O 

LL 

0 

N 
0 

0 
/- 

0 
O 
O 

C
O

N
T

IN
U

E
D

 

I
 1  
N

A
L

L
Y

 F
U

N
D

E
D

 C
A

P
IT

A
L

  P
R

.  

T
E

R
M

IN
A

L
 E

X
P

A
N

S
IO

N
-  

P
H

A
S

E
 I
 

I 
13

9
 IN

S
P

E
C

T
IO

N
 S

O
F

T
W

A
R

E 

FE
N

C
E

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 

Ln 

T
E

R
M

IN
A

L 
 C

A
R

P
E

T
IN

G
 

O 
0 

rns  

0 
0 
t.0 

O 
O 
Ln 
Nis  

rn 

O 
O 
in 

O 
O 
O 

O 

In 

H
IG

H
 P

R
IO

R
IT

Y
 

0 
0 

0 
0 

O 
O 

C
O

M
M

  C
E

N
T

E
R

  B
U

IL
D

 &
 U

P
G

R
A

D
E

 

O 0 Ln 
o Ln In 

N 

0 
0 
In 

O 

P
A

Y
 F

O
R

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

 F
A

C
IL

IT
Y

 

S
O

LA
R

 P
A

N
E

L 
F

A
R

M
 

A
IR

F
IE

L
D

 L
E

D
 L

IG
H

T
IN

G
 

O Ln oo 
co 

mum? 
Lf1 	CO 

O 

a 
O 

G
E

N
E

R
A

T
O

R
 U

P
G

R
A

D
E

S
 

O 
1-4 

0 
In 
If) 

0 
In 

0 
I- < 

o_ 

In 

0 

< 

Ln 
N 

■ 

LI) 



0 lr) 0 0 Lt) 
N CT 0 In to 

Cc) N 

0 0 LC) Ln In Ln Ln o 
COCONNN 

O 
1mm 

Lfl 
m 

In 
et 

O 
LA In N 0 

O(.9 
0 

Lfl 	 in 	LC) 

H
IG

H
 P

R
IO

R
IT

Y
 

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N
 

T
E

R
M

IN
A

L 
P

A
R

K
IN

G
  L

O
T

 

S
O

LA
R

 P
A

N
E

L 
F

A
R

M
 

JE
T

 A
 F

U
E

L 
T

A
N

K
 

S
K

Y
H

A
V

E
N

 A
IR

P
O

R
T

 

S
R

E
 B

O
IL

E
R

 R
E

P
LA

C
E

M
E

N
T

  

T
A

X
IW

A
Y

 R
E

LA
M

P
IN

G
-  

L
E

D
 

S
R

E
 D

O
O

R
 R

E
P

LA
C

E
M

E
N

T
 

D
O

O
R

 A
C

C
E

S
S

 C
O

N
T

R
O

L 

C
C

T
V

 S
E

C
U

R
IT

Y
 G

A
T

E
S

 

R
E

R
O

O
F

IN
G

-  
T

E
R

M
IN

A
L
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 

S
E

C
U

R
IT

Y
  S

Y
S

T
E

M
  U

P
G

R
A

D
E

 

B
A

D
G

IN
G

 E
Q

U
IP

/ U
P

G
R

A
D

E
S

 

S
E

C
U

R
IT

Y
 (

P
S

M
 &

  D
A

W
)  

NIP 

0 

U 
I- 

C 

tY 
U 

Z 
1-1-I 0 

I-,  
F-- 

>- < 
cr) 
-J 
LLJ LZ 
D 
LL < 

C
O

N
T

IN
U

E
D

  E
rr

  

N 
0 
Cr) 

' O 
0 
N 

>.• 
U. 

' 0 C 
N 7■I 

0 
N 

„IA  

I 	0 
N N 
O 
N 

o Ln N 
N 4-1 N 
0 
N 

N 
0  !I 
N 

1 
0 Ln 0 LI) C 
NNLC)N N 

in 
N 

' .1= 

Ln 	0 
N 	Ln 

0 LC) 
N 

in 
N 

I 1/1 
N r4 

r4 

r., 

2! 

o 
In 

!S 

F- 

O Ln o Ln C 
Z 

ri 
tt N LC.) N 2E r4 

1-1 ILI 0 
N 

0 _J 
c4 

ce 
1E a. 

loco° 
N.. 	o N 

4t 

O 



CC 

O 

N 
O 
N 

LL 

N 
0 
N 

In 
N 
0 
N 

>- 
U. 

N 
O 
N 

ro 
N 
0 
N 

N 
N 
O 
N 

NO 
o w 
}

N O  
EL 

P
R

O
3

E
C

T
 D

E
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

 

X 
U, 

Z 
O < 

Z 
LLI Lu 

Z 04, 
4.1 pZ 
X 

z 
0' 
ct 

N
T

  •
  A

L
L

Y
 F

U
N

D
E

D
 C

A
P

IT
A

L
 P

R
  •

  E
 

L
C

D
 I
 U

E
D

  ■
  ■

  

0 
0 
0 

0 
co 
N 

0 

cc 
0 

F- 

W Z 

LU 
LU LU 
O U 

Z 
CL 

O uJIll  r•-■ 

V) LC) 0 
N N 

Cr) 

In Di 
N.. in 

O 

N 

S
N

O
W

 M
E

LT
E

R
 

V
E

H
IC

LE
 R

E
P

LA
C

E
M

E
N

T
 

T
R

A
C

K
LE

S
S

  S
N

O
W

 B
LO

W
E

R
 

0 
Lf) 

0 
LC) 

o o Lf) 
Lr) 	LI) 

N 

0 0 

O 
L.r) 
N 

0 

Lr) 0 0 
Tr CO 	{D 

in 
in 

cn 
N 

LI) 0 	in 
- co 	Cu) 

Ln In 

z 

U 

z 
CD 
z 

U 

cc 
U 

    

M
O

W
E

R
 R

E
P

LA
C

E
M

E
N

T
 

   

T
R

A
C

K
  S

K
ID

 M
O

W
E

R
 

 

H
IG

H
  P

R
IO

R
IT

Y
 

R
U

N
W

A
Y

 P
A

IN
T

I N
G

 M
A

C
H

IN
E

 

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 IN
F

R
A

S
TR

U
C

TU
R

E 

W
IN

D
B

R
E

A
K

 F
O

R
  W

A
LK

W
A

Y
 



I 0 
N 

1.1) 	in 
o N 
N 

1.0 

O 
at 
N 

0 	1.11 1 14 o o 
M ,-1 Tr 

O 
O 
M 

o , in 	1 in  , 	0 0 
,--1 	,-1 	 M 	N 

IS 

M 

o 

N 

o 
N 

o 
M 

,-i 

(.4 
n 

rl 
11A 

o 
01 

0 

In 
GO 

0 
 7J- 

in 
01 

1.0,-f  

o 
CO 

1  

in 	in 	o 0 
tip 	Ln 	r I N 
.-1 

N 

0 1 
CT 0 

0 

0 VI 111 	0 
Cr) 

O " 	0 I 	 oze 
N 

H
IG

H
 P

R
IO

R
IT

Y
 

T
O

T
A

L
 I

N
T

E
R

N
A

L
L

Y
 F

U
N

D
E

D
 

%•• G
O

L
F

 C
O

U
R

S
E

 

P
A

Y
C

H
E

X
 P

A
Y

R
O

L
L
 K

IO
S

K
S

  

M
A

IN
 S

E
R

V
E

R
(S

)  
R

E
P

LA
C

E
M

E
N

T 

C
O

U
R

S
E

 E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

 

K
IT

C
H

E
N

  E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

  

C
O

M
P

U
T

E
R

S
/  

A
N

D
 S

E
R

V
E

R
S 

D
U

M
P

 T
R

U
C

K
 /
  T

R
U

C
K

 W
IT

H
 P

LO
W

 

G
R

IL
L
 2

8
 B

A
T

H
R

O
O

M
 U

P
G

R
A

D
E

S
 

S
O

F
T

W
A

R
E

-P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 

G
E

O
 T

H
E

R
M

A
L
 P

U
M

P
S

 

F
IR

E
 W

A
L
L
 R

E
P

LA
C

E
M

E
N

T
 

C
O

U
R

S
E

 E
N

H
A

N
C

E
M

E
N

T
S

 

S
IM

U
LA

T
O

R
 U

P
G

R
A

D
E

 

S
O

F
T

W
A

R
E

-  
M

IC
R

O
S

O
F

T
 

T
E

C
H

N
O

L
O

G
Y

 

T
E

C
H

N
O

L
O

G
Y

 E
N

H
A

N
C

E
M

E
N

T
S

 

O CD 
N 0 

to in CD 
N .-1 

o Ln o Ln N 
01 	1-1 	 Cr 

en Cs 

N 

o 	Ln 	 Lff an 
tO 

v-I 

o . in o I 	 in r■ o_ 
,1 	.-1 N 	 • N I 	F- 

ON Z 
w

'' Nj 
w c■ 
> N 

ce cl_ cc 
0 ' In0 1 	In 0 M 	z .--. M 	,--i N 	 es M 	_1 

M < I- 

	

N 	a_ 
< U 

Ln to 
N 
r4 

O 
to 
N 

0 

N 
O 
N 

P
R

O
J

E
C
T

 D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N
 

H 
0 

N 
0 
N 

tL 

1.0 
N 
O 
N 

U. 

N 
0 
N 

U. 

M 
N 
O 
N 

LL 

N 
N 
O 
N 

>" 

0 
0 
0 

• 
■ 

z 
z 
0 



N 

kip 

IN
T

E
R

N
A

L
L
Y

 FU
N

D
E

D
 

ON3 }MA 1VDSI1 0£ MOE' 

O 
O 

LO 0 
0 0 
0 0 

O 
Ln uo 

L.r) 

N 

W 
0 
Ln 

F
IN

A
N

C
IN

G
 A

C
T

IV
IT

IE
S

 

G
R

A
N

T
 F

U
N

D
IN

G
  

N
E

W
  W

O
R

K
IN

G
  C

A
P

IT
A

L-
  R

L
O

C
 (

N
E

T
)  

0 
z 
0 
X 

U G
R

A
N

T
 F

U
N

D
E

D
 

to 

H 

LL 
0 

z 
th 
z 

>- 
< 

w  
cc z w 0 

u 
z z N

E
T

  C
H

A
N

G
E

S
 I
N

  W
O

R
K

IN
G

  C
A

P
I T

A
L 

N 
0 
CO 

N 
N. 

N
E

T
 F

IN
A

N
C

IN
G

  A
C

T
IV

IT
IE

S
 

0 
0 

- o 

0 
0 

N
 

D
O

L
L

A
R

S
 

0 
0 
0 
co' 

03 
0 
0 
0 

to 

03 

N 

0 
0 
0 

0 
0 

■ 

VJ 

W 

(/) 
U.I 

N 
NZ 
0 0'4  
N 

Z 
u. < 

1 I  
(I) 

N < 
0 u 

LL H W 

W 
rt 

 (,) 

in 11.! 
0 GL cz 
CL  

o al 
in_ 	N 	N
111 	IA 	in 
4 	et 	I-1 

14 

LO 	Lfl 	'tt 

	

N N N 	N 	N 

▪  

N N 
0 0 0 O 0 0 0 
N N N N N N N 

0 (41.  

rn Z 

- 	

03 
0 

o 	oo 
fel 

X 	41}- 

C9 
z 
0 

X 

lar 	z 
0 
U 

1•11 	Z 
ILI C3  

(9 
• • z Z 
im 
C

M II, . 

• fY < 
0_ 

• 0 Ill  

14( g■4 	W LLJ 
U Z 0 

A
V

A
IL

A
B

L
E

 F
U

N
D

S
 



N 
N 
0 
N 

N 
0 
N 

N 
O 

N 
0 
N 

0 
N 
N 

w 

J
U

N
E

 3
0
 F

IS
C

A
L

 Y
E

A
R

 E
N

D
 B

A
L

A
N

C
E

S
 

O 

1 	 ; 

o o o o o o o 
oo 0 o o o 
o 	Ln 	o 	Uo 	Lo 
Ln 	r-N 	c 	R 	Lri 	(.1" 
1-1 	 ,-1 	 1-1 

stiviloa 

o 	 0 
o 	 0 
0 	 Cv 

tii 	 rns 

0 

F
IN

A
N

C
IN

G
 A

C
T

IV
I T

IE
S

 

N
E

W
 W

O
R

K
IN

G
 C

A
P

IT
A

L
-  

R
LO

C
  

N
E

T
 F

IN
A

N
C

IN
G

 A
C

T
IV

IT
IE

S
 

W
O

R
K

IN
G

  C
A

P
IT

A
L
-  

R
LO

C
  R

E
P

A
Y

M
E

N
T

 

0 
0 



U) 
70 
0 
0 

N 
N 
O 

CO 

N 
N 
0 
N 

N 
0 
N 

>- 
IL 

lt1 
N 
0 
N 

U. 

1' 
N 
0 
N 

LL 

N 
0 
N 

N 
N 
0 
N 

IL 

N 0 
(.7 
0 

N 
1-1 

N 
O 
N 

tp 

oo 
N 

10 

CO 

N 
429- 

N 
N 
N 
+Pr 

C*1 
N 

tA- 

O 
0 
N 
N 

00 
O 
O 

D
P

E
R

A
T

IN
G

 A
C

T
IV

IT
IE

S
 

m 
▪ r ì  N CO 03 

O 0 cp 0 in 
0 	 •• • 
v-Z

▪ 

	N r4 

▪ •-•
Ifl N 0 N 	

N 

- N 	Lr)  
1-1 

 

cr) 
io 

 

u-)  co 
▪ Go rN N 

Tr al co N 
4-4 

c-n 

e•-■ 

0 

0 
0 
1-1 

CO' 

v 

N 
Ln 

0 
tD 

co 

0
00 

NI• 
re) 

10 
0
UD  

N 

O 
N 
N 

N 

0 

to 
to 

'-4 

0 

O 
N 
N 

a) 

Cr)

0'  
ri 

 (NT.  

O 
O 

d.= 

N In 
N 

et 00 

O 
0 
1.1 
N 

0 
0 
N 

••••■ 
0 
0 

N 
N In 
Ln 0 

0 7-1  
M 	a) 

in in 

• a) N o 

N 	

• 	

,-1 .1- in 
N N 
O v-i 03 

01 co 

0 N 
N co N 
GO r,  

1-1 

■-••• 

N 

0 
0 
N 
N 
1-4 

O 
In 
N 

N 

0 
0 
N 

o o 
O O 
co 

0 
0 

oo 

N 
CO 
00 

CY- 

O 
rn N 

co 

o o 
O 
N 

N 

N 
tD 
rn 
a) 

F
U

E
L

 F
L

O
W

A
G

E
 F

E
E

S
 

P
A
Y

 F
O

R
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
 0 

vl 

ti 
144 

C
A

S
H

-  
E

N
D

 O
F

 P
E

R
IO

D
 

N
E

T
 F

IN
A

N
C

IN
G

 A
C

T
IV

I
T

IE
S

 

C
A

S
H
-
 B

E
G

IN
N

IN
G

 O
F

 P
E

R
I
O

D
 

F
U

N
D

IN
G

 S
O

U
R

C
E

S
:  

G
R

A
N

T
 FU

N
D

IN
G
-
 FA

A
 /
  S

T
A

T
E 

N
E
T

 C
H

A
N

G
E

 I
N

  W
O

R
K

IN
G

 C
A

P
IT

A
L 

N
E

W
 W

O
R

K
IN

G
  C

A
P

IT
A

L-
 R

LO
C

 

F
U

N
D

IN
G

 R
E

Q
U
I

R
E

M
E

N
T

S
:  

G
R

A
N

T
  F

U
N

D
E

D
 C

A
P

IT
A

L  
P

R
O

JE
C

T
S

 

0 

U 
0 
0 
z 
U_ 
>- 
-J 
< 
Z U 
LY 
1 

IN
T

E
R

E
S

T
 E

X
P

E
N

S
E
-
 N

E
T

  

CO 
1-1 
ri 

0 
TO 
m 

o 
0  0 

0 

07" 
111 

L
0 

11 
O 

0 
0 
N 
tic 
rl 

in in m 
N PI 00 
N 0 

- •zr o 
tr; tO 0 
N t0 N 

tD 

N 
N c1 In 
In in co 

N 

10 NI CO 
N rn o 

(N CO 
CO 0 

T-i 

z 
U 
z 
z 

N 
1-1 
CO 
O 
O  

O 
0 
O 
N 



co N 
0 N 

1-4 

O 
N 
0 
N 

A
 &

 B
 P

R
O

D
 

N 
0 

N 
O 
N 

N 
N 
0 
N 

(,) 
N 
O 
fV 

N  
N 
0 
N 

Lr) N 
O N 

O 

-J 

I 

8 

11" 

&
 B

 P
R

O
J 

N 
0 a 

CL 

N 
0 

N 
N 
0 6 N  CC 

CL 

-J 

Z 
a 0 0 

a 

03 LYJ  
e2B 	Z 
< 0 

ce 

0 in 

❑ 

LLI 
UI 

:ji  0. < 
0 0  

12- 

03 
0 
N 
dF 

RI 0 
CO 0  
0 
N N 

N 

00 

N 

F
IN

A
N

C
IN

G
 A

C
T

IV
IT

IE
S

 

0 01 
0 OD 
01 	01 

N N 

01 	CD 	01 
O 0 00 
0 	rn 	cr) 

ni N 	al 
VI- N N 

A
V

A
IL

A
B

L
E

 F
U

N
D

S
 

O 
ce 

6.; 
w 

'Et". 
a 	I— 
O 0 

Z 
Z 	1-1-1  

1 <i- 

0 	_I 

LT] 
< z 

Z U G
R

A
N

T
 F

U
N

D
IN

G
  

G
R

A
N

T
 F

U
N

D
E

D
  

IN
T

E
R

N
A

LL
Y

 F
U

N
D

E
D

 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
o 0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 0 0 

•t 6' tip' N.  CO •I' 	 Z 
N  

 4F 
 < 

aN3111/3A1VDSIA OE 3Nnr 
z 
...., 
Z csi 
LU 0 
> (s1 
0 _I 

 r-i 	 lf) 	
1 	Ce ce 'Cr 	It) 	 Fr) 	N 	ci_ ce 

	

N 0 	 01 V) N k0 	In E 0- IA 	,-, < 

	

0 	 (.0 r, 	 N 
N.  
,-1 	co 	C \Is 	 c5 	ch 	< ,--, 	 1--I 	

8
I- 

., 	 ..... 	 ". < 
U 

•-• N  
00 	

0 
N N 	 Lr) 

	

0 	 VD 01 	 0 	00 

	

0 	 0 N 

	

%D 	 N 0 	 N 	V3 
N 

0 

	

0 0 	 N N V 	 N 	CO 

	

0 0 	 st 0 O 	0 	In CO tr, 0 	 00 

Lr) 

o o 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 0 

Lri 	N 	al 	co 	(v.).-  

CIN311V3A1VDSIA OE 3Nar 



PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: 	Pease Development Authority Board of Directors 
FROM: 	Paul E. Brean, Executive Director 
RE: 	License Reports 
DATE: 	April 6, 2021 
****************************************************************************** 

In accordance with the "Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval and Execution of 
License Agreements," PDA entered into the following Right-of-Entry: 

1. 	Name: 	PlaneSense, Inc. 
License: 	Right-of-Entry 
Location: 	Building 222, Flightline Road 
Purpose: 	Site Inspection Purposes 
Term: 	Through July 31, 2021 

P:\BOARDMTG\2021\License  Report 4-15-2021.docx 

TAKING YOU THERE 





PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

	 55 International Drive, Portsmouth NH 03801 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

April 7, 2021 

Frank Diglio, Director of Facilities/Line Services 
PlaneSense, Inc. 
115 Flightline Road 
Portsmouth, NH 03801 

Re: Right of Entry — Building 222 (f/k/a Jet Engine Testing Building), 96 
Flightline Road, Pease International Tradeport, Portsmouth, NH 

Dear Mr. Diglio: 

This letter will authorize PlaneSense Inc. ("PlaneSense") and/or its agents and contractors 
to enter Building 222 (f/lc/a Jet Engine Testing Building), and the surrounding designated premises, 
as shown on the attached.Exhibit A (the "Premises") for the period beginning April 12, 2021 through 
July 31, 2021, for survey / site inspection purposes. Such inspection may include a review of 
environmental matters, including soils testing, wetlands review, adequacy of utility services, general 
site conditions, and any other similar inspection or evaluation of the Premises you deem reasonably 
necessary. This Right of Entry will expire at the close of business on July 31, 2021, unless otherwise 
extended an additional thirty (30) days by written agreement of PlaneSense and the Pease 
Development Authority ("PDA"). 

This authorization is conditioned upon the following: 

1. PlaneSense providing the PDA, upon execution of this letter of authorization or 
promptly upon completion of its inspection, with a copy of any report, letter, plan, or summary with 
respect to conditions found at the Premises; 

2. PlaneSense's understanding and agreement that the PDA makes no representations 
about the condition of the Premises or the Jet Engine Testing Building, or its suitability for the 
purposes and uses allowed under this Right of Entry. PlaneSense's agreement herein that any use 
of the Premises is at its sole risk and that its signature below constitutes its agreement to assume 
full responsibility for any and all risks of loss or damage to property and injury or death to persons 
by reason of or incident to its entry or the entry by any of its employees, agents or contractors 
upon the Premises and/or the exercise of any of the authorities granted herein. PlaneSense 
expressly waives all claims against the Pease Development Authority for any such loss, damage, 

TAKING YOU THERE 

n I ,;) 



Page Two 
April 7, 2021 
Re: Right of Entry — Building 222 (f/k/a Jet Engine Testing Building), 96 

Flightline Road, Pease International Tradeport, Portsmouth, NH 

personal injury or death caused by or occurring as a consequence of PlaneSense's use of the 
Premises or the conduct of activities or the performance of responsibilities under this 
authorization. PlaneSense further agrees to indemnify, save, hold harmless, and defend the Pease 
Development Authority, its officers, board members, agents and employees, from and against all 
suits, claims, demands or actions, liabilities, judgments, costs and attorney's fees arising out of 
PlaneSense's use of the Premises or any activities conducted or undertaken in connection with or 
pursuant to this authorization. 

3. PlaneSense and any agent or contractor of PlaneSense providing PDA with 
satisfactory evidence of commercial general liability insurance to a limit of not less than Two 
Million Dollars ($2,000,000), naming the PDA as an additional insured. PlaneSense and any agent 
or contractor of PlaneSense providing PDA with satisfactory evidence of automobile liability 
insurance coverage in the amount of $1,000,000.00 and workers' compensation coverage to 
statutory limits. Each such policy or certificate therefor issued by the insurer shall contain (i) 
an agreement by the insurer that such policy shall not be canceled without thirty (30) days 
prior written notice by mail to PDA, (ii) with the exception of workers compensation coverage, 
provide that the insurer shall have no right of subrogation against the PDA and (iii) a provision 
that any liability insurance coverage required to be carried shall be primary and non-contributing 
with respect to any insurance carried by PDA. 

4. PlaneSense obtaining the prior written consent of the Engineering Department of 
the Pease Development Authority before conducting any drilling, testpitting, borings, or other 
soil disturbing activities on the Premises, and thereafter complying with all terms and 
conditions of said consent. No geo-technical exploration shall be done on the Site without 
proper clearance from PDA Engineering Department. No trees or vegetation may be cut 
without written permission from the PDA. 

5. PlaneSense's agreement to restore said Premises to its condition as the same 
existed prior to the commencement of any work undertaken pursuant to this Right of Entry. 

6. PlaneSense's agreement herein that this letter of authorization does not constitute 
a grant of an exclusive interest in the Premises, an option to lease the Premises or an offer to 
lease the Premises. PlaneSense acknowledges and agrees that, except as otherwise set forth 
herein, no legal obligations shall arise with respect to the Premises or lease thereof until a 
Lease Agreement is executed by the parties. 



Page Three 
April 7, 2021 
Re: Right of Entry — Building 222 (f/k/a Jet Engine Testing Building), 96 

Flightline Road, Pease International Tradeport, Portsmouth, NH 

Please indicate by your signature below PlaneSense's consent and return the same to 
me with evidence of insurance as required. 

Very truly yours, 

Paul E. Brean 
Executive Director 

Agreed and accepted this  '6  day of (A.0 ( ,i \  , 2021. 

PlaneSense Inc. 

 

 

By:  .—;:t • _ 	 C  

Print Name: 64 4 	CI) 0- (2,3-JA• 

 

Its Duly AuthorizeCI:  N4.9 . ar)  

 

GQ-le.s-o–.\. C) ,j n5 e,\ 

PADELOS LLC1R0E1PlaneSense ROE Building 222 (Flighline Road).docx 



Page Four 
April 7, 2021 
Re: Right of Entry — Building 222 (f/Ida Jet Engine Testing Building), 96 

Flightline Road Parcel, Pease International Tradeport, Portsmouth, NH 

EXHIBIT "A" 

PREMISES  

Right of Entry at Jet Engine Test Cell Building at PSM 
	

LIESIPLIFI) HY. MRL 	OATE Jr/121 	SCALE 1=20(r.a 

PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
	

INTERIaTIOUAL DRIVE, PDXIsmouni.1111034,11 



PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

	 .35 !nterniitiOilal 	 03301 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: 	Pease Development Authority Board of Directors 
FROM: 	Paul E. Brean, Executive Director 
RE: 	Lease Reports 
DATE: 	April 6, 2021 
****************************************************************************** 

In accordance with the "Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval of Sub-Sublease 
Agreements" PDA approved the following lease with: 

A. Tenant: 	Allegiance Fundraising Group 
Space: 	3,363 square feet at 222 International Drive 
Use: 	General office use and light industrial related uses which 

must conform to the light industrial/manufacturing uses authorized by the 
Pease Development Authority and for no other uses. 

Term: 	Three (3) Years Commencing March 15, 2021 

The Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval of Sub-sublease Agreements also 
requires the consent of one member of the PDA Board of Directors. In this instance, Director Lamson 
was consulted and granted her consent. 

B. Tenant: 	Northeast Credit Union 
Space: 	6,787 square feet at 100 International Drive 
Use: 	General Office and Related Use 
Term: 	Five (5) Years with one (1) Five (5) year option 

Commencing June 1, 2021 

The Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval of Sub-sublease Agreements also 
requires the consent of one member of the PDA Board of Directors. In this instance, Director Lamson 
was consulted and granted her consent. 

p/boardmtg/202I lease report 4-12-2021 

TAKING YOU THERE 

Phone: 603.433,6088 	Fax: 603.427.0433 	www.peasedev,orc-3 





PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

	 5 Imys-nationai Drive, Portsmouth NH 03005 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

MEMORANDUM 
To: 	Pease Development Authority Board of Directors 

From: 	Paul E. Brean, Executive Director 

Date: 	April 6, 2021 

Re: 	Sublease between 222 International, Limited Partnership and Allegiance Fundraising 
Group 

In accordance with the Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval of Sub-
sublease Agreements adopted by the Board on August 8, 1996, I am pleased to report that PDA 
has approved of a sublease between 222 International, Limited Partnership ("2221LP") and 
Allegiance Fundraising Group ("Allegiance") for 3,363 square feet at 222 New Hampshire 
Avenue for a period of three (3) years, effective March 15, 2021. Allegiance will use the premises 
for general office use and light industrial related uses which must conform to the light 
industrial/manufacturing uses authorized by the Pease Development Authority and for no other 
uses. 

The Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval of Subleases provides that: 

"A Sublease Agreement subject to this delegation of authority shall not be consented to, 
approved or executed unless all of the following conditions are met: 

1. The use of the Subleased Premises associated with the sublease is permitted 
under the original sublease; 

2. The sublease is consistent with the terms and conditions of the original 
Lease; 

3. The original Lessee remains primarily liable to Lessor to pay rent and to 
perform all other obligations to be performed by Lessee under the original 
Lease; and 

4. The proposed Sublessee is financially and operationally responsible." 

Conditions one through three have been met. As to condition four, PDA relies on 222ILP's 
continued primary liability for payment of rent and other obligations pursuant to the PDA/200ILP 
Sublease. 

The Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval of Sub-sublease Agreements 
also requires the consent of one member of the PDA Board of Directors. In this instance, Director 
Lamson was consulted and granted her consent. 

TAKING YOU THERE 

Phone: 603.433.6088 	Fax 603,427.0133 	www.peasedev.org  





NOTICE OF CONSENT 

This NOTICE OF CONSENT ("Notice") is given by the PEASE DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY ("Lessor") to 222 INTERNATIONAL, LIMITED PARTNERSHIP ("Lessee"). 
Lessor and Lessee may be referred to jointly as the "Parties." 

RECITALS  

A. 	The Parties entered into a Lease for 222 International Drive at Pease International 
Tradeport on September 7, 1999 (the "Lease") and amended by Lease Amendment No. 1 effective 
April 1, 2000 to include 195 New Hampshire Avenue, Pease International Tradeport, Portsmouth, 
New Hampshire. 

B. 	Section 19.3 of the Lease states that Lessor shall not unreasonably withhold its consent 
to sublease if: 

1. the use of the subleased Premises associated with the Lease is permitted under 
the original Lease; 

2. the sublease is consistent with the terms and conditions of the original Lease; 

3. Lessee remains primarily liable to Lessor to pay rent and to perform all other 
obligations to be performed by Lessee under the original Lease; and 

4. the proposed sublessee is financially and operationally responsible. 

C. 	Lessee has requested authorization to sublease approximately 3,363 square feet within 
the Leased Premises at 222 International Drive to Allegiance Fundraising Group ("Allegiance"), is 
duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is qualified to do 
business in the State of New Hampshire. 

D. 	The proposed sublease to Allegiance is for office and light industrial related uses 
which must conform to the light industrial/manufacturing uses authorized by the Pease Development 
Authority and for no other uses. 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

1. Lessor hereby authorizes Lessee to execute the sublease, attached hereto as Exhibit A, with 
Allegiance for approximately 3,363 square feet within the Leased Premises. 

2. Upon execution of the sublease with Allegiance, Lessee shall provide Lessor with a copy of 
the executed sublease, copies of all required insurance certificates and a certificate of good standing 
from the State of New Hampshire for Allegiance. 

3. Lessee hereby agrees that occupancy shall be subject to the issuance of a Certificate of 
Occupancy as may be required in accordance with PDA Zoning Regulations, Section 315.03(a). 

1 



4. 	Lessee hereby agrees and affirms that it shall remain primarily liable to Lessor to pay rent and 
to perform all other obligations to be performed by Lessee under the original Lease. 

This Notice of Consent is executed, effective this 	 day of 	, 2021 by the 
Pease Development Authority. 

PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

CL_ 
Its: 	Executive Director 

AGREED AND ACCEPTED 

222 INTERNATIONAL, LIMITED PARTNERSHIP 

By: 	G7'°  
Date 	 Its: 	- tia'm  

P:\TWOINTL\222  InternationalTonsent \Allegiance Fundraising Group.docx 

2 



EXHIBIT A 

SUBLEASED PREMISES 

3 





SUBLEASF, 

BP-PHFF.1'4 

LEasap," 

ALL1-7 GIA1NTCE, FUNIDR.,-\.1311,1G C3TROUP 

11 -2-, 

fl 	! 

	

1.7-T 	/f t--) S 	:Ii•f:1) 
1‘, 





\\N 

PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

	
55 International Drive, Portsmouth NH 03801 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

MEMORANDUM 

To: 	Pease Development Authority Board of Directors 

From: 	Paul E. Brean, Executive Director eect_SN 

Date: 	April 6, 2021 

Re: 	Sublease between 100 International, LLC and Northeast Credit Union 

In accordance with the "Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval of Sublease 
Agreements" adopted by the Board on August 8, 1996, I am pleased to report that PDA has approved of 
a sublease at 100 International Drive for the following tenant: 

A. 	Tenant: 	Northeast Credit Union 
Space: 	6,787 square feet at 100 International Drive, Suite 260 
Use: 	Office and Related Use 
Term: 	Five (5) Years with a Five Year Renewal Option 

Commencing June 1, 2021 

The Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval of Subleases provides that; 

"A Sublease Agreement subject to this delegation of authority shall not be consented to, approved 
or executed unless all of the following conditions are met: 

1. The use of the Subleased Premises associated with the sublease is permitted under 
the original sublease; 

2. The sublease is consistent with the terms and conditions of the original Sublease; 

3. The original Lessee remains primarily liable to Lessor to pay rent and to perform 
all other obligations to be performed by Lessee under the original Lease; and 

4. The proposed Sublessee is financially and operationally responsible." 

Conditions one through three have been met. As to condition four, PDA relies on 100 
International's continued primary liability for payment of rent and other obligations pursuant to the 
PDA/100 International Lease. 

The Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval of Lease Agreements also requires the 
consent of one member of the PDA Board of Directors. In this instance, Director Lamson was consulted 
and granted her consent. 

PATWOINTL \ 100 International\Board\ Memo re-Northeast Credit Union 4-15-21 docx 

0000 TAKING YOU THERE 

Phone: 603.433.6088 	Fax: 603.427.0433 	www.peasedev.org  





NOTICE OF CONSENT 

This NOTICE OF CONSENT ("Notice") is given by the PEASE DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY ("Lessor") to 100 INTERNATIONAL, LLC ("Lessee"). Lessor and Lessee may 
be referred to jointly as the "Parties." 

RECITALS  

A. 	The Parties entered into a Lease for 100 International Drive at Pease International 
Tradeport on September 1, 2002 (the "Lease"). 

B. 	Section 19.3 of the Lease states that Lessor shall not unreasonably withhold its 
consent to sublease if: 

1. the use of the Leased Premises associated with the sublease is permitted 
under the original Lease; 

2. the sublease is consistent with the terms and conditions of the original 
Lease; 

3. the original Lessee remains primarily liable to Lessor to pay rent and to 
perform all other obligations to be performed by Lessee under the original 
Lease; and 

4. the proposed Sublessee is financially and operationally responsible. 

C. 	Lessee has requested authorization to sublease approximately 6,787 square feet 
within the Leased Premises at 100 International Drive, Suite 260 NORTHEAST CREDIT 
UNION ("Sublessee"), a duly authorized limited liability company existing under the laws of the 
Commonwealth of Massachusetts and qualified to do business in New Hampshire. 

D. 	The proposed sublease to NORTHEAST CREDIT UNION is for general office 
use and related uses. The commencement of the lease between the Lessee and the Sublessee begins 
on or about June 1, 2021. 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

1. Lessor hereby authorizes Lessee to execute the sublease, attached hereto as Exhibit 
A, with NORTHEASAT CREDIT UNION for approximately 6,787 square feet within the 
Leased Premises. 

2. Upon execution of the sublease with NORTHEAST CREDIT UNION, Lessee 
shall provide Lessor with a copy of the executed sublease, copies of all required insurance 
certificates and a certificate of good standing from the State of New Hampshire for NORTHEAST 
CREDIT UNION. 



3. Lessee hereby agrees that occupancy shall be subject to the issuance of a Certificate 
of Occupancy as may be required in accordance with PDA Zoning Regulations, Section 3 15.03(a). 

4. Lessee hereby agrees and affirms that it shall remain primarily liable to Lessor to 
pay rent and to perform all other obligations to be performed by Lessee under the original Lease. 

This Notice of Consent is executed, effective this 	day of  Cta, 	, 2021 
by the Pease Development Authority. 

PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

13-r- 	citAA- C  
Its: 	Executive Director 

AGREED AND ACCEPTED 

100 INTERNATIONAL, LLC 

2 / 	 By: 
Date 	 Its: 

 

 

  

I 1 -  \AIM] I 	Intccnationar.Conseni; \ NO11(1, OF CONSI..NA Ior Northt.\INt Ciod:11.[ctIon docx 



EXHIBIT A 

SUBLEASED PREMISES 





SUBLEASE 

BETWEEN 

100 INTERNATIONAL, L.L.C. 

AS 
"SUBLESSOR" 

AND 

NORTHEAST CREDIT UNION 

AS 
"SUBLESSEE" 

100 INTERNATIONAL DRIVE 

SUITE #260 

PORTSMOUTH, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03801 

DATED AS OF  M fl mc. (4 !1 a oal  

Error! Unknown document property name. 





0-- 
PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

MOTION  

Director Fournier: 

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors approves of and 

authorizes the Executive Director to enter into a contract with Motorola at 

a cost not to exceed $22,968.81 for the purchase of twelve (1 2) portable 

radios and a new repeater; all in accordance with the memorandum of 

Chasen Congreves, Manager of Airport Administration, dated April 6, 2021 

attached hereto. 

In accordance with the provisions of RSA 12-G:8, VIII, the Board 

justifies the waiver of the RFP requirement as Motorola is a State approved 

vendor for the radio equipment. 

Note: 	This motion requires 5 affirmative votes. 
Roll Call vote required. 

N \RESOLVES \2021 \Airport - Radios.docx 

TAKING YOU THERE 





Memo 
To: 	Paul Breen, Executive Director 

From: Chasen Congreves, Manager of Airport Administration c, 
Date: 4/6/2021 

Re: 	Digital Communications Upgrade 

The FY21 Capital Improvement Plan (CIP), allocated $25,000 for the replacement of carpeting 
in the domestic baggage claim area of the airport terminal. The airport recognized a decrease 
in passenger activity in 2020 due to the runway rehabilitation project and Covid-19. As a result, 
there is no immediate need to replace the carpeting. 

The airport has identified a potential public safety issue involving interoperability 
communication with mutual aid entities. Airport Operations and Maintenance Personnel 
currently do not have the ability to communicate via portable radio with municipal and state 
agencies responding to airport emergencies as these agencies utilize digital VHF frequencies 
and radio equipment. Airport radio communications are supported by an analog repeater that 
was purchased 20 years ago and has a 10 year life span. This outdated repeater is currently 
responsible for erratic and inaudible radio transmissions. The existing repeater would be able 
to serve as a secondary backup repeater, as currently there is no fail safe. 

With the foregoing in mind, I am requesting authorization to utilize the $25,000 that was 
appropriated for the terminal carpeting in the FY21 CIP for the immediate purchase of 12 
portable radios and a new repeater from Motorola. The installation and programming of the 
equipment will be completed by the NH Department of Safety and PDA personnel with no 
external labor fees. Motorola is an approved State of New Hampshire vendor and holds state 
contract number 8001937 for provision of the associated equipment. As such, I am also 
requesting authority to waive the bid requirement. The total cost of the twelve (12) portable 
radios is $19,368.81. The final cost of the repeater is not known at this time. However, the cost 
for the repeater on the open market is $3,600. Motorola is preparing a separate exploratory 
quote for this device that will include the state discount, but the quote has not been finalized as 
of the date of this memo. 

As such, at the April 15, 2021 PDA Board of Director's meeting, please request authority from 
the Board to waive the formal RFP process and to purchase 12 portable radios, supporting 
accessories, and a SLR8000 repeater, under New Hampshire State Contract 8001937, for a 
total cost not to exceed $22,968.81. 





PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY MEMORANDUM 

To: 	 Paul Brean, Executive Director - -Q:)f.„8 

From: 	Maria J. Stowell, P.E., Engineering Manager 

Date: 	April 2, 2021 

Subject: 	Sign Revision Report for Stewarts Ambulance at 119 International Drive 

In accordance with your authority under the "Delegation to Building Inspector: Consent and 

Approval of Minor Revisions to Existing Signs" adopted by the Board on June 20, 2005, I am 

reporting the following: 

Stewarts Ambulance Communications has become a tenant at 119 International Drive and has 

applied to modify the signage at their location. The new sign reflects the company name and logo 

and will be using the same monument sign base at the entrance used by the previous tenant. The 

total sign area falls within the 200 square foot maximum. 

This sign revision meets the all of the following conditions: 

1. Required for maintenance and a revision to sign graphics reflecting a change in tenancy. 

2. No substantive change in size or style of the sign. 

3. Consistent with the terms and conditions of the original sign approval. 

4. All other conditions of the PDA Land Use Controls are satisfied. 

Director Loughlin has reviewed the sign revisions and has given his approval. At this month's 
Board meeting, please report the revisions to the 119 International Drive signage. 

TAKING YOU THERE 







-a a) 0 

a) 0 

C 
CN 

cr.) 

0 

uJ 
.re 

•E 

T 

a) LI 

0 •o- 

w 

1 



11•- 

PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

MOTION 

Director Loughlin: 

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors hereby 

approves of the proposed sign request by Farley White Pease LLC, for the 

premises located at 90 and 100 Arboretum Drive; all in accordance with 

the memorandum of Maria J. Stowell, P.E., Engineering Manager, dated 

April 6, 2021, attached hereto. 

NOTE: Roll Call Vote Required. 

N: \ RESOLVES \ 2021 \90 - 100 Arboretum Sign Request 4-15-2021.docx 

TAKING YOU THERE 





PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

MEMORANDUM 
To: 	Paul Brean, Executive Director ....4445 
From: 	Maria J. Stowell, P.E., Engineering ManagerItOja, 
Date: 	April 6, 2021 
Subject: 	Signage at 90 & 100 Arboretum Drive 

Farley White Pease LLC has submitted a request to erect wall and ground signs for the new building 
located at 90 Arboretum Drive. The wall sign would identify Waste Innovations, the building tenant 
and the ground sign shows the building address. 

90 Arboretum Drive is situated on a parcel that also contains 100 Arboretum Drive. As such, staff 
prepared an inventory of signage to determine a total sign square footage for the parcel. The following 
table describes the existing signage on site as well as the proposed signage (shown italicized) and the 
attached exhibits detail the proposed signs. 

Sign # Address Tenant 
- 
	Sign Type Sign Area 

(sq. ft.) 
1 100 Arboretum Driveway Address Ground 16 
2 100 Arboretum Fedpoint Wall Sign 42.18 
3 100 Arboretum Fedpoint Wall Sign 19.04 
4 100 Arboretum Wheelabrator Wall Sign 42 
5 90 Arboretum Driveway Address Ground 8.58 
6 90 Arboretum Waste Innovations Wall Sign 50.49 

*Existing, Proposed TOTAL 178.29 

As you can see, the total square footage for existing and proposed signage is less than the 200 square 
feet allowable maximum. With regard to style, the signs are consistent with other Tradeport wall and 
monument signs. 

Staff has reviewed the zoning ordinance as it relates to signage and we believe the proposal is in 
harmony with the general purpose and intent of the ordinance. At next month's board meeting, please 
ask the Board of Directors to approve the sign proposal of Farley White Pease, LLC. 

NAENGINEER\Board Memos\2021/90Arboretum Signage.docx 

TAKING YOU THERE 





CN 

in 

i
 
 

 1
03
"
 

•-
 -1  

90
  A

r b
or

e t
u M

 

1"Z 	I 

S
ca

ke
:  1

/2
" 

=  
1

' 

„Zt 

«817 

r 	 

 

„LL 

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

:  
2
-4

- 2
02

1 

= 111  
o co  4—, 

	

Eu_. TD  CI  = 	CO 2 rz- 

	

CD a) 0  ..c 	a)  o 42  

	

-0 s-- 	 0 

in co I— 	
2 — Q 'a (75 	_a .= r) 	o 	c:) 

a) 	 0 
+E.  
0 

0 

2 

a) 73  -Fn 	 -F, E 
a) 	c •-• 

rn r- co co 





I- 

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

:  
4
-5

- 2
02

1 

co 
rn 
ti 
co 





4 

	  Pik_ 
.■■■In-1111. 1.  -..... mt.  . 

Ilkliar 

N
e
w

in
g

to
n
,  

N
H

 

I 1 

I 





PEASE 
AIRPORT 
	

36 A 	Ave Portsmouth, NH 03801 

MANAGEMENT 
	

803.43.6536 

Memorandum 

To: 	Paul Brean, Executive Director 

From: Sandra McDonough, Airport Community Liaison 

Date: 4/6/2021 

Subj: Noise Report for March 2021 

The Portsmouth International Airport at Pease did not receive any noise inquiries in March, 
2021. Both the noise phone line and the website noise submission form were tested and found 
to be operational. 

00 TAKING YOU THERE 





PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

MOTION 

Director Ferrini: 

The Pease Development Authority ("PDA") Board of Directors approves 

of and authorizes the Executive Director to: 

1. Expend funds in the amount of $15,080.00 for legal services 

rendered to the Pease Development Authority from: 

Sheehan Phinney Bass & Green  
February 1, 2021 - February 28, 2021 	$ 3,567.00 

(for Tradeport General Representation) 

February 1, 2021 - February 28, 2021 	$1 1 .513.00  

(in support of MS4 and CLF 

settlement implementation) 

Total 	 S15,080.00 

2. Expend funds in the amount of $3,496.50 for legal services 

rendered to the Pease Development Authority from Anderson 
Kreiger as outside counsel for Federal Regulatory Advice from 

February 1, 2021 through February 28, 2021. 

For a total amount of $18,576.50 in legal services 

NOTE: Roll Call vote required. 

N: \ RESOLVES \ 2021 \ Legal Services 4-15-2021.clocx 

TAKING YOU THERE 





Pease Development Authority 
	

Mar 30, 2021 	PAGE 	4 

SHEEHAN PHINNEY BASS & GREEN PA 
1000 ELM STREET 
P.O. BOX 3701 

MANCHESTER, NH 03105-3701 

SERVICE AND EXPENSE MAILBACK SUMMARY 

RE: Trade Port - General Representation 

CLIENT/CASE NO. 14713-10167 
BILLING ATTORNEY:Lynn J. Preston 

	

TOTAL FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RENDERED: 	 $3,567.00 

	

TOTAL EXPENSES: 	 $0.00 

TOTAL THIS BILL: 	 $3,567.00 

BALANCE DUE: 	 $3,567.00 

PAYMENT DUE 30 DAYS FROM INVOICE DATE 

Please return this page with your remittance and please reference the 
client/case number on all related correspondence. 

To pay by CREDIT CARD, please visit www.sheehan.com , 
scroll to the bottom and click " ClientPay " or contact our office directly. 

AMOUNT PAID... $ 





Pease Development Authority 
	

Mar 30, 2021 	PAGE 	5 

SHEEHAN PHINNEY BASS & GREEN PA 
1000 ELM STREET 
P.O. BOX 3701 

MANCHESTER, NH 03105-3701 

SERVICE AND EXPENSE MAILBACK SUMMARY 

RE: Permit Implementation 

CLIENT/CASE NO. 14713-19658 
BILLING ATTORNEY:Lynn J. Preston 

	

TOTAL FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RENDERED: 	$11,513.00 

	

TOTAL EXPENSES: 	 $0.00 

TOTAL THIS BILL: 	$11,513.00 

BALANCE DUE: 	$11,513.00 

PAYMENT DUE 30 DAYS FROM INVOICE DATE 

Please return this page with your remittance and please reference the 
client/case number on all related correspondence. 

To pay by CREDIT CARD, please visit www.sheehan.com , 
scroll to the bottom and click " ClientPay " or contact our office directly. 

AMOUNT PAID... $ 





ANDERSON 

KRE-IGER 
50 Milk Street, 21st Floor 

Boston, MA 02109 
(617) 621-6500 
EIN: 04 -2988950 

March 18, 2021 

Pease Development Authority 
Anthony Blenkinsop, Deputy Director/General Counsel 
55 International Drive 
Portsmouth, NH 03801 

Reference # 137480 	/ 1047-4136 

in Reference To: Federal Regulatory Advice 

Professional Services Hours 	Amount  

    

Attorney/Paralegal Summary 

Name 
	

Hours 	Rate 	Amount 

David S. Mackey 6.30 	555.00 3,496.50 

Total Current Billing: $3,496.50 

Previous Balance Due: $0.00 

Total Now Due: $3,496.50 





Division of Ports and Harbors Advisory Council 
555 Market St. 
Portsmouth, NH 03801 
Tel 603-436-8500 
Fax 603-436-2780 

PORT ADVISORY COUNCIL ANNUAL MEETING MINUTES 

WEDNESDAY, MARCH 10, 2021 

Pursuant to NH RSA 91-A:2 III(b) Port Council Chairman Roger Groux has declared COVID-19 
an emergency condition and waived the requirement that a quorum be physically present at the 
meeting in accordance with the Governor's Executive Order 2020-04, Section 8 and Emergency 
Order #12, Sections 3 and 4. Port Council members participated remotely 'and identified their 
location and any person present with them at that location. All votes were by roll call. Members 
of the public were allowed to participate by using the access information provided. The 
moderator for this telephone conference was Greg Siegenthaler, from the Pease Development 
Authority, who explained the meeting protocols. The meeting was audio recorded (there was no 
video component available). 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
A roll call attendance was taken and the meeting was called to order at 6:00 PM. 

PRESENT: 
Roger Groux, Chairman, Dover Point, NH with no other individuals present. 
Brad Cook, Vice-Chairman, Hampton, NH, with no other individuals present. 
Erik Anderson-Portsmouth, NH, with no other individuals present. 
Chris Holt-Stratham, NH, no other individuals present. 
Chris Snow-Dover Point, NH, with no other individuals present. 
Mike Donahue-Newington, NH, with no other individuals present. 
Esther Kennedy-Portsmouth, NH with no other individuals present. 
Jeff Gilbert-Rye, NH with no other individuals present 

2. APPROVE MINUTES  
XXXX. made a motion to accept the February 10, 2021 minutes. XXXX. seconded, there 
no discussion, a roll call vote was taken and the motion passed. 

3. FINANCE REPORT 
Director Marconi reported that Pier Use, Mooring, and Berthing revenues continue to 
come in and numbers are reflected in the report. 

4. DIRECTOR'S REPORT  

No PDA Board meeting in February, therefore nothing to report on that. 

5. COMMITTEE REPORTS  

Dredging- Chris H. reported 

Port Advisory Council 	 January 13, 2021 Page 1 of 2 



Fisheries-Erik  A. reported 

Government Relations-Esther K. reported 

Business and Economic Relations- 

Moorings-  Chris S. reported 

PDA Liaison-Roger reported. 

Recreational piers-  Brad reported 

6. NEW BUSINESS -None  

7. OLD BUSINESS  

8. PUBLIC COMMENT 
No public comment. 

9. PRESS QUESTIONS  
No press in attendance. 

10. ADJOURNMENT  
XXX made a motion to adjourn, XXX. seconded, a roll call vote was taken, all were in 
favor and the motion passed. The meeting adjourned at 7:XX PM. Director thanked 
Greg from PDA for this help in facilitating the meeting. 

Port Advisory Council 
	

January 13, 2021 	 Page 2 of 2 



PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

PORTS AND HARBORS 

TO: 	Paul Brean, Executive Director, PDA 

FROM: 	Geno J. Marconi, Director, DPH 

DATE: 	March 19, 2921 

RE: 	Commercial Mooring For Hire 

The Pease Development Authority, Division of Ports and Harbors has received a request 
for a commercial mooring for hire from Friends Forever, Inc. 

I have reviewed the attached paperwork and concur with the local Harbormaster and 
Chief Harbormaster that the request meets all the requirements of the PDA-DPH Code of 
Administrative Rules regarding commercial moorings for hire. Therefore, I am 
requesting approval of the application. 

If you have any questions or need further information, please let me know. 

TAKING YOU THERE 

4:5 603-435-2760 





Division of Ports & Harbors 
Memorandum 

To: 	Captain Geno J. Marconi 

From: 	Tracy R. Shattuck, Chief H/M 15 

Re: 	Friends Forever, Inc. Commercial Mooring for Hire Application 

Date: 	March 18, 2021 

Friends Forever, Inc. has shorefront property in Hart's Cove that they was 
recently donated to them by Leonard Seagren. Seagren has lifetime tenancy in the 
property and wishes to use the existing mooring associated with the propery. Friends 
Forever, Inc is requesting that a mooring be issued as a Commercial Mooring for Hire. 

With the file are the tax map and deed and tax bill. 

I recommend approval of the application as it meets all criteria for a Commercial 
Mooring for Hire permit. 





PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

PORTS AND HARBORS 

TO: 	Paul Brean, Executive Director, PDA 

FROM: 	Geno J. Marconi, Director, DPH 

DATE: 	March 19, 2021 

RE: 	Commercial Mooring for Hire Applications 

The Pease Development Authority, Division of Ports and Harbors has received 
applications for previously existing Commercial Mooring for Hire Permits. 

I have reviewed the attached paperwork and concur with the local Harbormaster(s) and 
Chief Harbormaster that the request meets all the requirements of the PDA-DPH Code of 
Administrative Rules regarding Commercial Mooring for Hire applications. Therefore, I 
am requesting approval of the applications. 

If you have any questions or need further information, please let me know. 

TAKING YOU THERE 

603-4 	 eaSe e o r 





Division of Ports & Harbors 
Memorandum 

To: 	Captain Geno J. Marconi, Director DPH 

From: 	Tracy R. Shattuck, Chief H/M /AO 

Re: 	Commercial Moorings For Hire 

Date: 	March 10, 2021 

The following have submitted re-applications for existing Commercial Moorings 
For Hire. Also listed is the available documentation. I recommend approval. 

Bayview Marina, LLC — 6 moorings  
19 Boston Harbor Rd 
Dover, NH 03820 
Tax bill, proof of good standing Secretary of State, advertising 
On file: tax map, deed, copy of mooring/slip lease agreement, certificate of formation 
with Secretary of State, map of mooring field, description of public access, copy of IRS 
EIN form 

Esther's Marina, LLC — 3 moorings  
41 Pickering St 
Portsmouth, NH 03801 
Tax bill, proof of good standing Secretary of State, advertising 
On file: tax map, deed, receipts, Marina lease agreement 

Jay Gingrich —1 mooring 
513 Marcy St 
Portsmouth, NH 03801 
Tax bill, assertion that it is used for an occupying tenant 
On file: tax map, deed 





Great Bay Marine — 73 moorings  
PO Box 3127 
Portsmouth, NH 03802-3127 
Tax bill, proof of good standing Secretary of State, advertising 
On file: tax map, deed, statement of hours and public access and services offered, 
Federal form — election by a small business corporation, certificate of membership in 
Marina Operators Association of America, map of mooring field 

Great Bay Yacht Club — 11 moorings  
do Jay Mooney, Mooring Chair 
PO Box 1644 
Dover, NH 03820 
Tax bill, proof of good standing Secretary of State, advertising 
On file: tax map, deed, copy of by-laws, list of directors and officers, description of 
tackle, chart of mooring field , membership directory (includes description of public 
access, etc) 

Hampton River Boat Club — 2 moorings  
Jonathan Dufour 
PO Box 901 
Hampton, NH 03842 
Tax bill, proof of good standing Secretary of State, advertising 
On file: tax map, deed, Secretary of State Certificate of Existence, Constitution and 
Bylaws, club Rules and Regulations, slate of officers 

Island Club New Castle, Inc — 1 mooring  
PO Box 282 
Newcastle, NH 03854-0282 
Tax bill, proof of good standing Secretary of State, advertising 
On file: tax map, deed, Secretary of State Certificate of Existence 

Kittery Point Yacht Club — 8 moorings  
PO Box 373 
Newcastle, NH 03854 
Tax bill, proof of good standing Secretary of State, advertising 
On file: tax map, deed, certificate of registration by the Secretary of State, application for 
registration as a non-profit, list of officers 

Lamprey River Marina — 6 moorings  
do Lou Gargiulo 
3 Holland Way, Suite 201 
Exeter, NH 03878-0201 
Tax bill, proof of good standing Secretary of State, advertising 
On file: brochure, acknowledgement of membership in a trade organization, tax map 
deed, map of mooring field 





Matthew Metivier —1 mooring  
164 Shattuck Way 
Newington, NH 03801 
Tax bill 
On file: tax map, deed, assertion that it is used for an occupying tenant 

Mud Cove Boat Yard — 1 mooring 
Attn: Wayne Semprini, President 
PO Box 336 
Newcastle, NH 03854 
Tax bill, proof of good standing Secretary of State 
On file: tax map, deed, assertion that it is used for an occupying tenant 

Portsmouth Yacht Club — 14 moorings  
PO Box 189 
Newcastle, NH 03854-0189 
Tax bill, proof of good standing Secretary of State 
On file: tax map, deed, list of officers/directors 

Pull and B.D. Inc. —1 mooring 
334 Portsmouth Ave 
PO Box 874 
Newcastle, NH 03854 
Tax bill, proof of good standing Secretary of State 
On file: tax map, deed, list of officers/directors 

Sagamore Landing Condominium Association —1 mooring 
c/o Gary Epler 
272 Walker Bungalow Rd 
Portsmouth, NH 03801 
On file: tax map, deed, condo association bylaws. Note that each condo owner pays a 
portion of the taxes for the association, there is no tax bill to the association itself. 

Southend Yacht Club —1 mooring 
7 Pickering Ave 
Portsmouth NH 03801 
Tax bill, notice of EIN, advertising, Secretary of State 
On file: tax map, deed, list of officers/directors 

Split Rock Cove Family Trust —1 mooring 
507 State St 
Portsmouth, NH 03801 
Tax bill 
On file: tax map, deed, governing instruments, assertion that it is used for an occupying 
tenant 





Diane Szmvd —1 mooring  
41 Harborview Drive 
Rye, NH 03870 
Tax Bill, assertion that it is used for occupying tenant 
On file: tax map, deed 

Warpath Family Farm —1 mooring 
7905 Striped Bridge Road 
Hopkinsville KY 
Attn: Charles Tarbell, Dustan Knight-Tarbell 
Tax Bill, assertion that it is used for occupying tenant. 
On file: tax map, deed. 

Wentworth by the Sea Dockside Condominium Association —1 mooring 
PO Box 2011 
Newcastle, NH 03854-2011 
On file: tax map, deed, Note that each condo owner pays a portion of the taxes for the 
association, there is no tax bill to the association itself. 

Wentworth by the Sea Marina (Pier People, LLC) — 2 moorings  
Attn: Spenser Epperson 
PO Box 2079 
Newcastle, NH 03854-2079 
Tax bill, Secretary of State 
On file: tax map, deed, statement of rates, certificate of membership International Marina 
Institute, description of public access and services, brochure. 





PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

PORTS AND HARBORS 

TO: 	Paul Brean, Executive Director, PDA 

FROM: 	Geno J. Marconi, Director, DPH 

DATE: 	March 19, 2021 

RE: 	Commercial Mooring For Hire 

The Pease Development Authority, Division of Ports and Harbors has received a request 
for 5 additional Commercial Moorings for Hire from Great Bay Marine, Inc. 

I have reviewed the attached paperwork and concur with the local Harbormaster and 
Chief Harbormaster that the request meets all the requirements of the PDA-DPH Code of 
Administrative Rules regarding commercial moorings for hire. Therefore, I am 
requesting approval of the application. 

If you have any questions or need further information, please let me know. 

nt TAKING YOU THERE 

- 	- t; 	a ;7. : 3 0 	6 - 2 7 0 	,A,.! w 	e a  a ci e 	r 





Division of Ports & Harbors 
Memorandum 

To: 	Captain Geno J. Marconi 

From: 	Tracy R. Shattuck, Chief H/M 

Re: 	Great Bay Marine, Inc 

Date: 	19 Mar 2021 

Great Bay Marine, Inc has requested the addition of 5 Commercial Moorings for 
Hire in the mooring field that they manage in Little Bay. There is no waitlist in that area 
and ample room for many more moorings. 

I recommend approval of the application as it meets all criteria for a Commercial 
mooring for Hire permit. 





PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 	 555 Market Street. Su e i Portsmouth, H 	301 

PORTS AND HARBORS 

TO: 	Paul Brean, Executive Director, PDA 

FROM: 	Geno J. Marconi, Director, DPH C 2  

DATE: 	March 18, 2021 

RE: 	Commercial Mooring Transfer 

The Pease Development Authority, Division of Ports and Harbors has received a request 
for the transfer of a commercial mooring, permit #827, from Thomas Lyons to Joyce 
Love. 

I have reviewed the attached paperwork and concur with the local Harbormaster and 
Chief Harbormaster that the request meets all the requirements of the PDA-DPH Code of 
Administrative Rules regarding commercial mooring transfers. Therefore, I am 
requesting approval of the transfer. 

If you have any questions or need further information, please let me know. 

C...)000 TAKING YOU THERE 

ph. 603-435-8500 	1a:(. 603-4 3 ,5-2780 
	

WWW peasedh,.ocg 



Division of Ports & Harbors 
Memorandum 

To: 	Capt. Geno J. Marconi 

From: 	Chief H/M Tracy R. Shattuck /0 

Re: 	Commercial Transfer 

Date: 	March 17, 2021 

Thomas Lyons and Joyce Love are requesting the transfer of a Mooring Permit 
(#827) in the Hampton Harbor mooring field area 1. Attached is documentation of 
Love's commercial enterprise in the form of a fishing license. Also attached is the 
transfer request from Lyons. Joyce Love is the registered owner of the boat and her son, 
Eric, is going to fish with it. They have asserted that they understand that the mooring 
must remain in commercial use. 

I have reviewed this application and I believe that it is in compliance with the 
administrative rules. 

I recommend that permit #827 be transferred to: 

Joyce Love 
178 Haskell Road 
North Yarmouth, ME 04097 



PEASE 
INTE R NATIONAL 

PORTS AND HARBORS 

TO: 	Paul Brean, Executive Director, PDA 

FROM: 	Geno J. Marconi, Director, DP 

DATE: 	March 30, 2021 

RE: 	Commercial Mooring For Hire 

The Pease Development Authority, Division of Ports and Harbors has received a request 
for a commercial mooring for hire from Point of View Condominium Association. 

I have reviewed the attached paperwork and concur with the local Harbormaster and 
Chief Harbormaster that the request meets all the requirements of the PDA-DPH Code of 
Administrative Rules regarding commercial moorings for hire. Therefore, I am 
requesting approval of the application. 

If you have any questions or need further information, please let me know. 





Division of Ports & Harbors 
Memorandum 

To: 
	

Captain Geno J. Marconi 

From: 
	

Tracy R. Shattuck, Chief H/M 

Re: 
	

Point of View Condo Assn. Commercial Mooring for Hire Application 

Date: 
	

March 30, 2021 

Point of View Condominium Association has shorefront property in Peirce Island 
back channel that is leased to a tenant. Point of View Condo Assn. is requesting that a 
mooring be issued as a Commercial Mooring for Hire for the use of the occupying tenant. 

With the file is the deed. The property was recently subdivided so the tax map 
and tax bill are not yet available. 

I recommend approval of the application as it meets all criteria for a Commercial 
Mooring for Hire permit. 





PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

PORTS AND HARBORS 

Date: 	April 6, 2021 

To: 	PDA Board of Directors 

From: 	Geno Marconi, Directo 

Subject: 	Foreign-Trade Zone #81 Annual Report 

On March 31, 2021, the Division of Ports and Harbors (the "Division") submitted to the U.S. 
Department of Commerce Foreign-Trade Zones ("FTZ") Board the 2020 annual report for the Federal 
Fiscal year, October 1, 2019-September 30, 2020, on activities in Foreign-Trade Zone #81. 

FTZ's are areas designated by the FTZ Board and under the supervision of U.S. Customs and Border 
Protection ("USCBP"). For the purpose of assessment and collection of import duties, merchandise in 
a FTZ site are considered not to have entered the commerce of the United States and therefore duties 
are not payable while in the FTZ. FTZ's were established by Congress in 1932 to offer tax incentives 
to companies that would normally operate off shore, to remain within the United States to stimulate the 
economy and create and retain jobs. That remains true today. 

The New Hampshire Port Authority was awarded a Grant of Authority as Foreign-Trade Zone #81 in 
1982 and when the NH Legislature merged the "Port Authority" with the Pease Development Authority 
in 2001, the FTZ Grant of Authority was included. 

Although the Division's annual report contains proprietary business information, the FTZ Board's final 
report to Congress contains a range of business/financial information. Currently FTZ #81 has three (3) 
active FTZ businesses: 

1. Textile Coated International — Manchester 
2. Millipore Corporation — Jaffrey 
3. Rochester Electronics — Pease Tradeport, Portsmouth 

Attached for reference is the page from the previous year's FTZ Board's annual report (FY 2019) to 
Congress regarding FTZ #81 activity. 

TAKING YOU THERE 





STATE SUMMARY 

Merchandise Received: $100-250 mil 

Exports: 55-10 mil 

Total Shipments: 5100-250 mil 

Employees: 1,251-1,500 

■ Pharmaceuticals (99%) 

■ Other Electronics (<1%) 

Plastic/Rubber (<1%) 

Annual Report of the Foreign - Trade Zones Board — 2019 
	

Appendix D 

NEW HAMPSHIRE 

TOP FOREIGN-STATUS PRODUCTS BY VALUE 

FTZ 81, PORTSMOUTH 
GRANTEE: PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY, DIVISION OF PORTS AND HARBORS 

All. Activity: 
MERCHANDISE RECEIVED EXPORTS  EMPLOYEES 

$100-250 mil $5-10 mil 1,251-1,500 

Warehouse/Distribution Activity: 
NUMBER OF COMPANIES MERCHANDISE RECEIVED 

1 

EXPORTS TOTAL SHIPMENTS 
1 $1-5 mil $0 $0 

Production Activity: 
COMPANY MERCHANDISE RECEIVED EXPORTS 	I TOTAL SHIPMENTS 

81 Textiles Coated International $10-25 mil $5-10 mil I 	$10-25 mil 
81D Millipore Corporation 	I 	 5100-250 mil 51-5 mil I 	5100-250 mil 

90 





Ow-- 
PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

MOTION  

Director Levesque: 

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors, in accordance 

with NH Code of Administrative Rules Pda 300 Port Captains, Pilots and 

Pilotage, and the memorandum of Geno Marconi, Division Director, dated 

March 16, 2021, attached hereto, hereby approves the reappointment of 

Captain Richard C. Holt, Jr. as a Class I Pilot for the Portsmouth Harbor and 

Piscataqua River through March 4, 2026. 

NOTE: 	Roll Call vote required. 

N: \ RESOLVES \ 2021 \DPH - Reappointment of Holt as Class I Pilot 4-1 5-21.docx 

TAKING YOU THERE 





PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

PORTS AND HARBORS 

Date: 	March 16, 2021 

To: 
	

Pease Development Authority ("PDA") Board of Directors 

From: 
	

Geno J. Marconi, Port Directo 

Subject: 	Pilot Reappointment 

In accordance with the Code of Administrative Rules, CHAPTER Pda 300 PORT 
CAPTAINS, PILOTS AND PILOTAGE the Division of Ports and Harbors (the 
"Division") has received a completed application for reappointment as a Class I pilot from 
Captain Richard C. Holt, Jr. 

The Division had reviewed the application and has found that Captain Holt has met the 
requirements as set forth in: 

• Pda 305.03 
• Pda 305.06 (except Pda 305.06(b)(5)and (7)) 
• Pda 305.08 

Therefore the Division of Ports and Harbors recommends the PDA Board of Directors 
approve the reappointment of Captain Richard C. Holt, Jr as a Class I pilot for Portsmouth 
Harbor and the Piscataqua River for the following term: 

TERM:  

The appointment shall be for a term concurrent with Captain Holts Merchant Mariner 
Credential which expires 4-Mar-2026 (Pda 305.01(d)) and subject to the requirements for 
Annual Certifications (Pda 305.09) 

TAKING YOU THERE 





PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

MOTION  

Director Lamson: 

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors authorizes the 

Executive Director to enter into a contract with Appledore Marine 

Engineering, LLC, the Division of Ports and Harbors' ("DPH") on-call marine 

engineer, in a total amount not to exceed $46,721.00 from the Harbor 

Dredging and Pier Maintenance Fund, to assist the DPH in obtaining the 

necessary regulatory approvals for Main Wharf dredging improvements; all 

in accordance with the memorandum of Geno J. Marconi, dated April 6, 

2021, attached hereto. 

NOTE: 	Roll Call vote required. 

N: \ RESOLVES \ 2021 DPH - Appledore for Regulatory Approvals for Main Wharf Dredging.docx 

TAKING YOU THERE 





PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

PORTS AND HARBORS 

To: 	Pease Development Authority ("PDA"), Board of Directors 

From: 	Geno Marconi, Direct 

Date: 	April 6, 2021 

Subject: 	Harbor Dredging and Pier Maintenance ("HDPM") Fund 

A hydrographic survey completed on March 1, 2021 confirms some shoaling along the berth 
line of the Main Wharf at the Market Street Marine Terminal. Records indicate that the last 
time the berth line was dredged was during construction in 1964. Taking into consideration 
that there are several dredging projects planned in the Piscataqua River beginning in 
November 2021, the Division determined it would be in its best interest to have a Standard 
Dredge and Fill Permit application (the "Application") approved in order to be in a positon to 
bid the berth line dredging when the other dredging project contracts have been awarded in 
hopes of maximizing efficiency and obtaining competitive bids. 

Appledore Marine Engineering, LLC. ("AME") our "On Call" marine engineers submitted a 
proposal, attached, to provide services to assemble the Application to DES. Preliminary 
estimates indicate that there is less than 6,000 cubic yards of dredge materials to be removed. 
The project cost for AME's services, not to exceed $46,721.00, would come from the HDPM 
fund as approved by the Capital Budget Overview Committee ("CBOC") on April 2, 2021, 
attached. 

The Division recommends that the Pease Development Authority approve the expenditure of 
not more than $46,721.00 for the purpose of accepting and funding a proposal from AME to 
support the owner in obtaining the necessary regulatory approvals for Main Wharf dredging 
improvements. The balance of the HDPM Fund as of April 5, 2021 is $280,510.00. 

TAKING YOU THERE 





Appledore Marine 
Engineering, LLC 

600 State Street, Suite E Portsmouth New Hampshire 03801 

February 18, 2021 

Captain Geno Marconi 
Director Division of Ports and Harbors 
555 Market Street, PO Box 369 
Portsmouth, New Hampshire 03802 

Re: 	Proposal to Provide Marine Engineering Services 
Main Pier Dredging 
Portsmouth, New Hampshire 

Dear Captain Marconi: 

Appledore Marine Engineering, LLC (AME) is pleased to present this proposal for Marine Engineering services for the above-
referenced project. This proposal will discuss the Background, Scope of Services, Schedule of Work and Fee for the services 
required to complete the work. 

BACKGROUND: 

The currently programmed functional replacement project is scheduled to lengthen the pier to the north and complete dredge 
improvements. This project does not address dredging needs along the remainder of the pier with areas of existing depths as shallow 
as -26 in reference to MLLW. The berth was originally designed to a depth of -35 ft MLLW in the 1960's; however, due to the length 
of time since the last historical dredging this will be viewed as dredging improvements and will require the full permitting process and 
will be unable to take advantage of the streamlined maintenance dredge process. 

PROJECT UNDERSTANDING: 

We understand the project is to complete the regulatory permits for dredge the main pier to a depth of -35 ft MLLW, thus affording 
the opportunity to take advantage of a mobilized dredge contractor while dredging is being completed for the functional replacement 
project. 

SCOPE OF SERVICES: 

This scope of services is developed to support the owner in obtaining the necessary regulatory approvals for the main pier dredging. 

The first phase of the project will include the development of a dredge material sampling plan and coordinating with the ACOE to 
gain the necessary approvals for the sampling and testing. Upon approval, bottom sampling and the follow-on laboratory testing will 
be completed. 

AME will schedule a permitting coordination meeting with the applicable State and Federal Agencies. This initial meeting will provide 
a brief understanding to the regulatory contacts and identify the basic process. 

AME will continue coordination and complete the regulatory applications to the State and Federal Government. Upon completion of 
the applications AME will provide draft copies for PDA-DPH to review and sign. At this point the appropriate regulatory and town 
fees will be identified and AME will provide documentation of the amounts so PDA-DPH may provide the required checks to the 
appropriate agencies. 

Ph: 603-766-1870 I www.appledoremarine.com  





Main Wharf Dredge 	 AME Project Number: 30227 
Proposal for Engineering Services 	 2/1812021  

The following regulatory permits or certifications are anticipated to be required. 
• US Army Corps of Engineers Section 404 of the Clean Water Act 
• US Army Corps of Engineers Section 401 Water Quality Certification 
• NH Department of Environmental Resources Standard Dredge and Fill Permit 
• Coastal Zone Management Consistency 

AME will present the project to the City of Portsmouth Conservation Committee as part of the NH Standard Dredge and Fill 
Application to seek concurrence. 

Conditions of Proposal: 

1. Regulatory permitting application fees and environmental mitigation will be paid by the Owner. 

2. Based on the recent history at the site this project is premised that the dredge material will be deemed suitable for offshore 
disposal without biological testing. If another disposal option or additional testing is required, a modification to this proposal 
will be developed for owner review and approval prior to proceeding. 

3. This proposal is to obtain permits and does not include contract documents or construction support services, if those are 
required in the future a separate proposal will be provided. 

4. Sampling will be completed by divers without mobilizing a jack-up barge. If ACOE requires more extensive samples beyond 
the capabilities of divers a modification to this proposal will be provided for consideration. 

5. No site-specific detailed studies of rare species or ecology will be required. 

SCHEDULE: 

AME will commence work on the project immediately upon written notice to proceed and anticipate completion of the sampling and 
testing within 45 days and anticipate 90 days from submission of the permits to obtain approvals. It is recommended to plan for a 4-
6-month total duration to obtain the permits from notice to proceed. 

FEES: 

Fees for consulting services will be on a fixed fee basis in the amount of $46,721 in accordance with the attached schedule. 

Prompt payment of invoices is necessary for us to maintain a schedule and provide responsible service. We will invoice monthly for 
our engineering services and reimbursable expenses. Payment is due within thirty (30) days of date of invoice. 

Thank you for giving us the opportunity to present a proposal for this work. 

If you have any questions or require additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me. 

Regards, 

Noah J. Elwood, PE 
President 

This Proposal is subject and subordinate to the Agreement for Marine Engineering Services between the Parties dated July 1, 2017. 





Pease Development Authority Division of Ports and Harbors 
555 Market St. Portsmouth, NH 03801 
Phone-603-436-8500 Fax 603-436-2780 
11 , 11 , 1v.i.7ort(..6th.or:? 

CAP 21-008 

March 22, 2021 

The Honorable Chairman 
Capital Budget Overview Committee 
State House 
Concord, NH 03301 
Attn: Office of Legislative Budget Assistant, State House Room 102 

Re: Harbor Dredging and Pier Maintenance Fund 

REQUESTED ACTION 

Approved by the Capital Budget 
Overview Committee 04/02/2021 

In accordance with RSA 12-G:46, III, Harbor Dredging and Pier Maintenance Fund Established, the Pease 
Development Authority Division of Ports and Harbors ("the Division") is requesting approval of the Capital Budget 
Overview Committee to expend not more than $46,721.00 from the Harbor Dredging and Pier Maintenance Fund 
("HDPM") for the purpose of accepting and funding a proposal from its on call marine engineering company, 
Appledore Marine Engineering, LLC., to support the owner in obtaining the necessary regulatory approvals for 
main pier dredging improvements, in conjunction with the Functional Replacement project. The balance of the 
Harbor Dredging and Pier Maintenance Fund as of March 22, 2021 is $250,933.69. 

EXPLANATION 

The currently programmed Functional Replacement project is scheduled to lengthen the pier to the north and 
complete dredge improvements. This project does not address dredging needs along the remainder of the pier with 
areas of existing depths as shallow as -26 in reference to MLLW. The berth was originally designed to a depth of -
35 ft. MLLW (Mean Lower Low Water) in the 1960's; however, due to the length of time since the last historical 
dredging this will be viewed as dredging improvements, which will require the full permitting process, and will be 
unable to take advantage of the streamlined maintenance dredge process. A copy of the latest multi-beam 
hydrographic survey is attached. 

The Division requested and received a proposal, attached hereto, from its on call marine engineering company, 
Appledore Marine Engineering, LLC to support the owner in obtaining the necessary regulatory approvals for the 
main pier dredging. The following regulatory permits or certifications are anticipated to be required: 

US Army Corps of Engineers Section 404 of the Clean Water Act 
US Army Corps of Engineers Section 401 Water Quality Certification 
NH Department of Environmental Resources Standard Dredge and Fill Permit 
Coastal Zone Management Consistency 

Therefore, the Pease Development Authority, Division of Ports and Harbors requests approval to spend no more 
than $46,721.00 from the Harbor Dredging and Pier Maintenance Fund, subject to final approval by the Pease 
Development Authority Board of Directors. The balance of the Harbor Dredging and Pier Maintenance Fund as of 
March 22, 2021 is $250,933.69. 

Sincerely, 

Geno J. Ma ni, Division Director 

Cc: 	Paul E. Brean, Executive Director, Pease Development Authority 
Irving Canner, Director of Finance 

• 
• 

• 




